OREGON

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR SESSION AGENDA
Tuesday, May 26, 2020 - 7:00 PM
City Hall, Council Chambers, 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365

This meeting will be held electronically. The public can live-stream this meeting at
newportoregon.gov/citygov/icomm/pc.asp. The meeting will also be broadcast on Charter
Channel 190. Public comment may be made, via e-mail, up to two hours before the meeting start
time at publiccomment@newportoregon.gov. Additionally, anyone wishing to speak on any
agenda item, or during public comment, should e-mail their telephone number, and the item they
wish to address, up to two hours before the start of the meeting, to
s.marineau@newportoregon.gov, and staff will telephone that person when that item is being
discussed at the meeting.

The agenda may be amended during the meeting to add or delete items, change the order of
agenda items, or discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting.

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES

2.A Approval of the Planning Commission Regular Session Meeting Minutes of April 13,
2020.
Draft PC Reg Session Minutes 04-13-2020

3. CITIZENS/PUBLIC COMMENT
A Public Comment Roster is avallable immediately inside the Council Chambers.
Anyone who would like to address the Planning Commission on any matter not on the
agenda will be given the opportunity after signing the Roster. Each speaker should limit
comments to three minutes. The normal disposition of these items will be at the next
scheduled Planning Commission meeting.

4. ACTION ITEMS


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599098/Draft_PC_Reg_Session_Minutes_04-13-2020.pdf

5.A

5.B

5.C

PUBLIC HEARINGS

File 1-CUP-20: Conditional Use Permit for Construction of the Newport Basics Public
Market at the Old Apollos Site.
Memorandum

Attachment A

Attachment B

Attachment C

Attachment D

Attachment E

Attachment F

Attachment G

Attachment H

Attachment |

Attachment J

Attachment K

Attachment L

Attachment M

Attachment N

Attachment O

File Nos. 1-CP-18 and 3-Z-20: Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning
Ordinance to Establish a Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone. (Continued from the April 13,
2020 Hearing Date).

Memorandum

Staff Memorandum - CORRECTED

Attachment A

Attachment B

Attachment C

Attachment D

Attachment E

Attachment F

Attachment G

Attachment H

Additional Public Testimony - Grusing

Additional Public Testimony - Chadwich

File No. 2-Z-20: Amendments to NMC Section 14.30.080, Permitted Uses; and Section
14.30.100, Special Zoning Standards in Design Review Districts, to Prohibit Residential
Uses at Street Grade Within the Historic Nye Beach Design Review District for Property
Along the West Side of NW Cliff Street. (Continued from the April 13, 2020 Hearing
Date).

Memorandum

Staff Memorandum

Attachment A

Attachment B


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599714/File_1-CUP-20_-_Staff_Memo.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599715/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_A.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599716/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_B.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599717/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_C.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599718/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_D.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599719/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_E.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599720/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_F.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599721/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_G.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599722/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_H.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599723/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_I.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599724/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_J.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599725/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_K.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599726/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_L.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599727/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_M.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599728/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_N.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599729/File_1-CUP-20_-_Attachment_O.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599278/File_1-CP-18_-_3-Z-20_-_Memorandum.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599283/File_1-CP-18_-_3-Z-20_-_Staff_Memo_-_CORRECTED.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599284/File_1-CP-18_-_3-Z-20_-_Attachment_A.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599285/File_1-CP-18_-_3-Z-20_-_Attachment_B.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599286/File_1-CP-18_-_3-Z-20_-_Attachment_C.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599287/File_1-CP-18_-_3-Z-20_-_Attachment_D.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599288/File_1-CP-18_-_3-Z-20_-_Attachment_E.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599289/File_1-CP-18_-_3-Z-20_-_Attachment_F.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599290/File_1-CP-18_-_3-Z-20_-_Attachment_G.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599291/File_1-CP-18_-_3-Z-20_-_Attachment_H.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599293/File_1-CP-18_-_3-Z-20_-_Additional_Public_Testimony_-_Grusing.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599294/File_1-CP-18_-_3-Z-20_-_Additional_Public_Testimony_-_Chadwich_Redacted.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599300/File_2-Z-20_-_Memorandum.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599301/File_2-Z-20_-_Staff_Memo.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599302/File_2-Z-20_-_Attachment_A.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599303/File_2-Z-20_-_Attachment_B.pdf

Attachment C
Attachment D
Attachment E
Attachment F
Attachment G

NEW BUSINESS

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

DIRECTOR COMMENTS

ADJOURNMENT


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599304/File_2-Z-20_-_Attachment_C.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599305/File_2-Z-20_-_Attachment_D.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599306/File_2-Z-20_-_Attachment_E.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599307/File_2-Z-20_-_Attachment_F.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/599308/File_2-Z-20_-_Attachment_G.pdf

Draft MINUTES
City of Newport Planning Commission
Regular Session
Newport City Hall Council Chambers
April 13, 2020

Planning Commissioners Present By Conference Call: Gary East, Lee Hardy, Bob Berman, Mike
Franklin, Jim Hanselman, Bill Branigan, and Jim Patrick.

City Staff Present: Community Development Director (CDD), Derrick Tokos; and Executive Assistant,
Sherri Marineau.

1. Call to Order & Roll Call. Chair Patrick called the meeting to order in the City Hall Council
Chambers at 7:00 p.m. On roll call, Commissioners East, Hardy, Berman, Franklin, Hanselman, Branigan,
and Patrick were present.

2. Approval of Minutes.
A. Approval of the Planning Commission Work and Regular Session Meeting Minutes of March 9,
2020.

Commissioner Berman submitted minor corrections to the March 9, 2020 Work Session meeting minutes.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Berman, seconded by Commissioner Franklin to approve the
Planning Commission Work and Regular Session Meeting Minutes of March 9, 2020 with minor
corrections. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote.

3. Citizen/Public Comment. None were heard.
4, Action Items. None were heard.
5. Public Hearings. At 7:32 p.m. Chair Patrick opened the public hearing portion of the meeting.

Chair Patrick read the statement of rights and relevance. He asked the Commissioners for declarations of
conflicts of interest, ex parte contacts, bias, or site visits. None were heard. Patrick called for objections to
any member of the Planning Commission or the Commission as a whole hearing this matter; and none were
heard.

A File 1-CP-18 / 3-Z-20.

Tokos reported that he would present the staff report at the hearing continuation on May 26, 2020. Berman
asked how it was determined who would be noticed for the hearing. Tokos said all properties within the
XXL boundary were noticed. Patrick asked who Jean Dahlquist was affiliated with and requested there be
clarification on the acronym for her organization at the hearing continuation.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Hardy, seconded by Commissioner East to continue the public
hearing for File 1-CP-18 and 3-Z-20 to the May 26, 2020 Regular Session meeting. The motion carried
unanimously in a voice vote.

B. File 2-Z-20.
Tokos reported that he would present the staff report for the hearing continuation on May 26, 2020. Berman
asked if there had been any discussions with the property owners related to issues on the west side of Cliff

Street. Tokos reported that other than the testimony provided by Charlotte Boxer, he talked to two owners
and neither had concerns with the proposed changes.

Page 1 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes —4/13/2020.



MOTION was made by Commissioner Berman, seconded by Commissioner Branigan to continue the
public hearing for File 2-Z-20 to the May 26, 2020 Regular Session meeting. The motion carried in a voice
vote. Hardy abstained.
6. New Business.

A. Updated Planning Commission Work Program.

Tokos noted the updated work program was based on his best guess on when they would be able to hold
public hearings were there was full confidence that people could participate in a meaningful way. He
reviewed the program and noted there were three quasi-judicial applications on the program that the City
was legally obligated to complete their review within 120 days. Berman asked if there had been any
discussions on flexibility to these rules. Tokos reported there had been, and this was one of the things the
League of Oregon Cities could get addressed. He noted that written advice from LUBA said this was
something that needed to be dealt with by the Legislature, not the Governor.

Patrick asked for an update on the progress with the Transportation System Plan. Tokos reported that in the
interest of not having the consultants work hours from home, the project was put on hold. The dates for
workshops in mid-May probably wouldn’t happen, but the June public workshops might. Tokos explained
that they also proposed to budget some additional Urban Renewal dollars for this project, recognizing that
the types of outreach they envisioned might not be the best form of outreach. They might have to do more
in the way of online surveying than they budgeted. Their best guess for when the public workshops would
be held was in mid-June.

Patrick asked about doing video conferences for the Planning Commission meetings. Tokos said the City
Council did a dry run on this at their last meeting, and it had a mixed bag of results. He thought the
Commission might need to do this moving forward if there were any restrictions on who could attend public
meetings. Tokos thought the Commission might do a dry run by video before they used it for a real meeting,
and they might have to run the May 26th meeting this way. Patrick asked if they would need to notice the
dry run. Tokos confirmed they would.

Hardy asked for an update on the waiver for the 30 day rental requirement for Short-Term Rental (STR)
licenses for the Nye Sands Condo units, and asked if there had been any action on this. She also questioned
if there would be any issues for other STR owners on the 30 day use requirement due to the restrictions on
rental activity at that time period. Tokos thought there would be a conversation with the STR
Implementation Work Group about this. If STRs were banned for rentals for 3 months, they would have to
discuss a provision in the rules. Hardy asked about the preexisting request for the Nye Sands condos. Tokos
explained they would make sure this would happen and be addressed.

7. Unfinished Business. None were heard.
8. Director Comments. None were heard.
9. Adjournment. Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:18 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Sherri Marineau
Executive Assistant

Page 2 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes —4/13/2020.



Case File: #1-CUP-20
Date Filed: February 20, 2020 (Complete March 12, 2020)
Hearing Date: Originally April 13, 2020. Rescheduled to May 26, 2020/Planning Commission

PLANNING STAFF REPORT
Case File No. 1-CUP-20

A. APPLICANT: Dustin Capri, AIA, Capri Architecture, LLC (applicant). Charles Eggert
in an individual capacity and as manager of Elsinore Investments, LLC (owners).

B. REQUEST: Approval per Chapter 14.03.080(18)/“Water-Dependent and Water-Related
Uses” of the Newport Municipal Code (NMC) for a conditional use permit to replace the
former Forinash Gallery, Shark’s Restaurant, M&P Thai Restaurant and Apollo’s Night
Club with a new 11,859 square foot mixed use building. The new building will include
3,000 square feet of retail market space, 2,000 square feet of restaurant space, and 6,859
square feet of light industrial space for food production.

C. LOCATION: 836, 838, 844, 846, 848, 852, & 856 SW Bay Blvd.

D. LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lots 2, 3, & 4, Block 1, Plan of Newport, including a portion
of a vacated alley, together with Parcels 1 and 2 of Partition Plat 1999-18 (Assessor’s Map
11-11-08-CA, Tax Lots 2500, 2501, 2800, and 3300).

E. LOT SIZE: Approximately 17,424 sq. ft. per Lincoln County Tax Assessor records.

F. STAFF REPORT

1. REPORT OF FACT
a. Plan Designation: Yaquina Bay Shoreland.
b. Zone Designation: W-2/“Water-Related.”

c. Surrounding Land Uses: Tourist-oriented retail (north), tourist-oriented
retail and fish processing (east), condominiums (west), and Coast Guard
operations (south).

d. Topography and Vegetation: The property is relatively level having been
cleared for development in the past. A large retaining wall exists near the
west property boundary, with the finished grade of the condominiums to the
west being 20-25 feet above that of the subject site. A small amount of
landscaping exists at the southwest corner of the property. Otherwise, the
property is largely devoid of vegetation.

e. Existing Structures: Forinash Gallery (1,224 sq. ft.), Shark’s Restaurant
(978 sq. ft.), and Apollo’s Night Club/M&P Thai Restaurant (8,256 sq. ft.)

f. Utilities: All are available to the site.

g. Development Constraints: Geologic hazards area.

PLANNING STAFF REPORT / Charles Eggert & Elsinore Investments, LLC / File # 1-CUP-20 Page 1 of 9



h. Past Land Use Actions: File No. 1-TSP-11 — Approval of a temporary
structures permit for a 20-ft x 30-ft tent and fenced area to expand Apollo’s
footprint during the Seafood and Wine Festival. Approved 2/7/11.

File No. 4-CUP-07. Permitted a 335 sq. ft. portion of the Apollo’s
Nightclub building for use of a real estate office. Approved 6/4/07.

File No. 4-CUP-06. Permitted 600 sq. ft. of the Apollo’s Night Club
building for use as a retail gift shop. Approved 4/24/06.

File No. 9-CUP-03. Approved use of the building at 836-848 SW Bay Blvd
as a restaurant and bar (i.e. Apollo’s Night Club).

File No. 6-PAR-99. Approved a partition creating the parcels upon which
Forinash Gallery and Shark’s Restaurant are situated. Affects 852, & 856
SW Bay Blvd. Approved 8/4/99.

File No. 2-CUP-91. Permitted the remodeling and retail use of buildings
located at 852 & 856 SW Bay Blvd. Approved 3/11/91.

1. Notification: The original hearing date of April 13, 2020 was cancelled
due to the COVID-19 pandemic. A new hearing date was set for May 26,
2020.  Notification to surrounding property owners and to city
departments/public agencies announcing the new public hearing date was
mailed on May 6, 2020; and notice was published in the Newport News-
Times on May 15, 2020.

i Attachments:

Attachment "A" — Application Form

Attachment "B" — Lincoln County Assessor Property Reports
Attachment “C” — Lincoln County Assessor Map

Attachment "D" — Proposed Business Plan

Attachment "E" — Application Narrative

Attachment "F" — Response to Completeness Review / Updated Site Plan
Attachment "G" — Survey of the Existing Property

Attachment "H" — Renderings of the Proposed “Basics Market”
Attachment "I" — Architectural Elevations of the Proposed “Basics Market”
Attachment "J" — Signage Concepts for “Basics Market”

Attachment "K" — Zoning Map of the Area

Attachment "L" — Aerial and Topographic Map of the Area

Attachment "M" — 2013 Aerial Photograph

Attachment "N" — Uses in the W-2 Zoning District

Attachment "O" — Public Hearing Notice

2. Explanation of the Request: Pursuant to Chapter 14.03.080(18)/“Water-
dependent and Water-related Uses” of the Newport Municipal Code (NMC), a retail
use that is permitted outright in a C-2/“Tourist Commercial” zoning district requires
a conditional use permit to be located in a W-2/“Water-Related” zoning district.

PLANNING STAFF REPORT / Charles Eggert & Elsinore Investments, LLC / File # 1-CUP-20 Page 2 of 9



The applicant is requesting the conditional use permit to construct a new 11,859
square foot mixed-retail, light industrial building. The facility will include 3,000
sq. ft. of retail market space, 2,000 sq. ft. of restaurant space, and 6,859 sq. ft. of
industrial space for food production. Retail market and restaurant uses are
permitted outright in a C-2 zone district (NMC 14.03.070(2)(a) and (2)(d)).
Manufacturing in conjunction with a use permitted outright in a C-2 zone district
requires conditional use approval (NMC 14.03.080(19)). The applicant indicates
that manufacturing will be for food production that will, in part, occur to support
the restaurant and market activities. Some of the manufactured goods will be
distributed off-site. The Planning Commission is charged with interpreting the
zoning ordinance in circumstances that require factual, policy or legal discretion
(NMC 14.52.030(B)(9)). The extent to which goods manufactured in conjunction
with a use permitted outright in a C-2 zone must be directed to support the permitted
uses (i.e. the market and restaurant operations) fits within the Commission’s
interpretive purview.

In their business plan, the applicant notes:

Basics, LLC will create and construct the region's first Public Market located on
Bay Boulevard in Newport's waterfront district. The space will be designed for use
as an open-air public market featuring locally produced products with accessible
prices. This concept may feature a USDA compliant food production space with
additional ODA compliant hot and cold foods stations.

The open-air marketplace will allow for tastings and purchases.

Our public space business hours will be regular retail hours with potential for 7
days a week: 10a - 8p, hours may vary. Production facility may be in operation
outside public business hours.

The public market does not anticipate heavy odor or noise from the site.

The public market objective is to provide jobs and enhance community gathering
in the Coastal communities of Lincoln County. Target design is open air
warehouse/marketplace and partial food manufacturing facility. We will leverage
current brand status of Basics, LLC and Wild Rose Foods by introducing product
lines to Newport customers.

Offering public market style philosophies, we may open the conversation with our
neighbors about everything from soil management to the weather and how it all
coalesces at Basics Public Market on Bay St. to offer "just what you need" to get
your "nourishment from the ground up!"

3. Evaluation of the Request:

a. Comments: No comments have been received in response to the notice
mailed to surrounding property owners and to city departments/public
agencies on May 6, 2020 or legal ad published in the Newport News-Times
on May 15, 2020.

PLANNING STAFF REPORT / Charles Eggert & Elsinore Investments, LLC / File # 1-CUP-20 Page 3 of 9



b. Conditional Use Criteria (NMC Chapter 14.34.050):

(1) The public facilities can adequately accommodate the proposed use.

(2) The request complies with the requirements of the underlying zone or
overlay zone.

(3) The proposed use does not have an adverse impact greater than existing
uses on nearby properties; or impacts can be ameliorated through imposition
of conditions of approval.

(4) A proposed building or building modification is consistent with the
overall development character of the neighborhood with regard to building
size and height, considering both existing buildings and potential buildings
allowable as uses permitted outright.

c. Staff Analysis:

NMC 14.34.040(A) requires that applications include a site plan showing
the dimensions and arrangement of the proposed development on the lot.
The applicant provided a site plan of the proposed building layout
(Attachment “F”), exterior architectural renderings and elevations of the
proposed building (Attachments “H” and “I””) and illustrations of proposed
signage (Attachment “J”). This should provide the Planning Commission
with enough information to evaluate the application.

NMC 14.52.030(B)(9) indicates that a Type III decision—making procedure,
with review and approval by the Planning Commission, is required for
interpretations of the Zoning Ordinance that involve factual, policy or legal
discretion. The Zoning Ordinance allows manufacturing in conjunction
with uses permitted outright in a C-2 zone, but does not specify the extent
to which the manufacturing operations must be linked to the permitted use.
Policy discretion is involved in determining how much of a link is needed
between the market/restaurant and manufacturing activities; therefore,
Planning Commission review is required.

To grant the permit, the Planning Commission must find that the applicant's
proposal meets the following criteria.

(1) The public facilities can adequately accommodate the proposed use.

Public facilities are defined in the Zoning Ordinance as sanitary sewer, water,
streets and electricity. All public facilities are available and serve the property.

The applicant notes that the current site consists of three separate buildings
that are currently in poor condition. One building was used as a nightclub,
restaurant, retail space and office building. The second building was being
used as a restaurant and the final building was used as an art gallery. These
uses represented significant impacts with large occupancies and therefore

PLANNING STAFF REPORT / Charles Eggert & Elsinore Investments, LLC / File # 1-CUP-20 Page 4 of 9



10

represent a considerable historical impact to the public facilities along Bay
Boulevard. The applicant indicates that the new proposed use is a slightly
larger building but represents a significantly smaller impact on the public
facilities and infrastructure.

Additionally, the applicant indicates that they have met with city staff to
review the site conditions and believe that the public infrastructure and
facilities are adequate to accommodate the proposed development.

As shown on the applicant’s site plan (Attachment “F”) and the aerial map
(Attachment “L”), street and sidewalk access to this developed site is available
off SW Bay Boulevard. This public street is a fully improved, paved collector
roadway. The Planning Commission may accept this information as sufficient
evidence that street and sidewalk access to the property is adequate. The City
provides water service to the site via a 12-inch main in SW Bay Boulevard.
Sewer service is provided by a 10-inch gravity line in SW Bay Boulevard.
Storm drainage is collected in catch basins and directed under SW Bay
Boulevard to the bay. The existing facility utilizes these services. The
services have been sized to accommodate regional development in the area,
including industrial users such as the fish plants along SW Bay Boulevard and
the Commission can rely upon the presence of these utilities to establish that
the water, sewer, and storm drainage services are adequate to support the
proposed uses. Electric service is available to the existing building.

Given the above, it is reasonable for the Planning Commission to find that the
public facilities can adequately accommodate the retail use.

2) The request complies with the requirements of the underlying zone or
overlay zone.

This criterion addresses requirements of the underlying or overlay zone.
Each zoning district includes “intent” language. For the W-2 district, it
includes the following:

“All conditional uses in a W-2 district shall also comply with the following
standard: In areas considered to be historic, unique, or scenic, the

proposed use shall be designed to maintain or enhance the historic, unique,
or scenic quality.” (NMC 14.03.040)

The applicant has provided architectural renderings, elevation drawings,
and signage details (Attachments “H,” “I,” and “J”). This gives Planning
Commission members a clear sense of how the new building will look when
it is completed.

The applicant acknowledges that the Bayfront area falls into this category,
as it is historic, unique, and scenic. They believe that the proposed building
contributes to the spirit and overall design concept of a unique working
waterfront. They have incorporated space for a mural, on the south facing

PLANNING STAFF REPORT / Charles Eggert & Elsinore Investments, LLC / File # 1-CUP-20 Page 5 of 9



11

elevation, to complement and build upon the visual art present on other
buildings along the Bayfront (Attachment “I”). Additionally, the building
height maintains a lower profile that is sensitive to upslope residential users,
and comparable to many buildings along the same side of the street.

The applicant asserts that the proposed project will enhance the southern
part of the Bayfront by replacing existing buildings that are in disrepair and
providing a new facility to help promote local food production and a new
public market. The food production component will largely focus on the
production of cheese and dairy products. Additionally, they point out that
the existing parcels and buildings do not comply with city landscaping
requirements, which they will rectify with 197 sq. ft. of landscape area and
61 sq. ft. of landscape planters. The applicant points out that they are
committed to ensuring that the new building will comply with the parking
requirements, building height, lot coverage, building setbacks, bicycle
storage, and landscaping standards of the Newport Municipal Code.

For these reasons, it would be reasonable for the Planning Commission to
find that the new building compliments the unique qualities of the area and
that, therefore, this criterion is satisfied. This is a subjective approval
standard, and if Commission members feel that there are aspects of the design
that are out of place, then it would be appropriate to point them out so that the
applicant may respond.

Another aspect of the W-2 zone district that the Planning Commission should
consider is the provision that allows “manufacturing in conjunction with a use
permitted outright in a C-2 zone district subject to conditional use approval
(NMC 14.03.080(19)). The application materials loosely discuss the
relationship between the food production manufacturing component of the
operation and the restaurant and market uses. The Commission may want to
consider imposing a condition of approval to provide clarity as to how closely
these aspects of the operation need to be related. It appears that the applicant
has structured their business such that food production is necessary to supply
the market and restaurant, with off-site sales being an ancillary activity.
Assuming that is the case, then it would be reasonable for the Commission to
stipulate that manufacturing of food and food-related goods are to supply, and
be principally oriented to, the operations of the market and restaurant uses.

3) The proposed use does not have an adverse impact greater than
existing uses on nearby properties; or impacts can be ameliorated
through imposition of conditions of approval.

This criterion relates to the issue of whether the proposed use has potential
"adverse impacts" greater than existing uses and whether conditions may be
attached to ameliorate those "adverse impacts." Impacts are defined in the
Zoning Ordinance as including, but not being limited to, the effect of
nuisances such as dust, smoke, noise, glare, vibration, safety, and odors on a
neighborhood. Adequate off-street parking, or the lack thereof, may also be
considered by the Commission under this criterion.

PLANNING STAFF REPORT / Charles Eggert & Elsinore Investments, LLC / File # 1-CUP-20 Page 6 of 9



12

The applicant indicates that they believe the proposed replacement building
will not adverse impact nearby properties. Their narrative (Attachment “E”)
includes a chart listing the parking credit associated with the former uses of
the property. Using City parking ratios listed in NMC Chapter 14.14, the site
is credited with 49 spaces. By the same measure, the proposed use generates
a demand for 29 parking spaces.

Parking at the existing site is situated along the north side of the property. The
former Apollos night club claimed parking to the rear of the building;
however, that space is effectively a narrow, dead-end alley that was of
marginal use for that purpose. A 2013 aerial image of the property illustrates
this point (Attachment “M”).

The applicant’s site plan shows between 5-7 parking spaces, depending upon
whether the loading dock is in use. This is a modest reduction in off-street
parking when compared to what was functionally available at the Apollo’s
site. However, parking demand attributed to the new use is significantly lower
then what previously existed, and it would be reasonable for the Planning
Commission to conclude that, for this reason, the proposal will result in no
greater adverse impact relative to the demand for vehicle parking.

The applicant’s property, and the parcel to the north, have shared the use of
the existing SW Bay Blvd curb cut. This arrangement is illustrated on the
2013 aerial photograph. The applicant’s site plan illustrates a parking
arrangement that will prevent the property to the north from using the
driveway as they have historically, and they may need to reconfigure
improvements on their own property as a result. When asked about the access
arrangement, the applicant’s attorney responded that there is no recorded
cross-access easement in place giving the owner to the north a right to cross
his client’s property to access SW Bay Blvd (Attachment “F”’). Since there is
no information in the record indicating that a recorded easement exists, it
would be reasonable for the Commission to conclude that the proposed
parking arrangement will not adversely impact adjacent property owners
right-of-access onto SW Bay Blvd.

The applicant notes that use of the building will be consistent with the current
restaurants and general retail businesses that have historically occupied this
property. They point out that the historic bayfront has multiple industrial food
production facilities and that the industrial food production that will occur at
this site is consistent in appearance and use with the neighboring fish
processing facilities. Noise from the market and production component will
occur from within an enclosed structure, and the applicant expects that they
will be minimal and certainly less intrusive than the previous Apollo's night
club. The applicant indicates that all food production equipment and cooking
facilities will comply with the requirements of the Oregon Health Department,
Oregon Structural Specialty Code and Oregon Department of Agriculture,
which protect air quality and noise. A condition of approval is recommended

PLANNING STAFF REPORT / Charles Eggert & Elsinore Investments, LLC / File # 1-CUP-20 Page 7 of 9



13

requiring the applicant comply with such requirements. Lastly, the applicant
indicates that they believe the new modemized facility will benefit the
surrounding businesses and not have any adverse impacts and that, overall, the
project will contribute to the thriving tourism and food production spirit of the
Newport Bayfront.

Given the above, it is reasonable for the Planning Commission to find that this
criterion has been satisfied.

“4) A proposed building or building modification is consistent with the
overall development character of the neighborhood with regard to

building size and height, considering both existing buildings and
potential buildings allowable as uses permitted outright.

The applicant notes that, regarding the building height, great care was taken
to design a structure that would have minimal impact on the adjacent
properties. The roof height on the western facade (back of building) starts at
approximately 15'-6" and peaks at the eastern facade (Bay Boulevard) at
approximately 25' tall. This is significantly lower than the maximum
allowable building height of 35'. This was achieved by utilizing a 1"/ 12" roof
slope to minimize the height of the building and keep it at a community scale.
The existing retaining wall on the back of the property will be maintained and
not altered as a part of the project. The geotechnical engineer and structural
engineer will determine the precise setback to ensure the existing retaining
wall is unaltered. In terms of the building shape, the structure is consistent
with the frontage of the existing structures and will be similar in massing to
the existing structures in this location. The nature of the building is to attract
tourists, provide a public market for the community, and provide space for
local food production. The design reflects this, with exciting details and views
to experience the food production components from the public market. The
Bayfront area as a whole strives to attract tourists, promote industry and
employment for the community and this building will support those goals.

The applicant may need to adjust aspects of the exterior design to comply with
building codes, fire codes, and other public health and safety regulations,
including accessibility requirements. It is unlikely though that such changes
would materially impact size or height of the building. If that does happen,
then it would be appropriate for the Commission to require a new conditional
use permit, and a condition to that effect is included below.

Given the above, it is reasonable for the Planning Commission to find that the
use will be consistent with the overall development character of the
neighborhood regarding building size and height.

-+ Conclusion: If the Planning Commission finds that the applicant has met the
criteria established in the Zoning Ordinance for granting a conditional use permit,
then the Commission should approve the request. The Commission can attach
reasonable conditions that are necessary to carry out the purposes of the Zoning

PLANNING STAFF REPORT / Charles Eggert & Elsinore Investments, LLC / File # 1-CUP-20 Page 8 of 9



Ordinance and the Comprehensive Plan. If the Commission finds that the request
does not comply with the criteria, then the Commission should deny the application.

G. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: As outlined in this report, this application to replace
the former Forinash Gallery, Shark’s Restaurant, M&P Thai Restaurant and Apollo’s Night
Club with a new 11,859 square foot mixed use building, can satisfy the approval criteria
for a conditional use provided conditions are imposed as outlined below. Accordingly, the
Commission should approve this request, subject to the following:

1. Approval of this land use permit is based on the submitted written narrative and plans
listed as Attachments to the staff report. No use shall occur under this permit other than
that which is specified within these documents. It shall be the responsibility of the
applicant/property owner to comply with these documents and the limitations of approval
described herein.

2. Onsite manufacturing of food and food-related goods shall supply, and be principally
oriented to, the operations of the market and restaurant uses.

3. The applicant shall comply with all applicable building codes, fire codes, and other public
health and safety regulations to ensure that the use will not be detrimental to the safety
and health of persons in the neighborhood. The applicant is responsible for obtaining the
necessary approvals and permits pertaining to the proposed use. If the applicant must
materially modify the size or height of the building to comply with these codes, then a
conditional use permit shall be submitted to establish that the changes are consistent with
the overall development character of the neighborhood.

Derrick I. Tokos AICP
Community Development Director
City of Newport

May 21, 2020

PLANNING STAFF REPORT / Charles Eggert & Elsinore Investments, LLC / File # 1-CUP-20 Page 9 of 9

14



I: L2 “int Form |

City of Newport Attachment “A”
Land Use Application 1-CUP-20

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE - COMPLETE ALL BOXES - USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NEEDED

Applicant Name(s): operty Owner Name(s): 3
Capri Architecture, LLC - Attn:Dustin Capri, Al ArReyé%ne acnﬁé, LLC & Elsinore Investments, LLC

Attn: Charles Eggert
Applicant Mailing Address: Property Owner Mailing Address:
747 SW 13th Street 18555 SW Teton Avenue
Newport, OR 97365 ualatin, OR 97062
Applicant Telephone No.: §41-961-0503 IProperty Owner Telephone No.: §03-555-1212
lE-mai: dustin@capriarchitecture.com E-mail._charlie.eggert@keystone-pacific.com

Authorized Representative(s): Applicant/Owner

Authorized Representative Mailing Address:

Authorized Representative T‘elephone No.: E-Mail:
Project Information
[Property Location:
836, 838, 844, 846, 848, 852 & 856 SW Bay Boulevard, Newport, OR 97365
Tax Assessor's Map No: 11-11-08-CA |Tax Lot(s): 03300, 02800, 02500, 02501
Zone Designation. W2 Legal Description:

See Attached Survey

Comp Plan Designation:

Brief Description of Land Use Request(s):

Demolish 1,224sf General Retail Building (Forinash Gallery), 978sf Eating and Drinking Establishment Build-
ing (formerl?( Shark’s Restaurant), 8,256sf Eating and Drinking Establishment, General Office and General
Retail Building (formerly Apollo’s Night Club & M&P Thai Restaurant).

Construct new combined 3,000sf General Retail Market, 2,000sf Eating and Drinking Establishment and
6,859sf Industrial use Building. The industrial component of the project will be for food production. The new
approximately 11,859sf building is proposed to be constructed in the City of Newport W2 Zone.

Existing Structures: 1 Structure Tax Lot 03300 & 02800, 1 Structure Tax Lot 02500, 1 Structure Tax Lot 02501
Topography and Vegetation: gy gite with retaining walls along West (back) property lines. Minimal vegetation.
APPLICATION TYPE (please check all that apply)

(L] Annexation [ interpretation [J uGB Amendment
D Appeal D Minor Replat l___] Vacation
[] comp Plan/Map Amendment [[] partition [] variance/adjustment
B Conditional Use Permit [] planned Development [1ec

_Le ] Property Line Adjustment [ stafr

D. Staff D Shoreland Impact D Zone Ord/Map Amendment
[ pesign Review

, ‘ [_] subdivision (] other
OJ Geologic Permit )
D Temporary Use Permit

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
File No. Assigned: = "CJ&P - g—o

Date Received: wa{) Fee Amount: & gD*;; . Date Accepted as Complete:
Received By:m Receipt No.: 5520 i Accepted By:

(SEE REVERSE SIDE)
Community Development & Planning Departments 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365 Derrick |. Tokos, AICP, Director

02550 ~000014-PLIG,

110




©
—

| understand that | am responsible for addressing the legal criteria relevant to my application and that the
burden of proof justifying an approval of my application is with me. | also understand that this responsibility
is independent of any opinions expressed in the Community Development & Planning Department Staff
Report concerning the applicable criteria.

| certify that, to the best of my knowledge, all information provided in this application is accurate.

; / / .
e );%( i January 13, 2020
72 // A9p’|icant Signature(s) Date Signed
.
Prdpérty Owner Signature(s) Date Signed
Authorized Representative Signature(s) Date Signed

Please note application will not be accepted without all applicable signatures.

Please ask staff for a list of application submittal requirements for your specific type of request.

Community Development & Planning Departments 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365+ Derrick |. Tokos, AICP, Director

110



Lincoln County Property Report

17

Attachment “B”
1-CUP-20

Account # & Prop. Info Account Details Owner & Address
Account #: R392623 Neighborhood: Owner and ELSINORE INVESTMENTS LLC
Map Taxlot: 11-11-08-CA- N216 Mailing Address: _:_35:3\ _?mToE;g;log\zlE
02500-00 Property Class: 201 Site Address(es): 852 SW BAY BLVD
Tax Map: 11s11w08CA
Web Map: View Map
Info: P.P. 1999-18,
PARCEL 2,
ACRES 0.03,
DOC201812701
Tax Code: 104
Acres: 0.03
Improvements
Description Area Yr Built Found Heat Plumb BDMS Value
MAIN AREA 978 sq ft 1962 $65,590
Foundation Code List Heating/AC Code List Plumbing Code List
Value History
Year Imp. Land Total Market Total Assessed Levied Tax
2019 65,590 47,180 112,770 98,430 1,789.25
2018 51,930 47,180 99,110 95,570 1,734.35
2017 61,930 47,180 99,110 92,790 1,718.96
2016 49,740 47,180 96,920 90,090 1,682.58
2015 49,740 47,180 96,920 87,470 1,559.98
2014 49,740 47,180 96,920 84,930 1,524.98
2013 41,540 41,150 82,690 82,460 1,446.18
2012 46,730 41,150 87,880 80,060 1,388.17
Sales History
Sale Date Price Document Type Code
12/11/2018 $250,000 201812701/201812357 13 CWD
02/15/2012 $60,000 201201690 27 WD
04/10/1991 $110,000 MF228-1270 33 MISC
Land Related Accounts Disclaimer
Market Special Use For assessment purposes
Description Acres only. Lincoln County makes
Value  Value no warranty as to the
COMMERCIAL DEV SITE 0.03 42,180 rovidon, LR
5,000 consult with the appropriate

City, County or State




Market Special Use
Description Acres
Value Value

COMMERCIAL SITE
DEVELOPMENT

Today's Date: 05/19/2020

Department or Agency
concerning allowed land
uses, required permits or
licenses, and development
rights on specific properties
before making decisions
based on this information.
Tax data exported 10/2019.

8T




Lincoln County Property Report

19

COMMERCIAL DEV SITE 0.07 113,580
COMMERCIAL SITE

5,000
DEVELOPMENT

Account # & Prop. Info Account Details Owner & Address
Account #: R510871 Neighborhood: Owner and ELSINORE INVESTMENTS LLC
Map Taxlot: 11-11-08-CA- N216 Mailing Address: _}351;5& _?l\/h\ll'lgg(g;lolé\zlE
02501-00 Property Class: 201 Site Address(es): 856 SW BAY BLVD
Tax Map: 11s11w08CA
Web Map: View Map
Info: P.P. 1999-18,

PARCEL 1,

ACRES 0.07,

DOC201812362
Tax Code: 104
Acres: 0.07
Improvements
Description Area Yr Built Found Heat Plumb BDMS Value
MAIN AREA 1224 sq ft 1962 HB $120,770
Foundation Code List Heating/AC Code List Plumbing Code List
Value History
Year Imp. Land Total Market Total Assessed Levied Tax
2019 120,770 118,580 239,350 213,510 3,881.19
2018 95,610 118,580 214,190 207,300 3,761.95
2017 95,610 118,580 214,190 201,270 3,728.60
2016 91,580 118,580 210,160 195,410 3,649.58
2015 91,580 118,580 210,160 189,720 3,383.53
2014 91,580 118,580 210,160 184,200 3,307.45
2013 76,490 102,350 178,840 178,840 3,136.50
2012 86,050 102,350 188,400 178,110 3,088.23
Sales History
Sale Date Price Document Type Code
12/11/2018 $450,000 201812362 27 WD
09/09/1999 $200,000 MF389-0895 18 WD
Land Related Accounts Disclaimer

Market Special Use For assessment purposes

Description AcresVaIue . only. Lincoln County makes

no warranty as to the
accuracy of the information
provided. Users should
consult with the appropriate
City, County or State
Department or Agency
concerning allowed land




uses, required permits or
licenses, and development
rights on specific properties
before making decisions
based on this information.
Tax data exported 10/2019.

Today's Date: 05/19/2020

0¢




Lincoln County Property Report

21

Account # & Prop. Info Account Details Owner & Address
Account #: R394965 Neighborhood: Owner and EGGERT CHARLES W
Map Taxlot: 11-11-08-CA- N216 Mailing Address: 18555 SW TETON AVE
TUALATIN, OR 97062
02800-00 Property Class: 201 siteAddress(es): 836 SW BAY BLVD :838 SW BAY
Tax Map: 11s11WO8CA BLVD ;846 SW BAY BLVD ;848 SW
BAY BLVD ;844 SW BAY BLVD
Web Map: View Map
Info: NEWPORT,
BLOCK 1, LOT
23 &PTNVAC
ALLEY, 2006/07
VALUE
ORDERED BY
BOPTA,
DOC201805535
Tax Code: 104
Acres:
Improvements
Description Area Yr Built Found Heat Plumb BDMS Value
MAIN AREA 5832 sq ft 1970 $327,630
MAIN AREA 2ND FLOOR 2424 sq ft $0
Foundation Code List Heating/AC Code List Plumbing Code List
Value History
Year Imp. Land Total Market Total Assessed Levied Tax
2019 327,630 290,350 617,980 617,980 11,233.64
2018 259,380 290,350 549,730 549,730 9,976.18
2017 286,840 321,500 608,340 608,340 11,269.70
2016 274,770 321,500 596,270 596,270 11,136.23
2015 274,770 321,500 596,270 596,270 10,634.04
2014 274,770 321,500 596,270 596,270 10,706.50
2013 229,470 277,000 506,470 506,470 8,882.52
2012 258,160 277,000 535,160 535,160 9,279.15
Sales History
Sale Date Price Document Type Code
06/06/2018 $850,000 201805535 34 WD
04/30/2007 $662,829 200706317 18 WD
12/26/2003 $425,000 200321923 29 WD
02/18/2000 $802,270 MF397-1814 31 WD
Land Related Accounts Disclaimer




Market Special Use
Description Acres

Value Value
COMMERCIALDEV SITE 0.2 280,350
COMMERCIAL SITE

10,000
DEVELOPMENT

Today's Date: 05/19/2020

For assessment purposes
only. Lincoln County makes
no warranty as to the
accuracy of the information
provided. Users should
consult with the appropriate
City, County or State
Department or Agency
concerning allowed land
uses, required permits or
licenses, and development
rights on specific properties
before making decisions
based on this information.
Tax data exported 10/2019.

cc




Lincoln County Property Report

23

Account # & Prop. Info Account Details Owner & Address
Account #: R399663 Neighborhood: Owner and EGGERT CHARLES W
Map Taxlot: 11-11-08-CA- N212 Mailing Address: 18555 SW TETON AVE
TUALATIN, OR 97062
03300-00 Property Class: 200 gjte Address(es):
Tax Map: 11s11w08CA
Web Map: View Map
Info: NEWPORT,
BLOCK 1, LOT
4,PTN OF & VAC
ALLEY,
DOC201805535
Tax Code: 104
Acres:
Improvements
No Inventory
Value History
Year Imp. Land Total Market Total Assessed Levied Tax
2019 0 139,700 139,700 126,800 2,304.94
2018 0 139,700 139,700 123,110 2,234.14
2017 0 155,230 155,230 119,530 2,214.32
2016 0 155,230 155,230 116,050 2,167.40
2015 0 155,230 155,230 112,670 2,009.40
2014 0 155,230 155,230 109,390 1,964.18
2013 0 133,050 133,050 106,210 1,862.72
2012 0 133,050 133,050 103,120 1,788.01
Sales History
No Sales Data
Land Related Accounts Disclaimer
Market Special Use For assessment purposes
Description Acres only. Lincoln County makes
Value Value no warranty as to the
accuracy of the information
S A 01 139,700 provided. Users should
SITE consult with the appropriate

City, County or State
Department or Agency
concerning allowed land
uses, required permits or
licenses, and development
rights on specific properties
before making decisions




based on this information.
Tax data exported 10/2019.

Today's Date: 05/19/2020

ve



e v vt — s K .
ASSESSMENT PURPOSE ONLY (TR AT UEIAIL MAF NU. 1 11 11 U8 CA

N.E.1/4 S.W.1/4 SEC.8 T.11S. R W, W.M. wcr =TAIL MAP NO 1
LINCOLN COUNTY Attachment “C- NEWPORT

Revised: SEB
11/25/2019

NEWPORT
DETAIL MAP NO 1
11 11 08 CA



26

Attachment “D”
1-CUP-20

Basics Public Market — New Construction
Proposed Business Plan

Basics, LLC will create and construct the region’s first Public Market located on Bay Boulevard in
Newport’s waterfront district. The space will be designed for use as an open air public market
featuring locally produced products with accessible prices. This concept may feature a USDA
compliant food production space with additional ODA compliant hot and cold foods stations.
The open air marketplace will allow for tastings and purchases.

Our public space business hours will be regular retail hours with potential for 7 days a week:
10a - 8p, hours may vary. Production facility may be in operation outside public business hours.

The public market does not anticipate heavy odor or noise from the site.

The public market objective is to provide jobs and enhance community gathering in the Coastal
communities of Lincoln County. Target design is open air warehouse/marketplace and partial
food manufacturing facility. We will leverage current brand status of Basics, LLC and Wild Rose
Foods by introducing product lines to Newport customers.

Offering public market style philosophies, we may open the conversation with our neighbors
about everything from soil management to the weather and how it all coalesces at Basics Public
Market on Bay St. to offer “just what you need” to get your “ nourishment from the ground
up!”

www.basicsmarket.com
www.wildrosefoods.com




27

Attachment “E”

1-CUP-20

Headquarters 123 NE Sandy Blvd. Portland, OR 97232
603.5655.1212 info@basicsmarket.com  basicsmarket.com

7. Written findings of fact addressing the following criteria:

(@) That the public facilities can adequately accommodate the proposed use.

(i) The current site consists of three separate buildings that are
currently in poor condition. One building was used as a nightclub, restaurant,
retail space and office building. The second building was being used as a
restaurant and the final building was used as an art gallery. These uses
represented significant impacts with large occupancies and therefore represent
a considerable historical impact to the public facilities along Bay Boulevard. The
new proposed use is a slightly larger building but represents a significantly
smaller impact on the public facilities and infrastructure. This is shown in the
use breakdown below. Meetings occurred with City of Newport Public Works
Director, Tim Gross, Community Development Director, Derrick Tokos, and
Building Official, Joseph Lease, to review the site conditions and ensure the
public infrastructure and facilities were adequate to accommodate the proposed
development. It was determined that the significant infrastructure impacts of
the existing development would offset any new demands created by the
proposed new structure.

(b) That the request complies with the requirements of the underlying zone
or overlay zone.

(i) In the W/2 zone, there is a provision stating, “In areas considered
to be historic, unique, or scenic, the proposed use shall be designed to maintain
or enhance the historic, unique, or scenic quality.” The Bayfront area falls into
this category, as it is historic, unique, and scenic. The proposed building
certainly contributes to the spirit and overall design concept of a unique working
waterfront. The proposed project will enhance the Southern part of the Bayfront
by replacing existing buildings that are in disrepair and providing a new facility
to help promote local food production and a new public market. The food
production component will largely focus on the production of cheese and dairy
products. Additionally, the existing parcels and buildings do not comply with
the City of Newport landscaping requirements. Per Section 14.19.080, the new
proposed development will incorporate 10% of the lot area utilizing one square
foot of planter boxes per every three feet of otherwise required landscaping.
The lot size is 17,776sf and we are providing 197sf of landscape area and 61sf
of landscape planters. The new building complies with the parking requirements,
building height, lot coverage, building setbacks, bicycle storage, and
landscaping standards of the Newport Municipal Code.

scapriarchitecture

541.961.05083 info@capriarchitecture.com




Headquarters 123 NE Sandy Blvd. Portland, OR 97232
503.555.1212 info@basicsmarket.com  basicsmarket.com

(c) That the proposed use does not have an adverse impact greater than
existing uses on nearby properties, or impacts can be ameliorated through
imposition of conditions of approval. (For purpose of this criterion, “adverse
impact” is the potential adverse physical impact of a proposed Conditional Use
including, but not limited to, traffic beyond the carrying capacity of the street,
unreasonable noise, dust, or loss of air quality.)

(i) The proposed renovation has no adverse impacts on the nearby
properties. The current buildings and uses represent occupancy and parking
demand of 49 spaces and the proposed use represents a significant reduction in
occupancy and parking demand of 29 spaces (see breakdown below).
Additionally, the new facility will provide 5 off-street parking.

Existing Buildings / Uses (Parking Credit - 49 Spaces)

Forinash Gallery (NMC General Retail - 1 space / 300sf) - 1,224sf = 4.1 Spaces

Shark Restaurant (NMC Eating and Drinking Establishments - 1 space / 150sf) - 878sf = 5.9 Spaces

Shark’s Restaurant Kitchen / Support (NMC Industrial - 1.5 spaces / 1,000sf) - 100sf = 0.2 space

Apollo’s Level 1 Restaurant and Nightclub (9-CUP-03) (NMC Eating and Drinking Establishments - 1 space /
150sf) - 5,338sf = 35.6 Spaces

Apolio’s Level 1 Kitchen / Support (4-CUP-07) (NMC Industrial - 1.5 spaces / 1,000sf) - 625sf = 0.9 space
Apolio’s Level 1 Retail Gift Shop (4-CUP-06) (NMC General Retail - 1 space / 600sf) - 600sf = 1.0 Space
Apollo’s Level 2 Offices (9-CUP-03) (NMC General Office - 1 Space / 600sf) - 400sf = 0.7 space

Apollo’s Level 2 Storage (9-CUP-03) (NMC Warehouse - 1 Space / 2,000sf) - 1,293sf = 0.6 space

Proposed Building / Uses (Parking Demand New Building - 29 Spaces)

Industrial Food Production Level 1 (NMC Industrial - 1.5 spaces / 1,000sf) - 6,859sf = 10.3 spaces

General Retail Market Level 1 (NMC General Retail - 1 space / 600sf) - 3,000sf = 5 Spaces

Food Court / Restaurant (NMC Eating and Drinking Establishments - 1 space / 150sf) - 2,000sf = 13.3 Spaces

The use of the building will be consistent with the current restaurants and
general retail businesses that have historically occupied this property. The
Historic Bayfront has multiple industrial food production facilities and the
industrial food production that will occur at this site is consistent in appearance
and use with the neighboring fish processing facilities. The noise from the
market and production component will be minimal and certainly less invasive
that the previous Apollo’s night club. All of the food production equipment and
cooking facilities will comply with the requirements of the Oregon Health
Department, Oregon Structural Specialty Code and Oregon Department of
Agriculture, which protect air quality and noise. The new modernized facility will
benefit the surrounding businesses and not have any adverse impacts. Overall,
the project will contribute to the thriving tourism and food production spirit of
the Newport Bayfront.

scapriarchitecture

541.961.0503 info@capriarchitecture.com

28



Headquarters 123 NE Sandy Blvd. Porttand, OR 97232
503.555.1212 info@basicsmarket.com  basicsmarket.com

(d) If the application is for a proposed building or building modification, that it
is consistent with the overall development character of the area with regard to
building size and height, considering both existing buildings and potential
buildings allowable as uses permitted outright.

(i) The existing buildings on these properties are in poor condition
and in need of replacement. The Newport Bayfront has an eclectic design style
with various building types that contribute to the overall experience of the
Bayfront. The new building will utilize similar materials as many of the buildings
in the neighborhood with metal siding, large storefront windows, sidewalk
overhangs to provide protection from the elements, and wood accents to bring
warmth to the exterior of the building.

Regarding the building height, great care was taken to design a structure that
would have minimal impact on the adjacent properties. The roof height on the
western fagade (back of building) starts at approximately 15’-6” and peaks at
the eastern fagade (Bay Boulevard) at approximately 25’ tall. This is significantly
lower than the maximum allowable building height of 35’. This was achieved by
utilizing a 17/ 12” roof slope to minimize the height of the building and keep it at
a community scale. The existing retaining wall on the back of the property will
be maintained and not altered as a part of the project. The geotechnical
engineer and structural engineer will determine the precise setback to ensure
the existing retaining wall is unaltered. In terms of the building shape, the
structure is consistent with the frontage of the existing structures and will be
similar in massing to the existing structures in this location. The nature of the
building is to attract tourists, provide a public market for the community, and
provide space for local food production. The design reflects this, with exciting
details and views to experience the food production components from the
public market. The Bayfront area as a whole strives to attract tourists, promote
industry and employment for the community and this building will support those
goalis.

8. A written statement describing the nature of the request.

The Basics Public Market will comprise of a new approximately 11,859sf
building located on Newport’s Historic Bayfront. The new facility will include
approximately 3,000sf of general retail market, 2,000sf of eating and drinking
space, and 6,859sf of food production. It will be constructed in the City of
Newport W2 Zone.

scapriarchitecture

541.961.0503 info@capriarchitecture.com

29



30

Attachment “F”
Derrick Tokos 1-CUP-20
From: Dustin J.I. Capri <dustin@capriarchitecture.com>
Sent: Thursday, March 12, 2020 1:14 PM
To: Derrick Tokos
Ce: Bryan Coluccio; Clare Paul; Kaye Barnes; Charlie Eggert; Laurie Mooney; Daphne&AmandaCapri
Subject: Re: Basics Conditional Use Permit Application (File No. 1-CUP-20)
Attachments: 2B.pdf
Derrick,

| spoke to Charlie Eggert today and he asked me to forward you the revised site plan. Attached below. Please note that
the loading area is designed to be pulled into. Therefore although the parking lot and loading area share a drive aisle
the loading will not obstruct the parking lot while being used. Please let us know if the City of Newport requires any
additional information for the CUP application.

Thanks!
Dustin

Dustin J. Capri, AIA, NCARB, LEED AP ND
Architect

Capri Architecture, LLC

p. 541.961.0503

w. www.capriarchitecture.com

a. 747 SW 13th Street, Newport, OR 97365

On Mar 6, 2020, at 8:29 AM, Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov> wrote:

Hi Bryan,

Thank you for the timely response. This addresses what we need in terms of a supplemental

narrative. Once we receive an updated site plan showing how your client is satisfying the City’s parking
and loading requirements, then we will have the information needed to complete the application so that
a staff report can be prepared for the hearing. In addition to parking stalls, drive isles, etc., the updated
plan will need to show what, if any, changes will be made to the existing driveway approach onto SW
Bay Blvd.

Thank you,

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP

Community Development Director
City of Newport

169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97365

ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov




From: Bryan Coluccio [mailto:bryan.coluccio@keystone-pacific.com]

Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2020 11:20 AM

To: Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>; Clare Paul <C.Paul@NewportOregon.gov>
Cc: Kaye Barnes <kaye.barnes@keystone-pacific.com>; Charlie Eggert <charlie.eggert@keystone-
pacific.com>; dustin@capriarchitecture.com

Subject: RE: Basics Conditional Use Permit Application (File No. 1-CUP-20)

Derrick,

| am in-house counsel for the Eggert family, Basics, and their affiliates. Charlie Eggert forwarded to me
your February 24, 2020 email to our architect Dustin Capri. In your email, you asked a few questions
and/or requested explanation on a few matters relating to the conditional use permit. | am responding
to the following question:

Please explain in narrative form ... how the parking lot design will functionally work with a
neighboring property that shares the same driveway approach onto SW Bay Bivd.

Answer: The neighboring property has no rights to any driveway or right-of-way access, neither of
which are with any third party. The parking lot design and access to the lot is not intended to provide
access to any neighboring property.

When we were in negotiations with the previous property owners, Deborah Hayter and Brian Timme,
the preliminary title report made an oblique reference to “an unrecorded driveway and parking lease
agreement.” The alleged unrecorded agreement was made June 1986, nearly thirty-four years

ago. During our due diligence before closing the purchase, we did not locate any documents supporting
any third-party right of access, including the so-called June 1986 “unrecorded agreement.” The title
company did not locate any supporting documents. And most importantly, the prior owners
Hayter/Timme were unaware of any unrecorded lease agreement regarding the driveway or parking
area. Hayter/Timme acquired the property in April 2007. During the entirety of the more than ten year
period that Hayter/Timme owned the property, no person or entity asserted a claim to any right to use
the driveway or parking area. In order to close our purchase of their property, Hayter/Timme affirmed
the following facts under penalty of perjury (see the attached Grantor Declaration of Use):

* kK

4. As further consideration for Grantee's (Chuck Eggert/Basics) purchase of the Subject
Property, Grantor (Hayter/Timme) affirms, warrants, and acknowledges under oath and penalty
of perjury that during the entirety of Grantor's ownership of the Subject Property:

4.1 No third party has asserted any rights, uses, or claims to the Subject Property in
reliance upon the unrecorded lease; and

4.2 No third party has exercised or claimed any rights to or uses of the driveway
and/or parking area described in the unrecorded lease; and

4.3 Grantor has freely exercised unfettered and unimpaired use of the driveway and
parking area described in the unrecorded lease, without any limitation or restriction.

T€



In sum, no neighboring party has a right or claim to use our privately-owned parking area, or to any
ingress or egress via our privately-owned driveway.

Derrick, let me know if you have any questions or need additional information. Charlie and Dustin will
respond to the other questions and requests in your email.

Best,
Bryan

KEYSTONE-PACIFIC

Bryan P. Coluccio

Vice President/General Counsel | Keystone-Pacific, LLC
18555 SW Teton Avenue | Tualatin, OR 97062

Main Phone (503) 303—0360| Direct (503) 272-6049

Fax (503) 214-8326

IMPORTANT/CONFIDENTIAL: This e-mail message (including any attachments) may contain proprietary and
confidential information, and/or information protected by attorney-client privilege or constituting work product
under court rules. The information is only for the use of the intended recipient(s). If you are not an intended
recipient, or receive this e-mail in error, your receipt does not waive any privilege, work product protection, or
otherwise impair or detract from the confidentiality of the e-mail. If you are not an intended recipient, or if this e-
mail has been addressed to or received by you in error, please do the following (1) do not read, disclose,
reproduce, distribute, disseminate or otherwise use this message (including any attachments); (2) promptly notify
me, by reply e-mail, that you have received this e-mail by mistake or in error, and (3) delete and otherwise destroy
all copies of the e-mail (including any attachments). Thank you.

From: Charlie Eggert <charlie.eggert@keystone-pacific.com>

Sent: Monday, February 24, 2020 1:34 PM

To: Bryan Coluccio <bryan.coluccio@keystone-pacific.com>

Subject: Fwd: Basics Conditional Use Permit Application (File No. 1-CUP-20)

Get Outlook for i0S

IMPORTANT/CONFIDENTIAL: This e-mail message (including any attachments) may contain proprietary
and confidential information. The information is only for the use of the intended recipient(s). If you are not
an intended recipient, or receive this e-mail in error, your receipt does not waive any privilege, or
otherwise impair or detract from the confidentiality of the e-mail. If you are not an intended recipient, or if
this e-mail has been addressed to or received by you in error, please do the following (1) do not read,
disclose, reproduce, distribute, disseminate or otherwise use this message (including any attachments);
(2) promptly notify me, by reply e-mail, that you have received this e-mail by mistake or in error, and (3)
delete and otherwise destroy all copies of the e-mail (including any attachments). Thank you

From: Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>
Sent: Monday, February 24, 2020 10:28:29 AM

To: 'Dustin J.I. Capri' <dustin@capriarchitecture.com>
Cc: Charlie Eggert <charlie.eggert@keystone-pacific.com>; Clare Paul <C.Paul@NewportOregon.gov>
Subject: Basics Conditional Use Permit Application (File No. 1-CUP-20)

Dustin,

32



€e

As | mentioned on the phone, we will be scheduling the conditional use permit application for a public
hearing on March 23, 2020. The meeting will start at 7:00 pm and will be held in the Newport City Hall
Council Chambers. While you are not required to make a formal presentation, it is important that you
and/or your client attend to answer any questions the Planning Commission members may have about
the project.

I need a couple of additional items from you prior to the hearing. First, we will need a updated site plan
showing how you will be satisfying the parking and loading requirements of NMC Chapter 14.14,
specifically the accessible parking requirements of 14.14.050, design standards of 14.14.090, and
loading requirements of 14.14.110. In addition to the updated site plan, please explain in narrative
form, how loading areas will be managed such that parking is available to customers and employees,
and how the parking lot design will functionally work with a neighboring property that shares the same
driveway approach onto SW Bay Blvd.

Additionally, please provide an updated narrative explaining that food products manufactured at this
location will be sold on the premises and how off-site sales will be ancillary to the retail and market

use. As we have discussed, non-water related/dependent food production for off-site sales in of itself is
not a permitted use in the W-2 zone. The way we get there is by it being a support use that is ancillary
to the market and retail sales. The narrative and/or business plan need to be tightened up in this
regard.

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP

Community Development Director
City of Newport

169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97365

ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov




=NITYTIND

a7 7IAvEL S

NEWPORT PUBLIC MARKET

Headquarters 123 NE Sandy Blvd. Portland, OR 97232

:zcapriarchitecture

503.555.1212  info@basicsmarket.com  basicsmarket.com 541.961.0503 info@capriarchitecture.com

o o oy oo B, 2008 s —— o o —t —— — - —r — —r — —— —_ — - — o o o 2009 OV, 4TI  —
le _ ’Q"ﬁ e - 4'SETBACK ®

O == : \
i ZI SRANNING WAL £NCECATHMZNI
4 - - e 1860 - -

|
. !
ey !

/ 3 260" I
(PARCELS | AN2/3Y Ui ® |
% i - - g |

% 2V, 6" '
: ;,cf:' — 100" ) *
+ | oo s|| | > 4 SCREENED MECHANICAL SCREENED MECHANICAL! /3 v

g 505 [l é'i BASICS N EWPO RT i 7 : | ALK KA ST PN b ) LOADING WM |
7 / i PUBLIC MARKET 2. i
“a / s - ' . i
— i !
. i 7 | |

£ 1% 4 __ ' 7 PARKINGLOT E
5o 200 Sug s il 926 - L '
PATIO _ | 4 156 PATIO |
LGkt PoLE | TR ' : . 7 : _L ) l

@_. Lo . 37553220 W A8 . # y e e S A R S A s‘5'52'2“T,|'-:ﬁé'—'—u_'_'—°_'r_ _______________________ _é

SIDEWALK DR JEWA XIS T
]RE

FRI FDPT

aF cuEE
Bo oM CURE
BUMCHYARK

LEGEND
Sw BAY BLVD (60°) RUILDING FOOTPR NI

ANDSCAPZ AREA - 197 SF

TREET CENTERLINE AS TRAVELLID

SITE PLAN - 1/16”=1"0"



SITE SURVEY PREPARED FOR CHARLES EGGERT
IN LOTS 1, 2, 3 AND 4, BLOCK 1 AND PORTION OF VACATED ALLEY
PLAN OF "NEWPORT"
LOCATED IN THE SW 1/4 OF SECTION 8, T11S, R11W, W.M.
CITY OF NEWPORT, LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON

(11-11-08-CA TAX LOTS 2500, 2501, 2800 AND 3300)
SEPTEMBER 4, 2018

Attachment “G”

to,s

P
(e
)
s
Q
D)
=
G
&)
(o
S
N
Q.
qV)
<

541.961.0503 info@capriarchitecture.com

BUILDING EASEMENT
MF 123-1552

SURVEY OF EXISTING PROPERTY

£ O Y

L
Q

LEGEND

ELEVATIONS ARE NAVD AND ARE BASED ON
CMY OF NEWPORT BENCHMARK °B82°

basicsmarket.com

CONTOURS AT 1 FOOT INTERVALS

® MONUMENT FOUND: HELD $/8" RE~BAR WITH YELLOW
PLASTIC CAP MARKED "NYHUS SURVEYING™

® MONUMENT FOUND: NAIL WITH BRASS WASHER
MARKED "NYHUS SURVEY"

4 MONUMENT FOUND: HELD FOR CONTROL,
€ SANTARY MANHOLE
& CLEAN-ouT
60) STORM MANHOLE

&) storm vaur
B POWER VAULT

info@basicsmarket.com

PROJECT BENCHMARK

BRASS CAP MARKED "US ARMY @ POWER METER
CORPS OF ENGINEERS 1109-01" @ WATER VALVE
ELEVATION 17.68° @ WATER METER

&) FIRE HYDRANT
@ COMM vAULT

¢ sion posT

NEWPORT PUBLIC MARKET

503.565.1212

& carcn masin

Lo v

w—— . - - = WATER UINE

4 POWER ELEC UNE
¢~ GAS UNE

¢ COMMUNICATION UAN

ROAD CENTERUNE
AS TRAVELLED

NYHUS SURVEYING INC. [creck sv: sen
GARY NYHUS / STEVEN NYHUS DRAWN BY:  GAM
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR DATE:  9-4-2018
.0, BOX 208 = -
740 E, THISSELL RD. TIDEWATER, ORE 97390 | SCALE: 1" = 10'
T\  (541) 528-3234 PROJECT: 18090T0PO
DRAWN BY: CM MAPPING —GRED MURRY- (S¢1) 828-7062 / 78ISME




Attachment “H”
1-CUP-20
NEWPORTPUBLIC MARKET iicapriarchitecture

503.655.1212  info@basicsmarket.com  basicsmarket.com 941.961.0503 info@capriarchitecture.com

-
Send
¢ }
o * ’c-‘ .
IL‘ 4 -
=
Zh |
40
£
P = - ‘-
[ o
5 &
Ty, =
E £ - =
+ -
- 3
8 )
» - A ]
% : o 5
= by !
.-11‘;“ 5
%5 = j
= : =,
i3 o
R TH ¢
T ;
N
N = N -
ey e S
/A A
4 e -~ .
'R K _‘_-_c...,, - -
AT -
= C
F /i 1
; A0 0T T T
| ! [
v
P
=)
"\ \ -\ -
o
b

et | - sicapriarchitecture
NORTHEAST PERSPECTIVE VIEW 3 i

Ty
e e
B g
' m“:ﬂ""-"i'—v..




N~

NEWPORTPUBL'C MARKET s:capriarchitecture

503.555.1212  info@basicsmarket.com  basicsmarket.com 541.961.0503 info@capriarchitecture.com

TR ANES FETI R

SOUTHEAST PERSPECTIVE VIEW




NEWPORT PUBLIC MARKET szcapnarchitecture

Headquarters 123 NE Sandy Bivd. Portland, OR 97232
503.555.1212 info@basicsmarket.com  basicsmarket.com

541.961.0503 info@capriarchitecture.com

L T T T Ty e T e T T T I

IEENESRRNRNEREENNURARNRRRaRRARIRRRRARRINEA] IEANRANNRRRRENRENONERREGRERRRNRNNERNRRAAE] L T T T T T O O ) O T T T T I O T eI OO T T T O T OO o

= T T T T T T T O O T T

IEEEEREEEARRNNARUBNANERRRARNEENRRNRARNEAENI IEEREREERANENENARIEUNENERERARNENRARA ENBUNEE] IEEENEE SRR AR ANRINNRURNNENNRENNERRRENAEA] NN NN RSN RS NRARERNENENNRENERE] ENEANERRNRNRNRAR RN RNANRURNNNNNEANNANARY) I SEENENEERENANEENNENERRERRANESRSARENEAENEY)

LT T T e T

IANRREEERARERRANANE] IERRERNNRNRANRRRARE RN NN R NN RNANNENENNNT

IRIEANEERRERERERRAS IRENRERRRRRARNUNNENNENRERNESEEANEEANNNENNA] [ EEINEARENNEAR SRS NNARENERRRRRARUEANARENNNI

L ]
L]

RN AR RN RARARNNNRARRNNANRRRSENRENNAN] w 2.5’(0

EAST ELEVATION - 1/8”=1"0"




NEWPORT PUBLIC MARKET

Headquarters 123 NE Sandy Blvd. Portland, OR 97232
503.555.1212 info@basicsmarket.com  basicsmarket.com

sicapriarchitecture

541.961.0503 info@capriarchitecture.com

19'0”

LIITEL

|] [ (MR

WEST ELEVATION - 1/87=1°0"




NEWPORT PUBLIC MARKET

Headquarters 123 NE Sandy Blvd. Portland, OR 97232

szcapriarchitecture

503.555.1212  info@basicsmarket.com  basicsmarket.com 541.961.0503 info@capriarchitecture.com

L
g \
% b — N\ 2/
é = @ | ___ia;_:
250" % \\—
| =] B
I:I _—__ 157"
% 100"
e . TR | |

NORTH ELEVATION - 1/8”=1°0"



NEWPORT PUBLIC MARKET

Headquarters 123 NE Sandy Blvd. Portland, OR 97232

szcapriarchitecture

503.555.1212  info@basicsmarket.com  basicsmarket.com 541.961.0503 info@capriarchitecture.com

-]
| —Lof :
l - -]
alll-
&
| €
POTENTIAL MURAL LOCATION 5
[m] I |
AT U

SOUTH ELEVATION - 1/8”=1’0"




1-CUP-20
NEWPORTPUBUC MARKET szcapriarchitecture

503.655.1212  info@basicsmarket.com  basicsmarket.com 541.961.0503 info@capriarchitecture.com

£

7,6!! 7,6!,

v /

| L

Y 3,2,, N K 3,2,, N

SOUTH STREET FRONTAGE SIGNS EAST STREET FRONTAGE SIGNS




Attachment “K”
1-CUP-20

169 SW Coast Highway Phone:1.541.574.0629
Nowport, OR 97365 Fax:1.541.574.0644

& of Newbo Zoning Map
NE ORT ggnr:uh:\ity%er\}elopment Department 836 to 856 SW Bay Blvd

Th is for nformatonal ‘only d has nol be: arod ot 1t suitable for legal nw |"\'m Taken Ju'y 2018

15 mag is Jor mformatons) use only and has en propi nor 18 1t sui " ongineenng, or surveymg purposes.

inchudes data from mulliple sources. The City of Newpart a1aumaos no fesponsibility for s compilavon or use and users of this 4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos
informaton are cautianed 1o venty all informabon with the Cily of Newport Community Development Oepartment Quantum Spatial, Inc. Corvallis, OR




Attachment “L”
1-CUP-20

NEWRORT City of Newport Aerial and Topographic Map
Community Development Department
169 SW Conlxlghwty P Phone:1 .;1 574.0629 836 to 856 SW Bay Bivd
Newport, OR 97365 Fox:1.541.574.0644
e Image Taken July 2018
This map 18 for mlormatonat uss onty and has not been prepared lor, nor 1 It suitablo for logal, enginoerng. of surveying purposes It 4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos

mciudes dala rom multiple sources The City of Newport assumes no respensibily or is compiabion of usa and users of this.
nformaton are cautoned to venty all informabon wilh the City of Newport Community Davelopment Dopariment Quantum Spatial, inc. Corvallis, OR




NE ORT City of Ngwport
%2?&‘;):;%.3.:?‘°’”3;}.‘1?&3§T:3§ 2013 Aerial Image
e 836 to 856 SW Bay Bivd

map 13 for iformationsl use only and has not been prapared for. nor | sudabla for legal, sngineenng. or surveyng purposes it
mdudes dats rom mudtiple sources. The City of Newport assumes na fesponsibify for its compitalion or use and users of this
miomaton are cautioned 1 venty all ifformation with the City of Newporl Commundy Development Department




46

Attachment “N”
1-CUP-20

Rev. 2/98

CITY OF NEWPORT
USES IN THE WATER DEPENDENT AND RELATED ZONING DISTRICTS

W-1/"Water Dependent”

Permitted Uses:

Aquaculture

Boat Rentals, Sport Fishing, and Charter Boat Services
Docks, Wharves, and Piers

Dry Docks, Boat Repair, Marine Services, and Marine
Railway Facilities

Fuel Facilities for Boats or Ships

Marinas and Port Facilities

Seafood Processing and Packaging Plants

Terminal Facilities for Loading and Unloading Ships and
Barges

Marine Research and Education Facilities of Observation,
Sampling, Recording, or Experimentation On Or Near the
Water

Conditional Uses:

Ice Production and Sales, Refrigeration Repair, and Cold
Storage To Serve the Seafood Industry

Boat Building and Marine Equipment Manufacture
Parking Lots

Warehouses

Uses Allowed in the Adjacent Estuarine Management Unit
Water-Dependent Uses That Meet the Intent of the W-1
District

W-2/"Water Related"
Permitted Uses:

Aquaculture

Boat Rentals, Sport Fishing, and Charter Boat Services
Docks, Wharves, and Piers

Dry Dock, Boat Repair, Marine Services, and Marine
Railway Facilities

Fuel Facilities for Boats or Ships

Marinas and Port Facilities

Seafood Processing and Packaging Plants

Terminal Facilities For Loading and Unloading Ships and
Barges

Marine Research and Education Facilities of Observation,
Sampling, Recording, or Experimentation On Or Near the
Water

Ice Production and Sales, Refrigeration Repair, and Cold
Storage to Serve the Seafood Industry

Boat Building and Marine Equipment Manufacture
Parking Lots

Warehouses

Uses Allowed in the Adjacent Estuarine Management
Unit

Water-Dependent Uses That Meet the Intent of the W-1
District

Bait, Tackle, and Sporting Goods Stores Specializing in
Water-Related Merchandise

Seafood Markets

Conditional Uses:

Uses Permitted Outright in the C-2 District

Offices Not on the Ground Floor of an Existing Building
Residences (prohibited at street grade; for floors other
than street grade, residences allowed subject to issuance of
a conditional use permit; density limitations same as R-4;
see Section 2-4-1 of the Zoning Ordinance).



47

Attachment “0”
CITY OF NEWPORT 1-CUP-20

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING

The City of Newport Planning Commission will hold a public hearing electronically on Tuesday, May 26, 2020, at
7:00 p.m. to consider File No. 1-CUP-20, a request submitted by Keystone Pacific, LLC & Elsinore Investments,
LLC, 18555 SW Teton Avenue, Tualatin, OR 97062 (Dustin Capri, Capri Architecture, authorized representative)
per Section 14.03.080/“Water-Dependent and Water-Related Uses” of the Newport Zoning Ordinance, for a
conditional use permit to construct a new 3,000 square foot general retail market, 2,000 square foot eating and
drinking establishment, and 6,859 square foot industrial use building for food production. The subject property is
located in a W-2/“Water-Related” zone. Three existing buildings will be demolished. The property is located at
836, 838, 844, 846, 848, 852 & 856 SW Bay Bivd, Newport, OR 97365 (Tax Map 11-11-08-CA, Tax Lots 2500,
2501, 2800 & 3300). The applicable criteria per NMC Chapter 14.34.050 are that: 1) The public facilities can
adequately accommodate the proposed use; 2) the request complies with the requirements of the underlying zone
or overlay zone; 3) the proposed use does not have an adverse impact greater than existing uses on nearby
properties, or impacts can be ameliorated through imposition of conditions of approval; and 4) a proposed building
or building modification is consistent with the overall development character of the neighborhood with regard to
building size and height, considering both existing buildings and potential buildings allowable as uses permitted
outright. This hearing will be held electronically. The public can live-stream the Planning Commission meeting
at newportoregon.gov/citygov/comm/cc.asp. The meeting will also be broadcast on Charter Channel 190. Public
comment may be made, via e-mail, up to two hours before the meeting start time at
publiccomment@newportoregon.gov. Additionally, anyone wishing to give testimony at the public hearing should
e-mail their telephone number, and the hearing item they wish to address, up to two hours before the start of the
meeting, to s.marineau@newportoregon.gov, and staff will telephone that person when that item is being discussed
at the meeting. Testimony and evidence must be directed toward the criteria described above or other criteria in the
Comprehensive Plan and its implementing ordinances which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure
to raise an issue with sufficient specificity to afford the city and the parties an opportunity to respond to that issue
precludes an appeal (including to the Land Use Board of Appeals) based on that issue. Submit testimony in written
or oral form. Oral testimony and written testimony will be taken during the course of the public hearing. Letters
sent to the Community Development (Planning) Department, City Hall, 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365,
must be received by 5:00 p.m. the day of the hearing to be included as part of the hearing or must be personally
presented during testimony at the public hearing. The hearing will include a report by staff, testimony (both oral
and written) from the applicant and those in favor or opposed to the application, rebuttal by the applicant, and
questions and deliberation by the Planning Commission. Pursuant to ORS 197.763 (6), any person prior to the
conclusion of the initial public hearing may request a continuance of the public hearing or that the record be left
open for at least seven days to present additional evidence, arguments, or testimony regarding the application. The
staff report may be reviewed or a copy purchased for reasonable cost at the Newport Community Development
(Planning) Department (address above) seven days prior to the hearing. The application materials (including the
application and all documents and evidence submitted in support of the application), the applicable criteria, and
other file material are available for inspection at no cost; or copies may be purchased for reasonable cost at the
above address. Contact Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director, (541) 574-0626, (address above).

FOR PUBLICATION ONCE ON FRIDAY, MAY 15, 2020.



PUBLIC NOTICES =25 2630

Port- publications in all, in a W-2/"Water-Related™
published f sting

TRUSTEE'SEEOTICE
TS No.: 091239-OR Loan
No.: ****0308 R

AMELA as
Grantor, to FIRST AMERI-
CAN TITLE INSURAN

as Trustes, in favor
ARGENT ~ MORTGAQGE
COM , LLC, as Ben-
, dated 5/17/2003,
recorded 6/11/2003,
as__ Instrument  No.
200308909, in the Official
Records of Lincoin Coun-
o oo S
wing described
real situated in

Lincoin County, ]
S e
of Section

115,10 feet to a concrete
lonument marking the
Siong e, ?\""r'?;% p
0 Wi a
cm 317.10 i
440.95 feet to the

5
_gf-%
338

2238
i
3

eridian, in

i
g

3
g
i
i
3
-]

L
:
:
;

i
ik

288
:
g

728
o

83
gat
it

o

;_?52
s
g
g
]

monument marking the
end r 3

to the point of begin-
nl pA‘?‘»‘N

PASS-THR!

TIFICATES SERIES 2003-

W1 Both the

and the trustee have

glectﬁd b:g srdé'al the above-
lesc Wy

to satisfy the obligations

socured by the Deed of

Trust and notice has been

g\e due and payable,
lateg ue 3
including: tts\e %'3“""
pal sum ofwl 107I," .12

2
g
o
g
1

bla Street #950,
land, OR 97201, will on
8/26/2020,

newspaper of
, gt the hour of E'eneral circulation in
gzooestaﬂllshed R e "bm ?Ji'é,'} 8
as :
bFIRC)NT 21.)20'pu last

187.110, AT THE
ENTRANCE TO THE uﬂq_-

NEWPORT, OR EOU DO

STREET, s

97385, soll at public auc-
tlontomehglheslbld-
der in the form of cash

uivalent g:enlﬂod funds
? cashl check) the
interest in the ve-

d real property
mlchthegmmo?hador
the mel.tn_ua:'eunedm RIGHTS
with interast which
the g of his succes- THIS 8UM

Y
57
2§
X

%
257
1

i

88
Lt

3
8
g
c

Prospective arurchaseri fi

potential d:

of residentt mreﬂy
should be awamp this

re
"or ”Ill‘l? t?operty a? tblhg
t & In constry:

ings vl e g
e

& 3300).

criteria NMC' Chap-
ter 14.34.050 are that: 1)
The public facilittes can
adequately accommo-
date the proposed use;

NT COU
ORDERED  HEARIN
y

STATE EXPENSE, YOU
than MUST
date

:
g
iz
§

mtamm ¥ Irements
wi e ulremen
of the u jort

the Board has gurrmof this meeti
umllfurtmef oconvsneamgug

, at all
ublic meetings will be Committee of the OCW-
Zoom e meet-

COG. For further informa-

oo
ly. Members of the tion on how to attend this
ic mesting, and about OCW-

on website at www.

NOTICE OF BUDGEY

COMMITTEE MEETING
blic of the OQreg

lenewal Eouncll of Governments

NOTICE OF PUBLIC
MEETING
on Cascades West

[e0) :

< e
20201, will be held at
Siletz Valley Fire
Facebook, "@SiletzValley-
FireDistrict. The meeting
will take t)lace on May
26, 2020 al 7'% p.m. The

a W
deliberation of the Bud-
get Committee will tak

place. An{ &erson may
pear af e meeti
:npddiscussm?m

Any ma;
bud%lwmlme
gu%t(}omm 0. if you
are Interested in joining
the please

uif
nually via

B 200, Wrs Wb (40

NOTICE OF BUDGET
COMMITTEE MEETING
MAKA| SPECIAL RO

DISTRICT. A public meet-
ing of the Com-

be Microsoft Teams Meet
websne.mentﬁn:ﬂngs will  Application downloadzg

2020, from 9:00 a.m. to

on, to discuss the

State of Ore- Istancli
to discuss the Annual fhwalm during n&e%
ram and Bud- 19 response. M15 M22

and
A £ apmar Bemonal . ment (Plannif Depart-
?}'I'.YEAR RECON CORP Yr?uv E RDERE'B m H:R,) 169 SW
111 SW u TO Y Hwy, Newp OR
#950 7201 APP| 973685, must be recelved
Phone:  858-750-7600 ALLY IN THE COURT- by 6:00 p.m. the day of
-831-0036 Shella ROO! ﬁwhean?tobelncludedw
- COU as part of the hearing or
natory of Trustee. M1 M8  YOU must be personally pre-
Mi5 (30-22) Q1DVANCE UNDER ORS :tammi dpu;l A mony
e hearing.
PUBLISHED SUMMONS OTHER MEANS INCLUD- The hearing will include a
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT report byngaﬂ. testis
OF E ST OF m oral and written
COEN COUNTY uvenils o i i o Sprbea
. In_the Mat- MAY NOT Al to the application, rebut-
ter of MATTHEW JOHN HEARING(S] tal the applicant, and
GEMBALA-POREDA ﬂon s and delibera-
JR: A Child. Case No. ATTORNEY by the Planning Com-
18Ju06g32 TO: anle Assistant mission. Py ORS
OF THE §T ] Court Street to the conclusion of
D T oy NE . Batom. OR 07307 Bre I pobis aon o1
been filed asking the court Phone; may 1o uest a‘coomlnu-
to terminate r ance public heari;
tal rights to Yt?um above-m or that the record be
named child for the pur- for at least seven
of placing the child : Attor- 8 to present additional
gae i on.n%ou ARE General. M8 M15 M22 dence, arguments, or
REQUIRED TO PERSON- 22) testimony regarding the
PEAR BEFO! application. The staff
the nty Cou: may be reviewed or
at 225 West Olive Street i for rea-
m 300, New- o ecostﬂtyme New-
jon 97. on Ci munity Develop-
5%"5::1 day of June 2020 CGom ent (Planning) Depant-
at 9:00 a.m. to admit or

appear at sub-
sequent courta-gyrdmd
hoarl% YOU MuST
APP| PERSONALLY

: public hearing electron
deny the al ofthe cally on Tuesday, M
i Rt S30%cBD S, Mey

& Elsinore Investments,

NOTICE OF A BUDGET
COMMITTEE MEETING
A public meeting of the
Budget Committee of the
f\-lﬂ;—-com nny

(=t iy 4

O%OTK:E OF BUDGET
PACIFIC SHORE! H
CIAL ROA,I'.": mgm
Bugu% Comv:l‘ﬂtee of
the ific

clal Road District, Lin-
gfoln County, and State

gl‘:ooon.lunoa,zozoat
office of Ritacco

BUDGET COMMITTEE
MEETING
Otter Rock Water District
Com:

NOTICE OF PUBLIC
MEETING
West
ico'meeﬂ of the E MEET]
ng COMMITYE ING
ive Committee of A public meeting of the
Cascades Budget Committee of the
of Govem- Fire District,
will be  Lincoin County, State of
ay 21,

Qregon t
to discuss the budgets Councll of Govermments
for the fiscal

' website at www.
ocwcoeis) L.org. M16 (50-
" PUBLIC NOTICE
A VIRTUAL regular meet-
ing of the Board of Direc-

tors of the Pacific Com-
munities Health District
.M. on

: Jot .org or call
, on oryaoftuef May 9)1—574-4674. %5 (51-

BUDGET COMMITTEE
EETI

MEETING
City of Yach-
pportunity East Lincoln County Fire

S 2050 bRl 26
E Bu , Toledo,

vider, inon Beaucalre,
City Manager. M15 46-15)  Sracors 7oty A B
NOTICE OF PUBLIC |, ‘mocting of the Tole-
MEETING

District Budgat Commit:
{e0 Wil bo hoid at'6 pm
Waednesda) a) »

at the Toledo Firs

the 2020
6@ of Station training _room,
285 NE

Buvgess Tc )
Oregon 97391. Note:
We wil‘l1 be observing all

(52-22)

NOTICE TO
video conference. The
meoting will tak INTERESTED PERSONS

Newport OR 97365, Tele-
hone (541) 265-2300.

et vde (53-29)
NOTICE OF BUDGET

‘g.m. to 4:0'!‘) E
a)
Sato e Beoc,
Hall Remodel Docu

will be avallable at this
location from

INTER D
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT
g‘g;‘ms STATE OF ORE:

OF LINCOLN. m%%"m
tor of Estate of Betty

J. . Cagse
No. 20PB02572 NOTICE
IS HEREBY GIVEN that
Joseph N, Rock been

pmcoggl o ti;y.‘:::aln
ma

addltlom'a‘f;s lnlgrmatlon

from the records of the

court, the
S, BT
or the

%"6““3:"' 1344,
0. X . T
OR'97365. Dated and first

ublished 1, 2020,
FiTMe Mlm&ﬁ)
“CITY HALL REMODEL

The City of Yachats is
E'r‘n equal  opportunity

] ors are
i to bid on the con-
s remodel
to the City Hall Remodel
located at 501 Hw
Yachats, OR 97488. The
remodel will

, Jeff Waarvick,

af p.m.,
June 4, fgroeo con-
sublzect to ORS 279C.800
g:e 790.870°1relatl i to
Saes and ¥

ons
for this Ci md
(Cltr\‘(ts Hall Remode! Docu-

mel may be examined
at YacLals City Hall office
located at 441 101

N, Yachats, OR 97498
between the hours of 9:00

.M.,
riday f until
The City

the date of
until July 10,

this notice
2020. M15 M22 (45-22)

PORT OF NEWPORT
COMMISSION

Port Comm| .
missioner Sara Ska-
mser has r:lﬂned her|
gosltlon effective May
2020. Her commis-
;{?’5 o ires June 30,
e G

letter of interest and a
completed wﬂon-

within Port District
boundarles. Additional
dotails be found on
our website, www.por-
com. Candi-
date Intervlewls aﬁrhd 'gg
appointment to
red term is antici-

unexpi
gated at a Port Regular|
‘nmmicelnn Kaatinn nn



49

CITY OF NEWPORT
PUBLIC NOTICE!'

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Planning Commission of the City of Newport, Oregon, will hold a
public hearing to consider the following Conditional Use Permit outlined below. This hearing will be held electronically.

File No. 1-CUP-20:

Applicants & Representatives: Keystone Pacific, LLC & Elsinore Investments, LLC, 18555 SW Teton Avenue,
Tualatin, OR 97062 (Dustin Capri, Capri Architecture, authorized representative).

Request: Approval of a request per Section 14.03.080/“Water-Dependent and Water-Related Uses” of the Newport
Zoning Ordinance, for a conditional use permit to construct a new 3,000 square foot general retail market, 2,000 square
foot eating and drinking establishment, and 6,859 square foot industrial use building for food production. The subject
property is located in a W-2/“Water-Related” zone. Three existing buildings will be demolished.

Location/Subject Property: 836, 838, 844, 846, 848, 852 & 856 SW Bay Blvd, Newport, OR 97365 (Tax Map 11-11-
08-CA, Tax Lots 2500, 2501, 2800 & 3300).

Applicable Criteria: NMC Chapter 14.34.050: (1) The public facilities can adequately accommodate the proposed use;
2) the request complies with the requirements of the underlying zone or overlay zone; 3) the proposed use does not have
an adverse impact greater than existing uses on nearby properties, or impacts can be ameliorated through imposition of
conditions of approval; and 4) a proposed building or building modification is consistent with the overall development
character of the neighborhood with regard to building size and height, considering both existing buildings and potential
buildings allowable as uses permitted outright.

Testimony: This hearing will be held electronically. The public can live-stream the Planning Commission meeting at
newportoregon.gov/citygov/comm/cc.asp. The meeting will also be broadcast on Charter Channel 190. Public comment
may be made, via e-mail, up to two hours before the meeting start time at publiccomment@newportoregon.gov.
Additionally, anyone wishing to give testimony at the public hearing should e-mail their telephone number, and the
hearing item they wish to address, up to two hours before the start of the meeting, to s.marineau@newportoregon.gov,
and staff will telephone that person when that item is being discussed at the meeting.

Testimony and evidence must be directed toward the criteria described above or other criteria in the Comprehensive Plan
and its implementing ordinances which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue with
sufficient specificity to afford the city and the parties an opportunity to respond to that issue precludes an appeal
(including to the Land Use Board of Appeals) based on that issue. Letters sent to the Community Development (Planning)
Department (address below under "Reports/Application Material") must be received by 5:00 p.m. the day of the hearing
to be included as part of the hearing or must be personally presented during testimony at the public hearing. The hearing
will include a report by staff, testimony (both oral and written) from the applicant and those in favor or opposed to the
application, rebuttal by the applicant, and questions and deliberation by the Planning Commission. Pursuant to ORS
197.763 (6), any person prior to the conclusion of the initial public hearing may request a continuance of the public
hearing or that the record be left open for at least seven days to present additional evidence, arguments, or testimony
regarding the application.

Reports/Application Material: The staff report may be reviewed or a copy purchased for reasonable cost at the Newport
Community Development (Planning) Department, City Hall, 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, Oregon, 97365, seven days
prior to the hearing. The application materials (including the application and all documents and evidence submitted in
support of the application), the applicable criteria, and other file material are available for inspection at no cost; or copies
may be purchased for reasonable cost at this address.

Contact: Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director, (541) 574-0626 (address above in “Reports/Application
Material™).

Time/Place of Hearing: Tuesday, May 26, 2020; 7:00 p.m.; City Hall Council Chambers (address above in
“Reports/Application Material”).

MAILED: May 6, 2020.
PUBLISHED: May 15, 2020/News-Times.

! Notice of this action is being sent to the following: (1) Affected property owners within 200 feet of the subject property according to Lincoln
County tax records; (2) affected public utilities within Lincoln County; and (3) affected city departments.



FH:'S"M"AP WAS PREPARED FOR | H ‘|° ”l ”l ‘°| Fost DETAIL MAP NO. 1

11 11 08 CA
ASSESSMENT PURPOSE oY) N.E.1/4 S.W.1/4 SEC.8 T.11S. R.11W. W.M. DETAIL MAP NO 1
LINCOLN COUNTY NEWPORT
Subject Properties

File No. [-1p-380
Revise* <£9
1210 50!
NEWPORT

DETAIL MAP NO 1
111108 CA



51

NW Natural Charter Communications CenturyLink
ATTN: Dave Sanders ATTN: Keith Kaminski ATTN: Corky Fallin
1405 SW Hwy 101 355 NE 1%t St 740 State St

Lincoln City, OR 97367

Central Lincoln PUD

Newport OR 97365

Email: Lisa Phillips

Salem OR 97301

HEMAIL*

ATTN: Randy Grove
odotr2planmgr@odot.state.or.us

PO Box 1126
Newport OR 97365

DLCD Coastal Services Center
lisa.phillips@state.or.us

Joseph Lease
Building Official

Derrick Tokos
Planner

Laura Kimberly
Library

Beth Young
Associate Planner

Rob Murphy
Fire Chief

Jason Malloy
Police Chief

Michael Cavanaugh
Parks & Rec

EXHIBIT ‘A’
(Affected Agencies)

Tim Gross
Public Works

Mike Murzynsky
Finance Director

Spencer Nebel
City Manager

{1-CUP-20)



769 SW BAY BLVD LLC
113 SE BAY BLVD
NEWPORT; OR 97365

BAY VIEW CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
833 13TH ST SW
NEWPORT; OR 97365

DRAGER WILLIAM G JR COTTEE &
DRAGER RAEBETH C COTTEE
ATTN BORST VALERIE
635 35TH AVE SE
ALBANY; OR 97322

EGGERT CHARLES W
18555 SW TETON AVE
TUALATIN; OR 97062

ERLANDER J MARK
1211 SW BAY ST
APT A
NEWPORT; OR 97365

MCENTEE WILSON GABRIELLE
PO BOX 717
NEWPORT; OR 97365

ROLES WILMA E (TOD)
834 SW 13TH ST
NEWPORT; OR 97365

STARLIGHT ONE LLC
ATTN BORNSTEIN SEAFOODS INC
ATTN RICH GRIFFITH
PO BOX 188
BELLINGHAM; WA 98227

VEAL CONNECTION CORPORATION
2225 GROSSE AVE
SANTA ROSA; CA 95404

YOST PROPERTIES LLC
3756 CHEROKEE DR S
SALEM; OR 97302

BAKER JON P &

BAKERLYNNDJ

38695 RIVER DR
LEBANON; OR 97355

CAPRI DUSTIN &
CAPRI AMANDA
CAPRI ARCHITECTURE
747 SW 13TH
NEWPORT; OR 97365

DULCICH REALTY ACQUISITION LLC
ATTN PACIFIC SHRIMP CO
ATTN DEBBIE SELLERS
PO BOX 1230
NEWPORT; OR 97365

ELM STREET LLC
ATTN CHARLOTTE BOXER
606 N TOMAHAWK ISLAND DR
PORTLAND; OR 97217

LAFRANCHISE JANINE
833 SW 13TH ST
APT #2
NEWPORT; OR 97365

NEWPORT REAL ESTATE LLC
3 E RAMONA AVE
COLORADO SPRINGS; CO 80905

SELVEY VICTOR B
381 SUNSHINE AVE
PHILOMATH; OR 97370

TAYLOR BRYCE R TRUSTEE &
TAYLOR CARLY S TRUSTEE
PO BOX 12247
SALEM; OR 97309

WISHOFF BRADDEN J &
WISHOFF SALLY A
18886 LAFAYETTE AVE
OREGON CITY; OR 97405

KEYSTONE PACIFIC, LLC &
ELSINORE INVESTMENTS, LLC
ATTN: CHARLES EGGERT
1855 SW TETON AVENUE
TUALATIN, OR 97062

[9\]
Lo

BAY BLVD LLC
ATTN CHARLOTTE BOXER
4627 N CONGRESS AVE
PORTLAND; OR 97217

CHENG HANN S &
FEYLILLIEC
818 SW 13TH ST
NEWPORT; OR 97365

EGGERT CHARLES W
18555 SW TETON AVE
TUALATIN; OR 97062

CHARLES EGGERT
ELSINORE INVESTMENTS LLC
18555 SW TETON AVE
TUALATIN; OR 97062

MCENTEE CINDY M &
DIXON JUDITH A &
DIXON KEVIN ETAL
622 SW BAY BLVD

NEWPORT; OR 97365

NEWPORT TOWNHOMES LLC
ATTN BOOKS TO GO
8101 SW NYBERG ST

#218
TUALATIN; OR 97062

SMITH BRADFORD M &
SMITH BEVERLY M
2455 S 5TH ST
LEBANON; OR 97355

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
% US COAST GUARD
DISTRICT 13
915 2ND AVE
SEATTLE; WA 98104

YELTRAB FAMILY LLC
845 SW 12TH ST
NEWPORT; OR 97365

Exhibit “A”

Adjacent Property Owners
Within 200 Feet



53

Sherri Marineau

From: Sherri Marineau

Sent: Wednesday, May 06, 2020 9:46 AM

To: ‘odotr2planmgr@odot.state.or.us’; 'lisa.phipps@state.or.us'
Subject: Conditional Use Permit - 1-CUP-20

Attachments: Notice - File 1-CUP-20 PC May 26 Hearing.pdf

I have attached a copy of a public notice concerning a land use request that was sent previously. The original public
hearing date for this request was canceled and has been rescheduled for May 26, 2020. The notice contains a brief
explanation of the request, a property description and map, and a date for a public hearing. You may want to review
this information to determine if there are any effects to your department and if you would like to make comments.

We must have your comments at least 10 days prior to the hearing period in order for them to be considered. Should
no response be received, a “no comment” will be assumed.

Sherri Marineau

City of Newport

Community Development Department
169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97365

ph: 541.574.0629 fax: 541.574.0644
s.marineau@newportoregon.gov




54

Sherri Marineau

R o ]
From: Sherri Marineau
Sent: Wednesday, May 06, 2020 9:46 AM
To: Derrick Tokos; Spencer Nebel; Tim Gross; Robert Murphy; Michael Murzynsky; Joseph
Lease; Jason Malloy; Laura Kimberly; Michael Cavanaugh; Beth Young
Subject: Conditional Use Permit - 1-CUP-20
Attachments: File 1-CUP-20 City Dept & Utilities Notification-May 26 Hearing.pdf; Notice - File 1-

CUP-20 PC May 26 Hearing.pdf

I have attached a copy of a public notice concerning a land use request that was sent previously. The original public
hearing date for this request was canceled and has been rescheduled for May 26, 2020. The notice contains a brief
explanation of the request, a property description and map, and a date for a public hearing. You may want to review
this information to determine if there are any effects to your department and if you would like to make comments.

We must have your comments at least 10 days prior to the hearing period in order for them to be considered. Should
no response be received, a “no comment” will be assumed.

Sherri Marineau

City of Newport

Community Development Department
169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97365

ph: 541.574.0629 fax: 541.574.0644
s.marineau@newportoregon.gov




o]

City of Newport

Memorandum

To: Planning Commission
From: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Direc@/

Date: May 21, 2020

Re:  File No. 1-CP-18/ 3-Z-20 - Amending the Natural Features Section of the Newport
Comprehensive Plan and Adding a New Municipal Code Chapter 14.46 Establishing a
Tsunami Hazards Zoning Overlay

On April 13, 2020, the Planning Commission continued the public hearing on this proposed
legislative amendment to May 26, 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. No new information has
been submitted into the record since that time.



56

File No. 1-CP-18/3-Z-20
Hearing Date: April 13, 2020/Planning Commission

PLANNING STAFF MEMORANDUM
FILE No. 1-CP-18 / 3-Z-20
CORRECTED

I._Applicant: City of Newport. (Initiated pursuant to motion of the Newport Planning Commission on March
9, 2020).

I1. Request: Amend the Natural Features section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan to include background,
a rationale, and policies for guiding development within tsunami inundation areas. Further, the proposal
amends the Newport Zoning Ordinance (i.e. Title XIV of the Newport Municipal Code) to establish a new
Tsunami Hazard Overlay Zone that limits certain uses in tsunami inundation areas in a manner comparable to
provisions contained in ORS Chapter 455 that were removed with the passage of HB 3309 (2019).

III. Planning Commission Review and Recommendation: The Planning Commission reviews proposed
amendments to the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance, and provides a recommendation to the City

Council. Later, the City Council will hold an additional public hearing prior to any decision on the
amendments.

IV. Findings Required: The Newport Comprehensive Plan Chapter entitled “Administration of the Plan”
(p. 288-289) allows amendments of this nature if findings can be made that there is (a) a significant change in
one or more conclusions; or (b) a public need for the change; or (c) a significant change in community attitudes
or priorities; or (d) a demonstrated conflict with another plan goal or policy that has a higher priority; or (¢) a
change in a statute or statewide agency plan. Revisions must comply with applicable Statewide Planning
Goals. With respect to the Zoning Ordinance amendments, the Commission must determine that the changes
are necessary and further the general welfare of the community (NMC 14.36.010).

V. Planning Staff Memorandum Attachments:

Attachment "A" Draft Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan
Attachment "B" Draft Amendments Establishing a Tsunami Hazards Overlay
Attachment "C" Maps Illustrating the Extent of the Tsunami Hazards Overlay
Attachment "D" Minutes from the 7/8/19, 8/12/19, 8/26/19, and 2/24/20

Attachment "E" 2019 OSSC High Hazard Occupancy Classification

Attachment "F" Email from Jean Dahlquist, dated March 30, 2020

Attachment "G" News-Times articles

Attachment "H" Notice of public hearing

V1. Notification: The Department of Land Conservation & Development was provided notice of the proposed
legislative amendment on February 24, 2020. Because this amendment will limit the range of permissible
uses, notice of the Planning Commission hearing was mailed on March 13, 2020 to persons owning property
within the tsunami inundation area in accordance with ORS 227.186. Notice was published in the Newport
News-Times on April 3, 2020.

VII. Comments: An email was received from Jean Dahlquist requesting a copy of the staff report.

VIII. Discussion of Request: In 2017 the City of Newport, along with a number of other coastal communities,
secured grant funding from the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) to (a) improve
the capacity of coastal jurisdictions to prepare and plan for, absorb impacts of, recover from, and/or adapt to

File No. 1-CP-18 — 3-Z-20 / Staff Memorandum / Amendments to Natural Features Section of the Newport
Comprehensive Plan and a new Chapter 14.46 of the Municipal Code establishing a tsunami hazards overlay.



N~
L0

extreme weather events and climate-related hazards; and (b) identify activities that restore habitat to strengthen
the resilience of coastal ecosystems and decrease the vulnerability of coastal communities to extreme weather
events and climate-related hazards.

Some of the funding has been used by the Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries (DOGAMI)
to prepare “beat the wave” time/distance maps for tsunami inundation areas within the partner jurisdictions.
This includes socio-economic vulnerability and potential structural damage assessments for the affected areas.
DOGAMI completed this work, the analysis and maps for which are included in a publication titled “Open-
File Report O-19-05, Tsunami evacuation analysis of Newport, Lincoln County, Oregon.”

A second phase of the project, and the topic for this hearing, relates to the development of a tsunami hazard
overlay. When the Commission discussed this issue in January of 2018, there was general agreement that the
ORS Chapter 455 prohibitions on new essential facilities and special occupancy uses within tsunami
inundation areas were sufficient, and there wasn’t a need for the City to restrict additional uses. There was;
however, interest in (a) integrating the development and improvement of tsunami evacuation infrastructure
into the land use and development review processes, and (b) providing incentives for development design that
reduce risk and increase resiliency.

On June 25, 2019 the Governor signed HB 3309, which repealed the ORS Chapter 455 prohibitions.
Considering this change, the Planning Commission determined that it needed to revisit whether the City should
reinstate the prohibition on new essential facilities and certain special occupancy uses within tsunami
inundation areas by way of adopting a tsunami hazards overlay zone.

Over a series of four work sessions, the Commission developed a package of amendments to the City’s
Comprehensive Plan to provide the background, rationale, and policy support for an overlay, and worked
through the mechanics of putting in place a new tsunami hazards zoning overlay.

The Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan provides context for the policies that follow
(Attachment "A"). The format is akin to an executive summary, with more detailed technical studies being
referenced with citations or adopted as appendices. There are several components to this section that are dated
and should be updated in the future. Proposed amendments are limited to the project at hand, which is to
update the City’s policy and regulatory documents related to tsunami hazards. Provisions related to earthquake
risk are being replaced in their entirety, as they are quite dated. This section of the document deals with
earthquake risk generally, not just the Cascadia Event, and the new language has been pulled, in large part,
from the City of Newport Addendum to the Lincoln County Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan, dated July 2015
(Adopted by the City Council with Resolution No. 3725). A new section has been added addressing tsunami’s
specifically. Much of the language is borrowed from model provisions contained in DLCD’s publication titled
“Preparing for a Cascadia Subduction Zone Tsunami: A Land Use Guide for Oregon Coastal Communities”
dated April of 2015.

Three policies are being added under Goal 1, which commit the City to (a) put in place a tsunami overlay zone
to limit certain uses within inundation areas and (b) adopt tsunami resilient building code requirements for
high risk structures. The third policy, relating to vertical evacuation structures, has already been implemented
in the zoning ordinance. A new Goal 2 and associated policies has been added to encapsulate the education
and outreach needed to effectively plan for hazard events. It has been tailored to address “all hazards,” not
just tsunami’s, and speaks to both the City’s internal and external constituencies.

A new Chapter 14.46 will be added to the Municipal Code to create a tsunami hazards overlay zone
(Attachment "B"). It includes a purpose section, drawing authority from Statewide Planning Goals 7 and 18,
and the Natural Features Section of the Comprehensive Plan. The tsunami hazards overlay corresponds with
the “XXL” tsunami inundation area boundary, as depicted on the maps titled “Local Source (Cascadia

File No. 1-CP-18 — 3-Z-20 / Staff Memorandum / Amendments to Natural Features Section of the Newport
Comprehensive Plan and a new Chapter 14.46 of the Municipal Code establishing a tsunami hazards overlay.



[ce]
Ko

Subduction Zone) Tsunami Inundation Map Newport North, Oregon” and “Local Source (Cascadia Subduction
Zone) Tsunami Inundation Map Newport South, Oregon” produced by DOGAMI, dated February 8, 2013.
The overlay will prohibit new essential facilities, which include hospitals and related medical facilities,
emergency vehicle shelters, police/fire stations, and emergency preparedness centers. Special occupancy
structures that would be prohibited include large schools, assisted/senior living facilities, day care facilities,
child care facilities, jails/detention facilities, and hazardous facilities. Uses classified as hazardous include
those identified as High Hazards in the 2019 Oregon Structural Specialty Code (Attachment "E"). Large
schools and child care facilities would be prohibited in areas subject to medium size events. All other listed
uses would be prohibited from areas likely to be inundated because of a worse case “XXL” event. Uses
permitted in water-dependent or water-related zones are not subject to the limitations. The overlay includes a
discretionary land use exception process, with standards, that would be subject to review and approval by the
Planning Commission. Existing “prohibited uses” would become non-conforming and could continue as they
are presently operating.

Another component of the proposal are design standards that apply to all new, or substantial improvements to,
multifamily, residential, commercial, industrial, or institutional development within the new tsunami hazard
overlay zone. Such development will be required to provide all-weather pedestrian access between buildings
to adjacent rights-of-way or evacuation routes, directional signage to evacuation routes, and the posting of
emergency evacuation information within buildings. In circumstances where a developer elects to construct a
vertical evacuation structure within the overlay, language has been added requiring such structures meet the

same design standards as those that presently apply to evacuation structures that would exceed the height limit
of the zone district within which they are located.

Proposed changes consider updated mapping and analysis by DOGAMI regarding the risk to life and property
from a tsunami associated with a near shore Cascadia Event. Further, they borrow from best practices that
recognize the importance of placing essential facilities where they are most likely to be operational after a
Cascadia Event, and the need to protect populations with mobility issues that would have a difficult time
evacuating to designated assembly areas. Restrictions on high hazard uses acknowledge the impact to the
environment that would result from such uses being compromised by wave forces from a tsunami. Lastly, the
design standards ensure that evacuation wayfinding and routes will be enhanced over time, so that residents,
employees, and visitors can effectively and efficiently reach assembly areas when the need arises. Unlike
some coastal communities, Newport has ample land outside of tsunami inundation areas to accommodate
prohibited uses. For these reasons, it would be reasonable for the Commission to find that the Comprehensive
Plan amendments are necessary because of (a) a significant change in one or more conclusions and (b) a public
need for the changes. Further, this same rationale supports a finding that the changes to the Newport Municipal
Code are necessary and further the general welfare of the community.

IX. Conclusion and Recommendation: The Planning Commission should review the recommended
amendments to the Newport Comprehensive Plan and Newport Municipal Code make a recommendation to
the City Council. As this is a legislative process, the Commission may recommend changes to the amendments.
If the Commission provides a favorable recommendation then formal findings, in ordinance format, will be
prepared for the City Council’s consideration, including the requisite statewide planning goal analysis. The

Council may also make changes to the proposal prior to, or concurrent with, the adoption of an implementing
ordinance.

O o —
Derrick I. Tokos AICP
Community Development Director
City of Newport

April 13,2020

File No. 1-CP-18 — 3-Z-20 / Staff Memorandum / Amendments to Natural Features Section of the Newport
Comprehensive Plan and a new Chapter 14.46 of the Municipal Code establishing a tsunami hazards overlay.



Attachment “A”
1-CP-18 /3-Z-20
Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

(Deleted language shown in strikethreugh and language to be added is depicted with a
double underline. Staff comments, in italics, are provided for context and are not a part
of the revisions)

NATURAL FEATURES

Introduction:

Various sections of Newport's Comprehensive Rlanhave anticipated a demand for

additional land to accommodate growth. Sometimes th:

that are environmentally sensitive or geologic ﬁh_c}-/‘:t%iazardous. Infartunately, not all
;;__,agi,a t several environmel

Ty,

major consideration when |dent|fy|n nVI‘.
properties that are the S|te Q_f S|gn|ﬂcanv tural,

City of Newport. fULr ere poss‘

_“‘Tf"a_ i-v!“-_. L
rowe it

d into hills and valleys, wave action builds beaches, streams
3, and the earth's internal forces push the land upward to start

People, too, shape the land to serve their needs. Houses and shopping centers are
built, roads are cut, land is cleared, all to facilitate the needs and desires of a greater
number of people. But how do all these forces interact and how do we avoid situations that
are in conflict? To answer these questions, we must first examine the underlying geology
and then identify inherent problems created because of that geology.

The Newport area is predominantly composed of five geologic units: the Nye
mudstone, the Astoria formation, the Yaquina formation, the Cape Foulweather basalt, and
the Quaternary marine deposits. A bulletin describing the characteristics of the five
units and mapping the general location of each is the Environmental Geology of Lincoln

Page 1. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

To]



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

County, Oregon, prepared by the State of Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral
Industries.” The map of the Newport area also shows a geologic cross section that bisects
the heart of Newport.

The Environmental Geology bulletin contains an appendix that summarizes planning
concerns in the Newport area:

"Coastal erosion and landslides are extensive from Otter Rock southward to
Yaquina Head. Here the abundance of Iandslides is due to - seaward dip of the

efallt ';%gate Beach
subsurface drainage is restricted and a pUi !i,. atsystem is nec‘éz;ary before

additional developments are made.

umber of homes have been
asha result of landslides in this
e stability of the slope should

line in Newport from about Nye Beach south to the bay, the
ain by loose dune sand. These sands are stabilized where
hiowever, where the vegetation has been removed or none has
‘S’ to erosion or transport by wind. Frequently during high winds,

the sand can be ob'“erv d drifting across streets and into properties adjacent to the street.

1 State of Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries, Bulletin 81: Environmental Geology of Lincoln County, Oregon, 1973.

Page 2. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

60



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

"Just east of Newport, in the vicinity of MeClean-McLean [sic] Point, much of the
slope has been affected by landslides. Development in this area should proceed with great
caution. The making of steep cuts, removal of toe support, the additional weight of
embankments on the upper slopes, and the addition of moisture from the developments,
including subsurface sewage disposal, all add to the instability of the slope. Serious
problems can arise, especially following periods of extremely heavy rainfall. Developments
in this area could suffer serious slope problems unless the slopes and embankments are
properly constructed and a public sewerage system is installe

de
A3
L

greater density, a publlc sewerage system should be j n ’ ! water table creates
, vater will stand at the

AT
y

rty. Onthe
and an3|ble approach to coping with
fieni nate much of the grief that might

ds and the Yaquina Bay. The terrace materials consist of
it, and pebbly sand overlain in many areas by old, fairly stable

sea cliffs in some pla"es.

2 Ibid, pgs. 168-169.

Page 3. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

61



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

"The margins of these terrace areas adjacent to the ocean are attractive places to
build, and many small beach cottages, permanent homes, condominiums, and motels
occupy these locations. Unfortunately, the sea cliffs at the terrace margins are slowly but
continually receding. Wave erosion during storms and high tides undermines the cliffs,
while rain, wind, and frost loosen the upper portions; as a result, masses of terrace material
slip seaward at unpredictable rates and in unexpected places.

'block is not disrupted, but it is
generally back-tilted, or rotated dowf,on, side. Water often accumulatesin a

sag pond at the back of the slide.

"The surface of these slump may e Ot
o the untra| eye, suchiappa rently level areas of ocean

s o

b de mr_w_le buildingsites. Unfortunately, however, these areas
ar ~ e must adjust to constant wave erosion at
ide; 0 a short ti L ‘ the entire slump block can be eroded away. During

exposed areas aren @tﬁ?"’ mediately stabilized, the wind will soon erode basins and troughs,
causing the sand to migrate to adjacent housing areas where it can cover driveways,
sidewalks, streets, and lawns."*

3 Ibid, p. 127.
4 big, p. 132,

Page 4. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

62



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Sandspits and Active Dunes

"Sandspits and their active dunes are of recent origin and should be regarded as
relatively temporary features. Some parts of the spits and dunes are built up quickly by
water and wind and destroyed by the same agents a few years later. Their instability
results from the interplay of numerous environmental factors, including ocean currents, size
and number of storms, volume of stream sediment entering the ocean, and variations in
tides and wind patterns."® #

Sandspits and active dunes are found mostly at thefn
South Beach. "Preservation of vegetation on the d@
recommended since excavation into loose sand couI in
essential that the foredune be preserved. Co st
hazardous."® =

Hillside Development Areas

"Nearly all aspects of hillside land developr'-"-‘“ >mbine to create slope instability
unless the entire construction projegtisipr ed It should be empha3|zed that
slope failure may occur 5 [sic] to 10 ar:

bIe adverse effect on slope
l, it results in a steeper than
Subis usually placed immediately downslope to
‘;";5den. Both operations create instability by

oversteepening and'a ding w, 'ghtﬁteh_
.’-:'_A,‘ g_ﬂ ‘
uSing developments progress gradually...By the time the
| j arly. half of the ground surface is covered by buildings, streets,
driv 'fj , preventing normal infiltration of precipitation. Not only will the
ai “ in'small areas, but additional water will build up from

area."s

Ibid, p. 132.
Ibid, p. 132.
Properties with a slope greater than 12%.

State of Oregon, Bulletin 81: Environmental Geolagy of Lincoln County, Oregon, p. 135,

o N O O

Page 5. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

63



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Inland Mountainous Areas

"Construction inland from the coast...usually involves steep topography along the
valleys of the major rivers and smaller streams. (Flood-plain development and its
associated hazards are discussed under 'Flood-prone Areas,' below.) Since the early days
of settlement...these valleys have provided the best access inland from the ocean. As a
result, farms, small towns, roads, and highways have followed them. Logging roads have
penetrated far into the mountainous areas along the steep wali§iof the smaller tributary
streams, and some of these roads have come into permanept

Pleistocene when sea levels were considerably Ig aped. - of the ice during
interglacial episodes caused a rise in sea level anddgra d silting up of the
lower reaches of the valleys. Meandering s '

excavations, and other purposes have the sam
rock."?

Summary

udles prior ta development All possible geologic hazards
tory solutions determined prior to any construction. If

Page 6. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

64



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Page 7. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

65



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

9 on January 26, 1700. The earthq _ _ ﬁ]ixaml that caused damage as far
i d associated tsunamis have

Pres it is not Do'gs“b

Geoloqv anthMineral Indmes (DOGAMI) has developed maps for the City of Newport
that show%és of hlqheﬁk (relative to other areas) during a damaging earthquake.
Specifically, t mnags g;é"a@ y relative amplification hazards, relative liquefaction hazards,
areas subject to me induced landslides, and hazards attributed to the combined
effects of ground shaking. The maps are referenced as Figures NA-4 to NA-7 in the
Newport Addendum to the Lincoln County Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan, dated July 2015.

Newport's concentrated population and resources, as well as the soil characteristics and
relative earthquake hazards, as depicted on the referenced maps, are cause for further
study and significant effort toward mitigating the earthquake hazards, including seismically
upgrading essential facilities and ensuring new development adheres to modern,
earthquake---resistant building codes.

10

Oregon Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan. Department of Land Conservation and Development, 2015.

Page 8. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

66



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Tsunami’s:

The Oregon coast is well known for its spectacular scenery and natural resources.
However, because the coast lies at the interface between land and the Pacific Ocean, it
also is a zone of great instability and vulnerability. Over time, we have gained a greater
awareness of our coast’s geologic hazards and its risks to people and property.

Coastal Oregon is not only vulnerable to chronic coastal hazards such as coast erosion
from winter storms and sea level rise, but it is also subject to thespotentially catastrophic

o

under the ocean just offshore of our coast and will p@uce extreme
that can strike the coast 15 and 20 minutes aft earthquake, A' |

olus or minus 200 years. The last
iShago, on the evening of January
26th, 1700. This means that we are ie. time window where a destructive CSZ
earthquake and tsunami could occur and the probabilit oﬁa‘:&occurrence will continue to
increase over time. This time the stak&s\are mtichihigher as'the great earthquake and
catastrophic tsunami cofild'@césr when tens dftHousandsBf Oregonians and visitors are
enjoying coastal beaghes andtowns. To\address this increasing risk and substantially
increase resiliencefwithin our cominunity, the\City of Newport is proactively addressing
tsunami preparedness.and mitigation.within itslland use program. Land use planning that
addresses tsunami riskis apfessentialiteol tofdhelp increase resilience to a potentially
catastrop 'entsumaml eventiwithin Newport.

The Départ ealog "-e | Mineral Industries (DOGAMI) have developed Tsunami
Inunﬁitfon Maps (TII\71 vhich'p n side the essential information for defining tsunami risk
thexOregon coast.f\The Citylof Newport, by this reference, has adopted the TIM’s
applicableto.its corporateﬁﬁnts and urban growth boundary, as a part of its comprehensive
plan hazardiinventory. The TIMs are referenced in the tsunami related plan policies and
land use regulations f:;@oses of differentiating between areas of higher versus lower

ﬁ lacement of essential and certain _special occupancy facilities,

risk, which inf Q : %
evacuation route plamning and the application of tsunami resistant building codes.

DOGAMI has further completed a study to provide local government with a quantitative
assessment of the time, speed, and challenges affecting tsunami evacuation in Newport
and nearby coastal communities for the worst case scenario identified with the TIM
mapping.’'® This “Beat the Wave” analysis and mapping is a resource the City may use to
refine its tsunami resiliency planning efforts.

11A

11B DOGAMI QOpen File Report O-19-05, Tsunami Evacuation Analysis of Newport, Lincoln County, Oregon

DOGAMI Tsunami Inundation Map Linc-06 and Linc-07, Tsunami Inundation Maps for Newport North-South, Lincoln County, Oregon, Plate 1

Page 9. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

67



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Staff: The lead sections of the Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive
Plan provide context for the policies that follow. The format is akin to an executive
summary, with more detailed technical studies being referenced with citations or adopted
as appendices. There are a number of components to this section that are dated and
should be updated in the future. The amendments proposed are limited to the project at

hand, which is to update the City’s policy and regulatory documents related to tsunami
hazards.

The earthquake provisions are being replaced in their entirgt they are quite dated.
This section of the document deals with earthquake risk gé

Event, and the new language has been pulled, in larg m the City of Newport

Cascadia Subduct/on Zone Tsunami; A Land Us \ le r Oregon Coastal Communities”
relev losed for reference.

menace, occurring im \ :_ Major ﬂds causing extensive damage
have occurred at I .

Page 10. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

lly, not just the Cascadia

68



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

"Destructive flooding by streams occurred in Lincoln County during the winters of
1921, 1931, 1964-65, and 1972. Summarized briefly here, the high water inundated the
flood plains of all the major streams. Houses, barns, and livestock were lost; bridges,
sections of railroad, and boat docks were swept away; logs and debris from inland were
carried out to sea and lodged on distant beaches; residential and business areas of some
communities were under water, as were also some resorts; highways throughout the
County were blocked by floodwaters and landslides. During the 1964-65 floods, the entire
County was isolated.

prepared by the Federal Emergen
determmlng flood prone areas.

% sential that local government,
e Jot-buyer become aware of

no accurate method of predicting the frequency and magnitude
of ocean floodm"' urrence of three damaging floods in 33 years suggests an
average of about once every 10 years. Similar waves in the future will probably be even
more destructive because of the greatly increased construction of residences, motels, and

=2
1.
- o

=2
I

Page 11. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

69



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

condominiums at or just above the normal high-tide line. The presence of logs above
normal high-tide level is clear evidence of the elevations the sea can reach."'

Again, the Flood Insurance Rate Maps have determined from past experience the
maximum wave elevations for velocity flooding (V Zones) and areas of shallow marine
flooding (AO Zones). The siting of future structures should be based on these maps.

Ocean Shorelands:

This section summarizes inventory information abdut; relands adjacent to the
Pacific Ocean. Policy statements follow the inventary<inf Hon:, Identification of the
shorelands boundary was based upon the consid racteristics of the
land. Resources and hazard areas within the the shorelands
boundary are mapped on the Ocean Shorela p can be used
by property owners and developers to help red before

1.) Beaches, as identified in thef!

2.) Dunes, as identified in the '\, : D omprehensive Plan by RNKR
Associates. "’ -

et interdunes as identified in the

3.)  Younger, sta -
p Beaches and Dunes of the Oregon Coast

Soil Conser,

a ures as mapped by RNKR Associates. '’

and wtland biological habitat identified by Dr. D.W. Thomas

14 Ibid, p. 141.
15 RNKR Associates, Environmental Hazard Inventory: Coastal Lincoln County, Oregon, 1979.

16 U.S. Soil Conservation Service, Beaches and Dunes of the Oregon Coast, 1975.
17

RNKR Assaciates, Environmental Hazard Inventory: Coastal Lincoln County, Oregon, 1979.
18

D.W. Thomas, Significant Shoreland and Wetland Biological Habitats and Riparian Vegetation, 1981.

Page 12. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

70



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

8.) Areas necessary for water-dependent and water-related uses, specifically
recreational uses and navigation facilities.

9.) Landslide areas as identified by RNKR Associates in 1979 (map numbers 13:25
through 16:25).

10.) Features of exceptional scenic quality.

11.) Riparian vegetation along streams is included within significant wildlife habitat
areas.

12.) The conditionally stable dunes landward of the fof
13.) The older, stabilized dunes of the South -@}n

14.) The deflation plain east of the foreduné ant

Ocean Beaches

Formations: There are four st
growth boundary (UGB):

€ port beaches is similar to other Oregon beaches. Sea cliff
erosion andimari n or erosion are the major factors affecting the supply of sand
on the beach. ' nd movement of sand on the beach varies seasonally. The

Page 13. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

71



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

This on-and-off shore movement of sand is in addition to the transport of sand along
the beach (littoral drift). There appears to be a seasonal reversal in the direction of sand
transport along the beach. Waves from the south-west accompany the prevailing winds in
the winter months and wind and waves from the northwest predominate during the
summer. Sand movement appears to be essentially in balance when averaged over
several years. This condition is known as "zero net littoral drift."

The impact of this zero net littoral drift and the extension of the jetties at the

entrance to Yaquina Bay has been accretion of sand adjace_.__o the north and south

ﬁ;,,;__,_he Oregon Beach Law (ORS
i nd areas of the beaches

'K'Alcs right is | ‘él;i mount: but where private ownership is recognized. The state
islature grappled wftﬁ\{hg question of erosion and the receding nature of the coast line in
this j__n between afea and in 1969 exempted these lands from taxation.

7"'; w also regulates improvements, motor vehicle and aircraft

63 0 25) Implementatlon requirements of the Land Conservation
and Development €@mmission's Beaches and Dunes Goal further restricted permits for
beach front protective structures to where development existed before January 1, 1977.
Pursuant to this requirement, the Oregon Transportation Commission adopted new Beach
Improvement Standards on March 28, 1978.

In addition to the above law, Goal 18/"Beaches and Dunes" limits the issuance of
permits for beach front protective structures to those areas where development existed on
January 1, 1977. Development means houses, commercial and industrial buildings, and
vacant subdivision lots that are physically improved through the construction of streets and
the provision of utilities to the lot. Also included are areas where an exception to (2) of the
implementation requirements of Goal 18 has been approved.

Page 14. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

72



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Dune Areas

The material underlying much of the area within the Newport UGB is sand. Most of
this is marine terrace deposits, although these are sometimes difficult to distinguish from
older sandstone bedrock or older stabilized dunes. Once the old town area of the city
between Nye Beach and the bayfront had dunes, but the area is now largely developed
and little remains of these dunes.

i arrenton, or Yaquina
ies have been mapped by
ent. Itis important to

All of these areas have sandy soils of either the Ne
series wherever the soil profile has begun to develop. The

and the north jetty that is not shown separat because it
lies seaward of the beach zone line. The h Beach,
which is discussed below.

South Beach Dune Complex

The information about dune forms s 2 is i wn from the Beaches and

Newport UGB. These dunes are shown on
s Map (beginning on page 50). The dune complex is
h State Park, although it extends a short way north

19 U.S. Sail Conservation Service, Beaches and Dunes of the Oregon Coast, 1975.

20 RNKR Associates, Environmental Hazard Inventory: Coastal Lincoln County, Oregon, 1979.

Page 15. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

73



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

The four dune landforms identified in this area are:

1.)  Active foredunes: a ridge of sand adjacent to the swash zone of the beach
extending south from the mouth of Yaquina Bay.

2.)  Conditionally stable dunes: present on the landward side of the active foredunes.

3.)  Older stabilized dunes: present in approximately the }vmg__ of South Beach State

Park.
4.)  Deflation plain: present on the landward side of une types.

Each of these dune types has different reso values ha and development
limitations.

: ectlve barriers to wmd erosion
and ocean storms. Foredunes arg ¢ [ nS, subject to substantial growth in
height and width on accretion bea i

beaches. Therefore, buildings are n

' have developed a denser
vegetative cover, in Jet no longer subjected to wind
erosion like foredy i . dunes have not had time for significant soil

Beach dune sheet exhibit soil development
e area is entirely within a state park, no development is

dune and the stabilized dunes is an extensive deflation plain.
; when the wind removes dry sand particles from areas landward
of the foredu Y simmer water table limits the depth of sand removal because
groundwater m b the sand together. Standing water is common during the
winter when the w ble is higher. Some deflation plains are subject to ocean flooding.

Page 16. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

74



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

All of South Beach is known to have a groundwater aquifer, these dunes deposits
are generally thin, and they cannot (as in other places on the Oregon coast) be relied on to
supply large volumes of ground water. The dune sands rarely exceed 15 feet in thickness
(except in a small area of South Beach) and are deposited directly on marine terrace
material. The dune aquifer is not subject to significant development pressures because
much of the aquifer is within South Beach State Park. Areas outside the park slated for
development are or will be served by municipal water and sewer systems.

plain wetlands south of the old jetty railroad and open sand
significant habitat, as discussed below. The parcel of Ia een South Beach State

lourist commercial uses

T :,gy advance onto forest land,
ni{;stream channels, thereby

2.) iie,g[lorphlc landforms varying from wet open

-.-d older stabilized dunes.

s shown as being secondary. This arrangement points
e.managed. Most wet interdunes are principally wiIdIife

-=;:rfoa stal terraces. A primary development limitation is the

tir terdune areas to accommodate subsurface sewage disposal.

developed sandy soﬂs with Ilttle or no development of cemented
nodules, lenses, or horizons. Vegetation on these dunes ranges from native
grasses, European beachgrass, and shrubs such as scotch broom and tree lupine
to woody species. The dominant tree is shore pine, but Sitka spruce, western

hemlock, Douglas Fir, western red cedar, Oregon crabapple, and red alder also
occur.

The younger stabilized dunes are differentiated from older stabilized dunes by
differences in soil profile characteristics and the predominance of shore pine and
other woody species. Texture and cementation are the primary criteria use for
differentiation, although organic matter, depth, and distribution are also considered.

Page 17. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

75



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

The younger stabilized dune mapping unit includes the stabilized dunes and
transition forests. These areas contain many species of birds, mammals,

amphibians, and reptiles. Occasional snags serve as nesting areas for a variety of
birds.

Younger stabilized dunes offer opportunities for the placement of man-made
facilities. Established vegetation provides shelter from the wind and a location from
which to venture out into the open sand. However, on-sitéi
because building sites may be limited by slope, depth ter table, and horizontal
and vertical permeability if septic- tanks are used. septic drain field failures
have been reported in areas mapped as youn ed dunes. Surface or

open sand to wind erosion and subseglient blow-outs.

Page 18. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

76



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Shoreland Hazards

Ocean Flooding

Ocean flooding is the inundation of lowland areas along the coast by salt water due
to tidal action, storm surge, or tsunamis (seismic sea waves). Landforms in Newport
subject to ocean flooding include beaches, the bases of sea cliffs, marshes and low-lying
interdune areas. All areas shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map in Zone V and areas

st habitable floor is

mbfa\ons and other
@ligas. The City

these features. Thes
Control of s noreline p atecti
pected glian _-'.[I_i]‘p each\ qui
sugg sted severa qu tlon‘f'

str heer

C 'l;ixcies and regulations, beach areas within the vegetation line
established b"" 39__9@ under the jurisdiction of the Oregon State Parks and the
Division of State i'_” andst A'permit is required from those agencies prior to the construction
of any beach front pretective structures.

Y l"l authorities is needed to prevent unex—
g*gfavated erosion of adjacent lands. RNKR
0, be answered in the review of new shoreline protection

21 Federal Emergency Management Agency, letter to the City of Newport, 1987.

Page 19. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

77



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Landslide and Coastal Erosion Areas

Landslide and Coastal Erosion areas were mapped within the Newport urban growth
boundary in the 2004 document titled Evaluation of Coastal Erosion Hazard Zones Along
Dune and Bluff Backed Shorelines In Lincoln County, Oregon: Cascade Head to Seal
Rock, by the Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries (OFR 0-04-09). The
document and maps are included here by reference. The report describes several types of

mass movement (mud flow, slump, soil creep, and debris avalanche) and defines the
mapped landslide areas:

Prehistoric Mass Movements: Generally speaking, these afé .

e large landslide and slide
blocks that predate historical observations on the Oregoxiicoz

out 150 years) and are

Potentially Active Mass Movements: These gz 1
currently stable (no bowed trees or crackegfsc oi
recurrent movement in the last 150 years. UR]

movement. Many show no evudence of movemeni"z‘ 939 or 1967 aerial photography
S m 1 prehistoric slide areas.

rock.

Quaternary Landslide "
and 1996). These
investigated in the 2

! erate and low) that respectively depict decreasing risk of
becoming active in 5 ture as modeled in the DOGAMI report. The respective hazard
zones are more partlc’/ ularly described as follows:

Active Erosion Hazard Zones — For dune-backed shorelines, the active hazard zone
encompasses the active beach to the top of the first vegetated foredune, and
includes those areas subject to large morphological changes adjacent to the mouths
of bays due to inlet migration. On bluff-backed shorelines the active hazard zone

includes actively eroding coastal bluff escarpments and active or potentially active
coastal landslides.

Page 20. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

78



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

High Risk Erosion Hazard Zones — For dune backed shorelines, the high risk
scenario is based on a large storm wave event (wave heights 47.6 ft high) occurring
over the cycle of an above average high tide, coincident with a 3.3 ft storm surge.
For bluff-backed shoreline areas, the high risk zone portrays bluff retreat that would
occur if only gradual erosion at a relatively low mean rate were to occur over a 60-

year period after the slope reaches and maintains its ideal angle of repose(for talus
of the bluff material).

Moderate Risk Erosion Hazard Zones — For dune-backed#horelines, the moderate
risk scenario is based on an extremely severe stormdevent (waves 52.5 ft high)
coupled with a long term rise in sea level of 1. “u&_ For bluff-backed shoreline

"?." amoL nt of bluff retreat that

lowering of the coast as a result of a Case
bluff-backed shoreline areas, the low risk
retreat in 60-100 years cons i
ideal angle of repose, and g

ustrates a worst case for bluff
slope failure, erosion back to an

and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service National
ring that study. In July 1983, the City of Newport, in

) was amended to include only those areas considered by
reland and wetland blologlcal habitat (see the description of

22 D.W. Thomas, Significant Shoreland and Wetland Biological Habitat and Riparian Vegetation, 1981.

Page 21. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

79



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

The City of Newport also amended the Ocean Shoreland map to exclude the

Yaquina Estuary north and south jetties and existing jetty access roads as significant
habitat.

The following significant shoreland and wetland biological habitats on Newport's
ocean shorelands have been noted and are shown on the Ocean Shorelands map
(beginning on page 50):

> Grant Creek west of Highway 101.

g to the north of the
WBeach State Park.

> An unnamed drainage east and west of Highw.
Newport Municipal Airport property and south of,

> South Beach dune complex.
> The cliffs and offshore rocks at Yaquin

Coastal Headlands

'\w,g; her aIt The surficial extent of this geologlc
' I|cker '?J he eaward exposure of this unit is included
visual resource of the Newport area. Walker,
ns, i ) esources Analysis of the Oregon Coastal Zone identified
o-‘lﬁ"l_ff meay otential for an exceptional coastal experience. Congress

THF ad as an Outstanding Natural Area (ONA) on March

| boundary of the Yaquma Head ONA established by this act
elands map.

Once the ”:

0 prlvately-owned commercial quarry, the primary developed land
uses on this headland

now are the Yaquina Head Lighthouse and a few residences.

23 State of Oregon, Bulletin 81: Environmental Geology of Lincoln County, Oregon, 1973.

Page 22. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

80



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Recreation Associated with the Pacific Ocean

Yaquina Head, city and state parks, and several public rights-of-way to the ocean
beaches provide for recreational opportunities along the ocean shorelands. The
designation of the beaches as a special recreational area by the State of Oregon and the
acquisition and development of Agate Beach, South Beach, and Yaquina Bay State parks
encompass all of the area that is especially suited for recreation along the ocean
shorelands within the Newport UGB. Public access to the beach outside of state parks
occurs over public rights-of-way or specially acquired parcels. Major public access points
are noted on the Ocean Shorelands map and the InventoryfOf"

by reference.

Navigation Facilities

Navigation facilities are important us
facilities currently consist of the jetties at thg
Lighthouse, and the Yaquina Head Lighthous

area. Navigation
ina Bay, thquina Bay

Kekdkedkkkkddkkhkdokkkdkkdkddkdddkddkdkdkdkkkdkkkkk

damage to the

) oastal zone that might result from
inappropriate devela

hazardous areas.

, the City of Newport shall require a site
dangers posed by environmental hazards prior to city

Policy 3: Where hazardous areas are not specifically identified but a potential
hazard may exist, the City should establish procedures within its land use
regulations to require a site-specific analysis tool, such as a geologic report.

Policy 4: The city shall continue its participation in the Flood Insurance Program
administered by the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

24 Benkendorf and Assaciates, Inventory of Oregon Coastal Beach Access Sites, 1989.

Page 23. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

81



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Policy 5: Development within the Ocean Shorelands Boundary, as identified on the
Ocean Shorelands Map, shall comply with development criteria established within
the Zoning Ordinance, except to the extent development is permitted in accordance
with the variance procedures of the Zoning Ordinance. The city shall, from time to
time, evaluate those regulations to assure compliance with city goals.

Policy 6: Nonstructural solutions to problems of erosion or flooding shall be
preferred to structural solutions. Where flood and erosiéh, control structures are
shown to be necessary, they shall be designed to mif
water currents, erosion, and accretion patterns. ‘

Policy 7: Engineering solutions or other i provide appropriate
safeguards shall be required prior to iss i permits in identified

hazardous areas if required by a geologigal

Policy 8: The City of Newport will ut| [ I’ unami Inundatien Maps as

placement’of new essentia I'and special
occupancy structures and develop relatedtstidfami hazard resiliency measures.

to.ehn ance resiiency of structures within tsunami
1_,€_ & ' ' @E . .

\then a City legal review would be needed, in addition to
operty owners and the real estate community.

call for the cify o take additional steps that may or may not be viable, or would
require further review and analysis before they could be implemented. A copy of

the full package of policies, presented at the August 26, 2019 Commission work
session is enclosed.

Goal 2: Promote public education of known hazards, and facilitate orderly and
expedient evacuation of residents and visitors in response to a catastrophic event.

Policy 1: Periodically update, implement, and refine natural hazard mitigation and

emergency operations plans, and ensure city ordinance and requlations respond to
plan recommendations.

Page 24. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

82



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Policy 2: Encourage and support hazard education, outreach, training and practice.

Policy 3: Develop robust and redundant evacuation routes that are well signed and
integrated with evacuation assembly areas, shelters and supply caches.

Policy 4: Collaborate with local, state, and federal partners to effectively leverage
resources, and establish a culture of preparedness supporting evacuation route
planning to minimize risk and maximize hazard resiliencyéh

Staff: This new goal encapsulates the education a each needed to effectively
plan for hazard events. It has been tailored ta"

tsunami’s, and speaks to both the City’s inte
intended to address, in summary form, like A
26, 2019 work session.

onstituencies. Itis
ted at the August

sensitive areas.

Policy 1: Identified environ u
Shorelands Map.

subject to
only if the f i icy 8y Below, are met and it is demonstrated that

Policy 4: The city shall cooperate with federal and state agencies, private
individuals, and others in the determination of natural areas.

Policy 5: The city will complete the Goal 5 process for wetlands identified on the
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Wetland Inventory maps by the next regularly
scheduled periodic review.

Policy 6: The criteria for review of all shore and beach front protective structures
shall provide that:

Page 25. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

83



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

> Visual impacts are minimized;

> Necessary access to the beach is maintained;

> Negative impacts on adjacent property are minimized; and
> Long-term or recurring costs to the public are avoided.

Policy 7: Significant shoreland and wetland biologi
headlands shall be protected. Uses in these areas
protection of natural values.

habitats and coastal
e consistent with the

Policy 8: Development in beach and dune are der, stabilized dunes
shall only be permitted if the following issueséare examlned ppropriate findings
are made:

> The type of use proposed and'{ on the site

and adjacent areas;

date allowed development. Cleared areas,
smoved during construction, shall be revegetated or land-
3 caped to prev ‘Tﬁau osmn and sedimentation of near shore ocean waters.

Page 26. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

84



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

N.W. 60TH STItI

z N.W, SOTH sr/ ;7
% N.W. S55TH ST D j“ h D
4 £ =
o LD .
oceM 0&"'6 : <\) U
Q)

N\

s o \
7% \
T hé \

Page 30. CITY OF WEUPORT COMPRERENSIVE PLAN: Natural Pestures.

Page 27. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

85



98

Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Natural Psatuxes.

Page 51. CITY OF NEZWPORT CONPREBENSIVR PLAN{

Page 28. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Ll
—

0,

rHO00O 0

N.W. 8TH sT,

N.W. 6TH ST,

i |
m

C

7
i~

L

OO
S
R

N
000
mrn

2\

S.W. MINNIE s,

S.W. GOVERNMENT 5T.

Page 29. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

87



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

V7

-~

Page 53. CITY OF WEZWFORT COMPREEZNSIVE PLAM: Netural Peatures.

Page 30. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

88



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

,. OCEAN SHORELANDS
“ Uy

]
[/
[/
i
[]
[/
!

al

VE PLAM:

Page Ss. CITY OF

Page 31. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

\
-

89



Ordinance No.

Attachment “B”
1-CP-18 / 3-Z-20

2166: 2/24/20 Draft Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone

(Staff comments, in italics, are provided for context and are not a part of the code.)

CHAPTER 14.46 TSUNAMI HAZARDS OVERLAY ZONE

14.46.010 Purpose

The purpose of this section is to promote the public health,
safety, and general welfare to minimize risks to, essential

which provide context and policy dig
the regulations. :

14.46.020 Definitions

uctures housing, supporting
atities of toxic or explosive

| area means those portions of the City
Y the “XXL” tsunami inundation area

n Zone) Tsunami Inundation Map Newport
Oregon” produced by the Oregon Department of
Geology and Mineral Industries (DOGAMI), dated
February 8, 2013.

. Vertical evacuation structure means a stand-alone

structure, portion of a building or constructed earthen
mound designed for vertical evacuation from a tsunami
that is accessible to evacuees, has sufficient height to
place evacuees above the design level of tsunami

Page 10of 5

90



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Draft Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone

14.46.030

14.46.040

inundation, and is designed and constructed with the
strength and resiliency needed to withstand the effects of
tsunami waves.

Staff: This is a truncated version of the list of definitions the
Commission previously reviewed. Definitions for Child Care
Facility, Day Care Facility, and Substantial Improvement
already exist in NMC 14.01.020, Definitions, so they need not
be replicated in this chapter. Definitions for Essential Facility,
School, and Special Occupancy Structures are peeded as
the uses that fall within these definitions "addressed
directly in the code. e

Overlay Zone Established
A Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zg
on the Zoning Map of the City

THOZ, the boundaries of which<
the tsunami inundation area.

orized in accordance with section 14.46.060,
g uses are prohibited in the Tsunami Hazard
one:

1. Hospitals and other medical facilities having surgery
and emergency treatment areas;

2. Fire and police stations;

3. Emergency vehicle shelters and garages;

Page 2 of 5

91



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Draft Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone

4. Structures and equipment in emergency preparedness
centers;

5. Standby power generating equipment for essential
facilities;

6. Structures and equipment in  government
communication centers and other facilities required for
emergency response;

7. Medical, assisted, and senior livin
resident incapacitated patients.
residential facilities, but not residefi
defined in ORS 443.400;

ties with
includes

8. Jails and detention facilitigé:

9. Day care facilities;

housing or
aterials or

Idings for colleges or adult education schools with a
capacity greater than 500 persons; and

4. Tanks or other structures containing, housing or
supporting water or fire- suppression materials or
equipment required for the protection of uses listed in
this sub-section.

Page 3 of 5

92



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Draft Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone

C. The provisions of this section do not apply to water-
dependent and water-related facilities, including but not
limited to docks, wharves, piers and marinas.

Staff: The list of uses is very similar to what the Commission
reviewed at the August 26, 2019 work session. References to
assisted and senior living were added and the number of
incapacitated residents staying at such facilities, including
medical facilities, has been removed. A carve outis included
for residential care homes, which serve 5 or fe 1dividuals
in a residential setting. Residential faciliti e included.

day care faC///a/ is 12 children. &
14.46.060 Use Exceptions

A use listed in sectio
authorization of a Us
Type |l decision-making _ ned in Chapter
14. 52 Procedural {s, mprovi

ed upon dings that there
e within the boundaries of a
need cannot otherwise be

ice. 'be permitted upon findings that
sedior a strategic location.

ohibited, such as child or day care
e allowed when accessory to a permitted use,

. Other uses prohibited section 14.46.050 may be permitted
upon the following findings:

1. There are no reasonable, lower-risk alternative sites
available for the proposed use; and

Page 4 of 5

93



Ordinance No. 2166: 2/24/20 Draft Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone

14.46.070

14.46.080

2. Adequate evacuation measures will be provided such
that life safety risk to building occupants is minimized;
and

3. The structures will be designed and constructed in a
manner to minimize the risk of structural failure during
the design earthquake and tsunami event.

Staff: This section is as presented at the August
work session.

26, 2019

Vertical Evacuation Structures

All vertical evacuation structures, irre
shall adhere to the provisios
14.10.020(D)(1-4). G

Staff: This section is as pres
work session.

to) multifamily
anal’development
As in the Tsunami

cess from the building(s)
ay or City designated

signage, in a format and location
, indicating the direction and location

ency evacuation information in public areas,
ooms, or common areas, alerting residents,
» and employees to the tsunami threat. Such
ation shall include a map indicating the direction and
location of the closest evacuation route.

Staff: This section has been revised to list the types of

route improvements the City can reasonably expect to
require at this time.

Page 5 of 5

94



Attachment “C”
il 1-CP-18 /3-Z-20

e

95

Legend

e
- Newport Fire
- Station 3400

> +
¥ =t

¥  Child Care Facility
@ Critical Facility

Assembly Area

Tsunami Inundation Scenarios

ggym‘:uuft;v FI,Joe';lleloy:ument Department . s North NeWPort . .
. 1608w Cont Hohwsy  Phook 544, 674.0610 Critical Facilities and Tsunami Inundation Scenarios
:":hé ’E':;‘IE égw;om::xx&::i :":;::: EI-I:";:'E} Tu;: :q;' :‘-:‘ p;::n'd anr nor s it suluhl- vu. Iq:l -ngn-::-g::::rﬂv:':.‘r:-m. it “nchm:bg:"]:;?;i ;‘i"g ;zl : b I ! ] M | Ie S
o cautionod to al mation o City of Newport I:ommumly D-vnlnpmnnl Department. Quantu'm Spatial, Inc. Corvallis, OR 0 025 0 5



96

Legend
¥  Child Care Facility
@ Critical Facility
‘ Assembly Area
Tsunami Inundation Scenarios

M

P

Sam Case ‘

B X *
— _ Elementary
By School
2 e [ s 12T
= —NWIITHIST Newport Fire N =
& Station 3200
2 i =i t Newport
8THIS & 1 A S Middle
S o School
%) 4
B w
WETH S f 2
|
Lincoln County —a -
Sheriffand ~ Lincoln |
Emergency Services i County Jail
SW 2 :
; R -
% } Yaquina
R Newport Police View
< Department School -
2ty and City Hall .
A 9 = S
2 )
l Samaritan Pacific %
- Communities Hospital ®
: S,
: 873
i sr
4 ' Coast Guard
(2] - . Station

' YaquinaBay | !

0 City of Newport
NE RT Community Development Department . el central Nevv_port . .
Critical Facilities and Tsunami Inundation Scenarios

189 SW Coast Highway Phone.1.541.574.0629
Newport, OR 97365 Fax:1.541.574.0644
1 Miles

This map Is for informational use only and has not been prepared for. nor i it suitable for legal enginesring. or surveying purposos. it Image Taken July 2018 I L
e e T 8 o e o 1% 4inch, 4band Digital Orthophotos 0 0.25 0.5
Quantum Spatial, Inc, Corvallis, OR . .




Child Care Facility
Critical Facility
Assembly Area

Tsunami Inundation Scenarios

Oregon Coast
Community
College

W el

0 City of Newport
NE RT Community Development Department e — SOUth Bea.Ch . .
‘ 169 SWCoastHighway  Phone:1.541.574.0629 Critical Facilities and Tsunami Inundation Scenarios

Newport, OR 97365 Fax:1.541.574.0644
T

Infarmational use only and has not baon prepared far, nor is H sutable for legal, enginssting, or surveying purposss. It Image Taken July 2018 1 Miles

- P ' .
oAb ot ot S o =82 &inch, &-band Digital Orthophotos 0 0.25 0.5
Quantum Spatial, Inc. Corvallis, OR . -




Child Care Facility
Critical Facility

Assembly Area

Tsunami Inundation Scenarios

- Newport Fire: e ke
Station 3300 o 8

Newport =~
Municipal

Community Development Department

169 SW CoastHighway  Phone:1.541.574.0620 Critical Facilities and Tsunami Inundation Scenarios

Newport, OR 97365 Fax:1.541.574.0644

NEWRORT  City of Newport Newport Airport Neighborhood

= Twazaow .
R; !dn'ﬂp dl: ;o.rrlul;o:'"n\::‘i;nll ;:,:n:}gndc nl\';. ot been prepared for. nar is it lurlzbln m lml onginooting, or s:rv-th'p;r:u!ls It Image Taken July 2018 ] 1 ] M | Ies
s dat o sources. The no of Use and users of " et
information are cautioned to verify all with the City of Newp Doportment. 4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos 0 0 25 0 5

Quantum Spatial, Inc. Corvallis, OR



99

Attachment “D?”
1-CP-18 / 3-Z-20

MINUTES
City of Newport Planning Commission
Work Session
Newport City Hall Conference Room A

July 8,2019
6:00 p.m.

|
e e A S

Planning Commissioners Present: Jim Patrick, Lee Hardy, Bob Berman, and Mike Franklin,

Planning Commissioners Absent: Jim Hanselman, and Bill Branigan (all excused).

PC Citizens Advisory Committee Members Present: Dustin Capri.

Public Members Present: Meg Reed, and Mona Linstromberg.

City Staff Present: Community Development Director (CDD) Derrick Tokos; Associate Planner, Rachel Cotton;

1

and Executive Assistant, Sherri Marineau.
Call to Order. Chair Patrick called the Planning Commission work session to order at 6:00 p.m.
Unfinished Business. No unfinished business.

New Business.

Review Framework for a New Tsunami Hazard Overlay Zone. Tokos reviewed his staff memo on the
framework for the tsunami hazard overlay zone and results from the last legislative session for House Bill

(HB) 3309.

Meg Reed, Coastal Shore Specialist for the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD)
addressed the Commission. Reed explained that they had been working with coastal communities to update
their land use regulations. She noted that there had been three tsunami inundation areas created that she would
speak about at the meeting. Reed reviewed a handout that she shared with the Commission, initiated by the
Coastal Caucus, that explained HB 3309. Tokos said the handout provided an explanation on why the new
legislation was created. He noted that what the Commission would be deciding was if they wanted to limit
or prohibit certain uses in the tsunami inundation zones. Hardy asked if the City could have stronger
restrictions than the State. Tokos confirmed they could. Franklin asked how the rules applied to existing
buildings. Reed said the rules would only affect new building.

Franklin asked if retirement and assisted living facilities would fall under the hospital category if the area
was subject to the XX inundation zones. Cotton explained they wouldn’t. They would fall under the special
occupancy structures in Section 1.100 (3)(D). Franklin asked if under the current rules, would a new addition
being built at the Whaler Hotel have a timeframe to build. Tokos said that if the Commission elected to go
with Large, this property would be outside of that zone. The Commission needed to look at what was
reasonable within the boundary and what they wanted to restrict. He thought Large was a reasonable way to
go. Capri asked how many had been Large. Reed explained that there were four that were Large or above,
one at the boundary between Medium and Large, and the rest were Small or Medium. There were two that
were XL, and there had never been an XXL. Franklin asked if the City did nothing, could someone rebuild
if there was a fire. Tokos said they would have to meet current code. They would be allowed to rebuild under
the nonconforming code even if the City imposed restrictions. Cotton noted that Section 4.12 (4)(a)(iv)
applied to just schools, and was not the Performing Arts Center or something like that.

Cotton continued reviewing the DLCD model code with the Commission. She stated this was an opportunity
for Newport to make it mandatory. It would create goals for the hazards sections of the Comprehensive Plan,
the Transportation System Plan update, and for signage. She wanted to see if the Commission was receptive
to the model code. The Commission was in general agreement of being receptive of it. Reed explained they

Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 7/8/19.



100

suggested adopting XXL in the model code and it wouldn’t apply to prohibited use, it would only apply to
the requirement for evacuation improvements or any new land divisions. A new subdivision, for example,
would be required to put in signage to direct people to high ground or require them to put in sidewalks or
something to make sure there were connections to existing routes. This was why the DLCD recommended
XXL as the boundary to the zones and then the City could put discretionary restrictions in place. Patrick

suggested requiring builds in Large zones to do certain upgrades. A discussion ensued regarding how best to
categorize different uses in Large to XL boundaries.

Cotton stated that most of the communities that have adopted the essential facilities had gone with XXL. She
asked if the Commission needed more information on what was in or out of Newport, or if they wanted to
give more flexibility. Berman thought it would be good to know what was in or out. Reed noted that unless
it was specifically built to withstand a tsunami, they considered the location would be destroyed in a big
event. She noted there was a use exception that if someone showed strategic need they could allow certain
uses. Franklin was in favor of expanding to just south of the bridge for emergency services so they had
assistance. Tokos said outside of a new pump station down south, there wasn’t anything needed for services.
He said what he was hearing was that the Commission would like to see a proposal that set a boundary with
prohibitions on uses to be on a Medium to Large scale, and an XXL for site improvement requirements for
development. The Commission was in general agreement with this. Tokos said a map would be put together
to show where the existing essential facilities and special occupancy facilities were. Cotton thought the
language for exceptions would be a good thing to keep.

Cotton asked for input on adding regulations for residential uses and hotels/motels. Patrick thought that if
they were talking about residential, the South Beach State Park should be included. Berman thought it was
important to include RV parks that were expanding. He thought the limitations needed to apply to essential
services such as fire, police and the hospital. Cotton said what she heard was the consensus was to take out
residential and hotels/motels. Patrick wanted to also include utility installations so they continue after tsunami
inundations. To address this, Tokos suggested looking at the engineering tsunami load standards to see if

there was anything in them that was appropriate for utilities to at least increase the chances they would
withstand a tsunami.

Cotton noted that one of the general polices was to request a tsunami hazard disclosure statement for new
development in tsunami hazard areas. This would let developers know what they are getting into. Cotton
noted that North Bend did a good job of emphasizing that developers knew what they were doing and it was
a danger. Tokos asked if there had been a conversation on including this on real estate disclosure forms. Reed
said it wasn’t included and currently it asked if there were any know geologic hazards. They would have to
disclose if there was an earthquake, not tsunami. Cotton would put maps together and include an inventory
list. She said what she heard was there was good support of increased evacuation pathways and signage.

Reed reviewed the Beat the Wave maps and said the publication would be coming in August. She showed
maps for the Bayfront, Agate Beach, Nye Beach, and South Beach State Park. She explained that South
Beach was a challenging area to evacuate, and new trails and signage could help with this. Reed pointed out
that there were some large dunes in the South Beach State Park that could be used as higher ground for a
large event. The Commissioners didn’t think it was a good message to suggest people utilize the dunes as
high points. Reed said a technical publication would be available in August. DOGAMI was working on a
public piece that would be coming out the next year.

B. Review Draft Public Parking Facilities Element to the Newport Comprehensive Plan. Tokos reviewed
his staff memo on the parking facilities element and said it was recommended by the study advisory
committee. He noted that this committee had just disbanded. What was presented was a policy guidance for
the Comprehensive Plan and policy to establish a standing committee. Tokos explained that the Study
Committee was recommending the start of the legislative process. He reported that the thought was to initiate
metering and permitting in the Bayfront first. Nye Beach would be an expanded discussion and metering for
the area would be revisited at a later date. Tokos reported that the Study Committee agreed to postpone
metering outside of the Bayfront. Capri asked what the payback period was for meters. Tokos would bring
this information back to the Commission. Berman noted that there wasn’t any guidance on who should be on

2 Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 7/8/19.



101

the committee in the ordinance. Tokos said this was done intentionally. The discussions reduced the number
of members from nine members to seven. The discussion was to allow some flexibility to allow committees
to change over time based on what they were struggling with. Berman asked if any city officials would be
included. Tokos said there would be a City Council liaison, but they wouldn’t be a voting member.

A discussion ensued regarding rules for duplexes, accessory dwelling units, and tiny homes and when the
Commission would be working on implementing these rules.

Meeting adjourned at 6:59 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

%MM

Sherti Marineau,
Executive Assistant

3 Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 7/8/19.



102

MINUTES
City of Newport Planning Commission
Work Session
Newport City Hall Conference Room A
August 12, 2019

Planning Commissioners Present: Jim Patrick, Lee Hardy, Bob Berman, Jim Hanselman, Mike Franklin, and Bill
Branigan.

PC Citizens Advisory Committee Members Present: Dustin Capri

City Staff Present: Community Development Director (CDD) Derrick Tokos; Associate Planner, Rachel Cotton;

1

and Executive Assistant, Sherri Marineau.

Call to Order. Chair Patrick called the Planning Commission work session to order at 6:00 p.m.

Unfinished Business.

Continued Review of the Framework for a New Tsunami Hazard Overlay Zone. Cotton reviewed the
changes that were done since the last time the Commission saw the land use provisions. A discussion ensued
regarding the requirement for a tsunami hazard acknowledgement and disclosure statement for new
development in tsunami hazard areas. Topics included why the city would want to take responsibility and an
example that released the city from any and all claims. Hanselman was concerned that the City would take
responsibility if they were asking for waivers. A discussion ensued on why the City should ask for waivers.
Cotton asked if the Commission wanted to remove Item 4 on the disclosure form. Franklin suggested saying
the City would not be responsible for any claims. Cotton explained the disclosure would let people know

they were building in a geologic hazards area, there was a life safety risk, and the property owner assumed
the risk.

A question was raised on what would happened with new development in the flood plain. Tokos explained
that if the property was within the 100 year floodplain, the owner was required to get flood insurance. New
construction would have to be built one foot above base flood elevation, and a real estate disclosure form
would be required. He noted the legislative change concerning the disclosure form was built into State law.
Cotton asked for the Commission’s input on the disclosure statement. A discussion ensued on the four items
on the disclosure statement. The Commission was in general agreement to not include Item 4. Tokos
questioned if the Commission saw a use for a disclosure statement at all. He thought that if they were going
to do the statement, there needed to be engagement with the local insurance agencies to see if it was valuable.
Cotton noted that the insurance agents she had talked to said they didn’t take anything into account

concerning tsunamis unless the owner asked about flood insurance. She would talk to more insurance agents
about the disclosure statement.

Cotton reviewed the changes to Section 1.110. Berman thought that the capacity for “special occupancy
structures” for colleges, adult education schools, and medical facilities with residents should have lower
numbers than what was listed. He also suggested removing Section 6.h. from the list, Cotton would take off

Section 6.h. and look into the occupancy for OCCC to see if was greater than 500, and talk to Meg Reed of
the DLCD about the scalability of the provisions.

Cotton reviewed the prohibited uses in different magnitude events. Her thoughts were to include new build
uses that the City wouldn’t want to rebuild in the case of a major event. Berman asked how the OMSI building
fit on the list. Cotton thought it would fit as a public assembly with a capacity greater than 300. A discussion
ensued regarding the reasoning on how child care and medical facilities fit in their magnitude zones, and how
complicated it was to evacuate occupants at these facilities. Cotton said what she was hearing was to move
Section 4.a. Items iv, v, vi, and vii to the “M” magnitude events list, move Section 4.b. Items ii, iii, iv, and
vi to the “XXL” magnitude events list, and take out Section 4.b.v.

Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 8/12/19.



103

Cotton asked if the Commission wanted to include an addition to say that childcare should be prohibited in
Section 4 as an accessory to a prohibited use, be allowed in “M”, and be prohibited in an “XXL”. Patrick was
inclined to permit childcare centers in “XXL” if they had a good evacuation plan in place. Cotton said she
would add to Section 4.c. that childcare centers would be allowed when they were an accessory to a permitted
use provided adequate evacuation measures would be provided such that life safety risk to building occupants
was minimized. Tokos suggested avoiding the use of “adequate” and use “provide exclusively” instead. For
the sake of time, the Commission was in agreement to move the discussion to that night’s Regular Session

meeting.
3. New Business.
A. Amendments to NMC Section 14.16.050, Development Standards for Accessory Dwelling Units. Tokos

reviewed the amendments. He said the deadline to do the amendments was determined by Section 7 of HB
2001 that stated it was due by January 1, 2020.

Berman pointed ouf that Chapter 14.16.050(H) said that Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU) shall share
connections with the primary dwelling and questioned if they needed to continue to be on the same
connection. A discussion ensued regarding ADUs sharing services with the main dwelling and if the
Commission wanted to delete Item H. The Commission was in general agreement to remove Item H. Franklin
question if the maximum floor area was the footprint of the ADU. Tokos said it was the habitable floor area

of the living area. Hanselman asked if setbacks would be changed. Tokos said this only applied to non-
habitable structures such as garden sheds.

Berman asked if someone built an ADU that they wanted to later rent, would they be required to have a
parking space. Tokos said they would only need to provide off-street parking if it was a short-term rental. A
discussion ensued regarding the recommendation by the State to allow one or two ADUs per dwelling unit
on a parcel and how ADUs should be limited in Newport. The Commission was in general agreement to limit
one ADU per parcel. Tokos said he would bring this option in the language to the Commission.

B. Updated Planning Commission Work Program. For the sake of time, the work program discussion was
moved to the Planning Commission regular session meeting.

Adjourned at 6:57 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,
“Sherri Marineau, ©
Executive Assistant

2 Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 8/12/19.



104

City of Newport Planning Commission
‘Work Session
Newport City Hall Conference Room A
August 26, 2019
6:00 p.m.

Planning Commissioners Present: Jim Patrick, Lee Hardy, Bob Berman, Jim Hanselman, and Mike Franklin.

Planning Commissioners by Phone: Bill Branigan

PC Citizens Advisory Committee Members Present: Dustin Capri

Public Members Present: Madeline Shannon, and Mona Linstromberg.

City Staff Present: Community Development Director (CDD) Derrick Tokos; Associate Planner, Rachel Cotton;

and Executive Assistant, Sherri Marineau.

Call to Order. Chair Patrick called the Planning Commission work session to order at 6:00 p.m.

Unfinished Business.

Continued Review of the Framework for a New Tsunami Hazard Overlay Zone. Cotton reviewed the
changes that had happened from the previous Planning Commission meeting discussion. She asked for the
Commission’s thoughts on the Hazard Acknowledgement and Disclosure Statement and if it should be
included. Hanselman questioned what the benefit to the City would be. Cotton explained it was an educational
tool. Hanselman thought there were better ways to educate without having to sign a document. Hardy thought
the disclosure was important and should be acknowledged. Hanselman thought it should be acknowledged

by all residents. After a discussion, Cotton noted that apart from Hanselman, the Commission was in general
agreement to include the statement,

Cotton reviewed the tsunami evacuation facilities improvement plan. Berman thought the plan should be
incorporated into the Transportation System Plan (TSP) and Park System Master Plan (PSMP). Cotton
explained that the PSMP was essentially done and TSP was already scoped and didn’t necessary include
evacuation. Tokos noted that there were a few projects in TSP the City needed to make sure was vetted
enough in order to engage new development projects to incorporate trails or signage for evacuations. Berman
was concerned that a large portion of the pages would be duplicates on each of the plans. Tokos explained
they would create something like a technical memo that was 6-8 pages that explained what the projects were
and the rationale. Cotton asked if the Commission thought it was useful to establish technical projects
connected to “Beat the Wave”. The Commission was in general agreement that it should.

Cottonreviewed the DLCD Model Code changes. She explained that she added back in the Evacuation Policy
Concepts Section #3. Capri asked what the lighting conditions were. Cotton explained this section was about
how the signs would be lit at night and noted she could share the standards on this with the Commission.
Capri thought this was vague in the code. Cotton would clarify this.

Cotton explained that the language for the rationale for the policies related to reducing development risk in
high tsunami risk areas. This was meant to cover both XXL and M general policies. Cotton reported that the
Newport High School had a capacity of 662 students. Berman asked why in Section 8.viii. “incapacitated”
needed to be included. He felt the distinction wasn’t necessary. Hanselman thought medical didn’t cover
senior living and assisted living facilities. He thought the term “daycare” should be mentioned in this list.
Tokos said the reason it wasn’t included was that “daycare” picked up smaller facilities while the term “child
care” was broader. Hanselman thought it should be included. Berman reminded that there were elderly
daycare facilities and felt it should be included. Capri suggested adding a line item for any facility with
incapacitated persons. Tokos suggested it say assisted living or nursing homes. Berman thought the number
for medical facilities should be changed from 50 down to 20, or taken out. The Commission was in general

Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 8/26/19.



105

agreement to take out the number for medical facilities. Tokos suggested looking into residential facilities
and how they tie back to State licensing for group homes to see how to weave them into the code. Cotton
noted there seemed to be a consensus to include these in the XXI.. Franklin asked if temporary structures
should be included in the special occupancy structures. Cotton explained that if they were included in this
section it would limit event locations for things such as the Seafood and Wine Festival.

Cotton reviewed the evacuation route improvement requirements next. Berman asked if there were any other
categories other than low density residential. Cotton said there wasn’t. Branigan asked what the definition of
“substantial improvement” was. Cotton explained it was anything 50 percent or more of the real market value.
Cotton asked the Commission if they wanted to include Section 6.a.iii. A discussion ensued regarding what
the posting requirements should be. Tokos thought it should be geared to a well thought out plan centered
around lodging. Capri was concerned that the code referenced the TSP and TEFIP when they weren’t in place
yet. Cotton said until they were in place, the City wouldn’t have to do the requirements, and placed
importance on figuring out how extensive the TEFIP needed to be. Cotton said they could leave the section
out and wait until the TEFIP was adopted. Tokos suggested adding a statement that these provisions did not
apply to special events. Cotton noted the items that were taken out for the evacuation route improvements in

Section 6.c. Capri thought wayfinding was important. Berman thought there needed to be consistency. Cotton
explained that the design standards would address this.

Cotton covered the vertical evacuation structures next. Patrick noted that the numbers in this section jumped
from 7 to 9 and 8 had been left out. Cotton would fix the numbering. Tokos reviewed the next steps. He

thought there would be another work session meeting with the Commission and suggested Meg Reed with
the DLCD be present to answer questions.

3. New Business.
A. Update on the Short-Term Rental Ordinance Implementation. Tokos reviewed the update on the short-

term rental (STR) implementation. He noted that the work group had already met on August 20th. The
materials given to the Commission were the same that was shared with the work group. LodgingRevs had
been hired to manage a 24/7 hotline for complaints. Staff training would be held on Aug 29th for the hotline.
There would be a community roll out once the staff training was done. The City would order signs with the

hotline information for all the rentals to post. Tokos noted that there was a cushion in the LodgingRevs
contract that would help pay for the signs.

Tokos reported there had been an initial advertising sweep for unlicensed STRs and the Community Service
Officer (CSO) would be working on notifying them. Berman asked that the CSO be educated on the
occupancy limits rules. Tokos covered the number of STR licenses that had renewed, the incomplete
renewals, and the units that didn’t renew. The STRs that didn’t renew would have to submit new applications.
Because they were nonconforming they had a right to submit a new license application.

Tokos noted that the STR waitlist wouldn’t be touched until after November 1st when the deadline for the
applications in process was over. The STR Work Group would meet in late October/early November again.
There would be a focus on the centralized complaint system at this meeting. Hanselman asked if the
applications that were incomplete were because the applicants didn’t supply the materials requested from the
letter. Tokos reported it was. He reminded that the ordinance stated that applicants would have 30 days from
August 15th to provide the additional information for their incomplete applications.

Adjourned at 6:59 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,
M W\/(O\/u.&u
Sherri Marineau,
Executive Assistant

2 Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 8/26/19.



106

MINUTES
City of Newport Planning Commission
Work Session
Newport City Hall Conference Room A
February 24, 2020
6:00 p.m.

Planning Commissioners Present: Jim Patrick, Lee Hardy, Bob Berman, Gary East, Jim Hanselman, Mike Franklin,

and Bill Branigan.

Planning Commission Citizens Advisory Committee Members Present: Braulio Escobar, and Greg Sutton.

Planning Commission Citizens Advisory Committee Members Absent: Dustin Capri (excused).

City Staff Present: Community Development Director (CDD) Derrick Tokos; and Executive Assistant, Sherri

1

Marineau.

Call to Order. Chair Patrick called the Planning Commission work session to order at 6:00 p.m.

Unfinished Business.

Update on City Council Direction to Initiate Targeted Nye Beach Code Amendments. Tokos gave an
update on the direction the City Council gave on the February 18th meeting to initiate targeted Nye Beach
code amendments that would restrict residential on street grade along the west side of NW Cliff Street. He
reviewed a draft of the NMC Chapter 14.30 amendments that were handed out to the Commissioners.

Hanselman asked if the amendments applied to just single family residential. Tokos explained it applied all
residential. Berman asked if the amendments would undo what the Commission had already worked on. Tokos
reported that this change only affected Cliff Street and brought the rules back to where they were prior to the
updates that happened in 2008. Hardy questioned why there was resistance towards building large homes on
CIliff Street. Tokos explained that because there was a lot of money spent on the Cliff Street improvements,
building large houses on that street would be inconsistent with the infrastructure that had already been put in
place. Franklin asked if this would be a “taking” issue. Tokos explained the City would have to provide the
required Measure 56 notice to the property owners on CLff Street because the residential right at street grade
granted to them in 2008 was being taken away. He noted that the City Council wanted the Commission to

consider this modification and also ask themselves if there were more significant changes that needed to be
added for Nye Beach.

New Business.

Review Updated Set of Tsunami Hazard Overlay Zone Amendments / Hazard Mitigation Plan. Tokos
reviewed his staff memorandum and he handed out a copy of an email from Meg Reed at the DLCD to the
Commission. He explained that the draft copy of amendments to the Natural Features Section of the Newport
Comprehensive Plan included a rationale, background, and policies for guiding development within tsunami
inundation areas. Tokos reviewed the draft ordinance establishing a Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone and
explained that the overlay expressly limited certain uses in tsunami inundation areas in a manner comparable
to provisions contained in ORS Chapter 455 that were removed with the passage of HB 3309 (2019). He noted
that HB 4119 was likely to be approved during the Oregon Legislature’s short session. This was a refinement
of HB 3309 that would require certain structures in tsunami inundation areas be designed to higher standards.
Tokos noted that the City would update its building codes to comply with the law if this was passed. It would

not impact the proposed amendments, but would be a supplemental set of standards that would apply to certain
projects.

Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 02/24/2020.



2

107

Tokos asked for the Commissioner’s comments on the document. Branigan noted that if the spelling of
McLean was correct the “[sic]” should be removed. Hardy asked why the dates of events in Table 1 were
deleted. Tokos explained that since it cut offin 1957, there was enough of an explanation that they didn’t need
to go beyond this. Hardy thought that including it would give a cleaner perspective based on what actually
happened rather than the assumption that it was going to be 500 years. Tokos explained that specific events
were best left in background documents. This was because the City would have to otherwise replicate
documents and there wasn’t enough time to go back and research everything that had happened.

Berman noted that the last sentence on page 8 had two extra hyphens that needed to be removed. He also
question on page 9 if saying the tectonic plates were “westward-moving” was correct. He thought the words
should be taken out. Patrick didn’t think it should be removed because the Atlantic was in fact pushing the
plates west. Branigan noted that the actual jurisdiction names needed to be adding in the last sentence of
paragraph 2. He also pointed out that the first sentence in paragraph 4 of page 9 should be changed to said that
the Department of Geology of Mineral Industries “has” developed Tsunami Inundation Maps. Hanselman
thought that the argument on the first two sentences on page 14 of the document were wrong. He had concerns
that they were referencing old science and not a net zero drift. Tokos thought this was fair and explained that
there were items in the Natural Features section that needed to be updated that were separate from this project.
This could be done at some point but it would be a different project and a little bit more involved to tackle.

Tokos reviewed the additions to the Natural Features Goals/Policies next. Hardy questioned why the tsunami
hazard and disclosure statement for new development in hazard areas had been removed. Tokos explained that
the Commission could discuss adding it back in but it would have to be run through legal review to understand
what purpose it served. Berman thought that in previous Commission minutes there was general agreement
that the they wanted the disclosure statement included. Tokos said there needed to be legal review to decide
if the document would reside in the planning file, or if it was something that was recorded for the property. A
discussion ensued regarding the value of a disclosure statement, if a statement should be filed away or
recorded, and how a disclosure statement would affect development. Hardy was in favor of requiring a
disclosure statement. Hanselman reminded the Commission that a lot of buyers didn’t know what the natural
hazards were and didn’t do the proper due diligence. He felt a disclosure statement would inform buyers.
Tokos explained that the question the Commission should answer was where would the disclosure statements
be held and referenced. Franklin didn’t see how the disclosure statement would help any more than the public
education that was already happening in the area through signage and news reports. Tokos explained that Goal
2 delved into the public education aspect of this. It extended the requirement to advise guests in short-term
rentals to hotels. The Commission was in general agreement to go ahead with the education goal. Berman
requested that the syntax be consistent in structure throughout all of the policies.

Patrick requested there be a link online to see the hazard maps. Berman asked what the maps that started on
Page 27 of the document were. Tokos explained that they represented the natural features of Newport and
noted that they needed to be updated. Berman asked if Chapter 14.46.020(B) was referencing the City or the

Urban Growth Boundary of Newport. Tokos explained this was the City limits because they could only apply
zoning inside the City.

Berman suggested that Chapter 14.46 say “the latest version” of the maps instead of specifically the 2015
maps. Tokos agreed it should be the latest version and said they would do conscious updates when there were
changes in the inundation areas. Franklin asked how the “Emergency vehicle shelters and garages” prohibition
in Chapter 14.46.050(A)(3) affected the current ambulance service in Nye Beach. Tokos explained this change
would make the current ambulance service nonconforming, and when they went away they wouldn’t be
allowed to come back. Berman asked why tanks had been repeated in Prohibited Uses A and B. Tokos said
the tanks supported the other uses in the same zone. This addressed situations such as when a tank was located
in the inundation area but the facility was outside of the inundation area. Berman thought it was redundant.

He noted that the first tank reference said “section” and the second said “sub-section”. This needed to be the
same wording.

Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 02/24/2020.



4.

108

Berman questioned if “adult day care” should be included in the list. Tokos thought this was the same as

assisted living facilities. Berman explained that it was different. Tokos suggested a definition be added to
synch up to State terminology.

Hanselman asked how many local schools had 250 children. Tokos thought the high school and middle school
had this many. Hanselman suggested the number be adjusted because he didn’t want to see smaller schools
left out. Tokos didn’t think numbers should be included in B.1 and B.3. He wanted it clear that this didn’t
apply to the new OSU MSI education building because it was a tsunami evacuation structure. Franklin asked
if a trade school would be prohibited if the numbers were taken out. Tokos explained they would unless the
trade school was tailored toward water-related trades. This type of trade school would be exempt because it
was considered necessary for work in the water related zones. Berman asked if 14.46.080 applied to water
related zones. Tokos believed it would but would change it to make it expressly clear that it did.

Tokos asked the Commission if they were good with the scope of changes to the Tsunami Hazards Overlay
Zone. The Commission was in general agreement that they were.

Review Amendments to the Stormwater Facilities Element of the Comprehensive Plan. Tokos reviewed
his staff memorandum and the final draft of proposed changes to the Storm Drainage Element of the Newport
Comprehensive Plan. He explained that the Statewide Planning Goal 11 addressed public facilities planning,
and this goal was implemented in OAR Chapter 660, Division 11. The administrative rule called for certain
elements of public facilities plans to be adopted into a Comprehensive Plan, namely a list of the identified
projects (OAR 660-011- 0045). System Development Charge eligible capital projects would also be identified
in the project list. The current draft responded to issues raised by Commission and Advisory Committee
members to make sure the projects and recommendations were appropriately added to the Comprehensive

Plan. Language was also clarified and a new Policy 5 has been added under Goal 1 related to the management
of stormwater in geologically hazardous areas.

Tokos reviewed the Goals and Policies section of the Public Facilities Element. He explained that regulations
would need to be developed on how the City would be handling impacts to the system in an equitable manner
on a project by project basis. Berman asked if Policy 5 needed to have a term that related back to the geologic
hazards. Tokos thought that saying “City designated” would suffice. Patrick suggested adding LIDS to the
policies. Berman didn’t like limiting Goal 2, Policy 5 to City properties and wanted to see good housekeeping
policies that anyone could adhere to. He wanted the policies made available to anyone doing development.
Hanselman noted that the Civil West review had omitted properties. He asked that the City request Civil West
provide the findings from Oceanview Drive up to 48th Street on the west side of Hwy 101 that were relative
to what the storm sewer was to those neighborhood. Tokos would look into this.

Tokos asked the Commission if it was acceptable to initial the legislative process at the next meeting. The
Commission was in general agreement to do so.

Adjourn. The meeting adjourned at 7:13 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Sherri Marineau,
Executive Assistant

3

Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 02/24/2020.



day care during religious functions shall be classified as
part of the primary occupancy.

305.2.2 Five or fewer children. A facility having five or
fewer children receiving such day care shall be classified
as part of the primary occupancy.

305.2.3 Five or fewer children in a dwelling unit. A
facility such as the above within a dwelling unit and hav-
ing five or fewer children receiving such day care shall be
classified as a Group R-3 occupancy or shall comply with
the Residential Code.

SECTION 306
FACTORY GROUP F

306.1 Factory Industrial Group F. Factory Industrial Group
F occupancy includes, among others, the use of a building or
structure, or a portion thereof, for assembling, disassembling,
fabricating, finishing, manufacturing, packaging, repair or
processing operations that are not classified as a Group H
hazardous or Group S storage occupancy.

306.2 Moderate-hazard factory industrial, Group F-1.
Factory industrial uses that are not classified as Factory
Industrial F-2 Low Hazard shall be classified as F-1 Moder-
ate Hazard and shall include, but not be limited to, the follow-
ing:

Aircraft (manufacturing, not to include repair)

Appliances

Athletic equipment

Automobiles and other motor vehicles

Bakeries

Beverages: over 16-percent alcohol content

Bicycles

Boats

Brooms or brushes

Business machines

Cameras and photo equipment

Canvas or similar fabric

Carpets and rugs (includes cleaning)

Clothing

Construction and agricultural machinery

Disinfectants

Dry cleaning and dyeing

Electric generation plants

Electronics

Engines (including rebuilding)

Food processing establishments and commercial kitchens
not associated with restaurants, cafeterias and similar
dining facilities more than 2,500 square feet (232 m?) in
area.

Furniture

Hemp products

Jute products

Laundries

Leather products

Machinery

Metals

Millwork (sash and door)

Motion pictures and television filming (without

2019 OREGON STRUCTURAL SPECIALTY CODE

Attachment “E”
1-CP-18 / 3-Z-20

09

OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION .~ USE

spectators)
Musical instruments
Optical goods
Paper mills or products
Photographic film
Plastic products
Printing or publishing
Recreational vehicles
Refuse incineration
Shoes ]
Soaps and detergents
Textiles
Tobacco
Trailers
Upholstering
Wood; distillation
Woodworking (cabinet)

306.3 Low-hazard factory industrial, Group F-2. Factory
industrial uses that involve the fabrication or manufacturing
of noncombustible materials that during finishing, packing or
processing do not involve a significant fire hazard shall be
classified as F-2 occupancies and shall include, but not be
limited to, the following:

Beverages: up to and including 16-percent alcohol content
Brick and masonry

Ceramic products

Foundries

Glass products

Gypsum

Ice

Metal products (fabrication and assembly)

Wood barrel and bottled wine aging facilities in wineries

SECTION 307
HIGH-HAZARD GROUP H

307.1 High-hazard Group H. High-hazard Group H occu-
pancy includes, among others, the use of a building or struc-
ture, or a portion thereof, that involves the manufacturing,
processing, generation or storage of materials that constitute a
physical or health hazard in quantities in excess of those
allowed in control areas complying with Section 414, based
on the maximum allowable quantity limits for control areas
set forth in Tables 307.1(1) and 307.1(2). Hazardous occu-
pancies are classified in Groups H-1, H-2, H-3, H-4 and H-5
and shall be in accordance with this section and the require-
ments of Section 415. Hazardous materials stored, or used on
top of roofs or canopies, shall comply with this code.

307.1.1 Uses other than Group H. An occupancy that
stores, uses or handles hazardous materials as described in
one or more of the following items shall not be classified
as Group H, but shall be classified as the occupancy that it
most nearly resembles.

1. Buildings and structures occupied for the applica-
tion of flammable finishes, provided that such

buildings or areas conform to the requirements of
Section 416.

61



OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION AND USE

110

. Wholesale and retail sales and storage of flamma- 9. Stationary storage battery systems installed in
ble and combustible liquids in mercantile occu- accordance with this code and the Mechanical
pancies conforming to this code. Code.

. Closed piping system containing flammable or 10. Corrosive personal or household products in their
combustible liquids or gases utilized for the opera- original packaging used in retail display.
tion of machinery or equipment. 11. Commonly used corrosive building materials.
(;lez}glng establishments that utilize con}busibbi}e 12. Buildings and structures occupied for aerosol
hquol solvents having 1a flash point of 140°F product storage shall be classified as Group S-1,
(60°C) or higher in closed systems employing provided that such buildings conform to the
equipment lzstec_i by an apprqved testing agency, requirements of this code.
provided that this occupancy is separated from all ) )
other areas of the building by 1-hour fire barriers 13. Display and storage of nonflammable solid and
constructed in accordance with Section 707 or 1- nonﬂamm‘ablg or noncombustible liquid hazard-
hour horizontal assemblies constructed in accor- ous materials in quantities not exceeding the max-
dance with Section 711, or both. imum allowable quantity per control area in

. . . .. Group M or S occupancies complying with Sec-
5. Cleaning establishments that utilize a liquid solvent o f 14.2.5. P ey
having a flash point at or above 200°F (93°C).
5 - | . 14. The storage of black powder, smokeless propellant
6. Liquor stores and distributors without bulk stor- and small arms primers in Groups M and R-3 and
age. special industrial explosive devices in Groups B,
7. Refrigeration systems. F, M and S, provided such storage conforms to the
8. The storage or utilization of materials for agricul- quantity limits and requirements prescribed in this
tural purposes on the premises. code.
TABLE 307.1(1)
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE QUANTITY PER CONTROL AREA OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS POSING A PHYSICAL HAZARD® ™™ p
GROUP WHEN STORAGE® USE-CLOSED SYSTEMS® USE-OPEN SYSTEMS®
i iy Solid Liquid Solid Liquid Solid Liquid
MATERIAL CLASS ALLOWABLE oli iqui ; iqu ; i iqui
QUANTITY IS pounds gallons fGats ?;‘?'II"I:? pounds gallions g:ts ";u;.:.‘:, pounds gallons
EXCEEDED |(cubic feet) | (pounds) eeta (cubic feet) | (pounds) a (cubic feet) | (pounds)
. See See See
Combustible dust NA H-2 Note g NA NA Note q NA NA Note g NA
. Loose (100) (100) 20)
q -
Combustible fiber Baled® H-3 (1.000) NA NA (1,000) NA NA (200) NA
_ I H-2 or H-3 120%¢ 120¢ 30¢
Combustible liquid®' JUITN H-2 or H-3 NA 330% NA NA 330¢ NA NA 80¢
IIB NA 13,200 13,2001 3,3001
Cryogenic flammable NA H-2 NA 45¢ NA NA 45° NA NA 10¢
Cryogenic inert NA NA NA NA NL NA NA NL NA NA
Cryogenic oxidizing NA H-3 NA 45¢ NA NA 45" NA NA 104
Division 1.1 H-1 1“8 (1)=¢ 0.25¢% (0.25)% 0.25¢8 (0.25)8
Division 1.2 H-1 1= (1) 0.25¢ (0.25)% 0.25% (0.25)2
Division 1.3 | H-1 or H-2 584 6)xE 18 (1) 12 (1)2
Explosives Division 1.4 H-3 50%¢ (50)*¢ NA 508 (50)¢ NA NA NA
Division 1.4G H-3 125%! NA NA NA NA NA
Division 1.5 H-1 158 (1)=¢ 0.25% (0.25)% 0.25% (0.25)¢
Division 1.6 H-1 1«8 NA NA NA NA NA
Gaseous NA | 1,000%¢ NA 1,000 ¢
Flammable gas Lignefied H-2 NA (150)*¢ NA NA (150)% NA NA NA
i 1A H-2 30%¢ 30¢ 10¢
Flammable liquid IB and IC or H-3 NA 120%¢ NA NA 120° NA NA 301
Flammable liquid, H-2
combination NA orH-3 NA 120" |  NA NA 120%" NA NA 304"
(IA, 1B, IC)
(continued)
62

2019 OREGON STRUCTURAL SPECIALTY CODE



i
i

OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION A.52 USE

TABLE 307.1(1)—continued
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE QUANTITY PER CONTROL AREA OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS POSING A PHYSICAL HAZARD®! ™ n.p

GROUP WHEN STORAGE® USE-CLOSED SYSTEMS® USE-OPEN SYSTEMS®
THEMAXIMUM Solid Liquid Solid Liquid Solid Liquid
MATERL- CLAss Sb‘;‘oNv-m—?]g pounds gallons f(::ts aiul\?‘ll'; pounds galions fGe:ts;u":)_:_t; pounds gallons
EXCEEDED |(cubic feet)} (pounds) (cubic feet) | (pounds) (cubic feet) | (pounds)
Flammable solid NA H-3 125%¢ NA NA 1258 NA NA 254 NA
Inert oas Gaseous NA NA NA NL NA NA NL NA NA
= Liquefied NA NA NA NL NA NA NL NA NA
UD H-1 12 1=: 0.25¢% (0.25)% 0.25¢ (0.25)¢
I H-2 5. (5)+¢ 1 5 1 €9
. . II H-3 50%¢ (50)%¢ 509 (50)¢ 10¢ (10y¢
Organic peroxide I H-3 1250 | (125yre | NA 125 | (250 | NA 25¢ (25)°
v NA NL NL NL NL NL NL
v NA NL NL NL NL NL NL
4 H-1 15 (1)=2 0.25¢ (0.25) 0.25¢ (0.25)
o 3k H-2 or H-3 10%¢ 10y 2¢ )4 2¢ @)
Oxidizer 2 H-3 2504 | @sope | NA 250¢ | @sop | NA 500 | (50y
1 NA 4,000=" |(4,000)>f 4,000 | (4,000) 1,000° | (1,000)
. Gaseous NA 1,500%¢ NA 1,500%¢
Oxidizing gas Liquefied H-3 NA 150y NA NA (150)*¢ NA NA NA
Pyrophoric NA H-2 458 4)-¢ 50+¢ 12 (1)8 10+ 0 0
4 H-1 18 (1)=# 10%8 0.25¢% (0.25)¢ 258 0.25¢2 (0.25)8
. 3 H-1 or H-2 5de (5)*¢ 50%¢ I (1) 104 14 (1)?
Unstable (reactive) 2 H-3 500 | (50%c | 7504 | 500 | (so¢ | 750t | 10¢ | (l0y
1 NA NL NL NL NL NL NL NL NL
3 H-2 5de 5)%¢ 5¢ ) 1¢ (1)
Water reactive 2 H-3 50%¢ (50)*¢ NA 50¢ (50)" NA 10¢ (10)
1 NA NL NL NL NL NL NL

For SI: 1 cubic foot = 0.028 m?, 1 pound = 0.454 kg, 1 gallon =3.785 L.
NL = Not Limited; NA = Not Applicable; UD = Unclassified Detonable.

a.
b.

C.

aQ

et

2019 OREGON STRUCTURAL SPECIALTY CODE

For use of control areas, see Section 414.2.

The aggregate quantity in use and storage shall not exceed the quantity listed for storage.

The quantities of alcoholic beverages in retail and wholesale sales occupancies shall not be limited provided the liquids are packaged in individual containers
not exceeding 1.3 gallons. In retail and wholesale sales occupancies, the quantities of medicines, foodstuffs or consumer products, and cosmetics containing

not more than 50 percent by volume of water-miscible liquids with the remainder of the solutions not being flammable, shall not be limited, provided that
such materials are packaged in individual containers not exceeding 1.3 gallons.

. Maximum allowable quantities shall be increased 100 percent in buildings equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with

Section 903.3.1.1. Where Note e also applies, the increase for both notes shall be applied accumulatively.

. Maximum allowable quantities shall be increased 100 percent when stored in approved storage cabinets, day boxes, gas cabinets, gas rooms or exhausted

enclosures or in listed safety cans in accordance with Section 414.18. Where Note d also applies, the increase for both notes shall be applied accumulatively.
Quantities shall not be limited in a building equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1.

. Allowed only in buildings equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1.
. Containing not more than the maximum allowable quantity per control area of Class IA, IB or IC flammable liquids.

The maximum allowable quantity shall not apply to fuel oil storage complying with Section 2802.
Quantities in parentheses indicate quantity units in parentheses at the head of each column.

. A maximum quantity of 220 pounds of solid or 22 gallons of liquid Class 3 oxidizers is allowed when such materials are necessary for maintenance purposes,

operation or sanitation of equipment when the storage containers and the manner of storage are approved.

. Net weight of the pyrotechnic composition of the fireworks. Where the net weight of the pyrotechnic composition of the fireworks is not known, 25 percent

of the gross weight of the fireworks, including packaging, shall be used.

.For gallons of liquids, divide the amount in pounds by 10 in accordance with Section 414.1.5.1.
. For storage and display quantities in Group M and storage quantities in Group S occupancies complying with Section 414.2.5, see Tables 414.2.5(1) and

414.2.5(2).

. Densely packed baled cotton that complies with the packing requirements of ISO 8115 shall not be included in this material class.
. The following shall not be included in determining the maximum allowable quantities:

1. Liquid or gaseous fuel in fuel tanks on vehicles.

2. Liquid or gaseous fuel in fuel tanks on motorized equipment operated in accordance with this code.
3. Gaseous fuels in piping systems and fixed appliances regulated by the Fuel Gas Code.

4. Liquid fuels in piping systems and fixed appliances regulated by the Mechanical Code.

. Where manufactured, generated or used in such a manner that the concentration and conditions create a fire or explosion hazard based on information

prepared in accordance with Section 414.1.3.

63

<



OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION AND USE

112

TABLE 307.1(2)
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE QUANTITY PER CONTROL AREA OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS POSING A HEALTH HAZARD® &' h.!

STORAGE® USE-CLOSED SYSTEMS® USE-OPEN SYSTEMS®
MATERIAL Solid Liquid gallons | Gas cubic feet at NTP Liquid gallons | Gas cubic feetat NTP|  Solid Liquid gallons
pounds®® (pounds)®® (pounds)* pounds® (pounds)® (pounds)® pounds® (pounds)®
. Gaseous 810° Gaseous 810°
Corrosives 5,000 500 Liquefied (150) 5,000 500 Liquefied (150) 1,000 100
. . Gaseous 208 Gaseous 20#
Highly Toxic 10 (10) Liquefied (4)® a0 Liquefied (4) 3 &)
. Gaseous 810° Gaseous 810°
Toxic 500 (500) Liquefied (150)¢ (500) Liquefied (150)¢ 125 (125)

For SI: 1 cubic foot = 0.028 m®, 1 pound = 0.454 kg, 1 gallon = 3.785 L.
a. For use of control areas, see Section 414.2.

b. The aggregate quantity in use and storage shall not exceed the quantity listed for storage.

C.

In retail and wholesale sales occupancies, the quantities of medicines, foodstuffs or consumer products, and cosmetics containing not more than 50 percent by

volume of water-miscible liquids and with the remainder of the solutions not being flammable, shall not be limited, provided that such materials are packaged

in individual containers not exceeding 1.3 gallons.

- Maximum allowable quantities shail be increased 100 percent in buildings equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler system in accordance

with Section 903.3.1.1. Where Note e also applies, the increase for both notes shall be applied accumulatively.

. Maximum allowable quantities shali be increased 100 percent where stored in approved storage cabinets, gas cabinets or exhausted enclosures as specified in

this code. Where Note d also applies, the increase for both notes shall be applied accumulatively.

414.2.5(2).

= -]

. For storage and display quantities in Group M and storage quantities in Group S occupancies complying with Section 414.2.5, see Tables 414.2.5(1) and

. Allowed only where stored in approved exhausted gas cabinets or exhausted enclosures as specified in this code.
. Quantities in parentheses indicate quantity units in parentheses at the head of each column.

i. For gallons of liquids, divide the amount in pounds by 10 in accordance with Section 414.1.5.1.

15. Stationary fuel cell power systems installed in
accordance with this code and the Mechanical
Code.

16. Capacitor energy storage systems in accordance
with this code.

17. Group B higher education laboratory occupancies
complying with Section 428.

307.2 Hazardous materials. Hazardous materials in any

quantity shall conform to the requirements of this code,
including Section 414.

307.2.1 Storage of Class 1.4G (Class C, Common) fire-
works. A permanent building used for the temporary stor-
age of 1.4G (Class C) fireworks, as authorized by a retail
sales permit under ORS 480.127, may be classified as
either a Group M, Group S-1 or a detached Group U occu-
pancy, provided:

1. The total amount of 1.4G retail fireworks is less than
5,000 pounds (2268 kg) gross weight; or

2. Where the building is protected by an approved
automatic sprinkler system and the amount of 1.4G
retail fireworks is less than 10,000 pounds (4536 kg)
gross weight.

307.3 High-hazard Group H-1. Buildings and structures
containing materials that pose a detonation hazard shall be
classified as Group H-1. Such materials shall include, but not
be limited to, the following:

Detonable pyrophoric materials
Explosives:

Division 1.1
Division 1.2

64

Division 1.3
Division 1.4
Division 1.5
Division 1.6

Organic peroxides, unclassified detonable
Oxidizers, Class 4

Unstable (reactive) materials, Class 3 detonable and Class 4

307.3.1 Occupancies containing explosives not classi-
fied as H-1. The following occupancies containing explo-
sive materials shall be classified as follows:

1. Division 1.3 explosive materials that are used and
maintained in a form where either confinement or
configuration will not elevate the hazard from a
mass fire to mass explosion hazard shall be allowed
in H-2 occupancies.

2. Articles, including articles packaged for shipment,
that are not regulated as a Division 1.4 explosive
under Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and
Explosives regulations, or unpackaged articles used
in process operations that do not propagate a detona-
tion or deflagration between articles shall be
allowed in H-3 occupancies.

307.4 High-hazard Group H-2. Buildings and structures
containing materials that pose a deflagration hazard or a haz-
ard from accelerated burning shall be classified as Group H-
2. Such materials shall include, but not be limited to, the fol-
lowing:

Class I, II or IIIA flammable or combustible liquids that are
used or stored in normally open containers or systems, or
in closed containers or systems pressurized at more than
15 pounds per square inch gauge (103.4 kPa).

2019 OREGON STRUCTURAL SPECIALTY CODE



Combustible dusts where manufactured, generated or used
in such a manner that the concentration and conditions
create a fire or explosion hazard based on information
prepared in accordance with Section 414.1.3.

Cryogenic fluids, flammable.

Flammable gases.

Organic peroxides, Class I.

Oxidizers, Class 3, that are used or stored in normally
open containers or systems, or in closed containers or
systems pressurized at more than 15 pounds per square
inch gauge (103 kPa).

Pyrophoric liquids, solids and gases, nondetonable.

Unstable (reactive) materials, Class 3, nondetonable.

Water-reactive materials, Class 3.

307.5 High-hazard Group H-3. Buildings and structures
containing materials that readily support combustion or that
pose a physical hazard shall be classified as Group H-3. Such
materials shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

Class I, IT or IITA flammable or combustible liquids that
are used or stored in normally closed containers or
systems pressurized at 15 pounds per square inch gauge
(103.4 kPa) or less.

Combustible fibers, other than densely packed baled
cotton, where manufactured, generated or used in such a
manner that the concentration and conditions create a
fire or explosion hazard based on information prepared
in accordance with Section 414.1.3.

Consumer fireworks, 1.4G (Class C, Common)

Cryogenic fluids, oxidizing

Flammable solids

Organic peroxides, Class II and III

Oxidizers, Class 2

Oxidizers, Class 3, that are used or stored in normally
closed containers or systems pressurized at 15 pounds
per square inch gauge (103 kPa) or less

Oxidizing gases

Unstable (reactive) materials, Class 2

Water-reactive materials, Class 2

307.6 High-hazard Group H-4. Buildings and structures
containing materials that are health hazards shall be classified
as Group H-4. Such materials shall include, but not be limited
to, the following:

Corrosives
Highly toxic materials
Toxic materials

307.7 High-hazard Group H-5. Semiconductor fabrication
facilities and comparable research and development areas in
which hazardous production materials (HPM) are used and
the aggregate quantity of materials is in excess of those
listed in Tables 307.1(1) and 307.1(2) shall be classified as
Group H-5. Such facilities and areas shall be designed and
constructed in accordance with Section 415.11.

307.8 Multiple hazards. Buildings and structures containing
a material or materials representing hazards that are classified
in one or more of Groups H-1, H-2, H-3 and H-4 shall con-

form to the code requirements for each of the occupancies so
classified.

2019 OREGON STRUCTURAL SPECIALTY CODE

13

OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION H:L USE

SECTION 308
INSTITUTIONAL GROUP |

308.1 Institutional Group L. Institutional Group I occupancy
includes, among others, the use of a building or structure, or a
portion thereof, in which care or supervision is provided to
persons who are or are not capable of self-preservation with-
out physical assistance or in which persons are detained for
penal or correctional purposes or in which the liberty of the
occupants is restricted. Institutional occupancies shall be
classified as Group I-1, I-2, I-3 or I-4.

308.2 Institutional Group I-1. Institutional Group I-1 occu-
pancy shall include buildings, structures or portions thereof
for more than 16 persons, excluding staff, who reside on a 24-
hour basis in a supervised environment and receive custodial
care. Buildings of Group I-1 shall be classified as one of the
occupancy conditions specified in Section 308.2.1 or 308.2.2.

308.2.1 Condition 1. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which all persons receiving custodial
care who, without any assistance, are capable of respond-

ing to an emergency situation to complete building evacu-
ation.

This group shall include, but not be limited to, the fol-
lowing:

Congregate living facilities

Halfway houses

Social rehabilitation facilities

308.2.2 Condition 2. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings subject to licensure by the Oregon
Department of Human Services in which there are any per-
sons receiving custodial care who require limited verbal or
physical assistance while responding to an emergency sit-
uation to complete building evacuation. This group shall
include, but not be limited to, the following:

Alcohol and drug centers

Assisted living facilities with or without a Memory
Care Endorsement

Residential care facilities with or without a Memory
Care Endorsement

Residential treatment facilities

Group homes and facilities

308.2.3 Six to 16 persons receiving custodial care. A
facility housing not fewer than six and not more than 16
persons receiving custodial care shall be classified as
Group R-4.

308.2.4 Five or fewer persons receiving custodial care.
A facility with five or fewer persons receiving custodial
care shall be classified as Group R-3 or shall comply with
the Residential Code provided an automatic sprinkler sys-
tem is installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.3 or
with Appendix T of the Residential Code.

308.3 Institutional Group I-2. Institutional Group I-2 occu-
pancy shall include buildings and structures used for medical
care on a 24-hour basis for more than five persons who are

incapable of self-preservation. This group shall include, but
not be limited to, the following:

Foster care facilities
Detoxification facilities

65




OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION AND USE

Hospitals
Nursing homes
Psychiatric hospitals

308.3.1 Occupancy conditions. Buildings of Group I-2
shall be classified as one of the occupancy conditions
specified in Section 308.3.1.1 or 308.3.1.2.

308.3.1.1 Condition 1. This occupancy condition shall
include facilities that provide nursing and medical care
but do not provide emergency care, surgery, obstetrics
or in-patient stabilization units for psychiatric or detox-
ification, including but not limited to nursing homes
and foster care facilities.

308.3.1.2 Condition 2. This occupancy condition shall
include facilities that provide nursing and medical care
and could provide emergency care, surgery, obstetrics
or in-patient stabilization units for psychiatric or detox-
ification, including but not limited to hospitals.

308.3.2 Five or fewer persons receiving medical care. A
facility with five or fewer persons receiving medical care
shall be classified as Group R-3 or shall comply with the
Residential Code provided an automatic sprinkler system
is installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.3 or with
Appendix T of the Residential Code.

308.4 Institutional Group I-3. Institutional Group I-3
occupancy shall include buildings and structures that are
inhabited by more than five persons who are under
restraint or security. A Group [-3 facility is occupied by
persons who are generally incapable of self-preservation
due to security measures not under the occupants’ control.

This group shall include, but not be limited to, the follow-
ing:

Correctional centers
Detention centers
Jails

Prerelease centers
Prisons
Reformatories

Buildings of Group I-3 shall be classified as one of the
occupancy conditions specified in Sections 308.4.1 through
308.4.5 (see Section 408.1).

308.4.1 Condition 1. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which free movement is allowed from
sleeping areas, and other spaces where access or occu-
pancy is permitted, to the exterior via means of egress
without restraint. A Condition 1 facility is permitted to be
constructed as Group R.

308.4.2 Condition 2. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which free movement is allowed from
sleeping areas and any other occupied smoke compartment
to one or more other simoke compartments. Egress to the
exterior is impeded by locked exits.

308.4.3 Condition 3. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which free movement is allowed
within individual smoke compartments, such as within a
residential unit comprised of individual sleeping units and
group activity spaces, where egress is impeded by remote-

66

114

controlled release of means of egress from such a smoke
compartment to another smoke compartment.

308.4.4 Condition 4. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which free movement is restricted
from an occupied space. Remote-controlled release is pro-
vided to permit movement from sleeping units, activity
spaces and other occupied areas within the smoke com-
partment to other smoke compartments.

308.4.5 Condition 5. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which free movement is restricted
from an occupied space. Staff-controlled manual release is
provided to permit movement from sleeping units, activity
spaces and other occupied areas within the smoke com-
partment to other smoke compartments.

308.5 Institutional Group I-4, day care facilities. Institu-
tional Group I-4 occupancy shall include buildings and struc-
tures occupied by more than five persons of any age who
receive custodial care for fewer than 24 hours per day by per-
sons other than parents or guardians, relatives by blood, mar-
riage or adoption, and in a place other than the home of the

person cared for. This group shall include, but not be limited
to, the following:

Adult day care
Child day care

308.5.1 Classification as Group E. A child day care facil-
ity that provides care for more than five but not more than
100 children 2/, years or less of age, where the rooms in
which the children are cared for are located on a level of
exit discharge serving such rooms and each of these child
care rooms has an exit door directly to the exterior, shall
be classified as Group E.

308.5.2 Within a place of religious worship. Rooms and
spaces within places of religious worship providing such
care during religious functions shall be classified as part of
the primary occupancy.

308.5.3 Five or fewer persons receiving care. A facility
having five or fewer persons receiving custodial care shall
be classified as part of the primary occupancy.

308.5.4 Five or fewer persons receiving care in a dwell-
ing unit. A facility such as the above within a dwelling
unit and having five or fewer persons receiving custodial
care shall be classified as a Group R-3 occupancy or shall
comply with the Residential Code.

SECTION 309
MERCANTILE GROUP M

309.1 Mercantile Group M. Mercantile Group M occupancy
includes, among others, the use of a building or structure or a
portion thereof for the display and sale of merchandise, and
involves stocks of goods, wares or merchandise incidental to
such purposes and accessible to the public. Mercantile occu-
pancies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

Department stores
Drug stores
Markets

Greenhouses for display and sale of plants that provide
public access.

2019 OREGON STRUCTURAL SPECIALTY CODE



115

Attachment “F”
. 1-CP-18 /3-Z-20
Derrick Tokos
From: Jean Dahlquist <jdahlqu1@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, March 30, 2020 10:46 AM
To: Derrick Tokos
Subject: Re: Contact Us - Web Form

Good morning Derrick,

Just checking in. | know a lot of cities have slowed down/extended meeting dates due to the pandemic. Any information
would be greatly appreciated.

Wishes for good health,
--Jean

On Tue, Mar 10, 2020 at 10:35 AM Jean Dahlquist <jdahlgul @gmail.com> wrote:
Good morning,

When you get a chance, and when they are available, may we also take a look at the staff reports for 1-CP-18 / 3-Z-20
"Amends the Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan to provide a rationale, background, and
policies for guiding development within tsunami inundation areas" and 2-CP-18 "Amends the Storm Drainage Element
of the Newport Comprehensive Plan, establishing new goals and policies, and updating capital projects to align with
recommendations contained in a Stormwater Master Plan" ?

V/R
--Jean

On Tue, Mar 3, 2020 at 4:17 AM Jean Dahlquist <jdahlqul @gmail.com> wrote:
Thank you so much, | really appreciate it!

-Jean

On Mon, Mar 2, 2020 at 2:02 PM Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@newportoregon.gov> wrote:
Hi Jean,

Please accept this response as confirmation that | received your email and that we will provide you a copy of the staff
report when it is available.

Derrick 1. Tokos, AICP

Community Development Director
City of Newport

169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97365

ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov




116

From: jdahlqul@gmail.com [mailto:jdahlqul@gmail.com]
Sent: Monday, March 02, 2020 11:34 AM

| To: Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>
Subject: Contact Us - Web Form

City of Newport, OR :: Contact Us - Web Form

The following information was submitted on 3/2/2020 at 11:33:52 AM

To: Derrick Tokos

Name: Jean Dahlquist
Email: jdahlqul@gmail.com
Phone: (414) 477-1567
Subject: 2-Z-20

Message: Good morning,

My name is Jean Dahlquist and | am conducting some research for FHCO. | was hoping to obtain the staff report and
all corresponding attachments for 2-Z-20, the "Eliminates residential use at street grade in a portion of the City's C-
2/Tourist Commercial zone adjacent to NW Cliff Street," when available.

Additionally, I've been in communication with several other cities, and they have found this resource helpful:

://www.housinglandadvocates.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/04/Goal-10-Guidance-Letter-to-Cities-and-
Counties-signed.pdf . They have also found it helpful for me to take a quick look at their Goal 10 findings, as | have a
pretty good sense as to whether FHCO and HLA would want to submit a comment letter, and what they would say.
Thus, if this would also assist your workflow to receive feedback earlier, please let me know and | would be more
than happy to oblige.

Please confirm the receipt of this e-mail and | look forward to hearing from you soon!
Very Respectfully,

--Jean



'Wednesday, July 10, 2019

Attachment “G”
1-CP-18 / 3-Z-20

News-Times . Newport, OR

N~
—
—

State lawmaking,

local impacts

Gomberg holds
Newport town hall

BY MADELINE SHANNON
" Ofthe News-Times

NEWPORT — State
Rep. David Gom-
berg (D-Central Coast)
stopped in Newport Sun-

day as part of a tour of |

coastal town halls, during
which he updated New-
port-arearesidents about

state legislation this past |

session that concerned

coastal residents here.

Attendees and the law-
maker discussed topics
as diverse as immigra-
tion, the Big Creek Dams,
the Senate Republicans’
walkout, the last week
. of the legislative ses-
sion and the state’s pub-
lic employees retirement
system (PERS).

“I think there was a
great deal of drama and a
fair amount of conflict but
there’s also a lot of things
that got done,” Gomberg
said. “There were trans-
formational things that
got done. There were a
lot of high-profile issues.”

While not all the issues -

affected by bills from this
legislative session were
discussed at the New-
port town hall on Sunday,

David Gomberg talks to a constituent at the New-
port town hall on Sunday. The Newport stop was
one of a series of talks along the coast Gomberg
organized following the end of the legislative ses-
sion. (Photo by Madeline Shannon)

Gomberg and the locals
in attendance delved
into the local implica-

‘tions for some political

issues coming down from
the state legislature, as
well as what local issues
here mean for Gomberg
and his colleagues in
Salem. Among the topics
of conversation at Sun-
day’s town hall:
Development
on the coast
Residents worried about
development along the
coast, especially in areas
close to quickly-eroding

cliffs or within the tsu-
nami inundation zone.
The Oregon Department
of Geology and Mineral
Industries is trying to re-
draw those areas, accord-
ing to Gomberg,.

“Using the best avail-
able science, they want to
move the line from where
it’s currently established
to further east,” Gomberg
said Sunday. “When we
talk about moving that
line further away from
the beach, meanwhile, our
urban growth boundaries

GOMBERG on Page A7

LAW ENFORCEMENT
TIP OF THE WEEK

TRAFFIC

time. Driv-

Find a

“Scam Jam
set for Newpc

State Attorney General
Ellen Rosenblum, the

| AARP and other experts

will hold a seminar on
how to avoid fraud and
scams on July 24 from
1-3 p.m. In the digi-
tal age, when threats
range from phone calls
from people imperson-
ating the IRS to theft
of personal information

through hack
social media, in
tion on how to
yourself is more
tant than ever.
The jam will tal
at the 60+ Activi
ter in Newport.
up online, visii
newportoregon.
recreation or ca
(541) 265-9617.

MEETINGS

Wednesday, July 10

North Lincoln Fire &
Rescue District #1 Board
of Directors: 4 p.m., St. Clair
Station, 4520 SE Highway
101, Lincoln City.

Lincoln City Public Arts
Committee: 4:15 p.m., Lin-
coln City Community Center,
2150 NE Oar Place.

Newport Library Board:
5:15 p.m., McEntee Meeting
Room, Newport Library.

Depoe Bay Planning
Commission: 6 p.m., coun-
cil chambers, city hall.

Lincoln County Board of
Commissioners and Lin-
coln City City Council: 6
p-m., joint work session, fol-
lowed by the reguilar meeting
of the county commission-
ers, council chambers, Lin-
coln City City Hall, 801 SW
Highway 101.

Toledo Plannin
mission: 6:30 p.an.
chambers, city hall.

Thursday, Jul

‘Waldport City
cil: 2 p.m., council
roorm, city hall.

Seal Rock Water
Board of Commissi
p-m,, district office, 1
Grebe St., Seal Roc]

Seal Rock Fir
tection District
6:30 p.m., 1034
St., Seal Rock.

Devils Lake
Improvement T
Board of Direc
p-m., council che
Lincoln City City

Lincoln Soil &
Conservation
trict Board: 7
411 NE Avery St
B, Newport.

f‘ﬂ - ..'.'I‘:u’l!.a



Wednesday, July 10, 2019

News-Times * Newport, OR

118

A7

GOMBERG

Continued from page A3

HOMELESS

Continued from page 1

on the eastern side of our
communities don't move.
So the areas where we have
the ability to do new, criti-
cal facilities becomes more
and more compressed.”

That makes it more dif-
ficult to move schools,
police stations, fire sta-
tions, and other gov-
ernment agencies and
buildings out of harm’s
way, Gomberg added.

“Some of our commu-
nities have buildable
space outside the inun-
dation zone, some of
them do not,” Gomberg
said. “They won’t even
give us money to move a
school outside the inun-
dation zone.” .

While state restric-
tions curb development
and growth in the earth-
quake zone, Gomberg
expressed sentiments
that push back on the
laws that prohibit new
building in the western
third of the state.

“I think the state needs
to get serious about
emergency planning,”
he said. “Simply having
rules that say nothing
can go on in the earth-
quake zone is old think-
ing, and frankly, I think
it’s dumb thinking.”

Recyclable materi-

als & systems

This legislative session,
the state passed two laws
limiting the use of plas-
tic straws and prohib-
iting single-use plastic
bags, two major environ-
mental pieces of legisla-
tion that mirrored local
efforts to curb the use of
plastic bags in Newport.
HB 2509, or the Sustain-
able Shopping Act, was
passed after the City of
Newport’s passage of
an ordinance banning
plastic bags.

Plastic wasn’t the only
target of the state legis-
lature this year, however.

“There was one bill
that came through that
was going to ban styro-
foam food containers,”
Gomberg said. “That one
didn’t make it all the way
through the system.”

Another local effort
Gomberg supports is the
new Georgia-Pacific Mill
Juno Project, which will
convert 100,000 tons of
waste a year. While that
didn’t prove contentious
at the town hall in New-

Wi -

Another source of
income could come from
the city itself. A budget
line Jones called “aspi-
rational” would source a
fee-for-service contract
with either the city or
the county.

“There aren’t nonprof-
its in town that have the
charitable mission to exe-
cute this kind of mission
and have the staff avail-
able and an extra $10,000
a montbh sitting around,”
Jones said. “There has to

AQUARIUM

Continued from page 1

be some kind of acknowl-
edgment that some type
of public entity is going
to subsidize a certain
part of that.”

Charitable income, grant
writing, federal premium
subsidies through agen-
cies like the Federal Emer-
gency Management Agency
(FEMA) and utility sub-
sidies were all income
streams talked about dur-
ing Monday's meeting.

Estimated projections
of $2,500 to keep the

shelter staffed and $600
to $700 a month in insur-
ance were also included
in the cost projections,
with insurance running
so high because of the vol-
atility of the population
housed in such a shelter,
Jones said. An estimated
$2,000 a month would
be taken up by rent, and
Jones predicted the shel-
ter would be limited to
operating in a commer-
cial or industrial zone.
While no specific

location was identified for
where to rent or build a
homeless shelter, at least
one task force member
said they didn’t think
it should necessarily be
near the day shelter at
Grace Wins Haven.

“I don’t agree that it
should be by Grace Wins,”
said the shelter’s manager
Traci Flowers. “That’s
ey neighborhood and
T'll tell you that myself. I
don’t agree that it should
be next door neighbors

with Grace Wins, but I
do believe it needs to be
close enough that they
can get services from both
places to make their situ-
ation successful.”

_ The opening of a per-
manent homeless shel-
ter could be one of the
recommendations the
Homelessness Task Force
submits to the New-
port City Council, which
would take action on the
issue in a regular city
council meeting.

Money will come
from lottery bonds with
stipulations.

“It can only be used for
the capital construction
projects,” said Dumas.
“So, the improvements
that we're making in the
entryway, the children’s
nature play area, the
marine wildlife center
and the galleries.”

Work is going to start
with the Pacific Rim gal-
lery tank in the fall of
2019, converting it from
a cold to a warm water

tank around the time the
aquarium kicks off the
public portion of the cam-
paign before beginning
phase I and starting on
the entryway.

“We already had over
$6 million raised for this
$18.2 million campaign, so
this additional $5 million
will bring us up to $11.2
million,” said Dumas.

More information on
the campaign, as well as
ways to contribute, can be
found online at aquarium.
org/campaign.

Public Notice From Pioneer Connect

The new Pacific Rim gallery will be a conversion of the current Coastal Water:

s

S gaII

exhibit, and is the first project on the docket for the Oregon Coast Aquarium this fall.
(Photo courtesy of the Oregon Coast Aquarium)

Pioneer Connect operates one of the most sophisticated fiber optic networks in the State of Oregon. With this network, we serve our members from
the Willamette Valley to the Pacific Ocean with superior high-speed Internet connections and a voice connection that is second to none.

We are also committed to insuring that you are informed about available telephone service assistance programs such as OTAP/ Lifeline. To find out
more about these programs, please contact the Residential Service Protection Fund (RSPF) staff TOLL FREE at 1-800-848-4442 or (503) 373-7171 in

Salem; TTY users can call 1-800-648-3458; or you view their website http://www.puc.state.or.us or you can write to: Public Utility Commission of
Oregon - RSPF, PO Box 2148 - Salem OR 97308-2148

We Offer

Basic Local Rate(s) — $15.00 Local Residential Rate and $16.00 Local Business Rate (basic rates do not include long distance, taxes, fees, or

surcharges), Extended Area Service (local toll free calling area) - High Speed Internet Access (up to 100Mbps) - Data Services - DS3 « Primary Rate
ISDN . ERate - E911 - OTAP/Lifeline

Calling Features

Auto Call Back

Call Forwarding Package....

Call Trace

Call Transfer

Call Waiting,
Caller ID.....

I Y

Caller ID Package

Caller ID with Call Waiting.

'

Distinctive Ringing
Easy Attendant

Last Call Return

‘Line Blocking

Market Expansion............

NETPROTECT™

Per Call Blocking ...

Personal Ringing.

Privacy Defender.
Robocall Blocking
Remote Call Forwarding

Selective Call Acceptance..
Selective Call Forwarding..

Selective Call Rejection
Speed Dialing

Three-Way Calling.....ccoo

-~

automatically redials the last number dialed. $2.50/mo.
redirects calls to another phone number. $2.50/mo.

traces unwanted calls. You may be charged $1.00 each trace.
transfer any call to another number. $5.00/mo.
informs you someone is trying to call while you're on another call. $2.50/mo.,
reveals who is calling before you answer your phone. $6.5s0/mo

comes with Caller ID, Call Waiting and Caller ID w/Call Waiting. $6.50/mo.
.see who's calling while your on another call. Comes with Caller ID Package.
.phone will ring with a special ring tone so you'll know which number is calling. $2.50/mo.

virtual receptionist directing incoming callers to the appropriate department or employee. $14.95/mo.
automatically dials back the last incoming call. $2.50/mo.
block your name and number from appearing on Caller ID for ALL calls you make. No Charge.

have a Pioneer Connect prefix and forward incoming calls to another number. Starting at $24/mo.
provides protection that covers your home/office wiring. $2.00/mo.
block your name and number from appearing. No Charge.

have up to two telephone numbers with unique rings. $5.00/mo.
.control incoming calls with the ability to screen and reject unwanted calls such as telemarketers. $2.50/mo.
.helps automatically prevent unwanted robocalls so they won't reach your phone. No Charge.

.activate and deactivate Call Forwarding from another location. Comes with Call Forwarding Package
..accept calls only from people on your list. $2.50/mo.

..callers on your list are forwarded to another number. $2.50/mo.
..rejects calls from a list of phone numbers. $2.50/mo.

dial selected numbers quickly. $2.50/mo.
allows you to add a third party to an existing phone conversation. $2.50/mo.

LY IOy SPIUUIUUIPN RN PR PRSI | SIS | R SR SO



als & systems

This legislative session,
the state passed two laws
limiting the use of plas-
tic straws and prohib-
iting single-use plastic
bags, two major environ-
mental pieces of legisla-
tion that mirrored local
efforts to curb the use of
plastic bags in Newport.
HB 2509, or the Sustain-
able Shopping Act, was
passed after the City of
Newport’s passage of
an ordinance banning
plastic bags.

Plastic wasn’t the only -

target of the state legis-
lature this year, however.

“There was one bill
that came through that
was going to ban styro-
foam food containers,”
Gomberg said. “That one
didn’t make it all the way
through the system.”

Another local effort
Gomberg supports is the
new Georgia-Pacific Mill
Juno Project, which will
convert 100,000 tons of
waste a year. While that
didn’t prove contentious
at the town hall in New-
port, some residents of
the east part of Lincoln
County have opposed
the project.

“Those are examples of
the kinds of things that
are going on, and I antic-
ipate we're going to see
more things like that,”
Gomberg said.

Big Creek Dams

Gomberg wasn't the only
person to come out in sup-
port of state funding for Big
Creek Dams, which local offi-
cials say need to be rebuilt
to withstand a Cascadia
earthquake.

“We are the first dam to
come to the legislature,’ said
Newport Mayor Dean Saw-
yer. “We are the first to come
to plans for the seismic reha-
bilitation of our dam”

The Big Creek Dams,
Gomberg explained, are
some of the most seismi-
cally vulnerable dams in the
state. It wouldn’t even take a
large earthquake to impact
the dams, and the city has
talked to state officials about
securing funding to help with
rebuilding the dams.

“At the end of the day, we
were ableto come home with
$4 million to begin that plan-
ning process,” Gomberg said.

Local officials say that
assistance is very much
needed, and not just
for the city.

“We're looking at this not
from a Newport perspective,
but from a regional perspec-
tive; said Sawyer. “Thatdam
is very fragile”

Gall Wating. -

‘Line Blocking

We are also committed to insuring that you are informed about available telephone service assistance programs such as OTAP/ Lifelinc = find out
more about these programs, please contact the Residential Service Protection Fund (RSPF) staff TOLL FREE at 1-800-848-4442 or (50 -7171in
Salem; TTY users can call 1-800-648-3458; or you view their website http://www.puc.state.or.us or you can write to: Public Utility Cor  iion of
Oregon « RSPF, PO Box 2148 - Salem OR 97308-2148

We Offer

Basic Local Rate(s) — $15.00 Local Residential Rate and $16.00 Local Business Rate (basic rates do not include long distance, taxes, fees, or

surcharges), Extended Area Service (local toll free calling area) - High Speed Internet Access (up to 100Mbps) « Data Services « DS3 « Primary Rate
ISDN « ERate » Eg11 - OTAP/Lifeline

Calling Features

Auto Call Back automatically redials the last number dialed. $2.50/mo.
Call Forwarding Package. ... redirects calls to another phone number. $2.50/mo.
Call Trace traces unwanted calls. You may be charged $1.00 each trace.
Call Transfer transfer any call to another number. $5.00/mo.
informs you someone is trying to call while you're on another call. $2.50/mo.,
reveals who is calling before you answer your phone. $6.50/mo
_comes with Caller ID, Call Waiting and Caller ID w/Call Waiting. $6.50/mo.
Caller ID with Call Waiting ..see who's calling while your on another call. Comes with Caller ID Package.
Distinctive RINGING oo phone will ring with a special ring tone so you'll know which number is calling. $2.50/mo.
Easy Attendant virtual receptionist directing incoming callers to the appropriate department or employee. $14.95/mo.
Last Call Return automatically dials back the last incoming call. $2.50/mo.
block your name and number from appearing on Caller ID for ALL calls you make. No Charge.
[VET{ G e FTy i ] P ———— have a Pioneer Connect prefix and forward incoming calls to another number. Starting at $24/mo.
NETPROTECT™ provides protection that covers your home/office wiring. $2.00/mo.
Per Call Blocking block your name and number from appearing. No Charge.
Personal Ringing have up to two telephone numbers with unique rings. $5.00/mo.

gy

Caller ID
Caller ID Package

Privacy Defender.. s control incoming calls with the ability to screen and reject unwanted calls such as telemarketers. $2.50/mo.

Robocall Blocking
Remote Call Forwarding..
Selective Call Acceptance
Selective Call Forwarding
Selective Call Rejection....

helps automatically prevent unwanted robocalls so they won't reach your phone. No Charge.
...................... activate and deactivate Call Forwarding from another location. Comes with Call Forwarding Package
..accept calls only from people on your list. "$2.50/mo.

callers on your list are forwarded to another number. $2.50/mo.

rejects calls from a list of phone numbers. $2.50/mo.

Speed Dialing dial selected numbers quickly. $2.50/mo.

BT VA €[] - ——— allows you to add a third party to an existing phone conversation. $2.50/mao.

Toll Control PIN must be entered to make a long distance call. $4.00/mo.

AVE Tar- 101 STV = OO——— reduce monthly rate when you're away from home for an extended period of time.

VoiceMail

Bundles

answers your calls when you can't. $8.75/mo

* Some restrictions apply and based on current rates, which are subject to
change. Local Service - does not include taxes, fees and surcharges. Extended
Area Service (EAS) varies from exchange to exchange, however it is included in
the Freedom Choice, Essential Choice and Simple Choice packages. High Speed
Internet Service ~ does not include modem charges, taxes, fees and surcharges.

7 Six (6) month service commitment is required. If High Speed Internet service is
: / ; ‘ canceled prior to the 6 month commitment, you will be billed a $25 early

o] cancellation charge. A 99¢ per month regulatory fee is charged by PEAK Internet

Not all members qualify for all speeds advertised. Actual speeds vary and are
not guaranteed. Performance will vary due to conditions outside of network
control including customer location, websites accessed, Internet congestion and
customer equipment. Connection speeds are based on sync rates. Download
speeds will be up to 15% lower due to network requirements. Please contact a
Customer Service Representative for availability. Home telephone service
W required. Long Distance - Minutes included in the Freedom and Essential Chotce
R packages are limited to the 50 United States and Canada. Long Distance
T | minutes do not apply to Internet Access, or 900 calls. A charge of 15.5¢ per
E minute will be applied for calls of this nature. Minutes used beyond the allotted
amount in plan will be charged at 15.5¢ per minute. Calls to the Operator,
Operator Assisted Calls, Directory Assistance and Third Party calls are not
included and are billed at standard rates.

ks
e
3

=

\‘\«,‘\3 SOSISISSD

Pioneer Connect is locally owned by its members and provides
“state-of-the-art" services in the following exchanges:
424 - 438 - 453 - 456 - 486 - 487 - 528 - 547 - 563 - 867 - 875 - 925 - 927 - 964 - 929
For More Information Call: 541-929-3135 oOr 541-563-3135
www.pioneer.net -

G‘ ) Pioneer

e CONNECT

Get the full story delivered to your door.

We cover the news from north to
south Lincoln County.

CALL 541-265-8571 TO SUBSCRIBE




ery’s dog, Brandy, greatly in-
jure - having suffered bites
on . ofher legs, her tail and
her neck — but McGreenery
was scratched and bitten by
0ZT: raccoons in her effort to
save her dog from the attack.
While visiting the hospital
for her wound, McGreenery
tested negative for rabies.

yard considerably, and he felt
really bad about Brandy be-
ing hurt,” said McGreenery.
“But he loved those raccoons,
they were like his little pets.”
She recently took her story
to the Newport City Coun-
cil, where she asked for the

WILDLIFE on Page A7

BEAT THE WAVE

Tsunami plans
show routes, risks

BY MADELINE SHANNON
Of the News-Times

NEWPORT -- Run, or
walk fast, to your nearest
evacuation center.

That’s the message in a
new “Beat the Wave” report
for the City of Newport.

The city’s planning com-
mission got a tsunami
evacuation update from
the Oregon Department of
Geology and Mineral In-
dustries on Monday. They
learned where, when and
how fast to evacuate if a
tsunami is about to hit the
city’s coastline.

The report lays out evacu-
ation routes that Newport
residents can use to escape
the oncoming wave in the

event of an earthquake.

“Another service this
work provides is it high-
lights what areas can use
more work and more at-
tention,” said Laura Gabel,
a coastal field geologist for
DOGAMI.

Perhaps one of the most
unnerving — although not
unexpected — findings in
Gabel’s report is the timing
of the first wave of a tsu-
nami, which would hit the
beaches in 24 to 26 minutes
after the start of an earth-
quake. By the time that
wave reaches Safe Haven
Hill, Gabel said, 30 minutes
would elapse from the be-
ginning of the quake.

(< PA%

OREGON COAST COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Vg

Spike Nasmyth, who spends his summers in Siletz, shows a model of the F-4 phantom aircraft he was piloting w
shot down over North Vietnam. Nasmyth — who spent more than six years as a prisoner of war — was part ¢
Fighter Squadron, known as the “Triple Nickels.” (Photos by Shelby Wolfe)} .

Veteran recounts day
in POW camp

BY BRET YAGER
Of the News-Times

By any reasonable measure, Spike Nasmyth's body should be
in the ground somewhere in Vietnam.

A prisoner of war who survived more than a half dozen years
in such notorious detention centers as the “Hanoi Hilton” and
“The Zoo,” Nasmyth was beaten, trussed up so he could barely
breath, left to die with infection spreading from shrapnel
wounds, revived and tortured again.

He made up bogus information to give to his inter-
rogators, concocted names of imaginary superiors and
created whatever fiction would bring relief and medical
treatment.

VETERAN on Page A5

Lincoln County poised to grow its own teach:



/
Date:
sunday-Sept 23

Toledo Memorial Field
385 NW A Street
9 a.m.to 4 p.m.

Due to the overwhelming success
of the 1** Annual Toledo Swap Meet,
we are bringing it back in September!
Admission $2.00 per person
All proceeds go to charity!
Childred under 12 free
For more information
Call: 541-336-3183
or email:
director@toledooregon.org

* Put on by the
Toledo Chamber of Commerce

In:conjunction with the @
2 Taledo Active Group

Be sure to
reserve your
space early!

e

Car Parts
Motorcycle Parts
Tools
Household Items
Furniture
Clothes
Antlques
Other Cool Stuff!

Find what you’ve
been looking for or
get rid of what you

can’t use!

————
Everyone Is
Welcome

Lots of Food and
Fun for Everyone!

> 2008
FALL GUN

=7 @

TSUNAMI

Continued from page 1

“It would be about 35 min-
utes to the eastern edge of the
peninsula,” Gabel said. “The
Bayfront also has wave times
of 30 to 32 minutes.”

There are four plans to
come out of the DOGAMI
assessment. The first would
have people take specific evac-
uation routes depending on
where they are in the city. The
routes guide those evacuating
up and out of the areas most
affected by incoming waves.

“This is the best possible
option for areas where we
know we have mass gather-
ings of people,” said Jenny
Demaris, Lincoln County
emergency services manager.
“There are other areas of Lin-
coln County where they have
one route only.”

The parts of town that
would be hit the hardest
would be the Bayfront, South
Beach and the neighborhood

by Shelby Wolfe)

& SPORTSMAN

SHOW

SATURDAY & SUNDAY
SEPTEMBER 22 & 23

LINN COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS

We will be holding an
ARPC sponsored
Oregon Concealed Carry Class

Saturday, 9:30am - 11:00am & 12:30pm - 2:00pm
Sunday 12:30pm - 2:00pm

Cost: $20 plus gun show admission

FREE PARKING
400 TABLES OF
GUNS & AMMO

_ X41-49158

I-5 Exit 234
SAT: 9AM-5PM
SUN: 9AM-3PM

|
755 A

PSSO -

surrounding the Hatfield
Marine Science Center, ac-
cording to Gabel. The Bay-
front is particularly vulner-
able because the edge of the
waterfront is built on pilings
which would collapse.

“The shaking will cause a
lot of that road [in the Bay-
front] to separate complete-
ly said Gabel. “It won’t just
be a matter of sand covering
the road, it'll be landslides

that will potentially block
places.”

“Pedestrian walking
speeds,” or the speed some-
one would have to walk to get
to safety before the first wave
hits, were outlined in colored
lines. Yellow paths to evacu-
ation spots in the city indi-
cate there’s time to evacuate
if someone walks slowly. The
succeeding colors on the map
indicate increasing walk-
ing speeds, with light orange

NYE COTTAGE

eBeEeAeD-Se

Tuesday - Saturday 10am - 5pm
Monday Noon - 5pm
Closed Sundays

208 NW Coast St., Nye Beach (Newport)
541-265-6262

meaning walk and dark or-
ange meaning walk fast.

If there is very little time,
pink lines indicating a slow
run are shown, with that
color turning to purple for a
regular run and blue mean-
ing better sprint.

With each color, Gabel
stressed, time is going to be
short to evacuate.

“We don't want the mes-
sage with yellow to be that
you can grab a cup of coffee
on your way out,” Gabel said.

The plan also detailed
where people can go to seek
shelter from the tsunami.

Certain bridges along the
city’s coastline could collapse
in a tsunami, and for people
who had not sought shelter or
climbed to higher ground in
the city, the loss of a bridge or
the destruction or blockage
of a street would affect how
those in a certain part of the
city could get out before the

A car drives past a tsunami evacuation zone marked on Sixth Street near Nye Beach. (Photc

next wave.

“What you're actually pro-
viding to those individuals
who happen to be standing,
sitting in a car or working at
a business is that they have
multiple options,” Demaris
said.

Having more choices to
pick from when evacuating,
she said, is essential to safely
getting more people out if
one route is blocked.

The roads perpendicular
to Yaquina Bay Road will be
paths uphill out of danger.

“Wherever they are, they're
not going to be able to shop
for another route up or down-
stream,” Gabel said.

Charts/maps:

https://legistarweb-pro-
duction.s3.amazonaws.
com/uploads/attachment/
pdf/236178/DOGAMI.pdf

Reach reporter Madeline
Shannon at mshannon@
newportnewstimes.com




122

Attachment “H”
1-CP-18/3-Z-20

CITY OF NEWPORT
NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING

The Newport Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on Monday, April 13, 2020, at 7:00
p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers to consider Ordinance No. 2166 (File Nos. 1-CP-18 and 3-Z-20),
which put in place policies and establish a new Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone to limit new essential facilities
and special occupancy structures in tsunami inundation areas. Essential facilities include hospitals and related
medical facilities, emergency vehicle shelters, police/fire stations, and emergency preparedness centers.
Special occupancy structures that would be prohibited include large schools, assisted/senior living facilities,
day care facilities, child care facilities, jails/detention facilities, and hazardous facilities. The Newport
Comprehensive Plan Section entitled “Administration of the Plan” (p. 288-289) allow amendments of this
nature if findings can be made that there is (a) a significant change in one or more conclusions; or (b) a public
need for the change; or (c) a significant change in community attitudes or priorities; or (d) a demonstrated
conflict with another plan goal or policy that has a higher priority; or (e) a change in a statute or statewide
agency plan. Revisions must comply with applicable Statewide Planning Goals. Further, Newport Municipal
Code Section 14.36.010, requires the Planning Commission find that the change is required by public
necessity and the general welfare of the community. The Planning Commission makes a recommendation to
the City Council as to whether the amendments should be adopted. Testimony and evidence must be directed
toward the request above or other criteria, including criteria within the Comprehensive Plan and its
implementing ordinances, which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue with
sufficient specificity to afford the city and the parties an opportunity to respond to that issue precludes an
appeal, including to the Land Use Board of Appeals, based on that issue. Testimony may be submitted in
written or oral form. Oral testimony and written testimony will be taken during the public hearing. The
hearing may include a report by staff, testimony from the applicant and proponents, testimony from
opponents, rebuttal by the applicant, and questions and deliberation by the Planning Commission. Written
testimony sent to the Community Development (Planning) Department, City Hall, 169 SW Coast Hwy,
Newport, OR 97365, must be received by 5:00 p.m. the day of the hearing to be included as part of the hearing
or must be personally presented during testimony at the public hearing. The proposed code amendments,
additional material for the amendments, and any other material in the file may be reviewed or a copy
purchased at the Newport Community Development Department (address above). Contact Derrick Tokos,
Community Development Director (541) 574-0626 (address above).

(FOR PUBLICATION ONCE ON FRIDAY, April 3, 2020)



. Wednesday
| Edition: ‘
. 5:00pm ’
¢ Thursday I

PRIOR |

. Friday \
Edition: !
5:00pm |
Tuesday ||
PRIOR ‘

NOTICE OF PUBLIC
AUCTION
Pursuant to ORS Chap-
ter 819; Notice is her Y
given that the follow-
ing vehicle will be sold,
or cash to the highest
bidder, on 4/14/20.” The
sale will be held at 10:00
AM. by CAR CARE
TOW PRO INC, 2795 SE
23RD DRIVE, LINCOLN
CITY, OR. 2015 Toyota
Sienna VIN #5TDKK3D-
C4FS621241.  Amount
due on lien $11,530.00;
Reputed owner(s) YIN,
RUI; TOYOTA CRDT

CORP. A3 A10 (85-10)

NOTICE OF PUBLIC
MEETING

Oregon Cascades West
Council of Governments:
A public meeting of the
Board of Directors of the
Oregon Cascades West
Council_of Governments
(OCWCOG) will be held
on Tuesday, April 7, 2020
at 3:00 pm via audio and
videoconference. The pur-
Fose of this meeting is
0 convene an emergency
meeting of the Board of
Directors of the OCW-
COG. For further Infor-
mation about OCWCOG,
please visit our website
at www.OCWCOG.org. A3
(96-3)

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC

CITY OF NEWPORT: The
Newport Planning Com-
mission will hold a public
hearing on Monday, April
13, 2020, at 7:00 p.m.
in the City Hall Council
Chambers’ to consider
Ordinance No. 2186 (File
Nos. 1-CP-18 and 3-7-
20), which put in place
policies and establish a
new Tsunami Hazards
Overlay Zone to limit
new essential facilities
and special occupancy
structures in  tsunami
inundation areas. Essen-
tial facliities include hos-
pitals and related medi-
cal facilities, emergency
vehicle shelters, police/
fire stations, and emer-
gency preparedness cen-
ters. " Special occupancy
structures that would be
prohibited include large
schools, assisted/senior
iving facilities, day care
acilities, child care facili-

ties, jails/detention facili-
ties, and hazardous facili-
ties. The Newport Com-
prehensive Plan Section
entitled  “Administration
of the Plan” (p. 288-289)
allow amendments of this
nature if findings can be
made that there is (a) a
significant change in one
or more conclusions; or
(b) a public need for' the
change; or (c) a significant
change in community atti-
tudes’ or priorities; or (dz
a demonstrated confiic
with another plan goal or
olicy that has a higher
priority; or (e) a change
in a statute or statewide
agency plan. Revisions
must comply with appli-
cable Statewide Plannin
Goals. Further, Newpol
Municipal Code Section
: 10, requires the
Planning Commission find
that the change is required
by public necessity and
the general welfare of the
community. The Planning
Commission makes a rec-
ommendation to the City
Council as to whether the

amendments should be
ted. Testimony and
evidence must be directed
toward the request above
or other criteria, including
criteriawithin the Com-
rehensive Plan and its
mplementing ordinances,
which the person believes
to apply to the decision.
Fallure to raise an issus
with_sufficient specificity
to afford the city and the
parties an opportunity to
respond to that issus pre-
cludes an appeal, includ-
Infg to the Land Use Board
of Appeals, based on that
Issue. Testimony may be
submitted in written or
oral form. Oral testimony
and written testimony
will be taken durlnq1 the
ublic hearing. The hear-
ng may include a report
by staff, testimony from
the agpllcan‘: and pro-
ponents, tsst-morga m
g‘ppuner'}ts,m'rebud | by
e applicant, and ques-
tions and dsliberatign by
the Planning Commission.
Written testimony sent to
the Community Develop-
ment 'Plannlnﬁ) Depart-
ment, City Hall, 169 sw
Coast Hwy, Newport, OR
97365, must be received
y 5:00 p.m. the day of
the hearing to be Iincluded
as part of the hearing or
must be personally pre-
sented durin,

FORM
LB-1

NOTICE OF BUDG

A public meeting of the NRFPD
(Governing body)

NEWPORT FIRE DEPARTMENT STATION 3200

{Location)

will be held on .

Oreg:

fiscal year beginning July 1, 20 19 as approved by the

(Mur

the budget is presented below. A copy of the budget may be inspecte:

between the hours of _9:00 3 m. and S
budget is for an X] annual; [] biennial budget period. This budget was

different than the preceding year. If different, the major changes and the
Possible combination with Newport Fire Department

Contact Telephone number

Peter Boris, Pres ( 541 )867-371¢

at the public Eearlng. The

proposed code amend-

ments, additional mate-

rial for the amendments,

and any othelr, material in
e

FINANCIAL SUMMARY~

TOTAL OF ALL FUNDS

the file d
or a copy purchased at
the Newport Community
Development Departmenit
Baddrass above). Contact

errick Tokos, Commu-
nl%r Devalogénent Director
(541} 574-0626 (address
above). A3 (91-03]

E

PUBLIC SUMMONS
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF THE STATE OF
OREGON FOR  LIN-
COLN COUNTY: Juvenile
Department. In_the Mat-
ter of RAVEN SKY ROB-
ERTSON and RIVER RAIN
ROBERTSON. Children.
Case Nos., 20JU01919
and 20JU01920 PUB-
LISHED SUMMONS. TO:
McKenna  Robertson:
IN THE NAME _OF THE
STATE OF OREGON:
Petitions have been filed
asking the court to termi-
nate your parental rights
to the above-named
children for the purpose
of placing the children
for adoEt on. YOU ARE
REQUIRED TO PERSON-
ALLY APPEAR BEFORE
the Lincoln County Court
at 225 West Olive Strest,
Newﬁort. Oregon 97365,
on the 5th day of MEK
2020 at 8:30 a.m. to admi
or deny the allegations
of the petitions and to
personally appear at any
subsequent court-ordered
hearing.  YOU MUST
APPEﬂR

YOUR ATTORNEY ALSO
APPEARS, This summons
is published pursuant to
the order of the circuit
court judge of the above-
entitled ~ court, dated
March 24, 2020. The order
directs that this summons
be ﬂubllshad once each
week for three consecu-
tive weeks, making three
publications in all, in a
published  newspaper
of general circulation in
Lincoln County. Date of
first publication: April 3,
2020; Date of last pub-

lication: April 17, 2020.
NOTICE g D THE

ORDERED  HEARING
the court may proceed
In ¥}our absence without
further notice and TERMI-
NATE_YOUR PARENTAL
RIGHTS to the above-
named children either ON

1. Beginning Fund Balance/Net WOrking Capital .............ewrvveemnrreioesesneronnd

2. Fees, Licenses, Permits, Fines, Assessments & Other Service Charges...

3. Federal, State & all Other Grants, Gifts, Allocations & Donations....

4. Revenue from Bonds & Other Debt

5. Interfund Transfers/Internal Service Reimbursements

8. All Other Resources Except Current Year Property Taxes

7. Current Year Property Taxes Estimated to be Received

8. Total Resources—add lines 1 through 7
FINANCIAL SUMMARY —REQUIREMENTS

9. Personnel Services
10. Materials and Services
11. Capital Outlay
12. Debt Service
13. Interfund Transfers
14. Contingencies
15. Special Payments
16. Unappropriated Ending Balance and Reserved for Future Expenditure ...
17. Total Requirements —add lines 9 through 16 -

FINANCIAL SUMMARY — REQUIREMENTS AND FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EI
Name of Organizational Unit or Program
FTE for Unit or Program
Name CITY OF NEWPORT

PROPERTY TAX Lk
Rate or Amoun'
Permanent Rate Levy ............ (Rate Limit.9634 Per $1000y 24311
Local Option Levy
Levy for General Obligation Bonds

THE DATE SPECIFIED IN
THIS SUMMONS OR ON
AFUTURE DATE, and may
make such orders and
:Iake such action as autho-

ATTORNEY IN THIS
R. If you are cur-
rently représented b
an attorn%y. CONTAC
YOUR ATTOR M
DIATELY UPON RECEIV-
ING THIS NOTICE. Your
Ersvnous attorney may not
e representing you in
this matter. IF CAN-
NOT AFFORD TO HIRE
AN ATTORNEY and yoy
meet the state's financial
gutdellnes, you are enti-
led to have an attorney
appointed for you at state
expense. TO REQUEST
AT_lr?OINTMENT OF AN

IMMEDIATELY CONTAGT
the Lincoln County Juve-

350

nile Court, 225 West Olive
Street, Newport, Oregon
97365, phone number
(541) 265-4236, between
the ‘hours of 8:00 a.m.
and 5:00 p.m. for further
information. IF YOU WISH
TO HIRE AN ATTORNEY,
please retain one as soon
as possible and have the
attorney present at the
above Hearing. If you need
help finding “an “attorney,
guu may call the Oregon

tate Bar's Lawger Refer-

2) If ¥ou contest the peti-
on, the court will sched-
ule & hearing on the alle-
gations of the petition and
order you to appear per-
sonally and may sched-

ule other hearings related
to the petition and order
rou to apkear gersonall 3
F_YOU ARE ORDERE

TO APPEAR, YOU MUST
APPEAR PERSONALLY
IN THE COURTROOM,
UNLESS THE COURT
HAS GRANTED YOU AN
EXCEPTION IN ADVANCE
UNDER ORS 419B.918
TO APPEAR BY OTHER
MEANS  INCLUDING,

Michelle Branam, Assis-
tant Attorney General,
Department of Justice,
1162 Court Street NE,
Salem, OR 97301-4096,
Phone: $503) 934-4400,
ISSUED this 26th day of
March, 2020. Issued by:
Michelle Branam #032737
Assistant Attomez Gen-
eral. A3 §10 A17 (88-17)

e G

123



124

CITY OF NEWPORT phone: 541.574.0629
169 SW COASTHWY fax: 541.574.0644
NEWPORT, OREGON 97365

http://newportoregon.gov

COAST GUARD CITY, USA mombetsu, japan, sister city

PUBLIC NOTICE OF
POTENTIAL LAND USE CHANGE

This is to notify you that the City of Newport has proposed land use regulations
that may affect the permissible uses of your property and other properties.

Specifically, the City is considering an ordinance that would prohibit new essential facilities
and special occupancy structures in areas likely to be inundated by a tsunami attributed to a
Cascadia Subduction Zone Earthquake. Essential facilities include hospitals, police/fire
stations, and emergency preparedness centers. Special occupancy structures that would be
prohibited include large schools, assisted/senior living facilities, day care facilities, child care

facilities, jails and detention facilities, and hazardous facilities. The proposed changes are
contained in draft Ordinance Number 2166.

On Monday, April 13, 2020, at 7:00 pm or soon thereafter, the City of Newport Planning
Commission will conduct a public hearing regarding the adoption of Ordinance Number 2166.

The hearing will be held in the Newport City Hall Council Chambers, located at 169 SW Coast
Highway, Newport, OR 97365.

The city has determined that adoption of this ordinance may affect the permissible uses of
your property, and other properties in the affected zone, and may change the value of your
property. Newport Municipal Code Section 14.36.010 allows city land use regulations to be
amended by the City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning Commission, when it is
determined that such changes are required by public necessity and the general welfare of the
community. These are the approval criteria for the proposed land use regulations, and
testimony and evidence must be directed toward these criteria or other criteria, including
criteria within the Newport Comprehensive Plan and its implementing ordinances, which
persons believe apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue with sufficient specificity to
afford the city and the parties an opportunity to respond to an issue precludes an appeal,
including to the Land Use Board of Appeals, based on that issue.

Testimony may be submitted in written or oral form. Oral testimony and written testimony will
be taken during the course of the public hearing. The hearing may include a report by staff,
and testimony from proponents and opponents to draft Ordinance Number 2166. Written
testimony sent to the Community Development (Planning) Department, City Hall, 169 SW
Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365, must be received by 5:00 p.m. the day of the hearing to be

included as part of the hearing or must be personally presented during testimony at the public
hearing.

Draft Ordinance Number 2166, and related materials, are available for inspection and may be
purchased for reasonable cost at the Community Development Department, Newport City
Hall, located at 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport Oregon 97365. For additional information
concerning draft Ordinance Number 2166, you may contact Derrick Tokos, City of Newport

Community Development Director, at 541-574-0626 or d.tokos@newportoregon.gov.
Testimony may also be submitted via this email address.




Lo
N

-
CITY OF NEWPORT phone: 541.574.0629
169 SW COAST HWY fax: 541.574.0644

NEWPORT, OREGON 97365 http://newportoregon.gov

COAST GUARD CITY, USA

mombetsu, japan, sister city

PUBLIC NOTICE OF
POTENTIAL LAND USE CHANGE

This is to notify you that the City of Newport has proposed land use regulations
that may affect the permissible uses of your property and other properties.

Specifically, the City is considering an ordinance that would prohibit new essential facilities
and special occupancy structures in areas likely to be inundated by a tsunami attributed to a
Cascadia Subduction Zone Earthquake. Essential facilities include hospitals, police/fire
stations, and emergency preparedness centers. Special occupancy structures that would be
prohibited include large schools, assisted/senior living facilities, day care facilities, child care
facilities, jails and detention facilities, and hazardous facilities. The proposed changes are
contained in draft Ordinance Number 2166.

On Monday, April 13, 2020, at 7:00 pm or soon thereafter, the City of Newport Planning
Commission will conduct a public hearing regarding the adoption of Ordinance Number 2166.
The hearing will be held in the Newport City Hall Council Chambers, located at 169 SW Coast
Highway, Newport, OR 97365.

The city has determined that adoption of this ordinance may affect the permissible uses of
your property, and other properties in the affected zone, and may change the value of your
property. Newport Municipal Code Section 14.36.010 allows city land use regulations to be
amended by the City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning Commission, when it is
determined that such changes are required by public necessity and the general welfare of the
community. These are the approval criteria for the proposed land use regulations, and
testimony and evidence must be directed toward these criteria or other criteria, including
criteria within the Newport Comprehensive Plan and its implementing ordinances, which
persons believe apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue with sufficient specificity to
afford the city and the parties an opportunity to respond to an issue precludes an appeal,
including to the Land Use Board of Appeals, based on that issue.

Testimony may be submitted in written or oral form. Oral testimony and written testimony will
be taken during the course of the public hearing. The hearing may include a report by staff,
and testimony from proponents and opponents to draft Ordinance Number 2166. Written
testimony sent to the Community Development (Planning) Department, City Hall, 169 SW
Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365, must be received by 5:00 p.m. the day of the hearing to be

included as part of the hearing or must be personally presented during testimony at the public
hearing.

Draft Ordinance Number 2166, and related materials, are available for inspection and may be
purchased for reasonable cost at the Community Development Department, Newport City
Hall, located at 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport Oregon 97365. For additional information
concerning draft Ordinance Number 2166, you may contact Derrick Tokos, City of Newport
Community Development Director, at 541-574-0626 or d.tokos@newportoregon.gov.
Testimony may also be submitted via this email address.




YAQUINA BAY MEM ASSN
PO BOX 527
NEWPORT, OR 97365

YECK FRED ARTHUR TRUSTEE
PO BOX 352
NEWPORT, OR 97365

YENCHIK RONNIE J &
YENCHIK STEPHANIE R
818 NE GRANT ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

YOUNG JONATHAN B &
YOUNG SANDRAF
4742 LIBERTY RD S #260
SALEM, OR 97302

ZANDER SHAWN &
ZANDER SARAH
PO BOX 1312
SILVERTON, OR 97381

ZAPHIROPOULOS LEIGH &
MCCORNACK BRYN A
PO BOX 416
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

ZIEMKOWSKI JAMES A TRUSTEE &
ZIEMKOWSKI BETTY L TRUSTEE
PO BOX 326
IDYLLWILD, CA 92549

ZLATEV TINKO &
ALESKSANDROVA ANET
519 NE 20TH PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

YECK ERNEST
PO BOX 1256
NEWPORT, OR 97365

YECK FRED ARTHUR TRUSTEE &
JINCKS DAVID A
PO BOX 352
NEWPORT, OR 97365

YOST PROPERTIES LLC
189 LIBERTY ST NE
SALEM, OR 97301

YOUNG ROBERT B
6995 NW DIAMOND PL
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

ZANEVELD J RONALD V &
ZANEVELD JACQUELINE L
3835 NW GLEN EDEN DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

ZAWALSKI RODNEY M TSTEE &
ZAWALSKI THERESA LYNN TSTEE
6735 GLADYS AVE
OTTER ROCK, OR 97369

ZIMMERMAN CRAIG D (TOD) &
ZIMMERMAN MARCIA (TOD)
PO BOX 74
MCNEAL, AZ 85617

Exhibit “A”
Property Owners Mailing Labels
File 1-CP-18

O
N
—

YECK FRED A TRUSTEE
PO BOX 352
NEWPORT, OR 97365

YELTRAB FAMILY LLC
845 SW 12TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

YOUNG JAMES &
YOUNG JOYCE
1781 CRESCENT AVE
EUGENE, OR 97408

YOUNG RUSSELL W &
YOUNG WENDI A
2845 NE ILER ST

NEWPORT, OR 97365

ZANEVELD J RONALD V TRUSTEE &
ZANEVELD JACQUELINE L TRUSTEE
3835 NW GLEN EDEN DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

ZAYTSEV LEONID
17496 SE HEMRICK RD
BORING, OR 97009

ZIRGES MALCOLMH &
ZIRGES GLORIAM
PO BOX 938
NEWPORT, OR 97365



1505 NW SPRING STREET LLC
1143 MANOR DR
SONOMA, CA 95476

4584 S COASTLLC
4354 S COAST HWY
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

ABRUZZINI LAURA TRUSTEE
PO BOX 5963
EUGENE, OR 97405

ADAMS MARSHALL G &
ADAMS JUDITH A
1110 NW 30TH ST

CORVALLIS, OR 97330

ADAMS THOMAS J TSTEE &
ADAMS SHIRLE TSTEE
106 SE VIEW DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ADLER MICHAEL P
1390 SEA RIDGE LN
GEARHART, OR 97138

AGATE BEACH CONSTRUCTION INC
PO BOX 39
SEAL ROCK, OR 97376

AGNELLO MARK S TRUSTEE
158 NATIONAL ST
SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060

ALAINE TREVOR
18257 SW SANTORO DR
BEAVERTON, OR 97007

ALTA VISTA LAND LLC
ATTN JOSEPH JENG
674 GIRALDA DR
LOS ALTOS, CA 94024

224 INVESTMENTS LLC
ATTN DOUBLE S FOODS LLC
302 SHELLY ST #2
SPRINGFIELD, OR 97477

STH STREET SHED LLC
1609 SW JOSHUA ST
PORTLAND, OR 97219

ABUFADIL SAMER &

ABUFADIL MIYOKO MUNEYUKI

1033 SW ARDMORE AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97205

ADAMS RITAL &

CRABTREE BEVERLY J & KRAUSE

JOHNH
513 SE POWELL AVE
CORVALLIS, OR 97333

ADD LLC
PO BOX 225
LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97034

ADOLF DAVID D &
ADOLF DARCI L
428 NW 21ST PL

NEWPORT, OR 97365

AGATE BEACH LAND CO
ADDRESS UNKNOWN,

AIRTHERM CORPORATION
PO BOX 426
LONGVIEW, WA 98632

ALLEN WILLIAM VYRLE Hll

% CLIFTON TERESA | CONT

1232 SHOT POUCH RD
BLODGETT, OR 97326

AMAISMEIER LOUISE B
1201 HORN LN
EUGENE, OR 97404

N~
(qV}
i

4354 S COASTLLC
4354 S COAST HWY
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

628 BAY LLC
PO BOX 1172
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ACOCK CHARLES W &
ACOCK MICHELE M
3142 RESERVOIR RD

WALLA WALLA, WA 99362

ADAMS ROBERT R TSTEE &
ADAMS MARY H TSTEE & ATTN SUSAN
STUTZMAN
2827 45TH AVE SE
OLYMPIA, WA 98501

ADKINS GARY W &
ADKINS JEANETTE K
230 TANGLEWOOD LN

SELAH, WA 98942

ADRANG! BAHRAM
PO BOX 83731
PORTLAND, OR 97283

AGATE SHORELINE CONDO
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
105 NW 45TH
NEWPORT, OR 97365

AKINS GLENDA L TSTEE
625 NW ALPINE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ALLUMBAUGH FRANK
PO BOX 1521
NEWPORT, OR 97365

AMARANDOS ANNA &
AMARANDOS MARK
25292 ABILENE CT
LAGUNA HILLS, CA 92653



ANDERSON DENNIS B
4263 S COAST HWY
SPACE #1
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

ANDRES VALENTINO W JR
PO BOX 1583
VANCOUVER, WA 98668

ANHEUSER BUSCH LLC
ATTN TAX DEPT WARREN LANCE
ONE BUSCH PL
ST LOUIS, MO 63118

APMANN ELIZABETH M
2 STONY CREEKLN
HURLEY, NY 12443

ARMSTRONG SUSAN K
193 NW 70TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ASSOC OF UNIT OWNERS OF THE
KENNEDY BLDG CONDO, THE
526 NW COAST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ATKINSON THOMAS E
PO BOX 1301
ALBANY, OR 97321

AYLSTOCK RALPHH &
AYLSTOCK RITA K
PO BOX 403
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

BAILEY ROBERT F &
BAILEY KATHIE L
PO BOX 354
AMITY, OR 97101

BAKER CHARLES E JR TSTEE &
BAKER CHERYL J TSTEE
460 NW MERRIE DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

ANDERSON JILLANE L
412 SE 4TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ANDREWS JUDY A &
ROSS GARY P
587 SLOCUST ST
SISTERS, OR 97759

ANNICHIARICO JOHN &
ANNICHIARICO COLLEEN
66290 BLACK HORSE LN

BEND, OR 97701

ARCHWAY PLACE CONDOMINIUM
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
PO BOX 800
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

ARVIZU ERNEST M TSTEE &
STEELE LINDA KAY TSTEE
4216 E DESERT SKY CT
CAVE CREEK, AZ 85331

ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS OF
EMBARCADERO CONDOMINIUMS INC

1000 SE BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

AVERY TOM
3550 NW GLEN EDEN DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

BAILEY CLIFFORD A &
BAILEY JUDITH A
14361 EDENBERRY DR
LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97035

BAIN WILLIAM D & CATHERINE J
4910 NW WOODY WAY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BAKER DAVID
1000 SE BAY BLVD M-1
NEWPORT, OR 97365

[e 0]
N
—

ANDRE DONALD W &
ANDRE JEANNIE L
PO BOX 1818
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ANE FORESTS OF OREGON INC
ATTN HFI CONSULTANTS
PO BOX 1929
BATTLE GROUND, WA 98604

ANTHONY ROGER D &
ANTHONY LISA K
4224 SE LAMBERT ST
PORTLAND, OR 97206

ARMITAGE WILLIAM TODD &
ARMITAGE BARCLAY MARC
21288 S LELAND RD
OREGON CITY, OR 97045

ASSOC OF UNIT OWNERS OF

COURTYARD COTTAGES CONDO,THE
713 NW HIGH ST

NEWPORT, OR 97365

ATKINSON KATHLEEN M TSTEE &
ATKINSON KATHLEEN M TSTEE &
ATKINSON NIEL B JR
140 NW 48TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

AXEN DOUGLAS J &
AXEN SANDRA K
6447 HOGAN DR N
KEIZER, OR 97303

BAILEY HAROLD RICHARD
91909 PRAIRIE RD
JUNCTION CITY, OR 97448

BAKALISH ROBERT &
BAKALISH SUSAN K
507 NW ALPINE ST #206
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BAKER JASON L &
BAKER JUDY L
11160 SW EDEN CT
TIGARD, OR 97223



BAKER JOHNH &
BAKER SANDRA K
6300 SE ROETHE RD
MILWAUKIE, OR 97267

BALDWIN SCOTT G
412 N WADDILL
MCKINNEY, TX 75069

BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON
ATTN ESCROW DEPT SELECT
PORTFOLIO SERV INC
3815 S WEST TEMPLE
SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84115

BARNACLE INVESTMENTS LLC
2140 NORWOOD ST
EUGENE, OR 97401

BARRETT THOMAS M
5210 SE THIESSEN RD
MILWAUKIE, OR 97267

BARTON RUTH CLAIRE
862 SE 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BATES ENTERPRISES il LLC
6706 NE 107TH ST
VANCOUVER, WA 98686

BAY KNOLL HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION THE
1212 SW LEE
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BAYWOOD MANOR CONDO
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
161 HIGH ST SE STE 122
SALEM, OR 97308

BEACHLAND ESTATES CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS ATTN

LINCOLN COUNTY
225 W OLIVE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BAKER JOHN H, TOD &
BAKER SANDRA K, TOD
6300 SE ROETHE RD
MILWAUKIE, OR 97267

BALL EARNESTINE E &
BALL GARY LEE
PO BOX 624
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BARKER KELLY O &
PIAZZA CATHY M
540 SW 4TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BARNES BRIAN R & SHERRILL D
85290 RIDGETOP DR
EUGENE, OR 97405

BARTLETT DEBRA A &

WARDIN JOHN F, ETAL

21510 SW JOHNSON RD
WEST LINN, OR 97068

BARTOW PROPERTIES LLC
PO BOX 88
COLTON, OR 97017

BAUMBACH JOHN L &
KAREN
496 SOUTH 100 WEST
JEROME, ID 83338

BAY VIEW CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
833 13TH ST SW
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BEACH HOME CONDO
AT SOUTHSHORE ASSN OF UNIT
OWNERS
220 SW 62ND ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BEAGLEY QUENTINL &
DIECKHOFF SUSAN D
2193 WISCONSIN ST
EUGENE, OR 97402

129

BAKER JON P &

BAKER LYNND J

38695 RIVER DR
LEBANON, OR 97355

BALOSKY PATRICIA A
4445 N COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BARKER PATRICIA A &
FELTNER JANICE C
4132 NW CHEROKEE LN
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BARR ROBERT D TRUSTEE &
BARR BERYL L TRUSTEE
590 E PARKWAY CT
BOISE, ID 83706

BARTON ALMINE
PO BOX 300
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BARUAH BUBUL &
BARUAH MRIDUSMITA
37067 HOLLY ST
FREMONT, CA 94536

BAY BLVD LLC
ATTN CHARLOTTE BOXER
4627 N CONGRESS AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97217

BAYSTONE CONDO
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
822 SE 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BEACH HOME CONDO AT
SOUTHSHORE
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
220 SW 62ND
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BEAN JOSEPH W TRUSTEE &
MUNGER KAREN L TRUSTEE
435 CHESHIRE FARM LN
ST LOUIS, MO 63141



BEARD DUANE G TRUSTEE &
BEARD SHEIRY T TRUSTEE
2342 TUSCANA AVE S
SALEM, OR 97306

BECKLEY FRED C TSTEE
2500 W 29TH AVE
EUGENE, OR 97405

BEEMER RICHARD K &
BEEMER DORIS K
2545 NE DOUGLAS ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BEGGS LARRY DEAN &
BEGGS MARY ANN
409 SE SCENIC LOOP
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BELVEAL BLANE &
BELVEAL DIXIE
PO BOX 2067
LEBANON, OR 97355

BENNETT STEVEN G &
BENNETT MARLA J
2255 DAWNWOOD DR
PHILOMATH, OR 97370

BENSON ROYR &
BENSON PAMELA C
PO BOX 690
GREEN VALLEY, AZ 85622

BERMAN ELI &
OZ LINDA
5379 RUETTE DE MER
SAN DIEGO, CA 92130

BERTULEIT MARGARET
354 SE 2ND ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BICE DALLAS FRANKLIN TRUSTEE &
BICE MARGARET FRANCES TRUSTEE

PO BOX 852
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BECHARD STEVEN J &
BECHARD SANDRA K
1443 SE COLUMBIA WAY
VANCOUVER, WA 98661

BEDLE JANET A
2217 GRAND AVE
EVERETT, WA 98201

BEEMER RICHARD K TRUSTEE

2545 NE DOUGLAS ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BELCHEV HRISTO B &
IGLESIAS TRICIA L
4801 W MARCONI AVE
GLENDALE, AZ 85306

BENDEL SHANE L &
BENDEL AMY L
3409 SW CHESTNUT ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BENNEY ROGER &
CRANER SHERYL
570 EDGEWOOD DR
SILVERTON, OR 97381

BENTLEY PATRICIA A
3110 SE 109TH AV
PORTLAND, OR 97266

BERTULEIT DONALD J
354 SE 2ND ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BERTULEIT MARGARET TRUSTEE
354 SE 2ND ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BIG CREEK POINT ASSOCIATION AWLP

ATTN CASCADE MGMT INC
13221 SW 68TH PKWY
STE 310
PORTLAND, OR 97223

130

BECK WILLIAM J
41266 MANITAU RD SE
STAYTON, OR 97383

BEDNARZ WARREN C TRUSTEE &
BEDNARZ LINDA TRUSTEE
PO BOX 2724
SALEM, OR 97308

BEERS PATRICK R TSTEE &
BEERS LORI G TSTEE
PO BOX 202
RUFUS, OR 97050

BELL MICHAEL F TSTEE &
BENTLEY BELL JANET G TSTEE &
SMITH ERIC | & HAWKES JESSICA

306 TRIPMONT CT

SIMPSONVILLE, SC 29680

BENISON FRANK J
19 LINDENWOOD DR
LITTLETON, CO 80120

BENSON JONATHAN A &
KENYON BENSON SONYA J
PO BOX 1474
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BERGIN WILLIAM J
475 SE 35TH ST
UNIT B-12
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

BERTULEIT DONALD J TRUSTEE
354 SE 2ND ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BEWLEY LAURA SUE
393 NW CRESWELL LN
ALBANY, OR 97321

BIGGI CONSTRUCTION LLC &
BIGGI JOHN S JR
11605 SW NORMANDY LN
WILSONVILLE, OR 97070



BISHOP ANGELA
PO BOX 946
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BLACKTAIL DEVELOPMENT LLC
3330 HAYDEN BRIDGE RD
SPRINGFIELD, OR 97477

BLAKESLEE PROPERTIES LLC
PO BOX 1450
SHERWOOD, OR 97140

BOHLENDER RONALD D TRUSTEE &
BOHLENDER LAURA J TRUSTEE
27940 KENNEFICK RD
GALT, CA 95632

BOSTON TIMBER OPPORTUN LLC
ATTN HANCOCK FOREST MGMT
17700 SE MILL PLAIN BLVD
STE 180
VANCOUVER, WA 98683

BOWDLE KEITH S &
BOWDLE SALLY J
2645 NW ZINFANDEL LOOP
MCMINNVILLE, OR 97128

BOXER CHARLOTTE A
4627 N CONGRESS AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97217

BRADLEY RAYMOND J
700 LAWRENCE ST
EUGENE, OR 97401

BRANDT STEPHEN B
6970 NW CABERNET PL
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

BRATENG KHLOELLA A
PO BOX 483
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

BIXLER TONY S &
BIXLER ASHLEY M
3537 SE DOGWOOD ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

BLADINE PHILIP N &
BLADINE MARGARET G
PO BOX 1487
MCMINNVILLE, OR 97128

BLAKESLEE WILLIAM C &
BLAKESLEE SHEILA K
PO BOX 1450
SHERWOOD, OR 97140

BOOTHBY JOAN A
PO BOX 2143
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BOTTOMLY THERESE A &
FRANCIS MICHAEL S
3740 SW DOSCH RD

PORTLAND, OR 97201

BOWMAN JERROLD W &
BOWMAN SYLVIA D
8104 NW ARBORETUM RD
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

BOXER CHARLOTTE A
4627 N CONGRESS AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97217

BRAINARD KIT E TRUSTEE &
BRAINARD JOANNE E TRUSTEE
205 SW 58TH ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

BRANIGAN B D REVOCABLE TR &
BRANIGAN BARBARA DIANE TRUSTEE
170 NW73RD CT
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BRAXBEACH LLC
PO BOX 240
NEWPORT, OR 97365

—
™
i

BLACKBURN MICHAEL A &
BLACKBURN PATRICIA L
PO BOX 2568
LEBANON, OR 97355

BLAIR SHARON &
HETH MICHELLE & WANKER MARK
21373 JOHNSON RD
WEST LINN, OR 97068

BLICKENSDERFER ROBERT TRSTEE &
BLICKENSDERFER SARA TRUSTEE
1605 27TH AV SW
ALBANY, OR 97321

BORNE DONNEL &
BORNE VICKIE L
PO BOX 504
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BOWDEN RONALD W &
BOWDEN KERI L
6241 SW LURADEL ST
PORTLAND, OR 97219

BOWMAN MERLIN G TTEE
3263 SANDALWOOD LN NW
SALEM, OR 97304

BRACE ROBERT A COTSTEE &
CHEUNG CECILIAY COTSTEE
2350 NW SAVIER
#414
PORTLAND, OR 97210

BRAMBLEY MICHAEL R &
PHILLIPS BRAMBLEY ANITA C
330 ADAIR DR
RICHLAND, WA 99352

BRASSEUR ERIC A
2910 SW BRANT ST
UNIT L
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BRAXLING ARTHUR &
BRAXBEACH LLC
PO BOX 240
NEWPORT, OR 97365



BREADEN BARBARAL &
BREADEN RONALD P
2155 DEVOS ST
EUGENE, OR 97402

BRICE MOUNT J COTSTEE &
BRICE JANET L COTSTEE
1188 HAWK CT NW
SALEM, OR 97304

BRIGGS LINDAR
751 NW1ST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BRINGETTO LOIS
161 NW 73RD CT
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BROOKSHIRE PATRICIA
PO BOX 1805
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BROWN DUSTIN &
PERTH CLAY
PO BOX 410125
BIG WATER, UT 84741

BROWN LARRY M &
BROWN SHARON S
13275 SW WHISTLING WAY
BEAVERTON, OR 97008

BROWN TAILS LLC
PO BOX 550
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BRUSSELBACK LON &
BRUSSELBACK WENDY
255 NW COAST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BUCHKO GERALD
PO BOX 697
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

BREKHUS JODI ELIZABETH
0342 SW DAKOTA ST
PORTLAND, OR 97239

BRICE ROBERT M TESTAMENT TST &

MCMANUS DENNIS P JR TRUSTEE
PO BOX 1802
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BRIGL RANDY &
BRIGL LORENA
184 73RD PL
SPRINGFIELD, OR 97478

BROKKEN DONNA F TRUSTEE
2895 SW FAIRMONT DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97333

BROOKVIEW CONDOMINIUMS
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
326 SW 12TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BROWN GREG T &
CHAPPELL JASON GAGE
69215 MARTINGALE
SISTERS, OR 97759

BROWN RICCI &
SHAO FENGZHI
1147 NE NEWPORT HEIGHTS DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BRUNTLETT CATHERINE L
PROPERTIES LLC, THE
6012 N ALBERTA
SPOKANE, WA 99205

BRUTKE ROBERT W TRUSTEE &
BRUTKE VICKIE J TRUSTEE
139 SE J ST
SUITE B
GRANTS PASS, OR 97526

BUCKLEY D PAUL
1507 CRESTVIEW DR
SILVERTON, OR 97381

AN
™
—

BRESNAN PATRICK S TSTEE &

BRESNAN ELIZABETH F TSTEE

12338 FIRST FORK RD
LOS GATOS, CA 95033

BRIDGER JIMMY JOE &
BRIDGER VICKI JO
17833 E LOYOLA AVE
AURORA, CO 80013

BRIM RICHARD &
BRIM JUDY
370 SW 29TH ST UNITD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BROLINCOLLC
ATTN PRICE ANNE
12844 SE 235TH PL

KENT, WA 98031

BROWN DARRELL T &
BROWN JAN M
4306 KATY LN

EUGENE, OR 97404

BROWN KENNETH
518 SW SMITH CT
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BROWN STEVEN R TRUSTEE &
BROWN MARIAN S TRUSTEE
PO BOX 550
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BRUSSELBACK LAWRENCE J &
BRUSSELBACK WENDY C
255 NW COAST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BRYAN DIANE E
522 SW PARK ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BUNGAY JOHN &
BUNGAY BARBARA
PO BOX 1448
SANTA FE, NM 87504



BUNGAY PROPERTIES LLC
PO BOX 1448
SANTA FE, NM 87504

BURKE MATTHEW JOSEPH
248 SW 29TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BUROKER RUTH L
612 EAST FRONT
BLOOMINGTON, IL 61701

BYLUND JUTTA G TRUSTEE &
BYLUND BENE
3663 MAHLON AVE
EUGENE, OR 97401

CAILLIER BRUCE
6005 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

CALE DAVIDR &
CALE JULIE S
2197 MAIER LN
ALBANY, OR 97321

CAMPBELL GARY L TRUSTEE &
CAMPBELL ELIZABETH | TRUSTEE
6050 CONCORD DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

CAPRI DAVID J G TSTEE &
DOUGHERTY CAPRI JILL M TTEE
PO BOX 1022
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CARLON HEATHER A PROP LLC
1222 W WARN WAY
SPOKANE, WA 99208

CARLSON MICHAEL &
CARLSON CANDACE
552 W YELLOW SPRINGS
FAIRFIELD RD
YELLOW SPRINGS, OH 45387

BUNKER BRENT &
BUNKER PAMELA
1609 NW OCEANVIEW DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BURKETT MICHAEL J TSTEE &
LARSON DEBORAH A R TSTEE
PO BOX 1329
ALLYN, WA 98524

BUTLER JAYCEEL &
BUTLER KATIE E
14645 N 90TH LN

PEORIA, AZ 85381

BYRD KATHERINE M TRUSTEE &
MCCLARNAN JOSEPH H TRUSTEE
260 WASHINGTON ST
LEBANON, OR 97355

CAILLIER BRUCE W TSTEE &
CAILLIER SHARON M TSTEE
5820 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

CALLAHAN MICHAEL DAVID
6018 SW CUPOLA DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CAMPOLA RHONDA M
156 SW COAST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CAPRI DUSTIN &
CAPRI AMANDA
747 SW 13TH
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CARLSEN MICHAEL BRADLEY &
CARLSEN ALICE KRISTINA
90531 DIAMOND RIDGE LOOP
COBURG, OR 97408

CARMODY BONNIE
261 SE VIEW DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

133

BURGER JERRY
687 NW 3RD ST
PRINEVILLE, OR 97754

BURNS STEPHEN M TRUSTEE &
BURNS CHRISTIE N TRUSTEE
2466 SE KENDAL CT
NEWPORT, OR 97365

BUUS LESLIE TRUSTEE &
DARLING BUUS DAWN TRUSTEE
5202 WAINWRIGHT CT
RIVERSIDE, CA 92507

C&L INVESTMENT COMPANY
45021 COUGAR CIRCLE
FREMONT, CA 94539

CAILLIER BRUCE WARREN TTEE &
CAILLIER SHARON MARIE TTEE &
CAILLIERBW & S M TSTEES
5820 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

CAMPBELL DAVID R TSTEE
1560 E 3010 S
SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84106

CANNON COURT LLC
PO BOX 1555
MCCALL, ID 83638

CAPSHAW BRADLEY L &
SCHNEIDER CAPSHAW LINDA
353 NW 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CARLSON JULIA A TSTEE
2094 MUSKET ST
EUGENE, OR 97408

CARMODY KEVIN
7 PREMIUM POINT LN
BROOKEFIELD, CT 6804



CARNE JAMES EDMUND TRUSTEE
5790 SW BARNACLE CT
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

CARSON MARK &
HERBERT KATHRYN E
145 NW 33RD ST
UNIT A5
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CARVER BRENDA S TSTEE
543 NW ALPINE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CASTLE THOMAS
6034 SW CUPOLA DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

CENTRAL LINCOLN PUD
ATTN BRIAN BARTH MGR ACCT &
FINANCE
PO BOX 1126
201 NW 52ND ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CHAN HOMESTEAD LLC
ATTN DAVID K CHAN & LEANN CHENG
4402 NW SENECA CT
CAMAS, WA 98607

CHAPMAN LUCINDA
PO BOX 206
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CHENOWETH WILLIAM M
626 NW ALPINE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CHUNG DONG SUN
220 SW 60TH LOOP
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

CITY OF NEWPORT
ATTN MINOR J CHRISTOPHER
236 W OLIVE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CARPLES JEREMY &
CARPLES JULIA
2204 SE 60TH AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97215

CARTER JOSHUA STEVEN
46589 MCKENZIE HWY
VIDA, OR 97485

CASCADIA RISING LLC
PO BOX 1167
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CAVELL ROBERT B &
CAVELL LORIR
1900 FRONT ST NE
SALEM, OR 97301

CHADWICK DOUGLAS ALAN
334 NW HIGH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CHAPIN DONALD D &
CHAPIN LINDA L
6715 OTTER CREST LOOP
OTTER ROCK, OR 97369

CHAPMAN WILLIAM T
PO BOX 206
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CHIPMAN LAURA
ATTN CHIPMAN VICTOR
PO BOX 359
COTTAGE GROVE, OR 97424

CHURCH LDS
REAL EST DIV
50 E NORTH TEMPLE
SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84150

CITY OF NEWPORT
% LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DIST
LEASE
PO BOX 1110
NEWPORT, OR 97365

<
™
—

CARRENO CARY D
2721 ST CLOUD OAKS DR
VALRICO, FL 33594

CARUTHERS NORMAN E TSTEE &
CARUTHERS DALE AMY TSTEE
4900 INTREPID DR
LAS VEGAS, NV 89130

CASE FLYNN D TRUSTEE
PO BOX 5639
SALEM, OR 97304

CAYO NOEL ESTATE
ATTN SHAWN CAYO
1519 18TH ST
OREGON CITY, OR 97045

CHAMBERLAIN CHARLES CRAIG &
CHAMBERLAIN MARCIA
12305 MACINTOSH ST
APPLE VALLEY, CA 92308

CHAPMAN JOHN W &
CHAPMAN AMY B
357 SE 35TH ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

CHEN MEI DENG TRUSTEE
1130 NE 7TH DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CHRISTENSEN CYNTHIA A TRUSTEE
8710 CARDWELL HILL DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

CITY OF NEWPORT
CITY MANAGER
169 SW COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CITY OF NEWPORT
% NEWPORT SHRIMP CO, LESSEE
PO BOX 1230
NEWPORT, OR 97365



CITY OF NEWPORT
% OREGON COAST AQUARIUM INC
LEASE
PO BOX 2000
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CLARK HARMON &
CLARK CHERYL A
PO BOX 524
IONE, WA 99139

CLARK PATRICK
PO BOX 172
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

CLARK TRAVIS
3207 FIR OAKS DR SW
ALBANY, OR 97321

CLINE BROOKS DYANNE
217 SW 29TH
NEWPORT, OR 97365

COAST HOUSE LLC
ATTN ROBERT JACKSON
198 S EVERGREEN AVE
STAYTON, OR 97383

COLE PATRICIA LYNN
923 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT 31
NEWPORT, OR 97365

COLLETT AARONN &
COLLETT GENAE M
2555 NE DOUGLAS ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

COLVILLE ERIK EMERY
1528 EAGLE CAP ST SE
SALEM, OR 97317

CONNORS CAROL A TSTEE
1000 SE BAY BLVD
#436
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CITY OF NEWPORT ETAL
CITY MANAGER
169 SW COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CLARKKIM M &
CLARK CINDY R
1212 SW CURRY ST
PORTLAND, OR 97239

CLARK PATRICK M
PO BOX 172
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

CLEVELAND LILLIAN L COTSTEE &
SLAUGHTER JERROD M COTSTEE
725 SE SAINT ANDREWS LN
DALLAS, OR 97338

CLOEAMY L &

CLOE DANIEL J

314 SE 35TH ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

COCHRAN KURT M
PO BOX 290
SILETZ, OR 97380

COLE RONALD SCOTT TRUSTEE
9127 NW HERON ST
SEAL ROCK, OR 97376

COLLINS CHARLES R JR
PO BOX 1122
WALDPORT, OR 97394

CONNARD CHRISTIEM
1585 SW BROOKLANE DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97333

CONRAD ERICR &
CONRAD MARGARET A
295 LAFIESTA DR
LINCOLN CITY, OR 97367

135

CITY OF NEWPORT,OREGON
ATTN: MCCARTHY PENELOPE CITY
ATTORNEY
169 SW COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CLARKPAT M
DBA P C CONSTRUCTION
PO BOX 172
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

CLARK SHERYL J
1845 E CAMINO CRESTA
TUCSON, AZ 85718

CLIFFORD MICHAEL &
CLIFFORD KATRINA
2002 N 14TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

CLOPINE ROBERT W TSTEE &
CLOPINE BETSEY B TSTEE & BLUE
COAST PROPERTIES LLC
PO BOX 474
NEWPORT, OR 97365

COHEN SYDNEY TSTEE &
COHEN MARBRA A TSTEE
229 NW73RD CT
NEWPORT, OR 97365

COLGAN RAMOZ TANYA MARIE
419 NE GOLF COURSE DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

COLUMBUS CHARLES F JR
PO BOX 12653
SALEM, OR 97309

CONNET RICHARD L TRUSTEE &
CONNET MARILYN A TRUSTEE
543 S CASCADE DR
WOODBURN, OR 97071

COOK GARY L TRUSTEE &
COOK LINDA J TRUSTEE
370 SW 29TH ST UNITE
NEWPORT, OR 97365



COOK RONALD M TRUSTEE &
COOK JANICE C TRUSTEE
4515 N COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

COOPER MARKE &
COOPER NANCI L
1119 OLALLARD

TOLEDO, OR 97391

COPLEY C SIMONE
2000 NE 84TH AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97220

COUTO WAYNE G TSTEE &
COUTO KAREN M TSTEE
6005 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

COWDEN SUSAN K TSTEE
2222 HARTREY AVE
EVANSTON, IL 60201

CRAIG LISA &
CISSNA ROBERT LEE
PO BOX 3024
LONG BEACH, CA 90803

CRESPO ROBERT J &
CRESPO DEBORAH A
826 SE VISTA DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CROBAR JAMES E &
CROBAR PAMELA D
PO BOX 1556
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CROSS TIMOTHY A TRUSTEE &
CROSS MARGARET J TSTEE &
HARTUNG K A TSTEE ETAL
1102 SW RUSS LN
MCMINNVILLE, OR 97128

CROWDER DANIELLA &
CROWDER ELLIOTTD
312 SW 29TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

COOPER DAN
PO BOX 209
SCIO, OR 97374

COOPER MELISSA MARY

ATTN HEINEN MARY ISABELLA

2124 FRUITVALE RD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

COSTANZA WILLIAM J TRUSTEE &
COSTANZA TERESA D TRUSTEE

2557 PINKERTON WAY
LODI, CA 95242

COUVRETTE SUZANNE G &
BIERWAG MORELLA J
923 SE BAY BLVD #55
NEWPORT, OR 97365

COZAD KEVIN &
ANNICHIARICO
PO BOX 4104
SUNRIVER, OR 97707

CRAVEN LARRY L &
CRAVEN SUSAN K
642 SE 38TH DR
GRESHAM, OR 97080

CRESSY JEFFREY MICHAEL &
CRESSY DONNA MARIE
1124 SW MARK ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CROPPER ANDREW
12830 W APPODACA DR
LITCHFIELD PARK, AZ 85340

CROUSE KAREN &
MILLIE RODERIC
6049 N4TH PL
PHOENIX, AZ 85012

CROWE PATRICIA L
2747 NW PACIFIC PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

136

COOPER MARK &
COOPER NANCI
1119 OLALLA RD

TOLEDO, OR 97391

COOPER STANLEY M &
COOPER MARY LOU
203 CALLE ROBLE
SANTA FE, NM 87505

COUTO WAYNE G &
COUTO KAREN M
324 KOTTINGER DR
PLEASANTON, CA 94566

COWAN PATRICK O &
COWAN S JEAN
2710 NE ILER ST

NEWPORT, OR 97365

CRAIG A MORRIE &
CRAIG BARBARA C
3765 HILLTOP DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97333

CRAYKDAVID K &
CRAYK JANICE |
34360 NE COLORADO LAKE DR
UNIT 960
CORVALLIS, OR 97333

CRISP PATRICIA
866 SE VISTADR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CROPPER KEN R TRUSTEE &
CROPPER ELANE M TRUSTEE
3221 NORTH 109TH AVE
AVONDALE, AZ 85392

CROW HARRY &
CROW CATHERINE
5740 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

CROWE RENTALS LLC
PO BOX 411
TOLEDO, OR 97391



CROWELL MILLICENTY
ATTN AUSTRENG MILLICENT Y
10135 FREESIA AVE
STOCKTON, CA 95212

CUBIC AARONK &
CUBIC MELINDA L
1373 REDWOOD CIR
GRANTS PASS, OR 97527

CURRYJOHNT &
CURRY JAMES P
PO BOX 1314
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DAHLKE SARA L LIVING TRUST &
JUBIE SUSAN M TRUSTEE
9191 EMERALD RIDGE RD

RAPID CITY, SD 57702

DANFORTH ALLEN
13849 SW MISTLETOE DR
TIGARD, OR 97223

DATZ WILLIAM R TRUSTEE &
DATZ PAMELA G TRUSTEE
2480 N CHINOOK LN
OTIS, OR 97368

DAVIS KEN R TRUSTEE &
DAVIS CAROLYN A TRUSTEE
PO BOX 2550
MARYSVILLE, CA 95901

DAY BIKRAM &
DAY SHEENA
5236 SW HAMILTON ST
PORTLAND, OR 97221

DEBOUT STEVEN F TSTEE &
DEBOUT CARRIE A TSTEE
39601 MCKENZIE HWY
SPRINGFIELD, OR 97478

DELUCA GAYLE LYNN MARTINEZ
TRUSTEE
3597 S BASCOM AVE
#39
CAMPBELL, CA 95008

CRUMLEY CHARLES E Il TSTEE &

CRUMLEY MARY V TSTEE
5735 SW ARBOR DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CUMMINGS TONY L &
CUMMINGS ROBERTA J
6328 MILLWOOD CT
SPRINGFIELD, VA 22152

CURTIS MICHAEL D
39044 GOLDEN VALLEY DR
LEBANON, OR 97355

DALE JUDY K TSTEE
3471 CONCOMLY RD S
SALEM, OR 97306

DANNA MICHAEL &
VALDEZ DANNA FLORITA
2584 E SMITH RD
BELLINGHAM, WA 98226

DAVIS HAWKINS THOMAS E TSTEE &
DAVIS HAWKINS CAROL TRUSTEE

3297 SE SHORELINE DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97333

DAVIS RONALD D
827 W YALE ST
ONTARIO, CA 91762

DEARDORFF DIANE M
22825 JOHNSON RD
WEST LINN, OR 97068

DEGARIMORE ORIETTA M TTEE
1930 LAGUNA DEL CAMPO
TEMPLETON, CA 93465

DEMERS ANNETTE M &
DEMERS JOHN R
7564 SW ROANOKE DR N
WILSONVILLE, OR 97070

137

CS PROPERTIES HOLD CO LLC
ATTN DEBBIE SELLERS
PO BOX 1230
NEWPORT, OR 97365

CUNNINGHAM BOBBY JOE JR
PO BOX 171
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

DAHLE TIMOTHY &
DAHLE COLLEEN ANNE
5070 CHERRY HTS RD
THE DALLES, OR 97058

DALON WALTER R COTTEE &
DALON GEORGIANN A COTTEE &
DALONWR & G A COTTEES
7407 N COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DARK WANDA K TSTEE &
DARK WANDA K TSTEE
5705 SW BARNACLE CT

SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

DAVIS JAMES P &
DAVIS LAVONNE
2226 N COAST HWY
#287
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DAWSON MARGIE L
3158 SW ANTLER LN
REDMOND, OR 97756

DEBERNOT REBECA KRAUSE
RICARD LINARES #107
APDO POSTAL 1202
CUERNAVACA, MORELOS 62000

DEGNER GEORGE G &
DEGNER JAMES M
92076 COBURG RD
EUGENE, OR 97401

DENNY ROBERT R
20556 KLAHANI DR
BEND, OR 97702



DEPT OF STATE LANDS OR
% MO'S ENTERPRISES INC LEASE
657 SW BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DESSERO CHERYL LYNNE
2633 SW BRANT ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DETRICK GEORGE F TSTEE &
DETRICK LYNNE A TSTEE & DETRICK
GREGORY J, ETAL
1378 LEIGH CT
WEST LINN, OR 97068

DICKSON KENNETH D &
DICKSON KARRI K
PO BOX 3524
WILSONVILLE, OR 97070

DIRIENZO ANTHONY C &
DIRIENZO LAUREN B
PO BOX 1010
MADISON, AL 35758

DOBITZ LEO J TSTEE &
DOBITZ DIANNE R TSTEE
2425 SW 60TH LOOP
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

DOLLAR VICTOR R
515 SW 11TH
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DONA CONDO CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
902 SW MARK ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DOTY BRIAN S &
DOTY SEAN L
1505 NE 27TH ST
MCMINNVILLE, OR 97128

DREILING ROGER J TSTEE &
DREILING LYNN TSTEE
4629 MUIRFIELD DR
LAWRENCE, KS 66047

DERISCHEBOURG SARA JANE
6971 YACHATS RIVER RD
YACHATS, OR 97498

DETHLEFS JOHN P
16860 HOFFMAN AVE
SANDY, OR 97055

DHAEMERS GARY L &
DHAEMERS LINDA A
655 W BRIGHT CANYON DR
ORO VALLEY, AZ 85755

DIDTEL STUART R & MOLLIE B
180 SW 61ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DITLEFSEN MICHAEL &
JENNE JANIE
1055 HIGHLAND AVE NE
SALEM, OR 97301

DOBSON KAREN JO
4550 S 7TH ST
TACOMA, WA 98405

DOMAS MARY L TSTEE
9521 ALBATROSS DR
ANCHORAGE, AK 99502

DONOVAN ANTHONY
475 SE 35TH ST C17
NEWPORT, OR 97366

DOWELL MARTHA FRANCES TTEE EST
646 WIMBLEDON CT
EUGENE, OR 97401

DRESLER TERESA A
2540 SW 81ST AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97225

[e 0]
™
—

DESERPA FRANCISCO J &
DESERPA BARBARA A
5915 SW ARBOR DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DETRICK GEORGE F TRUSTEE &
DETRICK LYNNE A TRUSTEE
1378 LEIGH CT
WEST LINN, OR 97068

DICKEY CLYDE D
2709 NE ILER ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DIGIULIO PATRICIA
4704 NW CHEROKEE LN
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DIXON JUDITH A
PO BOX 14
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DOERFLER KENNETH M JR TRUSTEE &
DOERFLER DENISE M TRUSTEE
PO BOX 766
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DOMINICK JOE P &
DOMINICK LINDY
PO BOX 24
ONTARIO, OR 97914

DONOVAN JOHN M &
STREET REBECCA K
115 W 4TH ST
THE DALLES, OR 97058

DRAGER WILLIAM G JR COTTEE &
DRAGER RAEBETH C COTTEE ATTN
BORST VALERIE
635 35TH AVE SE
ALBANY, OR 97322

DRIFTWOOD OCEANVIEW LLC
3773 W 5TH AVE
SUITE 301
POST FALLS, ID 83854



DRIVER STEVE &
GRIMSTAD SIGNE
PO BOX 1930
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DUBICK MICHAEL TRUSTEE &
DUBICK JOANNE H TRUSTEE
PO BOX 838
CRESWELL, OR 97426

DUNLOP WILLIAM P &
DUNLOP KAREN W
2750 SW COHO ST

APT A
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DURLAND EVAN
315 SW 29TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

EATON SIDONIE K TRUSTEE
96 NW 33RD PLACE #E
NEWPORT, OR 97365

EDWARDS DEBORAH D
701 NW COAST ST
APT 110
NEWPORT, OR 97365

EGGER DAVID W &
EGGER REBECCA G
PO BOX 8618
SPOKANE, WA 99203

EISEN LIZABETHANN ROGOVOY
ATTN FELTER MARK
PO BOX 785
GLENEDEN BEACH, OR 97388

ELF HOLDINGS LLC
PO BOX 1773
ALBANY, OR 97321

ELKINS JAMES D &
ELKINS KAREN M
928 ELKINS WAY SE
SALEM, OR 97306

DROTAR ADELINE M REV TRUST &
DROTAR ADELINE M TRUSTEE
4067 W SHORE CT
NEWPORT, Ml 48166

DUKES THOMAS R
2637 SW BRANT ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DUNNINGTON DAN A &
DUNNINGTON CHRISTINE M
2140 NORWOOD ST
EUGENE, OR 97401

DUVALL WALTER S &
DUVALL CAROL T
328 NW COAST ST

NEWPORT, OR 97365

EDER BEACH PROPERTY LLC
PO BOX 721
NEWPORT, OR 97365

EDWARDS DUANE
PO BOX 2088
NEWPORT, OR 97365

EGGERT CHARLES W
18555 SW TETON AVE
TUALATIN, OR 97062

EISENHAUER CAROL &
ANKER ROBERT
PO BOX 287
NEWVILLE, PA 17241

ELIXMAN RICHARD D &
ELIXMAN MARY C
PO BOX 231194
PORTLAND, OR 97281

ELLIOTT DAVID &

ELLIOTT LAURA

21405 4TH AVE S
DES MOINES, WA 98198

(@)
™
—

DRUBA RANDOLPH
404 SW BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DULCICH REALTY ACQUISITION LLC
PACIFIC CHOICE SEAFOODS ATTN
DEBBIE SELLERS
PO BOX 1230
NEWPORT, OR 97365

DUNSTAN DONALD L COTRUSTEE &
DUNSTAN DIANE S COTRUSTEE
5470 NW INNISBROOK PL
PORTLAND, OR 97229

DYKSTERHUIS JERRY TRUSTEE &
DYKSTERHUIS DEANNA TRUSTEE
2729 NW PACIFIC PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

EDER ROBERTL &
EDER MICHELE LONGO
PO BOX 721
NEWPORT, OR 97365

EDWARDS JAMES M TRUSTEE &
EDWARDS PATRICIA L TRUSTEE
2603 LAUREL HILL DR
EUGENE, OR 97403

EGGLESTON MARK S TSTEE &
COOPER SUSAN L TSTEE
29513 N 140TH ST
SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85262

EKMAN WILLIAM
200 SW FERRY ST SW
ALBANY, OR 97321

ELIZABETH SHORES CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS ATTN
MACPHERSON GORDON
423 N COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ELM STREET LLC
ATTN CHARLOTTE BOXER
4627 N CONGRESS AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97217



EMBARCADERO
ASSN OF UNIT OWNERS
1000 SE BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

EMERSON CRAIG P &
EMERSON MARY & EMERSON PATRICIA
ANN, ETAL
PO BOX 457
REDMOND, OR 97756

ENGER SHARON A
1906 NW EAGLES NEST CIR
ALBANY, OR 97321

ERLANDER J MARK
PO BOX 143
SEAL ROCK, OR 97376

EUSTAQUIO YARICEL &
CHHIM VESET
226 SW 29TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FAIRMAN BRUCE L &
FAIRMAN MARCIA
PO BOX 1206
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FARRINGTON CONSULTING LLC
1184 NE MCGEE CT
KEIZER, OR 97303

FERBER FAMILY TRUST &
FERBER NORMAN L TRUSTEE &
FERBER MARY MEGOWAN TRUSTEE
5726 NE BIG CREEK RD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FETTIG JIM &
FETTIG LINNEA
17705 NE CHEHALEM DR
NEWBERG, OR 97132

FIELDING MICHAEL ROY TSTEE &

MUNDIL URSULA TRUSTEE & FIELDING

RH&D MTRUSTEES
250 SW 61ST ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

EMBARCADERO OTTER CREST LLC
2397 NW KINGS BLVD #314
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

EMERY INVESTMENTS INC
ATTN EMERY WILLIAM H
2712 SE 20TH AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97202

ERDMANN JAMES TSTEE &
ERDMANN ADELIA TSTEE
PO BOX 470
AUMSVILLE, OR 97325

ESTACADA LAKE LLC
13203 SE 172ND AVE
STE 166 #760
HAPPY VALLEY, OR 97086

EVERGREEN TRUST
ATTN R GROVE
1595 LOS OSOS VALLEY RD
#30A
LOS 0SOS, CA 93402

FALK HEATHER L MYERS
1845 23RD ST NE
SALEM, OR 97301

FAUGHT LESLIE TRUSTEE
1929 NW TIVOLI LN
PORTLAND, OR 97229

FERRARO STEVEN P TRUSTEE
370 SW 29TH ST APTC
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FIELD REBECCA PAINE TSTEE
2001 NW OCEANVIEW DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FIFER CHRIS F &

FIFER SANDRAE

170 SW 59TH ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

140

EMERALD BAY ESTATES CONDO
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
370 SW 29TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

EMPOLITI RICHARD
1000 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT 525
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ERISMAN PHYLLIS
355 SW 29TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ESTERHAY CARL A &
ESTERHAY M DUDLEY
PO BOX 793
WINCHESTER, VA 22604

FAHRENDORF JOSEPH B TRUSTEE
1143 MANOR DR
SONOMA, CA 95476

FARE ROLF G TRUSTEE &
GROSSKOPF SHAWNA TRUSTEE
7905 N LOGSDON RD
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

FENSKE RICHARD F &
FENSKE LINDA L
1524 CHAPMAN HILL DR NW
SALEM, OR 97304

FERRY SLIP LLC
260 QUEEN AVE SE
ALBANY, OR 97322

FIELD ROBERT L &
FIELD CORAL
PO BOX 533
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

FILBIN GWENITH M TRUSTEE
ATTN UTO DIANE
PO BOX 537
DUFUR, OR 97021



FILBY ROYSTONH &
GRIMM CATHERINE A
7381 N COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FISHER GARY L &

FISHER CHERYL L
315 SW 38TH LOOP
GRESHAM, OR 97080

FLAISIG KATHRYN G
3547 HOLLYWOOD DR NE
OLYMPIA, WA 98516

FOBI ALOYSIUS
16900 SE MCKINLEY RD
GRESHAM, OR 97213

FORINASH CHARLES A
PO BOX 161
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FOSTER JANET &
JOHNSON CRAIG
1817 CRITESER LP
TOLEDO, OR 97391

FRANK LUMBER CO
DRAWER 79
MILL CITY, OR 97360

FRANKLIN THOMAS W &
FRANKLIN ELIZABETH J
742 NW BEACH DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FREDRICKSON MARGUERITE &
POHLMEYER MICHAEL & BEATTY CARA
L
1530 GOLD HILLS DR
REDDING, CA 96003

FREITAG KURT &
SCHAEFER RITA
PO BOX 429
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FINDLING SHARON L TSTEE
85 NW 33RD PL
#D
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FITTS DOUGLAS E TRUSTEE &
FITTS VERNA L TRUSTEE
392 NW 3RD ST SP #1
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FLORES PATRICK E TSTEE &
FARRELL FLORES SALLY D TTEE
3268 OAKCREST DR NW
SALEM, OR 97304

FORD SALLY M TRUSTEE
3110 NW MONTE VISTA TERRACE
PORTLAND, OR 97210

FORINASH CHUCK
PO BOX 161
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FRANCK ELLEN DOSTER
201 LAGUNADRW
LITCHFIELD PARK, AZ 85340

FRANK LUMBER COMPANY
DRAWER 79
MILL CITY, OR 97360

FRANSHAM CARL D TSTEE &
FRANSHAM JANET C TSTEE
PO BOX 10
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FREED LAUREL A TRUSTEE
180 SW 59TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FREY STEPHEN A TRUSTEE &
FREY CHERYL A B TRUSTEE
5137 NW WINN DR
ALBANY, OR 97321

-

<t
—

FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH
OF SALEM
395 MARION ST NE
SALEM, OR 97301

FITZPATRICK ALBERT WARREN
1080 NE 7TH DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FLORETTA JOHN F TSTEE &
FLORETTA ANN R TSTEE
2669 TERRACE VIEW DR

EUGENE, OR 97405

FOREST VERONICA M SPARKS
435 NW HIGH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FOSTER CARL W COTRUSTEE &
FOSTER VICTORIA S COTRUSTEE
1125 NW 9TH AVE
#522
PORTLAND, OR 97209

FRANK BROTHERS IMPLEMENT CO
ADDRESS, UNKNOWN

FRANKLIN ELIZABETH J
742 NW BEACH DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FRANZ ELIZABETH BREWER &
BREWER JEANNE D TRUSTEE &
BREWER DAVID C TRUSTEE
10082 SW CRYSTAL ST
BEAVERTON, OR 97008

FREEMAN WILLARD C JR &
CALHOUN BETHANY
4205 S COAST HWY SP 1
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

FRIEDLI RONALD &
FRIEDLI LESIL LYN
145 SW 61ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366



FRONT ST MARINE LLC
ATTN STEPHEN A WEBSTER JANET G
WEBSTER
113 SE BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FUCHS MICHAEL J &
FUCHS YVONNE T
1327 CELLINI COURT
TEHACHAPI, CA 93561

FULLER MARKW &
ATZET PENNY
0238 FAWN DR
CARBONDALE, CO 81623

FURAY DEBORAH $
2735 NW PACIFIC PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GALSTAUN GEORGE R
74 FRUITVALE LN
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GARBARINO TONY A &
GARBARINO LAURI MAVITY
PO BOX 254
TOLEDO, OR 97391

GARSKE TRAVIS W
PO BOX 729
COLBERT, WA 99005

GEORGE JODY &
LEHRMAN MARCUS
232 NW COAST ST
STEA
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GERMANERIE T & STEVE TTEES &
GERMANERI NATHANIEL & GERMANERI
ALISON
920 SW 5TH ST
CORVALLIS, OR 97333

GIFFORD WILLIAM B &
LEE AMEY Y

3080 NW DEER RUN ST

CORVALLIS, OR 97330

FRY DENNIS W &
FRY RHONDA K
126 NW COTTAGE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FUITEN WEST PARTNERSHIP
5475 NE DAWSON CRK DR
HILLSBORO, OR 97124

FULTON ROBERT E SR TSTEE &
FULTON ELIZABETH J TSTEE
5006 LAKERIDGE TERE
RENO, NV 89509

GAFFIN JOYCE
251 SW 29TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GAMER GARY N &

HAWLEY SHERIE L
3484 STOREY BLVD
EUGENE, OR 97405

GARNER KATHRYN L
2782 NW PACIFIC PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GAUVIN JEFFREY M
1175 N CROWN KING AVE
WASHINGTON, UT 84780

GEORGER JEFFREY J &
GEORGER CYNTHIA J
5940 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

GEROSIN THOMAS L TRUSTEE &
GEROSIN BETTY F TRUSTEE
3025 CARSON DR #2
REDDING, CA 96003

GILBERT JOHN W &
GILBERT MEREDITH A
2510 NW PACIFIC ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

N
<t
—

FRYMAN MARK A &
FRYMAN MELISA D
651 NW SHANNON DR
ALBANY, OR 97321

FUJIOKA THEODORE MASARU TTEE &
FUJIOKA SHARON CLARIE TTEE
13713 NE 46TH ST
VANCOUVER, WA 98686

FUNRUE DONALD K TRUSTEE &
FUNRUE RUTH E TRUSTEE
3296 SW BINFORD AVE
GRESHAM, OR 97080

GALL JOHNP &
GALL DEBORAH A
1376 SW LAURELWOOD
DALLAS, OR 97338

GANTNER MARK C COTRUSTEE &
GANTNER CYNTHIA L COTRUSTEE
260 S STEELHAMMER RD
SILVERTON, OR 97381

GARRISON PAUL B
GARRISON RHONDA
19577 ASTER LN
BEND, OR 97702

GEIL DEBRA ANN
PO BOX 138
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

GERMAN MICHAEL E &
GERMAN KRISTINAR
PO BOX 41
ALVADORE, OR 97409

GIBSON KENT
2830 NE BIG CREEK RD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GILGUS STEVEN P &
BURCH ALICE K
220 W DEAN AVE

EUGENE, OR 97404



GILHULY ALAN F
85 NW 33RD PLACE UNITB
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GILSON JANIS AITKIN &
GILSON JANIS AITKIN TRUSTEE
360 LYDIALN
LEBANON, OR 97355

GLICKDAVID E &
GLICK CYNTHIA A
66474 JERICHO RD

BEND, OR 97703

GODINET NANCY KATHRYN RHODEN

625 SE 4TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GOLDBERG URI
548 SW 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GOMES EDWARD L &
GOMES ROBERTA
3054 ANDRE LN
TURLOCK, CA 95382

GOPLEN HANS &
GOPLEN JANELL
611 SE 3RD ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GRAHAM JOHN W TRUSTEE
3480 EOLA DR NW
SALEM, OR 97304

GRANT-CHURCHWELL CATHLENE CYD

TRUSTEE
PO BOX 5427
EUGENE, OR 97405

GRAY DONALD M &
GRAY MAUREEN T
105 NW 43RD ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GILLETT JODY
PO BOX 597
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

GKM HOSPITALITY LLC
531 SW FALL ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GOBER JAMES O TRUSTEE
PO BOX 1106
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GOLD MICHAELR &
GOLD KRISTINE A
1240 CINNAMON TEAL DR
REDMOND, OR 97756

GOLDSMITH JAMES C &
GOLDSMITH LESLIE JO
6068 CRAMPTON DR N
KEIZER, OR 97303

GOODWIN RALPH
PO BOX 455
JOHN DAY, OR 97845

GOUGH RICHARD J COTRUSTEE &
GOUGH DIANA C COTRUSTEE
13459 PROVINCIAL HILL WAY

LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97035

GRAMOLL KURT &
GRAMOLL JUNKO
3816 WELLINGTON PL
NORMAN, OK 73072

GRANTHAM & HOOPER

% SOUTH BEACH GROCERY INC CONT

PO BOX 581
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

GRAY JOAN M TRUSTEE
411 SE FOGARTY ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

o™
<
—

GILSON CHARLES W TSTEE &
GILSON MARCIA TSTEE
1731 PHEASANT CT
PHILOMATH, OR 97370

GLENN ROBERTR &
GLENN SARAHLU
6410 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

GODDARD JEFFREY WINN &
GODDARD RAMONA GEORGES
311 SE 35TH ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

GOLDADE HOLBROOK CHLOE M
405 SE SCENIC LOOP
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GOLITZ FAMILY LLC
262 S ELM ST
DENVER, CO 80246

GOOLD MICHAEL &
GOOLD WANDA
3859 DAKOTA RD SE
SALEM, OR 97302

GOULD GEORGE F
184 NE 57TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GRANSEE KAREN
230 SW60TH LOOP
NEWPORT, OR 97365

GRASSLEY JAMES L &
GRASSLEY LORRAINE
18734 64TH LANE NE
KENMORE, WA 98028

GRAY LANER &
GRAY RUTH A
452 SE 4TH ST

NEWPORT, OR 97365



GREEN NATALIE &
HENRY STEVEN
PO BOX 452
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

GREGORY DAVID &
BENEDETTI CHRISTINE
424 SW 297TH ST
FEDERAL WAY, WA 98023

GRENZER ROBERT FRED
17507 NW SAUVIE ISLAND RD
PORTLAND, OR 97231

GSBN LLC
PO BOX 720
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

GUTZEIT CLARY &
GUTZEIT PATRICIA
1000 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT 239/339
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HAAS WILLIAM F &
HAAS EILEEN DALY
9439 17TH LN
TERREBONNE, OR 97760

HABITAT HUMANITY OF YAQUINA
% TAYLOR MERLENE CONT
PO BOX 1311
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HAFEN JACQUELYN K TRUSTEE &
FREHNER SANDRA G & HAMRICK LISA
D
370-A SW 29TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HALCYON HOTELS LLC
ATTN MCCORMACK WINTHROP
2601 NW THURMAN ST
PORTLAND, OR 97210

HALL DIANA L
PO BOX 199
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

GREENE ORRIN &
GREENE DEBRA
818 SW 3RD AVE

#221-1633
PORTLAND, OR 97204

GREGORY DAVIDE &
BENEDETTI CHRISTINE M
424 SW 297TH
FEDERAL WAY, WA 98023

GRINDSTAFF JULIE A
4201 SILVER SPUR CT
ROCKLIN, CA 95765

GULLERUD ERIC N &
GULLERUD CHERIE P
PO BOX 2475
CORVALLIS, OR 97339

GUTZEIT CLARY C &
GUTZEIT PATRICIA J
1000 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT G-239
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HABBERSTAD JAMES M
2110 WEST SCENIC DR
THE DALLES, OR 97058

HACKWORTH CRAIG &
HACKWORTH DONNA
205 SW 60TH LOOP
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

HAGUES YOLANDAR &
MAHER MARC
11611 NE ANGELO DR
VANCOUVER, WA 98684

HALL DANIEL &
HALL BONNYE
144 SW 26TH ST
#8
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HALL EDWIN &
HALL BROWYN
19505 SE 42ND CIRCLE
CAMAS, WA 98607

<
<t
—

GREENMAN KENNETH JOE TRUSTEE &
GREENMAN BARBARA J TRUSTEE
5930 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

GREGORY JEFFREY KIM &
GREGORY SUSAN KAY
7731 SW 194TH TER
BEAVERTON, OR 97007

GROSS ROBERT J
9480 SW GRABHORN
BEAVERTON, OR 97007

GUST AURIM &
COOPER WILLIAM H
33102 134TH AVE SE
AUBURN, WA 98092

GUTZEIT PATRICIA &
GUTZEIT CLARY C
1000 SE BAY BLVD

UNIT G-15

NEWPORT, OR 97365

HABITAT HUMANITY OF YAQUINA
% MORRIS AMBER CONT
PO BOX 1311
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HAFEN JACAUELYN K &
FREHNER SANDRA GAYLE & HAMRICK
LISAD
370 SW 29TH ST, UNIT A
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HAIMA DOUG
PO BOX 56
ALBANY, OR 97321

HALL DAVID WALTER TRUSTEE &
HALL MARGARET RUTH TRUSTEE
8310 COUNTERPANE LN
JUNEAU, AK 99801

HALL JOHN L TSTEE
ATTN CLARE JOSEPH
135 MAIN ST
9TH FLOOR
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105



HALLER BRIAN H
PO BOX 805
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HALSEY STEVE
351 SE PENTER LN
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HAMRICK BRET A
PO BOX 492
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HANCHER SCOTTE &
HANCHER KIMBERLY F
14236 174TH AVE NE
REDMOND, WA 98052

HANSCAM STEVEN
4427 COULTER LN
SWEET HOME, OR 97386

HANSEN LAURA S TRUSTEE &
FREY BRUCE E TRUSTEE
6780 NW MOUNTAIN VIEW DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

HARBOR CRESCENT HOMEOWNRS
ASSN
882 SE CRESCENT PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HARGIS ELWIN E &
HARGIS JUDITH L
PO BOX 253
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HARRIS LEANN J
1536 NE 61ST AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97213

HARTWELL PETER LEE TRUSTEE &
HARTWELL MOLLY MARGARET TSTEE
110 SW61ST ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

HALLMARK INNS & RESORTS INC
PO BOX 1747
LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97035

HAMILTON LLOYD B TRUSTEE &
HAMILTON JANE A TRUSTEE
2699 WESTWOOD DR
PLACERVILLE, CA 95667

HAMRICK BRETT A
PO BOX 492
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HAND LARRY L &
HAND KAREN L
848 N RAINBOW BLVD
LAS VEGAS, NV 89107

HANSELMAN JAMES E &
RONZIO JOANN M
4044 NW CHEROKEE LN
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HANSON JAMES D TSTEE &
HANSON SKYE B TSTEE
3334 W NEBRASKA ST
TUCSON, AZ 85747

HARBOR VILLAGE MHP LLC
6305 SEASIDE WALK
LONG BEACH, CA 90803

HARLAN GAIL
5935 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

HARRISON TERRY &
HARRISON KRISTA
1197 THRONE DR
EUGENE, OR 97402

HASTING THOMAS D &
HASTING SHARON M
PO BOX 470
NEWPORT, OR 97365

L0
<
i

HALLSTROM JAMES A TTEE &
HALLSTROM DIANE L TTEE & DETRICK
GF &L ATTEES
PO BOX 2812
EUGENE, OR 97402

HAMMER PAUL M
PO BOX 2550
EUGENE, OR 97402

HAMSTREET DOROTHY A ETAL
ATTN NEWPORT MARINE CO
PO BOX 1067
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HANNAH PAUL &
HANNAH VIRGINIA C
533 SE 4TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HANSEN INVESTMENTS LLC
PO BOX 1476
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HARANG MARIE
PO BOX 63
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HARGETT KURT DALE &
HARGETT CORRINA L
2823 NE JACKSON PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HARRINGTON JAMES L JR &
HARRINGTON TERRI A
494 GRIFFIN RD
GRANTS PASS, OR 97527

HARTOG PHILIP
PO BOX 686
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

HATHAWAY CHARLES G
240 SW 61ST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365



HATZEL JOSEPH G &
ABEL HATZEL WENDY K
PO BOX 1780
COOS BAY, OR 97420

HAY FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
PO BOX 1747
LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97035

HEATH JUDITH A TRUSTEE &
HEATH ANN F (TOD)
18 TANGLEWOOD DR
LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97035

HEISLER PETER
567 SE VISTADR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HEITSTUMAN THOMAS M & DEBRA D
PSC 476 BOX 484
FPO, AP 96322

HENDERSON ROBERT R
2750 SW COHO ST
APTB
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HENDRICKSON DEAN A TSTEE &
HENDRICKSON JEAN A TSTEE
854 SE 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HERROLD JOAN L &
HERROLD TRACY K
40896 ELK RIDGE LN
STAYTON, OR 97383

HESSLER CARLOS DANIEL &
HESSLER HEATHER M
38 INDIAN FIELD DR
SOUTH DENNIS, MA 2660

HETTMAN GARY L &
HETTMAN MARSHA M
3010 MOSSY LN
TOLEDO, OR 97391

HAUGEN TROY &
HAUGEN IMELDA
2036 SW WILLOW PKWY
GRESHAM, OR 97080

HEARING MICHAEL
1163 NW 10TH ST
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

HEATH KENNETH D &
HEATH MARTHA A
615 NW SPYGLASS CT
ALBANY, OR 97321

HEISLER PETER &
HEISLER HEATHER
567 SE VISTA DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HEITZLER GREGORY &
LINGEMANN AARON
8 COMSTOCK LN
SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060

HENDRICKS JUDITH J TSTEE
2011 FRANKFORT AVE
#408
LOUISVILLE, KY 40206

HERBERT EDWARD A &
HERBERT BEVERLY E
6660 PALOMINO CIRCLE
WEST LINN, OR 97068

HERRON THOMAS E &
HERRON ANN L
178 NW 73RD CT

NEWPORT, OR 97365

HETH MICHAEL S &
HETH CATHERINE H
258 NE 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HICKEY KHAKHANANG
1377 MOONSHINE PARK RD
LOGSDEN, OR 97357

O
<
—

HAUS ALBERT S JR (TOD) &
HAUS DIANNE M (TOD)
890 SE BAY BLVD
#203
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HEARNE BRETT &
HEARNE EILEEN
407 SE 4TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HEIL F CHARLES W &
HEIL PATRICIA J
22239 SW SEQUOIA TERR
SHERWOOD, OR 97140

HEISLER PROPERTY HOLDINGS LLC
567 SE VISTA DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HELBLING PATRICK T
210 APPLE CREEK LANE
SANTA ROSA, CA 95401

HENDRICKS LIVING TRUST &
HENDRICKS BYRON J TRUSTEE &
HENDRICKS NANCY J TRUSTEE
1220 20TH ST SE
SALEM, OR 97302

HERKERT GREGORY E TRUSTEE &
HERKERT BARBARA L TRUSTEE
1105 SE 1ST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HERZBERG CARL A & KATHY T &
CLEVELAND KIMBERLY T &
CLEVELAND STEPHEN E
605 WALNUT ST
LEBANON, OR 97355

HETH MICHELLE K
1181 RYAN CT
WEST LINN, OR 97068

HIGH DOINA FAMILY TRUST &
HIGH DOINA TRUSTEE
PO BOX 552
SILETZ, OR 97380



HIGH ROAD CONDOMINIUMS
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
634 NW 10TH
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HILL ASHLEY R
408 SE 35TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HILL TERRANCE A TRUSTEE &
HILL JUDITH L TRUSTEE
835 NW CARPATHIAN DR

CORVALLIS, OR 97330

HILTON NANCY L
PO BOX 1503
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HODGES PAUL W &
LEON HODGES LISA A
275 W SAN MARCOS DR
CHANDLER, AZ 85225

HOFFMAN CRAIG S &
HOFFMAN REBECCA L
251 SE 123RD ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

HOGAN FRANK A &
HOGAN JUDY A TRUSTEES
42 QUIET HILLS RD
POMONA, CA 91766

HOLT DONALD M &
HOLT PING
112 NW WADE WAY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HOOTS THOMAS G &
HOOTS JUDITH C
2526 NE DOUGLAS
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HIGHFILL ROBERT T &
HIGHFILL MILDRED
2830 NE ILER ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HILL PETER STEPHEN
13795 SE LAURIE AVE
MILWAUKIE, OR 97222

HILLIER CLAIRE A
2824 SW COHO ST
#A
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HINDS CYNTHIA KELLEY TTEE
569 GILPIN ST
DENVER, CO 80218

HOENE FREDERICK J TRUSTEE &
HOENE ANN MARIE TRUSTEE
19579 NW MELROSE DR
PORTLAND, OR 97229

HOFFMEISTER JUANITA A TRUSTEE
546 36TH AVE NW
SALEM, OR 97304

HOLBROOK JONATHAN B &
GOLDADE TERESA J
405 SE SCENIC LOOP
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HOOKER STEVE M
526 NW HIGH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HOOVER PHYLLIS M
PO BOX 1073
NEWPORT, OR 97365

N~
<
i

HILDERBRAND KENNETH S JR &
HILDERBRAND LINDA M
PMB 300
2226 N COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HILL TERRANCE & JUDITH
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES LLC
835 NE CARPATHIAN DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

HILLYER REBECCA &
RIEDL JOHN
5529 QUINCE ST NE
SALEM, OR 97305

HOCKEN JEAN TRUST
ESTATE ATTN VICTORIA GRUSING
345 NE BENTON ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HOFER VANDEHEY ROBERTA
20481 WINLOCK LN
FOSSIL, OR 97830

HOFSTETTER HANS KIRK &
MOELLER MARY JO
2255 DORCHESTER DR S
SALEM, OR 97302

HOLEN H J TRUSTEE
PO BOX 29
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HOORNBEEK FRANK K TSTEE &
HOORNBEEK BILLEE W TSTEE
1000 SE BAY BLVD
B505/605
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HOPE SANDRA A
3250 NW OCEANVIEW DR #5
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HORNING ROBERT W TRUSTEE & HOSKINS STEPHANIE HOSTS OF AMERICA INC

HORNING SUZANNE R W TRUSTEE 6614 BROOKHOLLOW CT NE ATTN HALLMARK INNS & RESORTS, INC
8701 ESTERO BLVD KEIZER, OR 97303 PO BOX 1747
#708 LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97035

FT MYERS BEACH, FL 33931



HOTTER JEFFREY LYNN TSTEE &
HOTTER DEBRA KAY TSTEE
1125 LYNN WAY
SUNNYVALE, CA 94087

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF
LINCOLN COUNTY
PO BOX 1470
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HUFF THOMAS R TSTEE
3055 NW VAUGHN ST
PORTLAND, OR 97210

HULET JENNIFER &
HULET BRETT & WALBOM JACQUI &
WALBOM JEFF
415 SE SCENIC LOOP
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HUMBLE EDWARD P &
HUMBLE MICHELE M
10948 KNIGHT CT SE
OLYMPIA, WA 98501

HUNT DONALD J
546 NW COAST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HUSSA JOHN K &
HUSSA CAROLYN M
2090 SUMMIT DR
LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97034

HYDE JARED &
EAGER ELLEN
502 NW BROOK ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

INGRAM GARREN L &
INGRAM BARBARA L
PO BOX 881
TUALATIN, OR 97062

IVERSON JOHN C &
IVERSON LISA M
1354 E SANTIAM ST
STAYTON, OR 97383

HOUCK EVERETT J &
HOUCK SHARON
531 PIONEER MTN LP
TOLEDO, OR 97391

HOWARD SISTERS LLC THE
ATTN STEVE CARPENTER
PO BOX 958
LEBANON, OR 97355

HUFFMAN RONALD M
PO BOX 2388
LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97035

HULL DEAN ALAN TSTEE
ATTN KENNETH L LITTLE
6711 KATELLA AVE
2ND FLOOR
CYPRESS, CA 90630

HUNNEL GAROLD E
PO BOX 220358
MILWAUKIE, OR 97269

HUNTER BARBARA &
PENDERGRASS VICKIE
130 NW 70TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HUTMACHER NICKOLAS G
PO BOX 4731
SALEM, OR 97302

ICNAVA ENTERPRISES LLC
ATTN ISMAEL NAVA GUILLERMO
CHANDA NAVA
253 NE 53RD ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

INNIS WILLIAM E TSTEE &
INNIS JEANNE S TSTEE
1517 COURT ST NE
SALEM, OR 97301

JACKS PLACELLC
10837 FERNDALE RD
DALLAS, TX 75238

(e}
<
—

HOUCK EVERETT JEAN
HOUCK SHARON
531 PIONEER MTN LOOP
TOLEDO, OR 97391

HUBER SHAUN RILEY &
LEE OLIVIA ASTILLERO
PO BOX 1567
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HUGHES COLLEEN C LVG TRUST &
HUGHES COLLEEN C TRUSTEE
269 LINNAEUS AVE
COOKEVILLE, TN 38501

HULSEY JOSHUA D
475 SE 35THCT
UNIT A7
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HUNT AURELIA CASTERLINE
PO BOX 706
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

HUNTER MARIA C
2540 NW PACIFIC ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

HYDE DAVID
2750 SW COHO ST
UNITC
NEWPORT, OR 97365

INDUSTRIAL WELDING SUPPLY INC
PO BOX 20340
SALEM, OR 97307

INVESTORS X1 LLC
860 OHARE PARKWAY
STE 100
MEDFORD, OR 97504

JACKS SEAFOOD INC
155 SW DOLPHIN ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365



JACKSON DEBRA LYNN &
GLIDDEN BYRON J
31532 FOX HOLLOW RD
EUGENE, OR 97405

JACKSON WILLIAM LONGSTRETH TR
1906 WILLOW SPRINGS WAY
FT COLLINS, CO 80528

JAMISON BETTINA S REVOC TRST &
SCHAEFER EDWARD A il TRSTEE &
BARRON MICHAEL TRUSTEE, ETAL
1201 BOLTON ST STOREFRONT
BALTIMORE, MD 21217

JJ & MK PROPERTIES LLC
PO BOX 641
SALEM, OR 97308

JOHANSON DENNIS H TSTEE &
JOHANSON SUE ANN TSTEE
656 WYATT LN
PHILOMATH, OR 97370

JOHNSON BLAKE &
JOHNSON MARY
4215 AGNESS RD

AGNESS, OR 97406

JOHNSON MICHAEL &
JOHNSON VIRGINIA W
2809 NE ILER ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

JOHNSON STEVEN C &
JOHNSON DEANN E
34047 FOX DR NE
ALBANY, OR 97322

JOLING MICHAEL RAY
PO BOX 7
NEWPORT, OR 97365

JONES GREGORY F &
JONES PRESCOTT B
20368 HONEY GROVE RD
ALSEA, OR 97324

JACKSON MARILYN J TSTEE
144 SW 26TH ST
#3
NEWPORT, OR 97365

JACOBSON DAVID P & KYM C
434 NW 21STPL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

JINCKS DAVID A TRUSTEE
PO BOX 1570
NEWPORT, OR 97365

JMB PROPERTIES NEWPORT LLC

1755 GARLAND LN
BOULDER, CO 80304

JOHNS DEIDRE M
750 NW 2ND ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

JOHNSON BRUCE W
37090 SOAP CREEK RD
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

JOHNSON RICHARD H COTTEE &
JOHNSON LAVONNE J COTTEE
3504 NW CONRAD DR
BEND, OR 97703

JOHNSTON PERRY N TRUSTEE &
JOHNSTON CYNTHIA M TRUSTEE
6275 SW MAIN ST
BEAVERTON, OR 97008

JONES CYNTHIAL &
JONES DAVID F
2653 BRENTWOOD AVE
BURLEY, ID 83318

JONES JODY L
PO BOX 1047
KIHEL, HI 96753

(o))
<
—

JACKSON ROBERT C &
JACKSON PAMELA M
2734 NW PACIFIC PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

JAMES JOHN E
PO BOX 875
NEWPORT, OR 97365

JINCKS LELAND G TRUSTEE &
JINCKS JANE K TRUSTEE
PO BOX 1570
NEWPORT, OR 97365

JOHANNESEN ROBERT &
JOHANNESEN ROBERT ETAL ATTN
LARRY & PATTY DALE
2575 SW 45TH ST
CORVALLIS, OR 97333

JOHNSEN CARLA A TRUSTEE
3659 224TH PL SE
ISSAQUAH, WA 98029

JOHNSON CHERYL M
61329 TRIPLE KNOT RD
BEND, OR 97702

JOHNSON RUTH A LIVING TRUST &
JOHNSON RUTH A TRUSTEE
PO BOX 149
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

JOHNSTON STEVEN G &
JOHNSTON SUSAN M
10779 N MINNEWAWA

CLOVIS, CA 93619

JONES DAVID M &
REDMOND MICHELE S
6825 BOLAND WAY
OTTER ROCK, OR 97369

JONES JOHN B
2140 LOS ANGELES AVE
BERKELEY, CA 94707



JORDAN WARREN &
JORDAN RITA
PO BOX 194
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

JT RENTAL PROPERTIES LLC
570 WEST HOLLEY RD
SWEET HOME, OR 97386

KANE JOSEPH A &
KANE EILEEN S
0841 SW GAINES ST
UNIT #1200
PORTLAND, OR 97239

KAPLAN JAN &
CANNING PATRICIA
1500 SW 5TH AVE
UNIT 1405
PORTLAND, OR 97201

KATZ JEFFREY B
3302 NW PANORAMA DR
BEND, OR 97703

KEHOE DELORES F TRUSTEE
3400 SARATOGA ST
UNIT A
WELLINGTON, CO 80549

KELLEY CHRISTOPHER &
KELLEY DEBORAH R
2017 NE EDGEWATER DR
PORTLAND, OR 97211

KELLOR LLC
59 WAILEA GATEWAY PL
UNIT 203
WAILEA, Hi 96753

KENT MICHAEL LAWRENCE &
KENT CINDY LOU
3608 NW TWINBERRY PL
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

KIER BRIAN
4033 NW SARAH MARIA CT
ALBANY, OR 97321

JORGENSEN PAUL D &
JORGENSEN KAREN L
4284 AVALON
EUGENE, OR 97402

K/H INVESTMENTS LLC
PO BOX 608
APPLE VALLEY, CA 92307

KANG SUSIE TRUSTEE
4008 CORTE BELLA
MODESTO, CA 95356

KAPLAN KENNETH &
MOSSBERG JULIE
20511 DEFOREST

WOODLAND HILLS, CA 91364

KAY KENNETH E &
KAY DIANE S
612 SE 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

KELLER RICHARD J
700 SE 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

KELLEY PATRICK J &
KELLEY WENDY L
104 NW FRANKLIN

BEND, OR 97701

KELSON CRAIG &
KELSON KATHY
45 OLALLARD

TOLEDO, OR 97391

KENYON MARCY J
123 NW HIGH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

KIGERL AW & LARRABEE KL
% RIPKA GARY & LUCERO TABITHA,
CONT
9667 YAQUINA BAY RD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

150

JOSTAD CHRIS
1075 ORCHARD CT
STAYTON, OR 97383

KAISER FRANCIS &
KAISER JEAN
1904 EAGLES RIDGE NW
ALBANY, OR 97321

KANIHO WILLIAM &
KANIHO DENISE
5925 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

KARNES RICHARD &
KARNES ROBERT
1260 WADE RD
SILETZ, OR 97380

KBJB LLC
302 CALIFORNIA AVE
LIBBY, MT 59923

KELLER RODNEY &
KELLER BARBARA
2056 CHASE LOOP sw
ALBANY, OR 97321

KELLEY SUE ANN
PO BOX 1466
NEWPORT, OR 97365

KEMP CHARLES D &
KEMP JANE K
1693 S 24TH ST

EL CENTRO, CA 92243

KERTON MICHAEL D COTSTEE &
KERTON CAROL J COTSTEE
5745 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

KIGERL ALLAN WAYNE &
LARRABEE KATHERINE L % GLTRI LLC,
CONT
PO BOX 809
NEWPORT, OR 97365



KIKER KEVIN D &
KIKER FIONA M
988 TWIN HILLS DR
JEFFERSON, OR 97352

KINGZETT ROBERT P
6419 FIESTACT
KLAMATH FALLS, OR 97603

KITSELMAN BRADLEY A TSTEE &
KITSELMAN ELIZABETH A TSTEE
2510 NW 374TH CIR
LA CENTER, WA 98629

KNIGHT DONALD C TRUSTEE &
KNIGHT PATSY M TRUSTEE
660 DRIVER VALLEY RD
OAKLAND, OR 97462

KRAMIEN STANLEY RICHARD JR &
KRAMIEN DEBRA L
17600 NE OLDS LN
NEWBERG, OR 97132

KRUPKIN ALEX &
SHEPPARD LORRAINE
2085 NW LANCE WAY
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

LA QUINA SHORES HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION ATTN SANDRA HOPE
3250 NW OCEANVIEW DR #5
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LAFRANCHISE JANINE
833 SW 13TH ST
APT #2
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LAMPI FAMILY LLC &
LAMPI KIRSTEN & TOMITA TATSUO
29091 LAKESIDE DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97333

LANEY LAURA &
LANEY ALBERT
2415 NW THURMAN ST
PORTLAND, OR 97210

KING CHRISTOPHER
2544 NE DOUGLAS ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

KISS RICHARD J &
KISS MARICELA
3840 EVERGREEN AVE
DEPOE BAY, OR 97341

KLESCHEN PETER JOHN
2300 LARCH CAMP RD
MISSOULA, MT 59803

KOODRICH JOHN &
KOODRICH MARGARET ANNE
60460 SNAP SHOT LP
BEND, OR 97702

KRAUSE ETHEL
ADDRESS, UNKNOWN

KUEBRICH P H REV LVG TST EST &
KUEBRICH K J REV LVG TST &
KUEBRICH KAREN J TRUSTEE

3136 FIR OAKS CT SW
ALBANY, OR 97321

LACKNER WILLIAM &
LACKNER SCOTT
PO BOX 746
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LAHMAN GARY D &
JACOBI CYNTHIA A
428 NW 17TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LANDING AT NEWPORT, THE
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
890 SE BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LAQUINA SHORES HOMEOWNERS
ASSN
ATTN SANDRA HOPE
3250 NW OCEANVIEW DR #5
NEWPORT, OR 97365

i
L]
i

KINGS ESTUARY SHELLFISH LLC
PO BOX 797
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

KISTLER JOHN A &
KISTLER RUTH J
1125 SE SPRUCE WAY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

KLOSTER MAX B &
KLOSTER SANDRA
750 WYATT LN
PHILOMATH, OR 97370

KOSS JIML &
CRETSINGER JANET C
20215 SW TREMONT WAY
BEAVERTON, OR 97007

KROPP HELEN LOUISE TSTEE
PO BOX 15
NEWPORT, OR 97365

KULOK LISA A &
OTIS DIANA |
2232 NW PINNACLE DR
PORTLAND, OR 97229

LAFERLA BRIANNA N
568 PORTSMOUTH AVE
GREENLAND, NH 3840

LAKIN JANET M TRUSTEE
PO BOX 310
REDMOND, OR 97756

LANDWAVES INC
2712 SE 20TH AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97202

LARSELL JOHN F TRUSTEE &
LARSELL JOANNE TRUSTEE
1283 NW 14TH ST
LINCOLN CITY, OR 97367



LARSELL RICHARD A (TOD)
32006 GRIFFITH DR
TANGENT, OR 97389

LATHROP STEVENR &
REED LATHROP CHRISTIE L
96 NW 33RD PL
UNITD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LAVOIE ROSE M
392 NW 3RD ST
SP 20
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LC APARTMENTS LLC
1231B STATE ST
SANTA BARBARA, CA 93101

LEE JOHN N
41463 MCKENZIE HWY
SPRINGFIELD, OR 97478

LEHMAN JOHN A &
LEHMAN LISA M
333 NW 9TH AVE

UNIT 1206
PORTLAND, OR 97209

LEHRMAN MARCUS &
GEORGE JODY L
232 NW COAST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LEISER JENNIFER P TSTEE &
LEISER STEVEN J TSTEE
4215 HELAMAN CIR
SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84124

LEONARD EDWARD T
2929 SE OCEAN BLVD #143-9
STUART, FL 34996

LETTENMAIER TERRANCE M &
WEITKAMP LAURIE A
PO BOX 550
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

LARSEN STEVEN C TRUSTEE &
LARSEN KAREN L TRUSTEE
10327 SW PICKS WAY
TIGARD, OR 97224

LATTA JUDY L
810 SE 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LAWSON JAMES E TRUSTEE
2777 NE JACKSON PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LEDERMAN DAVID W &
LEDERMAN LOIS B
6325 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

LEE SHI NONG
1130 NE7TH DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LEHN RANDY W &
LEHN JANICE M
38129 WEIRICH DR
#42
LEBANON, OR 97355

LEHRMAN RORY A &
LEHRMAN ANGELA M
215 NW HIGH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LENS INC
PO BOX 1190
JEFFERSON, OR 97352

LEONARD STEVEN EDWARD TRUSTEE
5608 NW MEANDER AVE
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LEWIS CANDACE ANN REVOC TRST &
LEWIS CANDACE ANN TRUSTEE
407 SW FALL ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

N
L]
—

LARSON PATRICK D
3900 NW CHEROKEE LN
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LAVEN ARNE &
LAVEN SUDHA

2538 NW HOSMER LAKE DR
BEND, OR 97703

LAWSON PAUL L &
LAWSON SHARON L

5535 E EVERGREEN BLVD #7305

VANCOUVER, WA 98661

LEE APRIL M
3319 W AUGUSTA CT
COEUR D'ALENE, ID 83815

LEEPER WILBERTD &
LEEPER ARTEMIA F
2730 NE HARNEY DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LEHNHERR NEIL
1000 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT A-2
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LEINBACH JAMES D
6345 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

LEO ROGER J TRUSTEE
8 MONTICELLO DR
LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97035

LESLIE JEANNINE TETU
3720 NE MEGGINSON
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LEWIS HAL
PO BOX 427
AMITY, OR 97101



LICHTY TOM &
LAGUE LOUISE
6685 W BURNSIDE RD
UNIT 353
PORTLAND, OR 97210

LIKES JANET M
300 DESERT SUN LN
RENO, NV 89508

LINCOLN CO HISTORICAL SOCIETY
ATTN JONES CAROL
545 SW NINTH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LINCOLN COUNTY
% LINCOLN COUNTY PROP MGMT
880 NE 7TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LINDSEY JAMES DUNCAN
6437 NW FINISTERRE AVE
YACHATS, OR 97498

LINK JACKSON C LIVING TRUST &
LINK JACKSON C TRUSTEE
2100 PARKDR
LEBANON, OR 97355

LITTLE CREEK COVE
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
3641 NW OCEANVIEW DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LITTLE CREEK TRUST,THE
BOLDT ROBERT L TRUSTEE & BOLDT
GERI L TRUSTEE
4080 DEEP WOODS LANE N
SALEM, OR 97304

LITWER LACH RUBEN
215 E SHERMAN AVE
HOOD RIVER, OR 97031

LLOYD MARICEL VICTORIA
2901 FOREST HILLS DR
AMES, 1A 50014

LIGHTHOUSE LODGES CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
757 NW COAST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LIL MACS LLC
ATTN ALEMA J MCCREA
1040 SE 78TH
PORTLAND, OR 97215

LINCOLN COUNTY
PUBLIC PARK
225 W OLIVE ST
RM 110
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LIND PAMELA J
411 SE SCENIC LOOP
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LINDSTROM ZACHARY KENDALL &
LINDSTROM ASHLEE J
2535 NE BIG CREEK RD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LINSTROMBERG PAT JOAN TTEE
ATTN LESLIE HOGAN
931 WASHINGTON SW
ALBANY, OR 97321

LITTLE CREEK COVE LTD
3641 NW OCEAN VW DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LITTLE RAYMOND
345 BACK BAY DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LIU XIN &
QU WEIWEI
765 NE JEFFRIES PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LLOYD PARTNERS LLC
2340 NW VIOLET AVE
ALBANY, OR 97321

153

LIHOU DAVID F &
GIDLEY SHARON P
2810 NE HARNEY DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LIMBRUNNER LOUIS L &
LIMBRUNNER MARY M
435 SW MINNIE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LINCOLN COUNTY
225 W OLIVE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LIND PHILIP RICHARD TSTEE &
LIND PAMELA J BARLOW TSTEE
411 SE SCENIC LOOP
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LINGHAM JUDITH M
PO BOX 28
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LITT SANDRA S TRUSTEE
7438 SE MADISON
PORTLAND, OR 97215

LITTLE CREEK HEIGHTS CONDO
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
3711 NW OCEAN VIEW DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LITWER LACHR
215 E SHERMAN AVE
HOOD RIVER, OR 97031

LIVELY PAULA S
475 SE 35TH ST
UNIT D-21
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LLOYD PARTNERS LLC &
OSHANICK LARRY & KAREN &
LINDSTROM ZACHARY K & ASHLEE
2340 NW VIOLET AVE
ALBANY, OR 97321



LODGE CRAIG &
LODGE DAWN L
4920 NW WOODY WAY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LOFTON HAROLD D TRUSTEE &
LOFTON JOAN E TRUSTEE
11550 LOGSDEN RD
SILETZ, OR 97380

LONGMORE JEFF &
HELLMAN LAURA
1756 ALDERWOOD ST
EUGENE, OR 97404

LOPARDO ROBERTO
70 E CRESCENT AVE
MAHWAH, NJ 7430

LOWE STEVEN S &
LOWE BRENDA K
1168 ENGLEWOOD DR
RICHLAND, WA 99352

LUKE LOWELLH &
LUKE RUTH A
1812 1/2 E BROADWAY ST
HELENA, MT 59601

LUND WILLIAM
PO BOX 22
SEAL ROCK, OR 97376

LUTHER ROSE M &
NEARY MICHAEL P
330 NW 25TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LYNCH MICHAEL &
LYNCH MONICA
400 W 36TH ST

VANCOUVER, WA 98660

MACIAS JOSEPH L
28140 ZEPHYR DR
TRACY, CA 95304

LOE MATT
70 NORTH 400 EAST
DELTA, UT 84624

LOGAN DONALD &

LOGAN DOROTHY

2088 CATALINA DR
BULLHEAD CITY, AZ 86442

LOOKOUT CONDOMINIUM THE
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
433 N COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LOT & MISC HOLDING LLC &
DELLASLLC
11832 SW PALERMO ST
WILSONVILLE, OR 97070

LU YINGHSUAN
237 SW 29TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LUM PATRICK TRUSTEE &
LUM YU YE TRUSTEE & LUM BRIAN
4050 WYCOMBE DR
SACRAMENTO, CA 95864

LUND WILLIAM &
LUND LISA
PO BOX 22
SEAL ROCK, OR 97376

LUXFORD DENNISR &
LUXFORD CAROL L
PO BOX 1414
VENETA, OR 97487

LYNNE PROPERTIES LLC
10499 CHAMPOEG RD NE
AURORA, OR 97002

MAEIR JOHN C
112 NW BROOK ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

154

LOEW LEONARD F COTRUSTEE &
LOEW MARLA H COTRUSTEE
5780 SW BARNACLE CT
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

LONDON BRIAN
527 SW 4TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LOONEY SUSAN P TRUSTEE
540 NW 33RD ST
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

LOVAS STEPHEN E COTTEE &
LOVAS SONJA S COTTEE
PO BOX 2170
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LUGO RAFAEL &
LUGO ROBYN
853 NE LAKEWOOD DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LUND GERALD N
1000 SE BAY BLVD
SLIP 41
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LUNDIE KENNETH S
1753 NE YAQUINA HEIGHTS DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LYMAN DEBORAH &
LONG DAVID ET AL
240 NE 56TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MABE JIM &
WHITEHEAD SHERY
7250 NUNES LN
EUREKA, CA 95503

MAGANA STEVEN (TOD)
415 SE 4TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365



MAGUIRE PATRICK HENRY
1406 NW OCEANVIEW DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MAN XIUTING C &
MAN TONY T
PO BOX 92432
AUSTIN, TX 78709

MAPES DONALD J &
MAPES NEVA V ATTN MANSER ROD
CPA
PO BOX 1981
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MARIAS WILLIAM A
475 SE 35TH ST #D19
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MARK DONALD E
2226 N COAST HWY #231
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MARR FRANKLIN C COTSTEE &
GENNAI VERONICA L COTSTEE
3914 POUNDS AVE
SACRAMENTO, CA 95821

MARSHALL RICK &
MARSHALL ANN
1430 BEECHWOOD DR
BREA, CA 92821

MARTIN ELENA KAY
1405 NW THOMPSON ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MARTIN TIMOTHY F &
MARTIN DIANA R
13-3347 LUANA ST
PAHOA, HI 96778

MASON DENNIS &
MASON BETTY
1241 SE SHELTON ST
DALLAS, OR 97338

MAIER JOHN C
112 NW BROOK ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MANCKE PHILIP R &
SHANKS HARRIS COLLEEN
7137 SWLOLA LN
PORTLAND, OR 97223

MAPLES LINDA R TRUSTEE
130 W CEDAR ST
EUREKA, CA 95501

MARINER ENTERPRISES INC
DBA MARINERS SQUARE
250 SW BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MARKHAM CLARENCE M &
MARKHAM KATHERINE K
221 NW 73RD CT
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MARRY KAREN J

% FRANANO ROBERT ATTN ROBERT O

LAMPL
223 FOURTH AVE, 4TH FL
PITTSBURGH, PA 15222

MARTIN CHARLES LYNSEY &
MARTIN ANN FRANCES
526 NW COAST ST
UNIT F
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MARTIN RANDY W &
MARTIN SUSAN E
3875 HAYDEN BRIDGE RD
SPRINGFIELD, OR 97477

MARTIN WILLIAM J JR TRUSTEE &
MARTIN PATRICIA M TRUSTEE
PO BOX 2357
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MASSEY DWAINE E &
MASSEY JOYCE A
23500 SE FRANQUETTE DR
AMITY, OR 97101

L0
L]
i

MALONE DAVID P &
MALONE CYNTHIAM
3252 N SUMMIT POINTE DR
TOPANGA, CA 90290

MANNING GORDON D JR

ATTNN G MANNING, NOAA MARINE

CENTER
2002 SE MARINE SCIENCE DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MARGGI JAMES L &
MARGGI PAMELA R
PO BOX 1624
CLACKAMAS, OR 97015

MARK DONALD
2226 N COAST HWY #231
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MARQUART JAMES B &
MARQUART PENNY
121 E LIGHTHOUSE RD
SHELTON, WA 98584

MARSH B H & C A REVOC TRUST &

MARSH BARRY H & CAROLYN TRTEES

124 SE VIEW DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MARTIN DANIEL J &
MARTIN BARBARA J
PO BOX 1088
WALDPORT, OR 97394

MARTIN STEVE &
MARTIN ELLEN
PO BOX 112
MARKLEEVILLE, CA 96120

MARTINSON OSA M TRUSTEE
1175 SW TIMIAN
CORVALLIS, OR 97333

MASSEY DWAINE E COTRUSTEE &
MASSEY JOYCE A COTRUSTEE
23500 SE FRANQUETTE DR
AMITY, OR 97101



MASSONI ERNEST E TRSTEE &
MASSONI BARBARA L TRSTEE
185 SW 61ST ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97388

MATHEWS BRENDAN
556 SW 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MATTIOLI DONNA M TSTEE
2225 NW PACIFIC ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MAYROSE JAMES D &
MAYROSE KATINA E
PO BOX 1300
MCMINNVILLE, OR 97128

MCCANN JOHN G &
MCCANN STACEY
61360 WARD RD
BEND, OR 97702

MCCLAUGHRY DOUGLAS L
PO BOX 630
BROWNSVILLE, OR 97327

MCCOY EDWARD J &
MCCOY DONNA L
2501 NE BIG CREEK RD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MCDONNELL JOHN
PO BOX 249
PACIFIC CITY, OR 97135

MCENTEE CELESTE
449 SE SCENIC LOOP
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MCENTEE WILSON GABRIELLE
PO BOX 717
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MASTEN S C 1998 REV TR/CST
MASTEN PATRICIA A TRUSTEE &
MASTEN KENNETH D TRUSTEE
9217 ST ANDREWS CIRCLE
KLAMATH FALLS, OR 97603

MATHEWSON ROBERT C &
MATHEWSON BETH H & JONES DAVID
M
6825 BOLAND WAY
OTTER ROCK, OR 97369

MATTSON LYLE &
MATTSON DIANE
1828 SE AMMON RD
TOLEDO, OR 97391

MBS HOLDINGS LLC
PO BOX 12247
SALEM, OR 97309

MCCARROLL TIFFANY M TSTEE
1000 SE BAY BLVD
K-8 #440-441
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MCCLOSKEY MICHAEL J &
MCCLOSKEY VICKY J
838 ALVINA ST SE
SALEM, OR 97306

MCCOY MICHAEL D REV LVG TST &
KELLEY PATRICIA A SUC TSTEE
4045 NW GLENWOOD
ALBANY, OR 97321

MCDOWELL MINDY &
MCDOWELL SCOTT
6553 S MADISON CT

CENTENNIAL, CO 80121

MCENTEE CINDY
PO BOX 1172
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MCFARLAND KENNETH L &
MCFARLAND LAURIS K
10854 SUMMIT LOOP SE

TURNER, OR 97392

(<)
L]
—

MATEAM PARTNERSHIP
ATTN FORD SALLY M
267 NW CLIFF
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MATNEY MARY OLIVE TRUSTEE
650 NE SHERWOOD WAY
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

MAY JAMES T TRUSTEE
1990 VAN BUREN
EUGENE, OR 97405

MCCALLISTER MICHAEL A &
MCCALLISTER NANCY P & LUECKER
CHARLES R TSTEE ETAL
10711 45TH AVE SE
EVERETT, WA 98208

MCCARTHY DENNIS &
MCCARTHY CINDY
431 NE BENTON ST

NEWPORT, OR 97365

MCCORD DENNIS R TSTEE &
MCCORD PAULA J TSTEE
18345 SE CHELDELIN RD

GRESHAM, OR 97080

MCCULLEY JAMES R TRUSTEE &
MCCULLEY JOAN J TRUSTEE
9736 NE AVERY ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MCENTEE BRUCE
3536 SE DOGWOOD
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

MCENTEE CINDY M &
DIXON JUDITH A & DIXON KEVIN ETAL
622 SW BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MCHENRY MICHAEL R COTSTEE &
MCHENRY JEAN M COTSTEE
60810 DIAMOND RD
BEND, OR 97702



MCKEVITT W A & LENA
ADDRESS, UNKNOWN

MCLAREN THOMAS A F
5805 NW RHODODENDRON DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MCMULLEN PATRICIAM
3695 BARDELL AVE
EUGENE, OR 97401

MCQUEARY TIMOTHY R TSTEE &
MCQUEARY JO ANN TSTEE
570 W HOLLEY RD
SWEET HOME, OR 97386

MEADE JAMES P JR PHD &
MEADE EVELYN
909 NE BRAZEE ST
#12
PORTLAND, OR 97212

MEEK JEFFREY MATTHEW &
MEEK SHERRY LYNN
3388 SAINT CROIX ST

EUGENE, OR 97408

MEKEMSON DOUG
407 NE ANDIE LN
TOLEDO, OR 97391

MERITAGE HOMEOWNERS ASSN
ATTN KURT FREITAG
17700 SW UPPER BOONES FRY RD
STE 120
PORTLAND, OR 97224

MEZZETTA BARBARA
415 EASTIN DR
SONOMA, CA 95476

MILLER KAROLEE F TRUSTEE
26 N BEAVER VALLEY DR
SEAL ROCK, OR 97376

MCKIBBEN FAMILY TRUST &
MCKIBBEN HOWARD D CO-TRUSTEE &
MCKIBBEN MARY ANN CO-TRUSTEE
PO BOX 588
VERDI, NV 89439

MCLAUGHLIN MICHAEL P TRUSTEE &
MCLAUGHLIN SHELLEY S TRUSTEE
2028 21ST ST
SACRAMENTO, CA 95818

MCNEALY TAMARA A &
MCNEALY THOMAS J
PO BOX 304
WALTERVILLE, OR 97489

MCQUIDDY DANNY &
CRUTCHER MCQUIDDY PAMELA
195 NW 70TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MEALING ROBERT A
3021 SOUTH SHORE DR SE
ALBANY, OR 97322

MEEKO JOSEPH G IV &
MEEKO CARMEN F
19990 SE DEBORA DR
BORING, OR 97009

MELDRUM JOHN C TSTEE &
MELDRUM LEA C TSTEE
580 CENTER ST NE
STE 730
SALEM, OR 97301

MEYER DOROTHY
PO BOX 1604
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MIDDLEBROOKS AMANDA
PO BOX 478
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MILLIREN DANIEL LEE
216 PAXTON RD
KELSO, WA 98626

N~
Lo
i

MCKIBBEN HOWARD D TRUSTEE &
MCKIBBEN MARY ANN TRUSTEE
PO BOX 588
VERDI, NV 89439

MCMAHAN JOHN D &
MCMAHAN JERILYN L
PO BOX 10
BRIGHTWOOD, OR 97011

MCPHERSON MELISSA ADRIENNE
475 SE 35TH ST
UNIT C-18
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

MCREYNOLDS LEANNE C
2618 SW BRANT ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MEDRANO PAUL GRACA
11715 EXETER AVE NE
SEATTLE, WA 98125

MEILI DENNIS W TSTEE &
MEILI SANDRA L TSTEE
PO BOX 42203
EUGENE, OR 97404

MELO ROBERTR &
MELO DEBRA A
11444 SE 89TH
NEWCASTLE, WA 98056

MEYERS ROBERT &
MEYERS PATRICIA ANN
425 PARK ST
CHINA GROVE, NC 28023

MIKE AND MEG LLC
1779 NW TROON CT
MCMINNVILLE, OR 97128

MINES GARY L TRUSTEE &
MINES VICKI R TRUSTEE
9509 NE 73RD ST
VANCOUVER, WA 98662



MINOR CHRIS & MARY
517 SW MINNIE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MINOR KEITH TRUSTEE &
MINOR LISA TRUSTEE
1806 EAST MAIN ST
MEDFORD, OR 97504

MITCHELL DAVID E &
MITCHELL ALICEE
144 SW 28TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MO PROPERTIES LLC
622 SW BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MONTGOMERY BARBARA
1431 NW SPRING ST
UNIT A
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MOORE CASEY C &
MOORE MARCIA L
10610 NE 9TH PL
BELLEVUE, WA 98004

MOORE HELEN
PO BOX 1867
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MOORE MICHAEL D &
MOORE LAURIE C
6421 NW OAK CREEK DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

MOREHOUSE JOHN MATTHEW TTEE
199 SHADOW LN
GRANTS PASS, OR 97526

MORRIS JOHN & GRETCHEN LVG TR &

MORRIS JOHN E TRUSTEE & MORRIS
GRETCHEN R TRUSTEE
6315 NW PONDEROSA AVE
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

MINOR JOHN C &
MINOR MARY C
517 SW MINNIE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MIRANDA RAFAEL &
MIRANDA MARGARET ANN
3104 NW MORNING GLORY DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

MITCHELL JOHN C &
MITCHELL GERRI U
1405 ROCKHAVEN DR
MODESTO, CA 95356

MOELLER MARTIN R JR TSTEE &
BOJONELL HILAIRE A TSTEE
7167 NW OAK CREEK DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

MONTGOMERY JOHN &
MONTGOMERY CINDY
1215 OAK ST
JUNCTION CITY, OR 97448

MOORE CHARLES J &
MOORE JILL L
2825 NE BIG CREEK RD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MOORE JUSTIN MICHEAL
15700 44TH AVE W
APT G206
LYNNWOOD, WA 98087

MORA DARIN J &
MORA BILJANA

311 VINCENT PL
ELGIN, IL 60123

MORGAN DEBRA E TRUSTEE
1675 MEEK ST
THE DALLES, OR 97058

MORRISON CHARLES N JR

% IVERSON JAMES C & IVERSON LINDA

S, CONT
767 NW CROSS ST
SEAL ROCK, OR 97376

[ee]
L]
—

MINOR JOHN CHRISTOPHER &
MINOR MARY C
517 SW MINNIE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MITCHELL BOB G
ATTN MITCHELL HOMES
1120 LINNWOOD DR
ALBANY, OR 97322

MIZE MARK &
MIZE NANCY SUE
215 SW 60TH LOOP
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MONDEN DENISE L &
MONDEN DENNIS L
1440 GEYSER CT
THOUSAND OAKS, CA 91320

MOORE ASSETS LLC
6421 NW OAK CREEK DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

MOORE DANIEL S &
MCKENZIE MELODIE A
220 SW 61ST ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

MOORE MICHAEL D
6421 NW OAK CREEK DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

MORAN MICHAEL O COTRUSTEE &
MORAN JAQUELYNN M H COTRUSTEE
4421 SW MELVILLE AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97239

MORIN KENNETH M &
MORIN CAROLYN A
5920 MALTON AVE

SIMI VALLEY, CA 93063

MORRONE NATALE
704 NW BEACH DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365



MORROW GENI L
2679 UNIVERSITY ST
EUGENE, OR 97403

MOSER FAMILY LLC
3862 N SHASTA LOOP
EUGENE, OR 97405

MOUNTAIN SEAS DEVELOPMENT LTD
PO BOX 680844
PARK CITY, UT 84068

MSM PROPERTIES LLC
ATTN STEVEN W MOCK
2397 NW KINGS BLVD #173
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

MULTI RESORTS OWNRSHP PLAN INC
ATTN OWNERS RESORT & EXCH INC
1521 EAST 3900 SOUTH
SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84124

MURRY RICHARD G
PO BOX 1050
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MYERS JAMES W &
MYERS SUSAN R & MYERS ETHEL B
586 SW 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NAFTZGER DEBORAH F
833 SW 13TH ST
#1
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NATHAN ANTHONY R &
MARTINO NATHAN PATRICIA
PO BOX 1865
RICHMOND HILL, GA 31324

NEAL BROOK &
ISHIKAWA TATSUO
PO BOX 16417
MISSOULA, MT 59808

MORTENSEN RONAL L &
CAROLLO JAMES & MORTENSEN
SIGNE
91000 COMMERCIAL ST
JUNCTION CITY, OR 97448

MOSSBARGER JOHN T &
MOSSBARGER MARCIA L
PO BOX 1362
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MPITSOS KAREN J
708 NW BEACH DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MT OLYMPUS COVE LLC
ATTN ELIZABETH BREWER FRANZ
10082 SW CRYSTAL ST
BEAVERTON, OR 97008

MURPHY CRAIG S
4607 NW LAVINA ST
VANCOUVER, WA 98663

MUSOLF LYNDON R TRUSTEE &
MUSOLF BARBARA N TRUSTEE
5480 SW DOVER LOOP
PORTLAND, OR 97225

MYKLAK RINA
13111 SW ROCKINGHAM
TIGARD, OR 97223

NAGEL GEORGE E &
WICKLUND JANET
12936 SE ELDERBERRY DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

NAVEIRA DIANA L
205 OUTRIGGER DR
VALLEJO, CA 94591

NEARY LAURA
535 SW MINNIE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

(@)
L]
—

MORTON GERALD L SR TRUSTEE
614 NW 12TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MOUNTAIN PACIFIC INVEST LLC
1155 SW COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MSM BROOKSHIRE LLC
ATTN MICHAEL & MARY MCGINNIS
7215 SW ARBOR LAKE DR
WILSONVILLE, OR 97070

MUENCHMEYER HANS CHRISTIAN
2330 NE STANTON ST
PORTLAND, OR 97212

MURPHY THOMAS A TR &
MURPHY KAREL J H TR
718 SE 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MYERS AMANDA KAY &
MYERS DANIEL ERIC
2750 NE ILER ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MYRICK TIMOTHY H &
MYRICK SARAH C
1813 NE CRESTVIEW PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NAGY EVELYND
PO BOX 10412
EUGENE, OR 97440

NEAL BLAKE T
PO BOX 3767
PORTLAND, OR 97208

NEBERT DOUGLAS &
NEBERT DEE ANN
4925 NW WOODY WAY
NEWPORT, OR 97365



NEFF ROY S llI
32655 GLAISYER HILL RD
COTTAGE GROVE, OR 97424

NEIGEBAUER LINDA RAE
3914 NW CHEROKEE LN
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NEIGER HAROLD E &

SPIRTOS ANDREA C

5905 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

NELSON DAVID
PO BOX 503
TOLEDO, OR 97391

NELSON ROBERT T
1525 E ALSEA HWY
WALDPORT, OR 97394

NEVILL LELAND ROSS TTEE &
NEVILL SARA LYNN TTEE
8442 W THUNDER MOUNTAIN DR
BOISE, ID 83709

NEWMAN WALTERC IV &
TEAGUE MARK
107 MARIE CIR
ROGUE RIVER, OR 97537

NEWPORT EAGLE LLC
ATTN DAN FALCO
4101 WINDING CREEK RD
SACRAMENTO, CA 95864

NEWPORT MARINE COMPANY
ONE SW COLUMBIA
SUITE 1575
PORTLAND, OR 97258

NEWPORT REAL ESTATE LLC
3 E RAMONA AVE
COLORADO SPRINGS, CO 80905

NEFF ROY S ill &
HINES LAURI L
32655 GLAISYER HILL RD
COTTAGE GROVE, OR 97424

NEIGEBAUER LINDA RAE SELLERS-
3914 NW CHEROKEE LN
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NEIL MARK D &
HUKILL NEIL LINDA FAYE
25320 LANSING LN
MIDDLETON, ID 83644

NELSON EDWARD IMLAH &
NELSON EILEEN KREMI
160 SW 59TH ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

NEOLHA POINT HOA INC
ATTN YAQUINA BAY PROP MGMT INC
146 SE FIRST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NEWELL ALANJ &
NEWELL HILDA
48-538 DESERT FLOWER DR
PALM DESERT, CA 92260

NEWPORT AUTO CENTER INC
PO BOX 2310
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NEWPORT HOSPITALITY LLC
135 SE 32ND ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NEWPORT MARINE LIMITED PTNSHIP
ONE SW COLUMBIA
SUITE 1575
PORTLAND, OR 97258

NEWPORT TOWNHOMES LLC
ATTN JAMES D VICK
698 12TH ST SE
SUITE 230
SALEM, OR 97301

160

NEHMER JASOND &
NEHMER RACHEL R
619 NW COAST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NEIGEBAUER ROSS F &
NEIGEBAUER JANIS D
4016 NW CHEROKEE LN
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NELSON DALE & SUE ANN &
NELSON LYLE & ROSALIE
7399 HWY 219
WOODBURN, OR 97071

NELSON MICHAEL JAMES
9443 SE BIRCH ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

NESS TROYR &
NESS DOLORES J
209 SE 35TH ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

NEWMAN EMILY J
231 NW CLIFF ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NEWPORT BAY ESTATES
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION INC ATTN
TURNER DAVID ROBERT
340 N COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NEWPORT HOTEL ASSOCIATES LLC
5809 JEAN RD
LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97035

NEWPORT OCEANFRONT
ESTATE LLC
1705 N 22ND ST
BOISE, ID 83702

NEWPORT URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY
ATTN SPENCER NEBEL
169 SW COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365



NGO TUAN KIM &
PHAN LISA
7932 NE HALSEY ST
PORTLAND, OR 97213

NICHOLS VALERIE K
940 NW WESTWOOD PL
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

NOLE ALBERTH
1437 E PARK AVE NE
SALEM, OR 97301

NORDGAARDEN DARLENE G &
HAYES TERRY A
13809 CRESTED BUTTE DR NE
ALBUQUERQUE, NM 87112

NORTH SHORE TERRACE CONDO
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
433 N COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NORTHWEST PROP HOLD ORE LLC
PO BOX 422
ORANGE CITY, IA 51041

NYE BEACH HOLDINGS LLC
449 SE SCENIC LOOP
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NYE HOTEL LLC
ATTN LEE DAVID
13635 NW CORNELL RD
SUITE 170
PORTLAND, OR 97229

NYE VILLAGE ASSOCIATES
PO BOX 1930
NEWPORT, OR 97365

OAD PROPERTY COMPANY LLC
PO BOX 1957
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NGUYEN THANH N &
NGUYEN HONG T
5948 LEGACY ST SE
SALEM, OR 97306

NIELSEN DAVID DUSTIN TRUSTEE &
NIELSEN TOBY LYNN TRUSTEE
31947 W OCEAN AVE
ARCH CAPE, OR 97102

NOLTA DUSTIN L
PO BOX 815
TOLEDO, OR 97391

NORRIS TREVOR J REV LVG TRST &
NORRIS TREVOR J TRUSTEE
1 FISHERMANS REACH
ROSS ON WYE, HR9 6BE

NORTHAM JOYCE H TRUSTEE
4125 NW TAMARACK DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

NORWOOD JAMES TODD
PO BOX 201
YACHATS, OR 97498

NYE BEACH PLAZA CONDOMINIUMS
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS ATTN
ROGER ANTHONY
4224 SE LAMBERT
PORTLAND, OR 97206

NYE PLACE LLC
13999 S CLACKAMAS RIVER DR
OREGON CITY, OR 97045

NYE VILLAGE OFFICE CONDO
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
530 NW 3RD ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

OBERBILLIG ROBERT L TRUSTEE &
OBERBILLIG JUDITH A TRUSTEE
150 SW 61ST ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

i
O
i

NGUYEN TUAN TRUSTEE &
NGUYEN UYEN TRUSTEE
17 DRY CREEK LN
LAGUNA HILLS, CA 92653

NIX HENRY DANIEL JR &
NIX LYNNE B
2031 ROCKWOOD DR
SACRAMENTO, CA 95864

NORBURY SARA &
NORBURY REGINALD
5382 SUNNYVIEW RD NE
SALEM, OR 97305

NORTH SEA PROPERTIES LLC
ATTN CHAMPION STUART
5331 SW MACADAM AVE
STE 258
PORTLAND, OR 97239

NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS CO
AIMONE DAVID W, TREASURY MGR
220 NW SECOND AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97209

NOVELLO JOSEPH Ill &
NOVELLO MARGARET ANN
227 NE SAN-BAY-0O CIRCLE

NEWPORT, OR 97365

NYE DANIELLE EASLY &
NYE SANDERS MCFARLAND
63890 JOHNSON RD
BEND, OR 97701

NYE SANDS CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
507 NW ALPINE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NYGAARD MARY
1030 SW MARK ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

OBTESHKA TERRY L &
OBTESHKA EILEEN G
105 NW COAST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365



OCEAN EQUITY INVESTMENTS LLC
526 NW COAST AVE
STEA
NEWPORT, OR 97365

OCONNELL KENNETH R TRUSTEE &
OCONNELL GWYNETH P TRUSTEE
220 WEST 23RD AVE
EUGENE, OR 97405

ODMAN PATRICIA COTSTEE &
ODMAN DELBERT COTSTEE
PO BOX 9546
YAKIMA, WA 98909

OHEARN TIMOTHY
PO BOX 2515
SAUSALITO, CA 94966

OLD TOWN CONDOMINIUMS
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
501 COLDWATER CRK DR
ROCK SPRINGS, WY 82901

OLSEN JEFFRY SCOTT TRUSTEE &
OLSEN ELIZABETH THERESA TTEE
2407 NW PACIFIC ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

OLSON TWYLAH F
PO BOX 81
NEWPORT, OR 97365

OPHEIM TAMMY &
OPHEIM JOEL
14151 NW WILLIS RD
MCMINNVILLE, OR 97128

OREGON BEACH HIDEAWAYS LLC
17067 HOOD CT
SANDY, OR 97055

OREGON COAST PARADISE LLC
22226 CLIFF AVE S
#204
DES MOINES, WA 98198

OCEAN VISTA CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
801 NW COAST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ODELL GARY R & JANE E DEC TRST
7153 CEDAR OAKS DR
GRANITE BAY, CA 95746

OFFICER CASEY W &
OFFICER DONNA M
238 NW 24TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

OKA JOANNE
PO BOX 543
NEWPORT, OR 97365

OLDENBURG LELAND
PO BOX 1802
NEWPORT, OR 97365

OLSON MARGARET M TSTEE
9705 SW EAGLE LN
BEAVERTON, OR 97008

OMALLEY MARTIN JAMES TSTEE
475 SE 35TH ST
UNIT B-9
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

ORANGE LINDA J &
HUFFMAN ARDIS L
1420 NW SPRING ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

OREGON COAST AQUARIUM INC
PO BOX 2000
NEWPORT, OR 97365

OREGON MINK INC
11658 BARON RD
MT ANGEL, OR 97362

N
O
—

OCEANS EDGE LLC
ATTN MATHEWS DON & FRANCES
345 SW BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ODELL MICHAEL &
KENNEDY TERESA
6024 SW CUPOLA DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

OGARA MICHAEL J &
OGARA JANELLEI
7524 SW LAVIEW DR
7524 SW LAVIEW DR
PORTLAND, OR 97219

OKUNO KOJI
316 N LOTUS ISLE DR
PORTLAND, OR 97217

OLIVE STREET LLC
ATTN CHARLOTTE A BOXER
4627 N CONGRESS AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97217

OLSON ROBERT E TRUSTEE &
OLSON JERRYANN TRUSTEE
230 NE SAN-BAY-O CIR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ONEIL THOMAS A TSTEE &
ONEIL ROSEMARY J TSTEE
2223 PRIMROSE LOOP
PHILOMATH, OR 97370

ORCA HOUSE LLC
PO BOX 10788
SPOKANE, WA 99209

OREGON COAST BANK INC
PO BOX 2280
NEWPORT, OR 97365

OREGON MUSEUM OF

SCIENCE & INDUSTRY ATTN CARLSON

PAUL E
1945 SE WATER AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97214



OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY
306 KERR ADMINISTRATION BLDG
CORVALLIS, OR 97331

OSTERHOUDT MICHELE R
544 NW 15TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PAC PERL LLC
PO BOX 2658
ALBANY, OR 97321

PACIFIC CREST CONDOMINIUMS
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION INC ATTN
JOHN MELDRUM TREASURER
13705 COON HOLLOW RD SE
SUBLIMITY, OR 97385

PACK GILLIANF M
76 NW 33RD PL
UNIT G
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PALMER LEVORA
PO BOX 2207
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PARASHAK BONNIE L TRUSTEE &
PARASHAK PAUL M TRUSTEE
1323 NE 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PARKER LARRY E COTRUSTEE &
PARKER EILEEN COTRUSTEE
PO BOX 74
SILETZ, OR 97380

PARKS ROBERTE &
PARKS DEBRA RAE
321 SE FOGARTY ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PARNES EILEEN M
1000 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT B-2
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ORR RODNEY E TRUSTEE &
GREIG SHANDRA D TRUSTEE
14777 EVANS VALLEY RD
SILVERTON, OR 97381

OUDERKIRK J F &
PRICE FRANK STEPHEN TSTEE & PRICE
THERESE M WANNER TSTEE
855 CHRISTIANSEN RD
TOLEDO, OR 97391

PACES MILL LLC
ATTN GERALD BARRETT
PO BOX 1514
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PACIFIC HOMES BEACH CLUB
HOMEOWNERS ASSN INC
3339 NE AVERY ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PALACIOS DANIEL
5805 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

PALSER GREGORY J TSTEE &
HARLAND DEBRA L TSTEE
2560 NW PACIFIC ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PARCO MARIE J TRUSTEE
18124 WEDGE PRKWY
#915
RENO, NV 89511

PARKER LARRY E TRUSTEE &
PARKER BISSON EILEEN TRUSTEE
PO BOX 74
SILETZ, OR 97380

PARMA NORTHWEST INC
235 MAPLEWOOD RD
RIVERSIDE, IL 60546

PARQUE ANTOINETTE E &
TRANTOW WAYNE D
9635 SW WASHINGTON PL
PORTLAND, OR 97225

[92]
O
—

OSHANICK LARRY &
OSHANICK KAREN
2525 NE BIG CREEK RD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

OUDERKIRK W § WOODY
2844 SW BRANT ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PACIFIC CHOICE SEAFOOD CO
ATTN PACIFIC SHRIMP CO
PO BOX 1230
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PACIFIC SHORES RV RESORT
OWNER'S ASSOCIATION ATTN
RITACCO CO
924 SW 8TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PALM CHRISTOPHER &
PALM LYNDA
1000 SE BAY BLVD
#537
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PAPPALARDO VINCENT J
4624 NW CHEROKEE LN
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PARKER CHILDRENS TRUST &
PARKER LARRY TRUSTEE
PO BOX 74
SILETZ, OR 97380

PARKER MIKE THOMAS
733 NW SECOND ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PARNAS MARGARETT &
PARNAS STANLEY J & ELKS JENNIFER
R
7250 SANDY PLAINS AVE
LAS VEGAS, NV 89131

PARRISH GILFORD L TSTEE &

PARRISH KATHLEEN G TSTEE

6804 N PLACITA CHULA VISTA
TUCSON, AZ 85704



PARSONS BRUCE C TRUSTEE &
PARSONS BRUCE C TRUSTEE
PO BOX 190
TOLEDO, OR 97391

PASSMORE LANETTE &
PASSMORE MITCHELL & PASSMORE
DELPHI
132 SW 27TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PATTON LANCE J &
PATTON TERRA L
6797 SW WINDING WAY
CORVALLIS, OR 97333

PAVLISICK MARK ANDREW
PO BOX 191
WALDPORT, OR 97394

PEITERSON DANA M TSTEE &
PEITERSON GAIL A TSTEE &
PEITERSON GAIL & DANA TTEES
1254 MOKAPU BLVD
KAILUA, HI 96734

PENDLETON JEFFREY R &
HEWITT KELLY C
2840 NE ILER ST

NEWPORT, OR 97365

PERKINS DEANE M &
PERKINS BARBARA L
PO BOX 1814
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PERRY ANTHONY J &
PERRY VIRGINIA H
5645 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

PETERS MICHELE A
6026 SW CUPOLA DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PETERSON SUSANNA J
2766 NW PACIFIC PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PARSONS MICHAEL G &
PARSONS SANDRA A
1447 NW THOMPSON ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PASSMORE MITCHELL W &
PASSMORE DELPHI M
132 SW 27TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PATTON LANCE J TSTEE &
PATTON TERRA L TSTEE
6797 SW WINDING WAY
CORVALLIS, OR 97333

PAVLOVICH JOHN &
VANDAALEN KATHLEEN ANN
802 LIVE OAK ST
BAY CITY, TX 77414

PELICAN HOUSE LLC
ATTN GERALD HUGHES
PO BOX 10788
SPOKANE, WA 99209

PENTER WARREN H TRUSTEE
434 SE GRANT ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PERLENFEIN MIKE &
PERLENFEIN DELORIS
2858 NW PINEVIEW DR

ALBANY, OR 97321

PERSINGER HAROLD D TRUSTEE
844 SE 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PETERSON NORMAN S TRUSTEE &
PETERSON ROSEMARY TRUSTEE
63 CHESNEY DR
HENDERSON, NV 89074

PFAU KRISTINE LOUISE TRUSTEE
700 WB ST
DIXON, CA 95620

<
O
—

PARSONS STANLEY S &
PARSONS KAYE D
1815 29TH AVE W
EUGENE, OR 97405

PATEL JAYANTIN &
PATEL SAROJ J
PO BOX 1900
CLACKAMAS, OR 97015

PAVELEK GERALD F &
PAVELEK ANNE M & PAVELEK
RICHARD A & PAMELA
3592 BUENA VISTARD S
JEFFERSON, OR 97352

PEDERSON JENS C &
PEDERSON KATHERINE L
PO BOX 247
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

PENCE EONN M &
PENCE CHARLA M
1000 SE BAY BLVD
#546
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PERKINS CAROL J
1417 NW THOMPSON ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PERLENFEIN STEVEN R TRUSTEE
631 KOUNS DR NW
ALBANY, OR 97321

PESTANA RICKY D &
PESTANA JANICE M
750 1ST
UNIT 12
LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97034

PETERSON ROY C
2748 NNW PACIFIC PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PFORSICH GUY R &
SHERMER ANGIE M
61907 BROKEN TOP DR
BEND, OR 97702



PHILLIPS VICKIE LEE TRUSTEE
2840 NE HARNEY DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PIETI MICHAEL &
PIETI ANGELA
5615 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

PIONEER TELEPHONE COOP
ATTN MIKE WHALEN FINANCIAL
MANAGER
PO BOX 631
PHILOMATH, OR 97370

PLETSCHET FRANCES B TSTEE
PO BOX 2220
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PORT DOCK FOUR CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
313 SW 2ND ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PORT OF NEWPORT
% USA NOAA LEASE ATTN: KUNZE
MOLLY
7600 SAND POINT WAY NE
SEATTLE, WA 98115

POST DANIEL A TRUSTEE &
POST NANCY C TRUSTEE
2771 NW PINEVIEW DR
ALBANY, OR 97321

POTTHOFF JOHN TRUSTEE &
POTTHOFF HARU KAY TRUSTEE
4905 TURNER RD SE
SALEM, OR 97317

PRANTL LAWRENCE J
2902 NW BAYSHORE LP
WALDPORT, OR 97394

PREECE ALLAN E
PO BOX 628
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PICKENS STANLEY S TRUST
PICKENS STANLEY S TRUSTEE
PO BOX 128
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PIETROK2LLC
665 N 164TH ST
OMAHA, NE 68118

PLANT KAY C TRUST &
PLANT GEORGE JR TRUSTEE
1183 SE HARBOR CRESCENT DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PONDER HAYDEN L SR
ATTN VICKIE S MAY
5000 SAN MARQUE CIR
CARMICHAEL, CA 95608

PORT OF NEWPORT
% POWELL JERRY D & POWELL
BARBARA L LEASE
343 SW BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PORT OF NEWPORT

% OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY LEASE

ADMIN SVC BLDG A 524
911 NE 11TH AV
CORVALLIS, OR 97331

POTTHOFF JOHN &
POTTHOFF KAY
4905 TURNER RD SE
SALEM, OR 97317

POWELL JEFF &
POWELL TAMMY
PO BOX 813
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PRATER BEACH SHACK LLC
1166 NW SOLAR PLACE
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

PREMO JANICE C &

GRAHN PAMELA S

6968 OAKRIDGE DR
GLADSTONE, OR 97027

L0
O
i

PIERSMA RANDALL J &
PIERSMA BONNIE LEE
4732 CARIBOU DR SW

ALBANY, OR 97321

PINA RICHARD A
1980 NE STURDEVANT RD
TOLEDO, OR 97391

PLEDGER WILLIAM H &
PLEDGER FELICIA C
19720 INNES MKT RD

BEND, OR 97701

POPE MAX A & ROBERTA |
PO BOX 86
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PORT OF NEWPORT
600 SE BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PORT OF NEWPORT
% OREGON COAST AQUARIUM INC
LEASE
PO BOX 2000
NEWPORT, OR 97365

POTTHOFF JOHN COTRUSTEE &
POTTHOFF KAY COTRUSTEE
2764 CINDERCONE CT SE
SALEM, OR 97306

POWELL JEROLD H
PO BOX 522
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

PRATT MARVIN &
PRATT DAWN D
3437 SW HIGHWAY 47
FOREST GROVE, OR 97116

PRENTICE MAEGAN
32483 OAKVILLE RD
SITE #21
ALBANY, OR 97321



PRESCOTT BRIAN DAVID &
PRESCOTT WENDY CRISTEEN
230 SW61ST ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

PRIDGEON JEFFREY C &
PRIDGEON JILL B
515 W OLIVE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PUD REV INVESTMENT LLC
844 NE NEWPORT HEIGHTS DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PURDY LUKAS
PO BOX 1797
BEND, OR 97709

QUIRKE MATTHEW PATRICK
PO BOX 91
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RADER DEL &
RADER COLLEEN
16500 NE 36TH ST

VANCOUVER, WA 98682

RAIRIGH DON P &
RAIRIGH LEONA S
28145 E HWY 20
BEND, OR 97701

RANDONE PAMELA INEZ TRUSTEE &

GORTON DAVID W
PO BOX 574
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

RAV RE HOLDINGS LLC
ATTN RONALD VORMITTAG
PO BOX 2920
OREGON CITY, OR 97045

REDEAU SHARONE &
NICHOLSON MARK D
10631 248TH AVE NE
REDMOND, WA 98053

PRICE ANNE E
12844 SE 235TH PL
KENT, WA 98031

PRIMONT DANIEL A &
PRIMONT DIANE F
235 SW 60TH LP
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

PUENTES PHILLIP J TRUSTEE &
PUENTES DENISE TRUSTEE
6971 RIESLING WAY SE
SALEM, OR 97306

QUINN MARY LOU
2620 SW BRANT ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

R C CONSULTING INC
ATTN RAUL R C CHAVEZ
2701 DEL PASO RD
STE 130332
SACRAMENTO, CA 95835

RAGLAND FALESIA INEZ
613 18TH ST
#A
RICHMOND, CA 94801

RAJALA DONNA M (TOD)
507 NW ALPINE ST
UNIT 304
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RASMUSSEN ALFRED J &
CODY CHARLOTTE A
1542 NW SPRING ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

REA NEAL F TSTEE &
REA JANA J TSTEE
607 SE 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

REDFIELD MARK E
PO BOX 811
SALEM, OR 97308

166

PRICE MATTHEW C &
PRICE ERIN M
19 FIRESIDE DR
BOX 2
CADMENTON, MO 65020

PUBLIC PARK

PURCELL DONALD E
890 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT 113
NEWPORT, OR 97365

QUINTESSENTIAL COFFEES LLC
1101 MATTHEWS
WASHOUGAL, WA 98671

RABIDEAU LARRY &
MANN CHERYL
144 PT FOSDICK CIR NW
GIG HARBOR, WA 98335

RAINERY RICHARD L &
KLOSE KAY E
1144 SW MARK ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RAMSOSA LLC
87300 GYPSY LN
EUGENE, OR 97402

RAUSCHENBACH RORY &
RAUSCHENBACH LEILA
21975 GRAND AVE
WILDOMAR, CA 92595

REDDING KEVIN
890 SE BAY BLVD #306
NEWPORT, OR 97365

REDHAWK RENTALS LLC
1075 YASEK LOOP
TOLEDO, OR 97391



REED JEFFR &
REED LEONA A
1304 NEWALL RD
NEWBERG, OR 97132

REICH DANNY E &
REICH TERESA G
142 VALLEY CHAPEL RD
WALLA WALLA, WA 99367

REINWASSER RANDOLPH A TTEE
4301 NW CHEROKEE LN
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RGH SB PROPERTY LLC
PO BOX 501
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RICHEN SYLVIAM &
JOLLEY RICK B & HOUGHTON CYNTHIA
L
9130 SW SUMMERFIELD CT
TIGARD, OR 97224

RICHMOND REGINALD RAY TTEE &
RICHMOND SHERREL RAE TTEE
890 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT 210
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RIDER ROY L REVOC LVG TRUST &
RIDER SANDRA N REVOC LVG TST &
RIDER ROY L & SANDRA N TRSTEES

6230 NW VINEYARD DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

RIZZUTI JOHN RAYMOND &
RIZZUTI SUEANNE
1634 SORRENTO LN
RICHLAND, WA 99352

ROBERTS KENT B &
ROBERTS LORI S
375 CORBETT CREEK RD
COLVILLE, WA 99114

ROBINSON DOUGLAS &
ROBINSON CUTTALIYA
PO BOX 83
CORVALLIS, OR 97339

REED MARY BETH
41642 FISH HATCHERY DR
SCIO, OR 97374

REICHSTEINWH & RUTH &
ALEXANDER MARION ATTN SCHEPP
SUZANNE
550 ELM WAY #301
EDMONDS, WA 98020

REITZ RANDALL C TRUSTEE &
REITZ JANICE D TRUSTEE
1660 N DOWER AVE
FRESNO, CA 93723

RICE JASON M
18425 NE MARINE DR
SLIP C6
PORTLAND, OR 97230

RICHMOND REGINALD R TRUSTEE &
RICHMOND SHERREL R TRUSTEE &
BSG GROUP LLC
890 SE BAY BLVD, UNIT 210
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RICKUS MICHAEL A &
RICKUS JULIAM
156 NW 73RD CT

NEWPORT, OR 97365

RIEDL JOHN J &
HILLYER REBECCA L
5529 QUINCE ST NE
SALEM, OR 97305

ROBERTS CASEY &
ROBERTS VICKY
904 KUPULAU DR

KIHEI, HI 96753

ROBERTS YOLANDA LISA
1411 W PIKES PEAK AVE
COLORADO SPRINGS, CO 80904

ROBINSON MARK C &
ROBINSON JANICE M
324 MIRAFIELD LN
AUSTIN, TX 78737

N~
(o]
i

REGATTA CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
144 SW 26TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

REINHARD CAROL S TRUSTEE
21680 BUTTE RANCH RD
BEND, OR 97702

REYNOLDS D RICHARD &
REYNOLDS MARIANNE
211 NW73RD CT
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RICHARDS SANDRA G &
RICHARDS BRIDGET E
655 SE 22ND ST
OCALA, FL 34471

RICHMOND REGINALD RAY TRSTEE &
RICHMOND SHERRELL RAE TRSTEE &
BSG GROUP LLC
890 SE BAY BLVD, UNIT 210
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RIDDLE GORDON H lil &
RIDDLE CAROL A
155 SW 27TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RIPLEY KENNETH S
9211 124TH ST NE
ARLINGTON, WA 98223

ROBERTS DORIS M TRUSTEE &
ROBERTS C L & WOOLSEY J &
MCKINNEY PHYLLIS
256 EAGLE POINT DR
WOODLAND, WA 98674

ROBESON CHRISTINA
ATTN EMBARCADERO
1000 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT C-107
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ROCA PROPERTY MGMT LLC
601 E 3RD ST
THE DALLES, OR 97058



ROCHA DEBORAH S
PO BOX 1102
ACTON, CA 93510

ROGERS JEAN M
12721 QUARTZ VALLEY RD
FORT JONES, CA 96032

ROGGENSACK JODY M &
ROGGENSACK RICHARD D
890 N GRANT ST
CANBY, OR 97013

ROLES WILMA E (TOD)
834 SW 13TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ROLSTON RICHARD D TRUSTEE &
ROLSTON JANA M TRUSTEE
1608 HAVEMEYER LANE
REDONDO BEACH, CA 90278

RONDYS & ASSOCIATES INC
% PORT OF NEWPORT LEASE
600 SE BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ROSE BRIAN S TSTEE &
ROSE JULIE M TSTEE
637 SE SAINT ANDREWS DR
PORTLAND, OR 97202

ROSE SCOTT &
ESTEP ERIN
3960 STERLING WOODS DR
EUGENE, OR 97408

ROWBOTHAM LYNN D TSTEE &
ROWBOTHAM RANDALL G TSTEE &
BORTON HALEY TSTEE
25000 NW ST HELENS RD, #4
PORTLAND, OR 97231

ROWLEY WILLIAM D TRUSTEE
PO BOX 1746
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RODDEN MARY ANN
411 36TH WAY
SACRAMENTO, CA 95816

ROGERS JOHNR &
ROGERS DEANNA K
412 SE FOGARTY ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ROHUS DAVID G &
ROHUS TRACEY G
4784 NE VAUGHN AVE
TERREBONNE, OR 97760

ROLIE FAMILY LLC
18075 S ABIQUA RD NE
SILVERTON, OR 97381

ROMERO S JULIA
4618 NW CHEROKEE LN
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ROPP HOWARD
5995 NE HWY 20
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

ROSE J SCOTT COTSTEE &
ROSE JENNIFER STONE COTSTEE
2400 WESTON CENTRE
112 E PECAN; STE 2400
SAN ANTONIO, TX 78205

ROTHJTJR &
ROTH THERESA
PO BOX 4564
TUALATIN, OR 97062

ROWEN ROBERTD &
ROWEN DONNA M
PO BOX 777
CAMAS, WA 98607

ROWLEYS STORAGE LLC
4822 S COAST HWY
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

(o]
O
—

ROGERS GARRY &
LUTZ ANN
480 20TH ST SE
SALEM, OR 97301

ROGERS VERNON DAVID JR &
ROGERS RHONDA
PO BOX 82
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ROHUS GENE &
ROHUS TRACEY
4784 NE VAUGHN AVE
TERREBONNE, OR 97760

ROLIE LOREN P
18075 S ABIQUA RD NE
SILVERTON, OR 97381

ROMINES ROBERT T &
ROMINES AYMEE M
143 SW CLIFF ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

ROSBOROUGH ROBERT J
37680 S HWY 213
MT ANGEL, OR 97362

ROSE KURT M TRUSTEE &
ROSE KATHERINE A TRUSTEE
40698 MCDOWELL CRK DR
LEBANON, OR 97355

ROTH JOSEPH C &
ROTH PAULA C & DIAZ RAMON
STEPHAN
PO BOX 92
LOCKWOOD, CA 93932

ROWLEY DONALD M TRUSTEE &
ROWLEY JEAN TRUSTEE
PO BOX 133
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RTGLLC
ATTN RALPH GOODWIN
PO BOX 455
JOHN DAY, OR 97845



RTH RENTALS LLC
PO BOX 501
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RUEGSEGGER NEAL &
RUEGSEGGER LYLLIAN
1016 SW MARK ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RUHLAND W STEVEN TRUSTEE &
AVRITT JUDITH K TRUSTEE
19981 EVELYN CT

SONORA, CA 95370

RYDER THOMAS R TSTEE &
RYDER CAROLYN H TSTEE
370 SW COLUMBIA ST
BEND, OR 97702

SACKET MILA
1112 SW MARK ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SALTER MICHAEL &
SALTER WANDA J
11603 E WETHERSFIELD
SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85259

SANFORD JULIE K &
EVANS RICHARD J
2380 SQUAK MTN LP SW
ISSAQUAH, WA 98027

SARGERT BARRY ETAL
% PORT OF NEWPORT LEASE
600 SE BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SAVICKY RICHARD
UHLENHAKE MARVIN & E
111 MAIN ST
SPRINGFIELD, OR 97477

SAXTON FRED S &
SAXTON BONNIE J
1081 SE 1ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RUDINSKY PAUL & CATHY &
HARRISON JAMES & MADELAINE
86325 WILD TURKEY WAY
EUGENE, OR 97402

RUFUS BETTY L (TOD)
1534 NW SPRING ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RUTLEDGE KIRK G &

RUTLEDGE KAREN H

2120 TURNAGE ST NW
SALEM, OR 97304

S BEACH OREGON LLC

PO BOX 727

PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366

SAKHINA AWAL LLC
1982 KODIAK ST SwW
ALBANY, OR 97321

SAMMONS B F &
SAMMONS LYNDAR
2512 THOMAS PL
FORT WORTH, TX 76107

SANTUARIO JESUS
2219 NE DOUGLAS AVE
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SATO JUSTIN &
SATO TAMARAH
20131 SERANGO DR
WEST LINN, OR 97068

SAVICKY RICHARD T
111 MAIN ST
SPRINGFIELD, OR 97477

SAXTON FREDERICK M &
SAXTON TONYA M
9459 SE CEDAR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

(o))
O
—

RUEF CLEM SR LLC
11658 BARON RD NE
MT ANGEL, OR 97362

RUGGERI JAMES L &
RUGGERI CAROL B
1121 SE SPRUCE WAY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RV AGATE BEACH LLC
ATTN JULIE HARRIS VESTA
HOSPITALITY LLC
900 WASHINGTON ST #760

VANCOUVER, WA 98660

SACCHETTI JOSEPH A TRUSTEE &
SACCHETTI JULIE M TRUSTEE
6016 SW CUPOLA DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

SALEM SOUTHSHORE LLC
3470 MOCK ORANGE CT S
SALEM, OR 97302

SANDERS PAULETTE E
PO BOX 1306
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SARGERT BARRY
PO BOX 1642
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SAVAGE JOHN MARSHALL &
SAVAGE KIM ELAINE
PO BOX 189
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

SAVICKY RICHARD T &
OBRIEN DAWN A
34332 SEAVEY LOOP RD
EUGENE, OR 97405

SAYLER STEPHANIE M TRUSTEE &
BRUCE MERRITT N TRUSTEE
12 THOMAS OWENS WAY
STE 100
MONTEREY, CA 93940



SCANLON MIKE &
SCANLON SONJA
646 WIMBLEDON CT
EUGENE, OR 97401

SCHAAP PAULA &
KADEL ANDREW
2213 RIVER PLAZA DR
SACRAMENTO, CA 95833

SCHIEWE ROY &
SCHIEWE COLLEEN
103 SE BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SCHMIDT JON &
SCHMIDT CARMEN
5419 YAQUINA BAY RD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SCHONAU MARKR &
SCHONAU KATHLEEN A
2807 E DESERT LN
PHOENIX, AZ 85042

SCHRANTZ JEFFREY
152 SE VIEW DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SCHROEDER W L TSTEE
635 NW 34TH ST
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

SCHUTTPELZ HAROLD J &
SCHUTTPELZ BEVERLY Y
826 SE 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SCOTT LORNA AVERY TSTEE
1182 NW CHARLEMAGNE PL
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

SEAPY JANE M TRUST &

SEAPY JANE M TRUSTEE & SEAPY

ROBERT W TRUSTEE
14741 SE FOSTER RD
PORTLAND, OR 97236

SCANLON ROBERTR &
SCANLON JANET E
PO BOX 973
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SCHATZ RICHARD L &
SCHATZ MICHAEL W ATTN HENRY T
SCHATZ
7420 NORTH STREET SW
LAKEWOOD, WA 98498

SCHKADE PATRICIA A TRUSTEE
ATTN JENNIFER LEEJOICE
238 DESERT ARROYO CT
HENDERSON, NV 89012

SCHMITHORST HAL A
628 MIAMI AVE
TERRANCE PARK, OH 45174

SCHOONER LANDING SHARE
ASSOCIATION
PO BOX 703
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SCHRANZ CARL &
SCHRANZ DIANE
1298 S KALAMATH
DENVER, CO 80223

SCHUDEL STEVEN P TRUSTEE &
SCHUDEL JULIE A TRUSTEE
3430 BELL FOUNTAIN RD
CORVALLIS, OR 97333

SCONCE JOHN &
SCONCE KATHLEEN
5405 NW PACIFIC COAST HWY
#44
WALDPORT, OR 97394

SEA REACH CONDO
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
2750 SW COHO ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SEARS GERALDINE L TSTEE
890 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT 209
NEWPORT, OR 97365

o
=
i

SCARBOROUGH JENNIE E
216 SE 35TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SCHIBIG PAUL L
PO BOX 1637
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SCHLECHTER ANTONEP &
SCHLECHTER THERESA M
PO BOX 525
GERVAIS, OR 97026

SCHMOLZI RUSSELL W &
SCHMOLZI WENDY M
1000 SE BAY BLVD
C-19
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SCHOPP DENNIS &
SCHOPP NANCY JO
60 HAWORTH RD
PASCO, WA 99301

SCHROEDER SKY &
SCHROEDER OLIVIA
4915 NW WOODY WAY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SCHUTTPELZ BEVERLY
826 SE 5TH
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SCOTT JULIAN E TRUSTEE &
SCOTT BEVERLY J TRUSTEE
8555 SE 28TH AVE
MILWAUKIE, OR 97222

SEA SYSTEMS INC
1102 SE SPRUCE WAY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SEASCAPE CONDO INC

ATTN SEASCAPE UNIT OWNERS ASSN

BEULAH DAVIS TREAS
1013 BISMARK ST
KLAMATH FALLS, OR 97601



SEASCAPE CONDO INC
ATTN SEASCAPE UNIT OWNERS ASSN
ATTN SALLY LINDSEY
1908 NE SISKIYOU ST
PORTLAND, OR 97212

SEASCAPE CONDO INC
ATTN SEASCAPE UNIT OWNRS ASSN
PIOTTER VICKI
PO BOX 2276
JASPER, OR 97438

SEAVIEW HOMES LLC
193 NW 70TH
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SEMM RUSSELL
6300 CORNELL RD
LINCOLN, NE 68516

SEVERSON CHARLES F il &
SEVERSON JANE B TRUSTEE
PO BOX 435
WALDPORT, OR 97394

SEXTON KENNETH D &
ATKINS CYNTHIAM
860 E ST NE
SALEM, OR 97301

SHANGRI LA CORP
4080 REED ROAD SE #150
SALEM, OR 97302

SHEN ALLEN KUOLUN TRUSTEE &
CHUNG CHONGLI EDITH TRUSTEE
6420 SW ARBOR DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SHILO INN NEWPORT LLC
11600 SW SHILO LN
PORTLAND, OR 97225

SHIRTS VANESSAD &
SHIRTS CHARLES E
2730 NE ILER ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SEASCAPE CONDO INC
ATTN SEASCAPE UNIT OWNERS ASSN
HILL VICKI
22597 SW 112TH AVE
TUALATIN, OR 97062

SEASONG CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
544 NW 16TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SEE DAVID M
534 N COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SERBU DANIEL A
PO BOX 716
YACHATS, OR 97498

SEVERSON CYNTHIA J &
SEVERSON THOMAS E
11915 NE HWY 99
VANCOUVER, WA 98686

SEYB STANFORD P
PO BOX 2043
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SHAPLAND MARKE &
SHAPLAND KATHERINE J
3331 FOREST GALE DR
FOREST GROVE, OR 97116

SHEPARD WARREN &
SHEPARD SALLYANN
735 COUNTY RD 70
WEISER, ID 83672

SHIM CONNIE &
SHIM JAY
PO BOX 3764
SALEM, OR 973002

SHRIFTER THOMAS C &
SHRIFTER SUSAN L
225 SW 29TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

—
N~
i

SEASCAPE CONDO INC

ATTN SEASCAPE/RICHARD SHIMMEL %

RON CHATTERTON CPA
855 E BERKELEY ST
GLADSTONE, OR 97027

SEAVERS JAMES M TSTEE &
SEAVERS JAMES M TSTEE
1102 SE SPRUCE WAY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SEIDLER ROBERTE &
SEIDLER BECKY J
85 N RIVERTON CT

OTIS, OR 97368

SEVEN MOUNTAIN INDUSTRIAL LLC
1121 SE SPRUCE WAY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SEXTON DAVID ERIC &
SEXTON NANCY EARLENE
428 WEST COAL AVE
HOBBS, NM 88240

SHAMBAUGH WALTER F &
JAMES CAROL A
3690 NE MEGGINSON ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SHATTUCK TOD L TSTEE
18425 SW PHEASANT ST
BEAVERTON, OR 97006

SHILLITTO DOUGLAS C
9001 MT LASSEN AVE
VANCOUVER, WA 98664

SHIPLEY MARY L
110 NE 32RD ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SHUBERT EUGENE &
SHUBERT LINDA
5§57 SE 4TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365



SIGLEO ANNE C
1541 NW SPRING ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SIMMONS CLAUDE B &
SIMMONS WANDA K
20680 NE SIERRA DR

BEND, OR 97701

SINISCAL GEORGE F
PO BOX 1085
LINCOLN CITY, OR 97367

SLATE JAMES L &
SLATE VIRGINIA C
40374 TONGA LN
SPRINGFIELD, OR 97478

SMITH BRADFORD M &
SMITH BEVERLY M
2455 S 5TH ST
LEBANON, OR 97355

SMITH GARYR &
SMITH CAROL S
5520 STATE LINE RD
MISSION HILLS, KS 66208

SMITH LOREN J &
SMITH NANCY L
30361 LOREN LN

CORVALLIS, OR 97333

SMITH SCOTTD &
SMITH BEVERLY S
20331 S MONPANO OVERLOOK DR
OREGON CITY, OR 97045

SMUGGLERS COVE RESORT |
OWNERS ASSOCIATION
PO BOX 1134
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SONNENBERG EUGENE A TRUSTEE &

SONNENBERG LINDA G TRUSTEE
PO BOX 275
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

SILVA JANET K
PO BOX 986
WILTON, CA 95693

SIMMONS SHARON A TRUSTEE
4004 NW WITHAM HILL DR
#166
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

SJ AUTOMOTIVE REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENTS LLC ATTN STEVEN J
JACKSON
1250 EAST1 30
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

SMI GROUP XVILLC
1030 BATTELLE BLVD
STE 102
RICHLAND, WA 99354

SMITH CATHEY E
245 NW ELDERBERRY LN
DALLAS, OR 97338

SMITH KAREN P
PO BOX 1717
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SMITH MICHAEL VALENTINE &
SMITH LYNN MCNEILL
393 N STOCKTON AVE
OTIS, OR 97368

SMITH STEPHEN F &
GRIEVE MARY E
PO BOX 1516
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SNAPPS RICHARD L &
SNAPPS VALERIE J
5852 SW CUPOLA DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SORELLAALLC
2345 SW HWY 101
DEPOE BAY, OR 97341

AN
~
i

SIMMERMAN KATHLEEN R

25115 LAVEL RD
JUNCTION CITY, OR 97448

SIMS BRETT &

SIMS KAREN J & SIMS SHANE P &

ALMA A
16370 SW STAHL DR
TIGARD, OR 97223

SKOCH JAMES M
504 HAMER RD
SILETZ, OR 97380

SMITH ANGELA A
PO BOX 2262
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SMITH G & J FAM TRST &
SMITH GARY B TRUSTEE
2421 E SOUTHERN AVE
STE 6
TEMPE, AZ 85282

SMITH KENNETH L
75-6081 ALII DR
APT #V-V 104
KAILUA KONA, HI 96740

SMITH PHYLLIS M
5629 S COAST HWY
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

SMITH VERA M ESTATE
ATTN SMITH MICHAEL T
2375 CRESTVIEWDR S
SALEM, OR 97302

SOLOMON MARK A TSTEE &
SOLOMON BARBARA L TSTEE
10296 SWEET FENNEL DR
LAS VEGAS, NV 89135

SORELLA B LLC
2345 SW HWY 101
DEPOE BAY, OR 97341



SORELLA LLC
1127 OLALLARD
TOLEDO, OR 97391

SOUTH BAY INDUSTRIAL CONDO
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS ATTN
MINOR CHRISTOPHER
PO BOX 510
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SOUTH BEACH INN VESTMENTS LLC
ATTN HOSPITALITY ASSOC INC
45 SE 32ND ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SOUTH SHORES DEVELOPMENT LLC
4809 S COAST HWY
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

SOUTHSHORE OWNERS ASSOCIATION
220 SW 62ND ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SPINK MARCUS &
SPINK DANA
PO BOX 811
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SPULNIK PHILIP A TRUSTEE
PO BOX 847
WALDPORT, OR 97394

STANWOOD FREDR &
STANWOOD PATRICIA
10881 SE 258TH PL
DAMASCUS, OR 97089

STARK NEAL E TRUSTEE
5034 SW VERMONT ST
PORTLAND, OR 97219

STATE OF OREGON
% DEPT OF FISH & WILDLIFE ATTN
KAREN TOFTE REALTY
4034 FAIRVIEW INDUSTRIAL DR SE
SALEM, OR 97302

SORENSEN DUANE L TRUSTEE &
SORENSEN MARGARET M TRUSTEE
2715 NW ROYAL OAKS DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

SOUTH BEACH COMM ASSOC
ATTN STOCKER JACK
PO BOX 176
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

SOUTH BEACH MANOR LLC
ATTN MARVIN PRATT, CEO
2040 AST
FOREST GROVE, OR 97116

SOUTHBEACH HEIGHTS LLC
ATTN HILL LLOYD W
1750 BLANKENSHIP RD
#400
WEST LINN, OR 97068

SPARROW MARGARET A &
FISCHER KAY A
24625 EVERGREEN RD
PHILOMATH, OR 97370

SPIVA JUSTIN &
SPIVA JOHN & SPIVA JC
820 WHITMAN ST
WALLA WALLA, WA 99362

SPYLLC
PO BOX 614
NEWPORT, OR 97365

STARFISH POINT CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION
140 NW 48TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

STARLIGHT ONE LLC
ATTN BORNSTEIN SEAFOODS INC ATTN
RICH GRIFFITH
PO BOX 188
BELLINGHAM, WA 98255

STATE OF OREGON
% DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION ROW
SECTION/MS#2
4040 FAIRVIEW INDUST DR SE
SALEM, OR 97302

™
N~
i

SORTE MARY JEAN TRUSTEE
1225 11TH AVE SW
ALBANY, OR 97321

SOUTH BEACH INN VESTMENTS LLC

16114 E INDIANA AVE
STE 200
SPOKANE VALLEY, WA 99216

SOUTH BEACH PROPERTY
INVESTMENTS LLC
PO BOX 97
LEBANON, OR 97355

SOUTHSHORE HOMEOWNERS ASSOC

220 62ND ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SPECTRUM PROPERTIES LLC
301 S REDWOOD ST
CANBY, OR 97013

SPROUL DANIEL | &
SPROUL SUSIE K
2710 NE HARNEY DR
NEWPORT, OR 87365

STANGER LORENE L &
STANGER GORDON R
1230 NE LAKEWOOD DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

STARFISH POINT INC
140 NW 48TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

STARR BRENDA M (TOD)
PO BOX 2232
NEWPORT, OR 97365

STATE OF OREGON

% OREGON PARKS & REC DEPT

725 SUMMER ST NE
STEC
SALEM, OR 97301



STATE OF OREGON

% BOARD OF HIGHER EDUCATION
OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY

PO BOX 1086
CORVALLIS, OR 97339

STATZ JOACHIM P &
STATZ C JEAN
144 SW 26TH ST
UNIT 4
NEWPORT, OR 97365

STEIN JAMES H &
STEIN JEANNINE M
354 SE 35TH ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

STERLING PHIL
17225 BECKRD
DALLAS, OR 97338

STEWART KEVIN &
STEWART DANIELLE L
2100 NE WALNUT DR
REDMOND, OR 97756

STOCKER MARION E ESTATE

9566 LOGSDEN RD
SILETZ, OR 97380

STOCKTON JUDITH DAWN &
KICKNER SHIRLEY STOCKTON

PO BOX 206
TANGENT, OR 97389

STREIT SANDRA S
3145 SW MARICARA ST
PORTLAND, OR 97219

SUMMERFELT SCOTT &
SUMMERFELT AMY
3202 BRIDLE PATH CT
GARLAND, TX 75044

SUNTERRA PACIFIC INC
1417 116TH AVE NE
BELLEVUE, WA 98004

STATE OF OREGON

% BOARD OF HIGHER EDUCATION

PO BOX 3175
EUGENE, OR 97403

STATZ JOEP &
STATZ C JEAN
144 SW 26TH ST
UNIT 4
NEWPORT, OR 97365

STEMPSON GREGORY L &
JOHNSON LORENE N Y
2672 NW NORDEEN WAY
BEND, OR 97701

STEVENS GARY L
PO BOX 733
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

STICKNEY SCOTT B &
STICKNEY RHONDA G
360 E 10TH AVE
STE 101
EUGENE, OR 97401

STOCKTON DONALD B &
STOCKTON JUDITH D
PO BOX 206
TANGENT, OR 97389

STOUT DIANE
475 SE 35TH ST
UNIT A-8
NEWPORT, OR 97365

STRICKLAND DAVID J &
STRICKLAND REBECCA S
485 COVEY LN
EUGENE, OR 97401

SUMNER RICHARDR &
SUMNER CAROL J
1525 NW 14TH ST

CORVALLIS, OR 97330

SURE BET LLC
ATTN LOREN WRIGHT
3214 NE 42ND ST
VANCOUVER, WA 98663

<
N~
i

STATTON MATTHEW W E
31431 WATERLOO RD
LEBANON, OR 97355

STEEL STRING INC
2712 SE 20TH AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97202

STEPHAN LEOE &
STEPHAN S J
4061 HAYES ST
#38
NEWBERG, OR 97132

STEVENS GREGORY H &
STEVENS DAVID T
3955 CEANOTHUS PL
APTB
CALABASAS, CA 91302

STIERS DAVID OGDEN
ATTN CATHLEEN DONNELLAN
PO BOX 1548
NEWPORT, OR 97365

STOCKTON GLENN F TRUSTEE &
STOCKTON LORI A TRUSTEE
2405 E 16TH ST
BREMERTON, WA 98310

STRAUS MARVIN J &
STRAUS SANDRA H
3711 NW OCEANVIEW DR
#A-3
NEWPORT, OR 97365

STUBBLEFIELD JAMES M &
STUBBLEFIELD VONDA J
PO BOX 338
MONUMENT, OR 97864

SUNDMAN ARJEN &
MAXWELL KAREN E
105 NW 45TH ST #1

NEWPORT, OR 97365

SUTHERLAND DENNIS SR &
SUTHERLAND DENNIS JR
24184 SILETZ HWY
SILETZ, OR 97380



SVENDSEN MARK T &
SVENDSEN DIAN SESLAR
PO BOX 1389
PHILOMATH, OR 97370

SYKES JOE M &
SYKES ANNA J
571 COUNTY RD 283
GAINSVILLE, TX 76240

TAKUSH DONALD R TRUSTEE &
TAKUSH DONALD R TRUSTEE
1915 NE PAX PL
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

TATTERSALL SHARON D
2634 SW BRANT ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TAYLOR ELMERH &
TAYLOR DOROTHY P
555 NW ALPINE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TETON CREEK CONDOMINIUMS
OWNERS ASSOCIATION
PO BOX 215
PHILOMATH, OR 97370

THEIS PAMELA ANN TRUSTEE &
THEIS RONALD DALE TRUSTEE
5962 NW BURGUNDY DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

THOMASON LUESSIA
944 SW MARK ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

THOMPSON ROBERT E TRUSTEE &
THOMPSON SANDRA E TRUSTEE
1449 NE YAQUINA HEIGHTS DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

THORSSON KRISTOFER H TRUSTEE &
THORSSON LEANNE M TRUSTEE
504 SE 70TH AVE
PORTLAND, OR 97215

SWAN DAVID JOHN &
SWAN SHARON RAE
1195 S PINE ST
CANBY, OR 97013

SZEKELY MARGARET ANNE
890 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT 101
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TARVER ALAN CLAY
747 NW COTTAGE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TATUM RICHARD E &
BRUNETTE MARGARET J
2749 NE ILER ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TENDERELLA LARRY &
TENDERELLA KIMBERLY
475 SE 35TH ST, C-16
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TEXAS HOLDINGS INC
522 FAIRDALE
FRIENDSWOOD, TX 77546

THOMAS JENNIE C TRUSTEE
532 NW RIVERSIDE
BEND, OR 97703

THOMPSON JAMES D TSTEE &
THOMPSON KATHLEEN M TSTEE
2274 MONTROSE DR
THOUSAND OAKS, CA 91362

THORGAARD GARY H &
THORGAARD FLORENCE REBECCA
PO BOX 514
CLARKSTON, WA 99403

TIAN HU &
WANG HUIYING
26741 VENADO DR
MISSION VIEJO, CA 92691

Lo
N~
i

SWYERS ELIZABETH A
890 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT 314
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TAH3N LLC
552 NW 3RD ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TATE JOHN CLAYTON &
TATE ROBIN LEE
0841 SW GAINES ST
#1612
PORTLAND, OR 97239

TAYLOR BRYCE R TRUSTEE &
TAYLOR CARLY S TRUSTEE
PO BOX 12247
SALEM, OR 97309

TESCH MARIE E TSTEE
3120 SHIRE LN
WALNUT CREEK, CA 94598

THE ASSN OF UNIT OWNERS OF
WIZARDS OF THE SEA CONDO
1505 NW SPRING ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

THOMAS ROBERT &
THOMAS LAURA
4026 RAVELLO DR
LAKE HAVASU CITY, AZ 86406

THOMPSON RICHARD L &
THOMPSON SHERRY L
2771 CARRIAGE WAY
WEST LINN, OR 97068

THORNTON ROBERT &
BY THE SEAXLLC
7459 N HURON AVE

PORTLAND, OR 97203

TIDWELL VAUGHN C
2236 PACIFIC AVE
FOREST GROVE, OR 97116



TILSON MURRAY M &
TILSON NANCY K
136 SE LARCH ST

NEWPORT, OR 97365

TONE STEVE
3250 NW OCEANVIEW DR
UNIT 10
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TOY HARRY A TRUSTEE &
TOY LEOTA P TRUSTEE ATTN TOY
ERICK
1190 SE BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TRIDENT SEAFOODS CORPORATION
ATTN TOM MOORE
5303 SHILSHOLE AVE NW
SEATTLE, WA 98107

TRONQUET PETER J TRUSTEE &
TRONQUET CATHY W TRUSTEE
5730 SW BARNACLE CT
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

TRUAX GLORY
424 NW 21ST PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TRYON GARYE &
TRYON VERNON & TRYON ROBERT &
TRYON LOREN
PO BOX 975
WALDPORT, OR 97394

TURNER DAVID
340 N COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

UNDERSEA GARDENS INC
250 SW BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
% US COAST GUARD DISTRICT 13
915 2ND AVE
SEATTLE, WA 98104

TODD BRIAND &
TODD RENEE
PO BOX 545
BURNS, OR 97720

TOP HAT MUSHROOMS INC
39344 JORDAN RD
SCIO, OR 97374

TRAN THANG
2574 GLEN DUNDEE WAY
SAN JOSE, CA 95148

TRIPP RANDALL W
1000 SE BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TROYER ENTERPRISES LLC
1244 SE BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TRUAX GLORY J
424 NW 21ST PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TRYON VERNON L &
TRYON SHERRIE L
PO BOX 1058
WALDPORT, OR 97394

TURNER KEITHD &

TURNER LUANN M

13219 NW 35TH CT
VANCOUVER, WA 98685

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
% DEPT OF COMMERCE NTL OCEANIC
& ATMOSPHERIC ADMN
1325 EAST WEST HWY
SILVER SPRING, MD 20910

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
% ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS
PORTLAND DIST
PO BOX 2946
PORTLAND, OR 97208

176

TODD STEPHEN M
PO BOX 7043
BROOKINGS, OR 97415

TOY HARRY A &
TOY L PATRICIA ATTN:ERICK TOY
1190 SE BAY BLVD
PO BOX 805
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TRAPP LISAB
15977 ABIQUA RD NE
SILVERTON, OR 97381

TRIPP ZDENKA TSTEE
30833 PETERSON RD
PHILOMATH, OR 97370

TROYER PHYLLIS M
1244 SE BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

TRUSSELL KAREN J TSTEE &
CRAMER MARIE
1379 LAZY DRK DR NE
KEIZER, OR 97303

TUCKEY JIM
1441 PASO REAL AVE
SP #127
ROLAND HEIGHTS, CA 91748

TYNER KARAN J
PO BOX 1740
NEWPORT, OR 97365

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
% ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AG
2111 SE MARINE SCIENCE DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
% BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT
YAQUINA HEAD FIELD OFFICE
PO BOX 936
NEWPORT, OR 97365



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
% GENERAL SERVICES ADMIN ATTN
OGLE BILL/WAR DEPARTMENT
REAL ESTATE DIV GSA CENTER
AUBURN, WA 98001

VANCIL ROD
8220 GAGE BLVD
#745
KENNEWICK, WA 99336

VANLANINGHAM THOMAS &
VANLANINGHAM MARIA
13001 WOODRIDGE CIR

BELLEVUE, OR 98123

VARGHESE ROY &
CHACKO MANIYAMMA
12059 WAGNER ST
CULVER CITY, CA 90230

VELA PAUL &
CARTER ROGER
5134 CHERIE CT SE
SALEM, OR 97306

VET LLC
PO BOX 70
NEWPORT, OR 97365

VILLA BY THE SEA LLC
ATTN ROBERT H FOSS MANAGER
920 SCENIC WOOD PLACE
ALBANY, OR 97321

VTS PROGRAM REMAINDER LLC
ATTN VACATION INTERNATIONALE INC
1417 116TH AVE NE
STE 100
BELLEVUE, WA 98004

WALDE MARVIN L TRUSTEE &
WALDE SHIRLEY A TRUSTEE
110 SE 10TH ST
COLLEGE PLACE, WA 99324

WALL RICHARD E
1000 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT 101
NEWPORT, OR 97365

VACATION INTERNATIONALE INC
ATTN TRADING PLACES INTL
1417 116TH AVE NE
STE 100
BELLEVUE, WA 92630

VANDERLIP DAVID L TSTEE &

VANDERLIP MARIA R TSTEE

37990 COURTNEY CREEK RD
BROWNSVILLE, OR 97327

VANWERT FRANCES C TRUSTEE
742 NW 2ND CT
NEWPORT, OR 97365

VARNER DOUGLAS
923 SE BAY BLVD
#50
NEWPORT, OR 97365

VERITAS CORP
4111 LIVINGSTON
CENTRAL POINT, OR 97502

VICE ROGER &

VICE PATRICIA

5215 FIRST ST
CROSBY, TX 77532

VOGEL CARL STEPHENS Il
292 W GALENA PARK BLVD
APT #1126
DRAPER, UT 84020

WAL MART REAL ESTATE
BUSINESS TRUST #01-1925 TAX
DEPARTMENT #0555
PO BOX 8050
BENTONVILLE, AR 72712

WALISER MICHAEL E &
SCHELLINGER STACY K
538 NW HIGH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WALLIS CURTISL &
SCOTT PHILLIS A
PO BOX 331
LINCOLN CITY, OR 97367

N~
N~
i

VANCE JOSEPHR &
VANCE MOLLLIE K
611 SE 4TH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

VANDERPOOL CHARLES
547 NW COAST ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

VARGAS EDGARDO &
LOPEZ VERONICA LOBO
2121 NE 37TH TER
HOMESTEAD, FL 33033

VEAL CONNECTION CORPORATION
2225 GROSSE AVE
SANTA ROSA, CA 95404

VERVILLE HEATHER K &
BRAZEAU RICHARD B
951 15TH ST
ARCATA, CA 95521

VICTORY CHARLES
105 NW HIGH ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

VORONAEFF KENT D
3795 DONALD ST
EUGENE, OR 97405

WALBEY JERRY &
WALBEY MARTHA
PO BOX 140258
BOISE, ID 83714

WALKER HOUSE LLC
616 NW 35TH ST
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

WALSH ROBERT G &
WALSH CAROL H
310 NW GILBERT WAY
NEWPORT, OR 97365



WANKER MARK JOSEPH
21373 SW JOHNSON RD
WEST LINN, OR 97068

WARD STEPHEN E TRUSTEE &
WARD ANDREA C TRUSTEE
3323 E ASTORIA DR
LAS VEGAS, NV 89121

WARNER ALICE
PO BOX 50624
EUGENE, OR 97405

WATSON CORY E &
WATSON SHERRON
568 SE BENSON RD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WELLS FAMILY TRUST &
WELLS WILLIAM P TRUSTEE & WELLS
PHYLLIS D TRUSTEE
2535 NE DOUGLAS ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WELTON VINCENT E
3530 N COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WESTON DAVID W COTSTEE &
WESTON SHERRY W COTSTEE
861 SW CANTERBURY CT
DALLAS, OR 97338

WETLANDS CONSERVANCY
4640 SW MACADAM AVE
STE 50
PORTLAND, OR 97239

WHALES SPOUT CONDOMINIUM
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
370 SW COLUMBIA
BEND, OR 97702

WHITAKER CLAUDE &
WHITAKER DONNA
3415 23RD AVE NW
ALBANY, OR 97321

WARD NELLIE C &
HARDESTY SUE A
PO BOX 2304
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WARDELL DOUGLAS L JR
5401 EAST RIDGE ST S
SALEM, OR 97306

WARREN JAMES RAYMOND &
WARREN DIANA CAROL
323 NW LEE ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WEAVER DORA C TRUSTEE
12362 SE PARADISE LANE
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

WELLS WAVEL L TRUSTEE &
WELLS LAURA L TRUSTEE
10 LOST BRIDGE RD
LAWTON, OK 73507

WEST WALTERL &
WEST HELEN & WEST JAMES P ETAL
29765 TOWN CENTER LOOP WEST
WILSONVILLE, OR 97070

WETHERILL JAMES G &
WETHERILL LANAR
25804 NE OLSON RD

BATTLE GROUND, WA 98604

WEYERS STEPHEN G & KRIS M &
BRATT LAWRENCE P & CHARLENE TR
PO BOX 473
FOLSOM, CA 95630

WHEELER LOIS | TSTEE
1000 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT H-4
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WHITE ELIZABETH BUSCH TRSTEE &
WHITE HUGH RICHARD TRUSTEE
146 NW 28TH ST
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

[e0)
N~
i

WARD PAUL S COTSTEE &
WARD JUDITH A COTSTEE
241 SW BIRCH ST
DALLAS, OR 97338

WARNATH STEPHEN C TRUSTEE &
WARNATH MAXINE A TRUSTEE &
WARNATH STEPHEN C TRUSTEE

1052 PAPER MILL CT NW
WASHINGTON, DC 20007

WARREN TONIA K
PO BOX 223
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WEBSTERS A &
WEBSTER JANET G
113 SE BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WELTON RICHARD C
PO BOX 44
DEPOE BAY, OR 97341

WESTHUSING JANA &
HIGGINS MARY JO
135 NW 33RD ST #B1
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WETHERILL JAMES G TRUSTEE &
WETHERILL LANA R TRUSTEE
25804 NE OLSON RD
BATTLE GROUND, WA 98604

WHALER MOTEL INC
155 SW ELIZABETH
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WHEELER WADE &
WHEELER STEPHANIE
6549 19TH AVE NE
SEATTLE, WA 98115

WHITE MARY A
1043 PLEASANT VALLEY RD
SWEET HOME, OR 97386



WHITE PINE PROPERTIES LLC
ATTN CAMILLE A NORWICK
121 LA PAZ LOOP
SANTA FE, NM 87508

WHITLOCK SHERMAN F &
WHITLOCK CINDY L
6390 SW ARBOR DR

SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

WHITTEMORE DONNA LEE TRUSTEE
450 ROLLING HILLS DR
MESQUITE, NV 89027

WIESE RANDOLPH M &
WIESE MELISSA J
PO BOX 1365
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WILES JOHN E &
BECKER JOHN
844 NE NEWPORT HTS DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WILLIAMS CHARLES M SR TRUSTEE&
WILLIAMS JANET K TRUSTEE
5715 SW BARNACLE CT
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WILLIAMS PENNY M
2750 NE HARNEY DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WILSON MARC R
PO BOX 987
PACIFIC CITY, OR 97135

WILSON THERESA M &
WILSON MICHAEL L
PO BOX 423
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

WINGARD CONSTRUCTION INC &
WINGARD GEORGE F TRUSTEE
2323 FAIRMOUNT BLVD
EUGENE, OR 97403

WHITEHEAD SHERY L
7250 NUES LN
EUREKA, CA 95503

WHITMAN LUKE D &
DAUBLE ALISON
2010 NW ROBIN HOOD ST
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

WHITTLE EQUITIES LLC
1443 EDGECLIFF LN
PASADENA, CA 91107

WIKE NANCY &
WIKE JENNIFER & HILLYER ANGELA
PO BOX 943
LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97034

WILLETT CONRAD J &
GAILE
1426 NW SPRING ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WILLIAMS EDWARD &
WILLIAMS ANNE M
611 S IMMONEN RD

LINCOLN CITY, OR 97367

WILSON DOUGLAS A &
WILSON QUIMBY A
5630 SW ARBOR DR

SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

WILSON PAUL TRUSTEE &
WILSON CAROL TRUSTEE
PO BOX 107
SALEM, OR 97308

WILSON THOMAS D &
WILSON SUSETTE A
330 NW 185TH AVE
#274
PORTLAND, OR 97229

WINTER JOHN W JR &
WINTER ELIZABETH A
5954 SW CUPOLA DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

(@]
~
i

WHITEMAN CARLR &
WHITEMAN LORENE RAE
1825 NE TIDE AVE
LINCOLN CITY, OR 97367

WHITMORE STEPHEN HARRIMAN
PO BOX 320
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

WIEBE MARTHA W TSTEE &
WIEBE DAVID A TSTEE
10205 HELMICK RD
MONMOUTH, OR 97361

WILDCARD INVESTMENTS LLC
PO BOX 570
BEAVERCREEK, OR 97004

WILLIAMS BURTON T &
WILLIAMS PATRICIA M
PO BOX 514
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WILLIAMS MARILYN J &
WILLIAMS DALE B
2735 SE 33RD PL
PORTLAND, OR 97202

WILSON JIMMY D COTRUSTEE &
WILSON LORI K COTRUSTEE
63356 NELS ANDERSON RD
#8
BEND, OR 97701

WILSON RICHARD C &
WILSON LIZA A
PO BOX 928
CORVALLIS, OR 97339

WILSON WILLIAMR &
MCBEE WILSON REBECCA C
PO BOX 575
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WINTERS JODY A
1000 SE BAY BLVD
UNIT H-6
NEWPORT, OR 97365



WITZKE EDWARD PAUL TSTEE
PO BOX 874
PHILOMATH, OR 97370

WOLF ANDREW D
1960 SW OLD SHERIDAN RD
MCMINNVILLE, OR 97128

WOLZ LORRAINE MARSTON &
WOLZ FRANK ANDREW
5722 E CORRINE DR
SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85254

WOODBURN ORNAMENTALS INC
13009 MCKEE SCHOOL RD NE
WOODBURN, OR 97071

WOODILL MARION
3333 SW PACIFIC COAST HWY
WALDPORT, OR 97394

WOOTEN LAWRENCE M &
WOOTEN ARZU K
2723 NW PACIFIC PL
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WORRAL ROBERT COTSTEE &
WORRAL POOLE LINDA COTSTEE
60895 JENNINGS RD
BEND, OR 97702

WRIGHT RICHARD EARL &
WRIGHT DEBORAH LEE
PO BOX 722
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WYNDHAVEN RIDGE LLC
PO BOX 247
STAYTON, OR 97383

YAQUINA ART ASSOC
PO BOX 274
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WOLCOTT KENTP &
WOLCOTT APRIL A
PO BOX 128
TOLEDO, OR 97391

WOLF GREG
1710 SW HARBOR WAY
202
PORTLAND, OR 97201

WOOD RICHARD W &
WOOD JANET L
138 SE 35TH ST
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

WOODCOCK ROLAND PAGET &
WOODCOCK ERICA ELIZABETH &
WOODCOCK WILLIAM CARTER JR

105 NW 45TH ST #2
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WOODS GARY &
WOODS FAYE
6035 SW ARBOR DR
SOUTH BEACH, OR 97366

WORDEN MARK R
363 NW 3RD ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WRAY JOHN M &
WRAY SHEILA N
PO BOX 1566
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WROBEL CHARLES J
16971 S CLACKAMAS RIVER DR
OREGON CITY, OR 97045

XU HEQIN
2498 NW MASER DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

YAQUINA BAY DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION ATTN ALAN WELLS
202 NW 6TH
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

180

WOLD RACHEL &
WOLD TYRONE
12590 SW GLACIER LILLY CIR
PORTLAND, OR 97223

WOLFE BRANDON
5876 S LONE ELDER RD
AURORA, OR 97002

WOOD STREET LLC
5500 NE MOORE CT
HILLSBORO, OR 97124

WOODED OCEAN ESTATES ASSOC
ATTN JEFF RAMIREZ
8807 EAST MILL PLAIN BLVD
VANCOUVER, WA 98664

WOODS MICHAEL R &
WOODS FLORENCE M
1617 NE 205TH AVE
FAIRVIEW, OR 97024

WORK LOLA HELEN TRUSTEE
5044 ANDERSON WAY
THE DALLES, OR 97058

WRIGHT & ASSOC DEV COMPANY INC
2333 NW VAUGHN
PORTLAND, OR 97210

WROBEL CHARLES TRUSTEE &
AFFENTRANGER HELEN H TRUSTEE
16971 S CLACKAMAS RIVER DR
OREGON CITY, OR 97045

YANG JRMING J &
WANG TINGYU
4445 NW SNOWBRUSH DR
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

YAQUINA BAY DEVELOPMENT CORP
2925 SE FERRY SLIP RD #52
NEWPORT, OR 97365



/';-’ O W 0

3 4 7/ 50 2 X 2"’ ek . 3
0 s
Y /é% ’4//%/4/%//////,, Ui .

City of Newport
Community Development Department h
169 SW Coast Highway Phone:1.641.674.0629 Panel 1: Affected Tax Lots
& L@ Newport, OR 97365 Fax:1.541.574.0644
This map is for informational use only and has not been prepared It sutable for legal, engineering, or survaying purposes. it 44in chl,rfbg:n?;i‘; i;‘l‘grztgl:hatos

includes data from multiple sourcas. The City of Newport assume: nsibiity for its compitation or usa and users of this B
Information are cautionad to verify all information with the City of Newport Community Development Department. Quantum Spatial, Inc. Corvallis, OR

500




.

3 R RN
) NN o
= NI ) N
- BN N
N \ 3 .

.
.

R

July 2018
tial, Inc. Corvallis, OR

Affected Tax Lots

Image Taken

Panel 6:
4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos
Quantum Spal

f//lé
Tsunami Inundation Overlay Zone

=
N
=
R
=
B
,..uﬂ 1
\uyﬂ
N
N
//{/‘/.‘

R
AR
AN
/// /_/. .,/.,/" 3 .‘w.,, /,/
TR e
N RN

N
N
) ..C;.,. //,a 2k M./,/.//f
N\ N VR N R .
S 2 DN N
N N T H SR
R | L //
, SN 3 NN
. ..a../u L N J B
| \ y N S

Iat 7

A
7

M\ 2%

Nl
N 2 ) N
\ Z/ N,
N N N
QMR
/M R %ay“ A
N // N //&,p RN \ ..//(

o
- SN
N = N NN

N
0

NN
R

. / LS

N

SR NN

RN A =

N =
AN NS AN /”//
A AR

:/ ;.VJ/ /./., / a/, ,/z /,/, / /./..r/ , . ,/,. k. .. J.
“. / / ,/,/. , p /./ // //.//,,, / , , . .. / ,.r . 4. . ‘..n.
.L , .ru/f , .,,// .f / ,/ . . /.,r ,. ,, , r.
% N .z N x/, , - / x;, ,.u./. f .»N .,, n..,,. .
2 N W/,,V../V../// w«/« //,//,///f,///,/ e /% .w Q . N o\ /.u ~ N N .,,r 3 N N ] S
3 Y N A R N T Ny N \ N \ B o -
A LA MMM I annnsnn s han gz s maimmmn \ e
AN u// H/ NS /m;.;./ , N R AR \ Tk y N SRS A R AR N AN / AT ok o ARSI N
; B /,/// N : R N N Y, ‘ ..4 N RN //, 4///”///,%1 N //.,H N . /J,WV///, // N CE
/ NN RN RN N A R N2 = N ,/// Ak Y N //,a././// N o
- SIS A v Ry S ) e 5 I % B AN SN I R A SRR N N N ,W/M,M/V//fr AR

N ranmmm




o
7

; oy 4/

A

.'J:::{’

Affected Tax Lots

Image Taken July 2018
4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos

Quantum Spatial, Inc. Corvallis, OR

Panel 5:

| o
c
| ©
| N
>
| &
1 A
o
| 2
(@)
5
N =
©
o
c
5
£
£
©
c
2
-

7,

\ N
. ST
AR NN

Phone:1.641.574.0629
Fax:1.541.574.0644

169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97366

City of Newport
, Community Development Department

rmational use only and has not baen praparad for, nor is it sutabla for lagal, anginaaring, ar survaying purposes. It

- .

N L

includes data from multipla sources. The City of Nawpor assumes no responsibily for its compitation ar use and users of this
Information ara cattionad to vority ak Information with the Ciy of Newport Communky Davelopment Dapartment

This map




AR

AR N N, \ N
Ahannag
NI

.;/,/ /%// >
NN

—

Affected Tax Lots

e,
i

Image Taken July 2018

4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos

Quantum Spatial,

N //,// s c w \ . NN N : R - n
N SN _./w J/fﬂ/r,/////,ﬂz_v .;....// NN N NS , T e : :
S .,.,.».m, i 1 o .H./ .// NN N N . X /.,/.z h,./uﬂ N - //// \
// /,/// /,/ /// / //,/,,//. . ,. ._.,
..‘7.,,///,4 t. 1
../ / .././
//

,
R R ¢
TR L

Tsunami Inundation Overlay Zone
Panel 4:

& F
W

0, ..‘,war_. -
o I
: vl

nt Department
one:1.541.574.0629

Ee(¥s Community Developme
* 169 SW Coast Highway Ph:

; /n////,?//,,///a,~ i
NN
Nl

N

City of Newport




R e N \ N
‘ M g N N
‘ \ //%,, HRnin
\ A I TR
N\ / MM TR
N \ N\ /ﬁ%(///. G

i AN : RN ,

A

M%%% - N~ / |




o NS
R

N AR Vs
R #//».//ﬂ» P
BN , hL M e

N

S A

- el ) Sy &S

gy ,. : .‘.\:., ‘J... ..U.‘.. - g ,...."... . uﬂ//rﬁ.

OR

o
c
0

N
>
©

=
o
>

®)

ion

Tsunami Inundat
Panel 2: Affected Tax Lots
Image Taken July 2018
4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos
Quantum Spatial, Inc. Corvallis,

. ....

NN //J.Hr. 3 a0 ey ¥ g ..“ ot
Tk AN z/.”,/.,.r.. R, N(/ ¥ N = “
o B & ,,,///// AN R
oL e T e /MN/N/ﬁr?t. N 3

NG

f

207 ;
"‘-/‘r";"}/?/ 7

,&;

ANV NG,

T,

DN

Phone:1.541.574.0629
Fax:1,641.574.0644

NG e - by §
e, N N
N //..J,,/.V 2y

Community Development Department

169 SW Coast Highway
Newport, OR 97365

City of Newport
formational use only and has not baen preparad for, nor is it suktable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. it

includas data from multipia sources. The City of Newport assumes no responsibitky for its compllation of use and users of this
information ara cautionad to varify all information with the City of Newport Communky Development Dopartment.

RT




187

Derrick Tokos

From:

Sent: Sunday, April 12, 2020 11:16 PM

To: Derrick Tokos

Subject: Ordinance Number 2166 Public Hearing

My family trust currently owns dwellings at 270 NW Gilbert Way in Newport.
While the front fill of dirt from over 70 years ago has shifted from time and digging rock hounds from the beach, most of
the land is very securely rock. The property is 100 feet above the ocean.

It was zoned for public facilities previously.

I would like to retain the ability to have childcare and senior housing built at a safe place on the property, if needed in
the future.

Victoria Grusing, Trustee
Jean Hocken Trust



Sherri Marineau

From: Derrick Tokos

Sent: Monday, April 13, 2020 12:14 PM

To: Sherri Marineau

Subject: Fwd: Public comment on Ordinance Number 2166

Please post and distribute to Commission members.

Derrick

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: William Chadwick

Date: April 13, 2020 at 12:10:52 PM PDT

To: Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>
Cc: William Chadwick

Subject: Public comment on Ordinance Number 2166

This is a comment in SUPPORT of proposed ordinance number 2166 for the City of Newport
Planning Commission public hearing on April 13, 2020. With the known earthquake and
tsunami hazards in Newport, as has been well-documented by DOGAMI, it is reasonable and
critically important to prohibit the building of new essential facilities and special occupancy
structures in areas likely to be inundated by future tsunamis. This ordinance will help prevent
loss of life and critical services and will make Newport much more resilient to such an event. |
am glad the city is being proactive about this issue, particularly after the recent changes in state
law, as reviewed in the staff report.

Sincerely,
William Chadwick

188



9

City of Newport

Memorandum

To: Planning Commission
From: Derrick |. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Dire@/

Date: May 21, 2020

Re: File No. 2-Z-20 - Amending Chapter 14.30 of the Newport Zoning Ordinance to Prohibit
New Residential Use at Street Grade along the West Side of NW Cliff Street

On April 13, 2020, the Planning Commission continued the public hearing on this proposed
legislative amendment to May 26, 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. No new information has
been submitted into the record since that time.



190

Case File: 2-Z-20
Hearing Date: April 13, 2020/Planning Commission

PLANNING STAFF MEMORANDUM
FILE No. 2-Z-20

I. Applicant: Initiated at the direction of the City Council, by motion of the Newport Planning
Commission on March 9, 2020.

II. Request: Amendments to Section 14.30.080, Permitted Uses, and Section 14.30.100, Special Zoning
Standards in Design Review Districts, to prohibit new residential uses at street grade in C-2 zoned
areas within the Historic Nye Beach Design Review District that are along the west side of NW Cliff
Street. The City’s current land use regulations allow new residential uses at street grade.

[II. Findings Required: This is a legislative action whereby the City Council, after considering a
recommendation by the Newport Planning Commission, must determine that the changes to the
Municipal Code are necessary and further the general welfare of the community (NMC 14.36.010).

IV. Planning Staff Memorandum Attachments:

Attachment "A" — Draft Ordinance No. 2165

Attachment "B" — Packet from 2/18/20 City Council Meeting

Attachment "C" — Minutes from the 2/24/20 Planning Commission work session

Attachment "D" — Email from Jean Dahlquist, dated March 2, 2020

Attachment "E" — Newport Peninsula Urban Design Plan Component of the Comprehensive Plan
Attachment "F" — Select Sheets from the Housing Element of the Comprehensive Plan
Attachment "G" — Notice of public hearing

V. Notification: The Department of Land Conservation & Development was provided notice of the
proposed legislative amendment on February 24, 2020. Because this amendment will limit the range
of permissible uses, notice of the Planning Commission hearing was mailed on March 6, 2020 to
persons owning property along the west side of NW CIliff Street in accordance with ORS 227.186.
Notice was published in the Newport News-Times on April 3, 2020.

VI. Comments: An email was received from Jean Dahlquist requesting a copy of the staff report.

VII. Discussion of Request: At a February 3, 2020 work session, the City Council heard from Wendy
Engler, a Nye Beach resident, asking that the City initiate targeted amendments to the C-2 zoning
within the Overlay that would repeal an allowance for new residential uses at street grade, for those
properties situated on the west side of NW CIliff Street, between NW 2nd Court and Olive Street
(Attachment “A”). A couple of the affected properties are up for sale and Ms. Engler conveyed that
she is concerned that the properties could be developed with very large homes, which would be
inconsistent with what was envisioned for the area when the streetscape improvements were installed.
One of the affected owners, Charlotte Boxer, conveyed to the Council that she supports the
amendments. There was general agreement amongst the Council members that the targeted
amendments made sense, and at their February 18, 2020 regular meeting they adopted a motion
directing the Planning Commission initiate the requisite amendments (Attachment "B"). On March
9, 2020 the Commission formally initiated the amendment process. The amendment affects a
relatively small number of properties, fewer than 20 tax lots (ref: map, Attachment "G").

File No. 2-Z-20 / Planning Staff Memorandum / Amendments to NMC Section 14.30.080 and 14.30.100 Page 1 of 2



191

As was noted with File 5-Z-19 (later Ordinance No. 2160), the document titled “Nye Beach Study —
Seventh Amendment to the City of Newport Urban Renewal Plan,” dated January 25, 1989, informed
the development of the C-2 zone district, and is cross-referenced in the Newport Peninsula Urban
Design Plan. A provision of the 1989 plan states: “The new C-2* (Overlay Zone) is meant to
accommodate existing residential uses in the C-2 areas of Nye Beach, which predominate, by making
them conforming within C-2* and by creating an environment conducive to cottage indusiries and
preservation of housing.” This provision was implemented with a land use standard that allowed
single-family residences at street grade in the C-2 within a dwelling constructed prior to 2004. In
such cases, residential use at street grade was limited to the footprint of the structure as it existed on
that date. This type of limitation was intended to prohibit new or expanded residential at street grade
in the C-2 zone, presumably to provide room for cottage industries to grow (e.g. residential over
retail). This code provision initially applied to all areas zoned C-2 within the Nye Beach Design
Review District, but was later altered by an amendment in 2008 that allowed new residential at street
grade in certain areas, including along Cliff Street (Ordinance No. 1946). This proposed amendment
repeals the change that was made in 2008 with respect to the west side of NW Cliff Street. If
approved, new residential uses along this section of Cliff Street would be limited to portions of a
building that are not situated at street grade. Existing dwellings at street grade could be replaced
provided the new dwelling is contained within the existing footprint.

Comprehensive Plan policies that guide zoning for the area, include those listed in the portion of the
document dedicated to the Newport Peninsula Urban Design Plan (Attachment "E"). While many of
the policies and strategies are focused on architectural design, siting, and visual appearance of
development, implemented with the guidelines and standards of the Historic Nye Beach Design
Review District, some may be relevant to this proposal. They include improving neighborhood
cohesion (Policy 5) and strengthening the peninsula’s economic vitality by improving its desirability
through improved appearance, function, and efficiency (Policy 8). Urban renewal streetscape
investments along NW CIiff Street create conditions where retail commercial, residential over retail,
or lodging would be attractive uses along the west side of NW Cliff Street, and it would be reasonable
for the Commission to find such uses to be more complimentary of the existing built form than large,
single-family homes. Further, the City’s buildable lands and housing needs assessment calls for new
housing in the C-2 zone to be multi-family, which would still be permissible if the units are not at
street grade (Attachment "F"). The Commission can rely upon this assessment if it is concerned that
the amendment could have a detrimental impact on the City’s ability to realize needed housing.

The Commission members should consider the above analysis, or other policies and/or
implementation strategies it believes to be relevant when determining whether the proposed
amendment is necessary and furthers the general welfare of the community.

VIII. Conclusion and Recommendation: The Planning Commission should review the proposed
amendments and make a recommendation to the City Council. The Commission recommendation
can include suggested changes to the proposed amendments.

Community Development Director
City of Newport

April 9, 2020

File No. 2-Z-20 / Planning Staff Memorandum / Amendments to NMC Section 14.30.080 and 14.30.100 Page 2 of 2



Draft Ordinance No.

Attachment “A”
2-7Z-20
2165, Amending NMC Chapter 14.30 Related to

Residential Uses at Street Grade in the C-2 District

192

(Deleted language shown in strikethrough and new language is underlined. Staff comments are
not a part of the amendments. They are preceded with the term “Staff’ and are Jtalicized.)

CHAPTER 14.30 DESIGN REVIEW STANDARDS

14.30.010

Purpose

Design review districts may be adopted by the City of Newport
in accordance with applicable procedures to ensure the
continued livability of the community by implementing
standards of design for both areas of new development and
areas of redevelopment. Design review is an important
exercise of the power of the City to regulate for the general
welfare by focusing on how the built environment shapes the
character of the community.

The Newport Comprehensive Plan identifies six potential
urban design districts within the Newport Peninsula including
the City Center District (and Highway 101 corridor), Waterfront
District, Nye Beach District, Upland Residential District, East
Olive District, and the Oceanfront Lodging/Residential District.
Additionally, neighborhood plans may be adopted for other
areas of Newport that include as an objective the
implementation of design review to maintain and/or provide a
flexible approach to development by offering two methods of
design review from which an applicant can choose. One
method of design review is under clear and objective design
standards and procedures to allow development that is
consistent with the standards to occur with certainty in a timely
and cost effective manner. A second alternative method of
design review is review under design guidelines, which are a
more flexible process for proposals that are
creative/innovative and meet the identified guidelines of the
applicable design review district.

It is further the purpose of these standards to:

A. Preserve the beautiful natural setting and the orientation of
development and public improvements in order to
strengthen their relationship to that setting.

B. Enhance new and redeveloping architectural and
landscape resources to preserve and strengthen the
historic, scenic and/or identified neighborhood character
and function of each setting.

Page 10f 10



Draft Ordinance No.

Residential Uses at Street Grade in the C-2 District

14.30.020

C. Improve the vehicular and pedestrian networks in order to
improve safety, efficiency, continuity, and relationships

connecting Newport neighborhoods.

D. Strengthen Newport’'s economic vitality by improving its
desirability through improved appearance, function, and

efficiency.

E. Improve the built environment in order to strengthen the
visual appearance and attractiveness of developed areas.

F. Implement the goals and objectives of the adopted

neighborhood plans.

Design Review Districts: Overlay Zones Established

The following:

A. Historic Nye Beach Design Review District. The Historic
Nye Beach Design Review District Overlay Zone shall be
indicated on the Zoning Map of the City of Newport with

the letters HNBO and is the area described as follows:

Beginning at the northeasterly corner of SW Hurbert
Street and SW 2nd Street; thence westerly along
the north line of SW 2nd Street to the west line of
SW Dolphin Street, said point also being the
southeast corner of Lot 1, Block B, Barlow Blocks
Addition to the City of Newport; thence north along
the west line of SW Dolphin Street to 10 feet beyond
the north line of Lot 7, said Barlow Blocks Addition;
thence westerly, 10 feet north of and parallel with
said north line of Lot 7 to the Pacific Ocean; thence
northerly along the Pacific Ocean to the south line
of NW 12th Street; thence east along the south line
of NW 12th Street to the east line of an alley
between NW Spring Street and NW Hurbert Street;
thence south along the east line of said alley way to
the north line of NW 10th Street; thence
southwesterly to the southwest corner of the
intersection of NW 10th Street and NW Brook
Street; thence south along the west line of NW
Brook Street to the south line of NW 8th Street;
thence east along the south line of NW 8th Street to
the west line of NW Hurbert Street; thence south
along the west line of NW Hurbert Street to the north
line of NW 6th Street; thence east to the northeast
intersection of NW 6th Street and NW Hurbert

193

2165, Amending NMC Chapter 14.30 Related to

Page 2 of 10



Draft Ordinance No.

Residential Uses at Street Grade in the C-2 District

14.30.030

14.30.040

14.30.050

Street; thence south along the east line of NW
Hurbert Street and SW Hurbert Street to the north
line of SW 2nd Street and the point of beginning.

Adoption of Design Review: Guidelines and Standards

The document entitled “Newport Design Review: Guidelines
and Standards” dated July 29, 2015, is hereby adopted by
reference and made a part hereof. The guidelines and
standards contained therein shall be the guidelines and
standards applicable to the Historic Nye Beach Design
Review District.

Design Review Required

The following development activities in an established design
review district are required to obtain a design review permit
under the design standards in an identified design review
district or, in the alternative, to apply for a design review permit
and to obtain approval under the design guidelines for that
design review district:

A. New construction, substantial improvement, or relocation
of one or more dwelling units.

B. New construction, substantial improvement, or relocation
of a commercial or public/institutional building.

C. New construction, substantial improvement, or relocation
of a residential accessory structure that contains more
than 200 square feet of gross floor area and is not more
than 10 feet in height.

D. New construction, substantial improvement, or relocation
of a commercial accessory structure that contains more
than 120 square feet of gross floor area.

E. An addition that increases the footprint of an existing
building by more than 1,000 square feet.

Exemptions

A. Development activity that is subject to the provisions of
Newport Municipal Code Chapter 14.23, Historic Buildings
and Sites.

194

2165, Amending NMC Chapter 14.30 Related to

The following activities are exempt from the provisions of this chapter:

Page 3 of 10



Draft Ordinance No.

Residential Uses at Street Grade in the C-2 District

14.30.060

Any project for improvement of a structure to comply with
existing state or local health, sanitary, or safety code
specifications that are solely necessary to assure safe
living conditions.

Development that does not involve the construction,
substantial improvement, or relocation of a dwelling unit,
commercial or public/institutional building, or accessory
structure.

Approval Authority

The following are the initial review authorities for a Design
Review application:

A

Community Development Director. For projects subject
only to the design standards specified in the document
entitted “Newport Design Review: Guidelines and
Standards,” dated July 29, 2015. The approval or denial
of a Design Review application by the Community
Development Director is a ministerial action performed
concurrent with City review of a building permit.

Planning Commission. For projects that require design
review under the design guidelines contained in the
document entitled “Newport Design Review: Guidelines
and Standards,” dated July 29, 2015, including the
following:

1. New construction, substantial improvement, or
relocation of a dwelling unit; commercial or
public/institutional building; or accessory structure that
is over 65 feet in length or 35 feet in height; or

2. New construction, substantial improvement, or
relocation of a dwelling unit; commercial or
public/institutional building; or accessory structure that
does not meet the design standards contained in the
document entitled “Newport Design Review:
Guidelines and Standards” dated July 29, 2015; or
a.

3. New construction, substantial improvement, or
relocation of a dwelling unit; commercial or
public/institutional building; or accessory structure that
involves a conditional use, a variance, or any other type
of land use permit for which a Type Ill Land Use Action
decision process is required, pursuant to Chapter

195

2165, Amending NMC Chapter 14.30 Related to

Page 4 of 10



Draft Ordinance No.

Residential Uses at Street Grade in the C-2 District

14.52, Procedural Requirements.

14.30.070  Application Submittal Requirements

A. For requests that are subject to Community Development
Director review for compliance with design standards, an
application for Design Review shall consist of the
following:

1.

A completed and signed City of Newport Building
Permit Application Form.

Building plans that conform to the submittal
requirements for a building permit that include a site
plan, floor plan, exterior architectural elevations, cross-
section drawings, and construction specifications
illustrating how the design standards have been met.
b

. A.written checklist identifying the design elements used

to comply with the design standards.

B. For requests that are subject to Planning Commission
review for compliance with design guidelines, an
application for Design Review shall consist of the
following:

1.

Submittal requirements for land use actions listed in
Section 14.52.050.

Exterior elevations of all buildings on the site as they
will appear after development. Such plans shall
indicate the material, texture, shape, and other design
features of the building(s), including all mechanical
devices.

A parking and circulation plan illustrating all parking
areas, drive isles, stalls, and points of ingress/egress
to the site.

A landscape plan showing the location, type and
variety, size and any other pertinent features of the
proposed landscaping and plantings for projects that
involve multiple-family (more than 2 units), commercial,
and public/institutional development.

A lighting plan identifying the location and type of all
permanent area lights, including parking area lighting,
along with details of the lighting fixtures that are to be
installed.

2165, Amending NMC Chapter 14.30 Related to

Page 5 of 10

196



Draft Ordinance No.

Residential Uses at Street Grade in the C-2 District

14.30.080

6. A written set of proposed findings that explain how the
project complies with the applicable design guidelines.

7. Any other information the applicant believes is relevant
to establishing that the project complies with applicable
design guidelines.

C. All plans shall be drawn such that the dimensions can be
verified with an engineers or architects scale.

Permitted Uses

In addition to uses permitted outright or conditionally in the
underlying zoning district, the following uses are permitted
within areas subject to design review.

A. Historic Nye Beach Design Review District.
1. Tourist Commercial (C-2) zoned property.

a. Up to five (5) multi-family dwelling units per lot or
parcel are permitted outright provided they are
located on a floor other than a floor at street grade.

b. A single-family residence is permitted outright if
located on a floor other than a floor at street grade.

c. A single-family residence is permitted outright,
including the street grade floor, within a dwelling
constructed prior to January 1, 2004. Residential
use at the street grade is limited to the footprint of
the structure as it existed on this date.

d. Single family, duplex, triplex, fourplex and
multifamily dwelling units, including at the street
grade, are permitted outright on property located
south of NW 2nd Court and north of NW 6th Street,
except for properties situated along the west side of
NW Cliff Street.

Staff: On February 18, 2020 the City Council, at the
request of Newport resident Wendy Engler, directed
the Planning Commission to pursue amendments to
the Historic Nye Beach Design Review Overlay to
prohibit new residential uses at street grade for C-2
zoned property situated along the west side of NW
Cliff Street. The concern is that the existing
allowance for new residential at street grade,

197

2165, Amending NMC Chapter 14.30 Related to

Page 6 of 10



Draft Ordinance No.

Residential Uses at Street Grade in the C-2 District

14.30.090

14.30.100

established in 2008 (Ordinance No. 1946), opened
the door for very large single family homes to be built,
Inconsistent with the vision for that area.

2. High Density Multi-Family Residential (R-4) zoned
property.

a. Uses permitted outright in the C-2 zone district that
are not specified as a use permitted outright or
conditionally in the R-4 zone district, are allowed
subject to the issuance of a conditional use permit
in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 14.34,
Conditional Uses and subject to the limitation that
the use not exceed a total of 1,000 square feet of
gross floor area. This provision does not preclude
an application for a use as a home occupation
under Chapter 14.27, Home Occupations.

Prohibited Uses

The following uses are prohibited within areas subject to
Design Review.

A. Historic Nye Beach Design Review District

1. Any new or expanded outright permitted commercial
use in the C-2 zone district that exceeds 2,000 square
feet of gross floor area. New or expanded uses in
excess of 2,000 square feet of gross floor area may be
permitted in accordance with the provisions of Chapter
14.34, Conditional Uses. '

2. Recreational vehicle parks within the Tourist
Commercial (C-2) and Public Structures (P-1) zoning
districts.

(Section 14.30.090 revised by Ordinance No. 2120, adopted on September
18, 2017: effective October 18, 2017,)

Special Zoning Standards in Design Review Districts

All zoning standards and requirements applicable under
Ordinance No. 1308 (as amended) in the subject zoning
district shall apply, except that the following additional zoning
standards are applicable for the design review district as
applicable in the underlying zoning designation and shall be
modified for each district as specified.

198

2165, Amending NMC Chapter 14.30 Related to

Page 7 of 10



199

Draft Ordinance No. 2165, Amending NMC Chapter 14.30 Related to
Residential Uses at Street Grade in the C-2 District

A. Historic Nye Beach Design Review District:

1.
2.

No drive through windows are allowed.

Commercial buildings with frontage on NW and SW
Coast Street, W Olive Street, NW and SW CIiff Street,
NW Beach Drive, and NW Third Street shall be set
back from the property line fronting the street no more
than 5 feet unless the development provides for a
pedestrian oriented amenity (such as a courtyard,
patio, or café with outdoor seating), compliance with
the setback is precluded by topography or by
easement, or a larger setback is authorized by the
Planning Commission through the design review
process.

Required yards and setbacks established in Chapter
14.11 (Required Yards and Setbacks) and Chapter
14.18 (Screening and Buffering between Residential
and Non-Residential Zones) shall be reduced by 50%,
except for Section 14.11.030, Garage Setback, which
is to remain at 20-feet. A setback for a garage that is
less than 20-feet may be permitted if it is found by the
Planning Commission to be consistent with the Design
Review Guidelines pursuant to NMC 14.30.060(B).

The following adjustments to Chapter 14.12 (Minimum
Size) and Chapter 14.13 (Density Limitations, Table
“A”) are allowed within the District.

a. The minimum lot area within both the R-4 and C-2
zones shall be 3,000 square feet.

b. The minimum lot width for the R-4 zone shall be 30
feet.

Residential use permitted on C-2 zoned property
located south of NW 27 Court and north of NW 6t
Street, except for properties situated along the west
side of NW CiIiff Street, shall comply with the following
additional requirements:

a. The maximum residential density is 1,250 square
feet per unit.

b. The maximum building height is 35 feet.

Page 8 of 10



Draft Ordinance No. 2165, Amending NMC Chapter 14.30 Related to

Residential Uses at Street Grade in the C-2 District

c. The maximum lot coverage in structures is 64%. If
the proposed residential use provides at least 1 off-
street parking space for each dwelling unit in a
below-grade parking structure (for the purposes of
this section below-grade is defined to mean that
50% or more of the perimeter of the building is
below-grade) located directly below the residential
portion of the structure, the maximum lot coverage
allowed is 90%.

d. The residential use provides at minimum 1 off-street
parking space for each dwelling unit.

e. At least one residential building per lot is set back
from the property line abutting the street no more
than 5 feet.

Staff: This change aligns with the earlier revision, so
that the standards listed apply to all C-2 zoned areas
within the Nye Beach Overlay where residential is
allowed at street grade.

6. The following adjustments to the off-street parking
requirements of Chapter 14.14 (Parking, Loading, and
Access Requirements) are provided for uses within the
District:

a. Commercial uses shall have the first 1,000 square
feet of gross floor area exempted from the off-street
parking calculation.

b. All uses within the District shall be allowed an on-
street parking credit that shall reduce the required
number of off-street parking spaces by one off-
street parking space for every one on-street parking
space abutting the property subject to the following
limitations:

i. Each on-street parking space must be in
compliance with the City of Newport standards
for on-street parking spaces.

ii. Each on-street parking space to be credited
must be completely abutting the subject
property. Only whole spaces qualify for the on-
street parking credit.

a. On-street parking spaces credited for a specific use

200

Page 9 of 10



201

Draft Ordinance No. 2165, Amending NMC Chapter 14.30 Related to
Residential Uses at Street Grade in the C-2 District

14.30.110

may not be used exclusively by that use, but shall
be available for general public use at all times. No
signs or actions limiting general public use of on-
street parking spaces are allowed except as
authorized by the City of Newport.

(Section 14.30.100 revised by Ordinance No. 2120, adopted on September
18, 2017: effective October 18, 2017.)

Modification of a Design Review Permit

A modification of an approved design may be requested of the
approving authority for any reason by an applicant.
Applications for a modification shall be submitted and
processed in the same manner as the original application.

A

If the requested modification is from an approval issued
under design standards, the modification request shall be
approved by the Community Development Director if the
modification also meets the design standards.

. If the modification does not meet the design standards or

if the modification is from an approval issued under the
design guidelines, the modification shall be processed
under the design review process for compliance with the
applicable design guidelines. The Commission’s authority
is limited to a determination of whether or not the proposed
modification is consistent with the applicable design
review guidelines.

ﬂ%@ﬂﬁ#¢&hﬁ$mwaMQyammameNaZ%MaMwwd&wmewzt
2015; effective October 21, 2015.)

Page 10 0of 10



Attachment “B”
2-7-20

202

CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Meeting Date:_February 18, 2020

Agenda ltem:
Report and Possible Action regarding the Historic Nye Beach Overlay.

Background:

On February 3, the City Council met in a work session to review several issues related to
Nye Beach. Council discussed the Nye Beach Turnaround Pavement Project. There were
no objections expressed from the Council in proceeding with that project as presented by
Public Works Director/City Engineer, Tim Gross.

In addition, Council heard from Wendy Engler regarding the overlay zone. There were two
specific issues that were discussed. One was confirmation that the City Council has
referred the discussion on the Nye Beach Core Zone proposal to the Planning
Commission. This was done by the Council at an earlier meeting with the Planning
Commission planning to initiate discussion on this effort next month.

In addition, Wendy Engler indicated there is some urgency in dealing with lots located on
the west side of Cliff Street. The short term fix that was suggested for avoiding a situation
where multiple lots are used to build one single large house, is to exclude residential on
the ground floor for property on the west side of Cliff Street. This would help achieve the
initial concept of having small shops below and housing above for future projects. It would
also facilitate potential hotel development or other similar appropriate uses in this area.
Cliff Street was designed as a walkable commercial street that would serve as a connector
between the Visual Arts Center and the Performing Arts Center. This concept would be
impacted should muitiple lots be purchased with large single family homes constructed
on this oceanfront property.

Wendy Engler suggested that the City consider pursuing assistance through Oregon’s
Transportation Growth Management Program for possible funding opportunities to assist
in discussion of the Nye Beach Core Zone proposal. On this issue, there are a couple of
things for the City Council to consider. A couple of years ago we had Oregon’s
Transportation Growth Management Program representatives walk Nye Beach with us to
discuss some of the concepts for promoting more cottage-style housing in this area. The
conclusion from the program manager, at that time, was that they did not see that as fitting
the primary purpose of this program to increase densification and mixed uses in a
geographic area. Wendy Engler had been in contact with Laura Buhl, Land Use and
Transportation Planner, who indicated that TGM is a potential resource, however, there
are no guarantees whether this project would be funded. In order to be funded, the project
would need to be consistent with TGM’s mission, goals, and objectives. This would be



determined by TGM by reviewing an application submitted by the City. It should be noted
that the City is anticipating making a request through a different TGM program to address
property redevelopment issues including, mixed uses in City Center relating to the North
Side Transportation Planning Project. | have not had an opportunity to talk to Laura Buhl
as of the date of this memo. | hope to have an opportunity to talk to her prior to the Council
meeting on February 18. | would like to have further guidance and find out whether TGM
would consider multiple proposals from the City for potential projects through these
different programs.

At this point, | think it is appropriate for Council to move forward with a request for the
Planning Commission to consider initiating amendments to the C-2 zoned property within
the Nye Beach Overlay, to prohibit residential uses at street grade along the west side of
NW Cliff Street. This would be a separate and distinct action from the core zone proposal
review that Council has previously forwarded to the Planning Commission. Furthermore,
| think it would be appropriate for the Council to receive some feedback from the Planning
Commission on the need and value to utilize a facilitator, either through TGM or through
other budgeted funds, related to that discussion.

Recommendation:
| recommend the City Council Consider the following motion:

| move to direct the Planning Commission to initiate legislative amendments to C-2 zoned
property within the historic Nye Beach Design Review Overlay to prohibit residential use
at street grade along with the west side of Cliff Street, in addition to the previous request
relating to review and recommendations on how to proceed with the core zone proposal
previously referred to the Planning Commission.

Fiscal Effects:
None by these actions.

Alternatives:
As suggested by Council

Respectfully Submitted,

)~ 744

Spencer R. Nebel
City Manager

203



STAFF REPORT
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020

Title: Potential Refinements to the Historic Nye Beach Design Review Overlay
Prepared by: Derrick |. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Director

Recommended Motion: | move to direct the Planning Commission to initiate legislative
amendments to C-2 zoned property within the Historic Nye Beach Design Review Overlay
to prohibit residential at street grade along the west side of NW CIliff Street, and to report
back to the Council on whether or not more extensive changes are needed.

Background Information: On January 6, 2020, the City Council considered Ordinance No.
2160, which contained a targeted set of amendments to C-2 zoned property within the
Nye Beach Design Review Overlay that would allow new residential use at street grade
on all C-2 zoned property in the Overlay situated south of NW 24 Court and north of NW
6th Street. The amendments were initiated by the Planning Commission at the request of
a couple of property owners in the area.

Prior to the Ordinance No. 2160 amendments, new residential uses at street grade in the
zone were limited to properties south of NW 2nd Court and north of NW 6th Street that
front NW and SW Coast Street, NW and SW CIiff Street, and W. Olive Street. That
allowance was the result of a Council initiated package of amendments in 2008, made at
the request of certain property owners in Nye Beach (Ordinance No. 1946). Before that
amendment, residential use at street grade in C-2 zoned areas within the Overlay was
limited to properties where a residential use existed prior to 2004, and to the footprint of
the structure as it existed on that date.

At the January 6, 2020 hearing, the Council heard testimony from Wendy Engler, a
Newport resident, who expressed support for the Ordinance No. 2160 changes, but asked
the Council to direct the Planning Commission to explore whether or not other aspects of
the Historic Nye Beach Design Review Overlay need to be reworked. After approving the
ordinance, the City Council made a motion to direct the Planning Commission to examine
whether or not the Overlay needs to be amended more broadly, and to report back to
Council. The Commission has reserved time on its March 9, 2020 work session agenda
to review the matter.

At a February 3, 2020 City Council work session, Ms. Engler asked the City Council to
initiate targeted amendments to the C-2 zoning within the Overlay that would repeal the
allowance for residential uses at street grade, granted in 2008, for those properties
situated on the west side of NW Cliff Street, between NW 27 Court and Olive Street. A

Page 1 of 2

204



couple of the affected properties are up for sale and she is concerned that they couid be
developed with very large homes, which would be inconsistent with what was envisioned
for the area when the streetscape improvements were installed. There was general
consensus from the Council that the targeted amendments made sense.

Ms. Engler also asked that the Council explore whether or not Transportation Growth
Management (TGM) community assistance programs could be leveraged to facilitate a
broader discussion about how desired mixed use development options can be achieved
in Nye Beach. This was assessed by the TGM program in 2018, and at that time the state
program manager determined that the community’s focus was too much on reducing
residential densities, which is contrary to the TGM programs objectives. The Council
deferred further discussion of this issue to the February 18, 2020 meeting.

The recommended motion, will get the process started for the targeted amendments
requested by Ms. Engler, while allowing the Planning Commission to deliberate and share
its thoughts on whether or not more significant changes may be needed in Nye Beach. A
letter is enclosed from Charlotte Boxer, one of the affected owners along NW CIiff Street,
expressing her support for the amendments. If the Commission determines that
additional work is needed, they will have an opportunity to frame the general scope and
parameters of what they believe should be done in a report to the Council. This will also
provide an opportunity to evaluate whether or not such work could be framed such that it
is a better fit for the TGM program.

There are four Community Assistance Programs offered by the State of Oregon’s TGM
program to help communities resolve land use and transportation planning issues,
including Education and Outreach, Code Assistance, Quick Response, and
Transportation System Plan Assessment. These are awarded throughout the year, on a
non-competitive basis. They also offer a competitive grant process for larger projects.
The competitive grant process may be a good fit for developing a set of land use
regulations and incentives for the City Center area that would pair with the Transportation
System Planning work that is currently underway.

Fiscal Notes: None at this time. Funding may be needed in FY 20/21 if it is determined
that a more substantial round of amendments are needed in Nye Beach.

Alternatives: The Council could elect to make no motion at this time, and wait for the
Commission to report back before determining whether or not targeted or more extensive
changes are needed in Nye Beach.

Attachments:

Partial Minutes from the 1/6/20 City Council Regular Meeting
Partial Minutes from the 2/3/20 City Council Work Session
Letter from Charlotte Boxer, received via email on 2/11/20
One page list of TGM Community Assistance Programs

Page 2 of 2

205



P Ratification of the Mayor's Reappointment of Braulio Escobar to the Retirement
Board of Trustees for a term expiring on December 31, 2023;

Q. Ratification of the Mayor's Appointment of Laura Kimberly, Jenni Remillard, Loren
Joling, Richard Giles, Richard Brodeur, and Rebecca Stiles to the Sister City
Committee for Terms Expiring on December 31, 2021;

R. Ratification of the Mayor's appointments of Paula Miranda (stakeholder
representing the Port of Newport) and Kathy Windell (at-large member) to the
Vision 2040 Advisory Committee for terms expiring on December 31, 2023; and
the reappointment of Leslie Palotas (At-Large Member) for a term expiring on
December 31, 2024.

Allen noted a minor change to the December 2, 2019 regular meeting minutes.
MOTION was made by Goebel, seconded by Hall, to approve the consent calendar as
amended. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Public Hearing and Potential Adoption of Ordinance No. 2160, an_Ordinance
Related to Residential Use at Street Grade in C-2 Zone Portions of the Historic Nye Beach
Design Review District. Hawker introduced the agenda item. Nebel reported on December
9, 2019, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on a request to consider
amending the Historic Nye Beach Design Review District regulations expanding the area
for new residential development which can occur at street level at the C-2 zone. He noted
at the October 21 work session, the commission targeted a set of draft amendments to
NMC 14.30.080 and 14.30.100 that would allow new residential use at street grade on all
C-2 zoned property in the district situated south of NW 2nd Street and north of NW 6th
Street. He stated written and public comments were received and have been relayed in
the attached materials from Community Development Director Derrick Tokos. He
indicated the Planning Commission voted unanimously to forward a favorable
recommendation of these changes to Council. He recommended the Mayor conduct a
public hearing on ordinance No. 2160, an ordinance related to residential use at street
grade in C-2 zone portions of the Historic Nye Beach Design Review District.

Sawyer opened the public hearing, on Ordinance No. 2160, at 6:25 P.M. He called for
public comment.

Wendy Engler, a Newport resident, stated she is in favor of the concept of the
proposed ordinance, especially for the two specific properties who petitioned the city for
the change. She added, however, that her support is tempered by concern over the
current development standards that will apply to these properties and other streets. She
noted some of the building standards are not consistent with the comprehensive plan
polices related to Nye Beach, most notably, standards that allow multiple lots to be
combined into a single tract for a single-family home in a C-2 area are not conducive to
the pedestrian friendly, small scale mixed use neighborhood envisioned in the peninsula
urban design plan of the comprehensive plan. She indicated this is notable on CIliff Street,
where millions of dollars were spent for a walkable street and some commercial activity,
not private homes. She urged the Council to direct the Planning Commission to follow
through on their motion that passed unanimously at the August 28, 2017, meeting. She

206



stated the motion was to review the core zone proposal and to include review of other
aspects of the Nye Beach overlay as needed such as modification of loud uses in C-2.

Planning Commissioner Bob Berman reported he fully supports the ordinance being
reviewed tonight. He indicated the ordinance was developed as a targeted modification,
small in scope, and only applied to six or eight potential properties that are undeveloped.
He stated the ordinance does not affect the entire overlay or the entire area. He urged
Council to support the ordinance. He added Engler made some excellent points about
unintended consequences of past actions, and that it's time to review the development
standards of the Nye Beach overlay. He emphasized it's time to see what other things can
be done to enhance purposes of the Nye Beach overlay, in particular the problem of
multiple lots being combined for large single-family residences.

Jan Kaplan, a Newport resident, stated he is in support of Engler's comments. He
noted Nye Beach is known throughout the state, and the city needs to be careful about
making changes to code that would change the nature of the area. He suggested before
Council goes forward making changes, that the overall review be carried out.

Sawyer closed the public hearing at 6:33 P.M. for Council deliberation. Goebel stated
he agrees with the concept, and he is concerned that there are bigger structures going in
and combining lots, which may not be the real desire of the neighborhood. He indicated
he would like the Planning Commission to look at that issue. Jacobi suggested Council
direct the Planning Commission to review standards in Nye Beach.

MOTION was made by Goebel, seconded by Allen, to read Ordinance No. 2160, an
Ordinance related to residential use at street grade in C-2 zone portions of the Historic
Nye Beach Design Review District, by title only, and place for final passage. The motion
carried unanimously in a voice vote. Hawker read the title of Ordinance No. 2160. Voting
aye on the adoption of Ordinance No. 2160 were Allen, Parker, Jacobi, Hall, Botello,
Sawyer, and Goebel.

MOTION was made by Jacobi, seconded by Hall, to direct the Planning Commission
to review the Nye Beach overlay specifications. The motion carried unanimously in a voice
vote.

Nebel explained in 2017, Council had to review and renew the overlay zone, and the
Planning Commission recommended reviewing this on a broader basis. He noted since
then, time was consumed by the vacation rental issue. Goebel asked if the Nye Beach
Neighborhood Association would be involved. Nebel replied the Planning Commission
will have an initial discussion and then present a report to Council for further direction.
Hall recommended the Planning Commission take a physical walkthrough of the area
affected by the proposal.

Public Hearing and Potential Adoption of Ordinance No. 2159 Amending Section 4.30
of the Newport Municipal Code Regarding Single Use, Plastic, Carryout Bags, and
Aligning this Section of the Newport Municipal Code with House Bill 2509. Hawker
introduced the agenda item. Nebel reported that on April 15, 2019, the Newport City
Council adopted Ordinance No. 2148 which created regulations on the use of single use,
carryout, plastic bags in the City of Newport. He noted this ordinance was effective July
1, 2019, for large retailers and is effective January 1, 2020, for smaller retailers. He stated,
concurrently, House Bill 2509 was introduced and ultimately approved by the State
Legislature and signed into law by the Governor. He indicated this bill also regulates
single use, carryout, plastic bags.

207



February 3, 2020

4:00 P.M.
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION Newport, Oregon

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

The Newport City Council met in a work session on the above date and time in
Conference Room A of the Newport City Hall. In attendance were Sawyer, Goebel,
Jacobi, Hall, Alien, and Botello. Also in attendance was Mona Linstromberg, Francis Van
Wert, Wendy Engler, Jay Caplan, and Trish Caplan.

Staff in attendance was Spencer Nebel, City Manager; Derrick Tokos, Community
Development Director; Tim Gross, Public Works Director; and Peggy Hawker, City
Recorder/Special Projects Director.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

City Manager’s Report. Nebel reported first on the agenda is discussion regarding the
plans for the Nye Beach Turnaround. He noted the second issue is the Nye Beach Core
Zone Proposal. He stated there is a housekeeping item, the upcoming meeting with the
County Commission. He added Council will enter executive session to discuss real
property transactions and consider exempt public records regarding privileged
attorney/client written communications. He recommended spending 25 minutes on the
Nye Beach Turnaround and 25 minutes on the core zone proposal.

Nye Beach Turnaround Improvements. Nebel reported Gross provided a report
regarding the plans for the Nye Beach Turnaround. He noted there have been a number
of discussions over the past few years regarding this project. He stated Gross has outlined
the proposal for this project which would occur prior to the summer tourist season, if the
Council is ready to move forward with this project. He added former Councilor Engler has
had some concerns about how this project would take place and has shared those with
several Council members in the past. He stated he thinks it is appropriate to have a
discussion with Council on the Nye Beach Turnaround to get final direction on how
Council wants to proceed with this project.

Gross reported the rehabilitation involves replacing the pavement and restriping,
replacing the pieces of curb that are broken or missing, and stopping the sand from drifting
across the lower parking lot with a shallow retaining wall exactly like the upper retaining
wall. He added restriping the parking lot would add two more parking spots. He noted he
is not planning to do anything with the landscape islands on the sides, except for filling
them in with topsoil. Goebel clarified where the shallow retaining wall would be located.
Allen asked for an example of the safety concerns in the Nye Beach Turnaround. Gross
replied there have been two claims regarding tripping in the area.

Parker asked if there are plans for the overgrown trees in the area. Gross replied that
is a topic for another discussion. Goebel asked how the Council is preventing the project.
Gross replied typically this project would be a maintenance project that the Council does
not need to approve. He added the discussion would occur during the budget process
when funds are appropriated. He explained that when he started the work on this project,
he was directed by the City Manager to stop work because of Council concerns. Nebel
asked if Council is interested in moving forward with the project or having a major

208



redesign. Gross stated regardless of a redesign, this project still needs to happen, and
happen quickly. He emphasized the deterioration of the area. Nebel reported he needs to
know if the Council is comfortable with what is being proposed, or if the Council wants to
look at something else. He suggested if the Council wants to do a major reconstruction of
this site, he recommends not investing in repaving yet.

Goebel suggested a comprehensive look at the area. Parker clarified there would
asphalt available for the repaving and the bid process for the project. Botello suggested
visiting the site. Gross emphasized the urgency of the project. Goebel clarified where the
paving would be, and asked if Beautification people could speak about the area. Nebel
suggested there would be time for a site visit before the next Council meeting. Allen
explained his history with this item. Parker summarized some members of Council aren't
sure of the scope, that the parking lot needs to be paved and sand needs to be kept out
of storm drains. He stated he agrees there is a lot of community input needed on the larger
design issue, but after spring break, visitor use really spikes. He indicated it would be nice
to see the paving and limited scope of work to stop sand.

Goebel clarified Gross would need a month and half to complete the project. Nebel
directed Gross to bring in drawings of the proposal. Sawyer said the Council would return
to this item after Gross returned. Hall clarified if the Nye Beach folks would speak on the
issue. Nebel replied they would speak during the second item on the agenda. Allen asked
if the whole Council would tour the site. Parker replied he would show Botello the area.

Nye Beach Core Zone Proposal. Nebel reported a number of years ago the Planning
Commission and the City Council updated a number of issues related to the Nye Beach
overlay zone. He noted one of the issues that was not addressed at that time was a
proposal from a number of residents within Nye Beach to develop a core zone proposal
that would limit the bulk and size of buildings within the prescribed area within the overlay
zone. He stated, at the time, the Planning Commission indicated that it was an issue that
they would revisit at a later point, but it was important to move forward with the items
where there was agreement. He indicated these changes were ultimately approved by the
City Council and were incorporated in the code. He reported the Planning Commission
has indicated that they will initiate the review in March.

Nebel stated Engler is also concerned, specifically, about potential development on
Cliff Street. He noted, as indicated in her communication, once a building permit is applied
for, the rules in place at the time of application will apply for any development. He added
Engler is suggesting that the City considers pursuing assistance through Oregon’s
Transportation Growth Management Program for possible funding opportunities to assist
in redevelopment. He noted the city did have discussions about potential funding from
this program a couple of years ago, and, at the time, the nature of what was requested
was in conflict with the purpose of this program. He added once the city has a better scope
of what would be sought in this type of project, he could have further discussions about
potential funding of these efforts.

Engler reported on Cliff Street there are four lots for sale that people have been
wanting to buy in order to build a single, large house. She explained the area was intended
to have small shops below and housing on top. She suggested the west side of Cliff Street
code requirements go back to before 2008, and exclude residential on the ground floor.
Tokos explained north of Second Cournt, Cliff Street is limited to commercial on the ground
floor, but south to Olive is not. Hall explained the location of the code change request.
Tokos explained the request is a legislative code amendment that could be considered

209



separate from the overall code. Goebel asked if this item would go to the Planning
Commission. Engler requested direction for the City Manager to approve a legislative
code amendment to change that section of Cliff to its previous 2008 status, where
commercial is required on the ground floor.

Engler reported she is interested in having TGM bring the people in Nye Beach
together as a facilitator to discuss what they would like Nye Beach to look like. She
explained that was not discussed as part of the Nye Beach design review. She gave the
example of the C-2 restrictions making an artist studio prohibited or conditional use. Nebel
stated he would bring a report back on this on February 18. Goebel asked what happened
in the past when TGM was approached. Engler replied there was a communication
breakdown. Nebel added if TGM doesn't work out, then the Council could put some
funding toward hiring a different facilitator. Nebel stated he would discuss the idea with
them again. Goebel asked for clarification on the process. Nebel explained the Council
could recommend Engler’s first proposal to the Planning Commission at its next meeting.

Nye Beach Turnaround Improvements. Gross explained the maps of the area. The
council came to a consensus to move forward with the project.

Joint County Commission and City Council Work Session. Nebel explained the county
meets once a year with the Newport City Council in a joint work session, and this year’s
date is February 12 at 6:00 P.M. He suggested only three or four items in total to discuss
with the county. Discussion ensued on the top items. Hall asked to be excused from the
meeting since she teaches. Council agreed the Housing Rehabilitation Fund, update on
County Commons and Farmer's Market, concerns with the Jump-Off Joe site, and shelter
for the homeless were the top four issues.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

MOTION was made by Allen, seconded by Parker, to enter executive session pursuant
to ORS 192.660(2)(e) to Discuss Real Property Transactions and pursuant to ORS
192.660(2)(f) to Consider Exempt Public Records Regarding Privileged Attorney/Client
Written Communications. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote, and Council
entered executive session at 5:13 P.M.

Council left executive session and returned to its work session at 5:50 P.M.

ADJOURNMENT

Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:50 P.M.

210



211

Derrick Tokos

From: Spencer Nebel

Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 9:15 AM

To: Derrick Tokos

Subject: FW: Letter in support of Nye Beach Zoning Amendment
Attachments: City Manager Letter re Zoning Amendment.docx
Importance: High

Spencer R. Nebel

City Manager

City of Newport, Oregon 97365
541-574-0601
s.nebel@newportoregon.gov

From: Charlotte Boxer <charboxer2 @comcast.net>

Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2020 10:35 AM

To: Spencer Nebel <S.Nebel@NewportOregon.gov>
Subject: Letter in support of Nye Beach Zoning Amendment
Importance: High

Dear Mr. Nebel,

| was asked to provide a written letter in support of returning the west side of Cliff Street to pre-2008 status. Attached is
my letter, which also contains a short narrative as to why | feel so strongly about this request.

Please let me know if | can provide you any further information. | appreciate that | have an opportunity to put this

recommendation in writing for your review, and hopefully support, for this important correction to the Historic Nye
Beach neighborhood.

Thank you,
Charlotte Boxer
Owner — 213 NW Cliff Street



212

February 10, 2020

Spencer Nebel, City Manager
City of Newport

169 SW Coast Hwy

Newport, OR. 97365

Sent via email

Re:  C-2 Zoning Amendment on Cliff Street

Mr. Nebel,

I am writing this letter in support of a zoning amendment for the west side of Cliff Street. 1 am the
owner of the property at 213 NW Cliff Street, which is located on the west side of Cliff Street. |
purchased this property in early 1998 with a vision of developing it into a mixed-use property. Astime
passed, | also acquired two buildings on the bay front (which | still own) and the restaurant property on
Olive Street which | recently sold to The Hallmark inn. At this stage of my life, | have decided to list the
property for sale and let someone else do the development and enjoy my retirement. However, that

does not mean | have lost my desire to see the neighborhood flourish with a mix of uses under the C-2
zoning.

Over the years many of us envisioned that the Nye Beach neighborhood would become a
neighborhood of small retail shops, restaurants, and quaint housing. A place where tourists and locals
would have a chance to shop, eat and enjoy the ambiance of a fun coastal neighborhood. The change
in permitted uses with the 2008 amendment now allows residential at the street level and has already
impacted the ambiance of the neighborhood by allowing the 5 residential homes at the corner of Olive
Street and Coast Street to be built. In my opinion, that development is exactly what | don’t want to see
happen to my property. My property is 9800 sf and could accommodate small-scale development as a
boutique hotel or a mixed-use project of retail and housing, which is what was originally intended prior
to the 2008 amendment. Now it could also potentially allow a huge McMansion up to 65’ long to be
built by combining the four lots into one home site. This is not my vision or hope for the
neighborhood, nor is a project that looks like the corner of Olive and Coast Street.

The Sylvia Beach Hotel, the American Classic VRD and the Minthorn House are operating under the
pre-2008 rules and this would put the rest of the west side of Cliff Street under the same rule. Itis
important for the leaders of our community to share a vision of what we want our neighborhoods and
our city to look like as development takes place. Cliff Street was improved with the brick streets and
underground utilities to encourage walkability and help facilitate the development of a mix of
commercial and residential within the neighborhood. 1sincerely hope the city council will embrace
this vision too. By returning the west side of Cliff Street to pre-2008 status it would ensure future
development as commercial and/or mixed-use which was the original vision for Cliff Street.

Thank you,
Charlotte Boxer, 1050 SW Mark Street, Newport, OR.



213

The Oregon Transportation & Growth Managenent Progran: — Berter Wayvs 1o Berter Places

TGM Community Assistance Programs

In addition to grants, TGM provides several other services to help resolve land use and transportation
planning issues. Community Assistance projects have a more narrow scope and shorter timeline than
grant projects. They are awarded throughout the year on a non-competitive basis.

Code Assistance
Local governments use TGM Code Assistance to help identify and remove barriers to smart growth in
their zoning and development codes. TGM staff or planning consultants hired by TGM work with
communities to:

e review and revise local planning policies and code standards; and

e solve specific code problems identified by the community.
Cities can also use TGM’s Model Development Code for Small Cities to update their codes
independently or with the support of a consultant.

Education and Outreach

Through workshops and presentations, TGM helps communities identify solutions to community

design, land use, and transportation challenges. TGM workshops and presentations are generally
tailored to meet the specific needs of a community.

Quick Response

Quick Response focuses on bridging the gap between long range transportation planning and
subsequent actions affecting specific properties. Design consultants hired by TGM identify ways to
facilitate readiness for development and improve access to local destinations, while encouraging
walking, biking and using transit.

TSP Assessment

TSP Assessment helps local governments evaluate their existing transportation systems plans. TGM
will identify the TSP's strengths and weaknesses, discuss the need for and timing of a potential update,
and help develop a scope of work.

More Information
More information on Community Assistance is on our website, including program brochures,
eligibility requirements, and information on completed projects: https://www.oregon.gov/lcd/TGM.

The following DLCD staff can provide additional guidance specific to their program:

Code Assistance Laura Buhl 503-934-0073 laura.buhl@state.or.us
Education and Qutreach =~ Evan Manvel 503-934-0059  evan.manvel@state.or.us
Quick Response Stacey Goldstein 503-934-0048 stacey.goldstein@state.or.us
TSP Assessment Bill Holmstrom 503-934-0040 bill.holmstrom@state.or.us




214

Attachment “e»

MINUTES 2-2-20
City of Newport Planning Commission
Work Session
Newport City Hall Conference Room A
February 24, 2020
6:00 p.m.

Planning Commissioners Present: Jim Patrick, Lee Hardy, Bob Berman, Gary East, Jim Hanselman, Mike Franklin,

and Bill Branigan.

Planning Commission Citizens Advisory Committee Members Present: Braulio Escobar, and Greg Sutton.

Planning Commission Citizens Advisory Committee Members Absent: Dustin Capri (excused).

City Staff Present: Community Development Director (CDD) Derrick Tokos; and Executive Assistant, Sherri

1

Marineau.

Call to Order. Chair Patrick called the Planning Commission work session to order at 6:00 p.m.

Unfinished Business.

Update on City Council Direction to Initiate Targeted Nye Beach Code Amendments. Tokos gave an
update on the direction the City Council gave on the February 18th meeting to initiate targeted Nye Beach
code amendments that would restrict residential on street grade along the west side of NW CIiff Street. He
reviewed a draft of the NMC Chapter 14.30 amendments that were handed out to the Commissioners.

Hanselman asked if the amendments applied to just single family residential. Tokos explained it applied all
residential. Berman asked if the amendments would undo what the Commission had already worked on. Tokos
reported that this change only affected Cliff Street and brought the rules back to where they were prior to the
updates that happened in 2008. Hardy questioned why there was resistance towards building large homes on
Cliff Street. Tokos explained that because there was a lot of money spent on the Cliff Street improvements,
building large houses on that street would be inconsistent with the infrastructure that had already been put in
place. Franklin asked if this would be a “taking” issue. Tokos explained the City would have to provide the
required Measure 56 notice to the property owners on Cliff Street because the residential right at street grade
granted to them in 2008 was being taken away. He noted that the City Council wanted the Commission to

consider this modification and also ask themselves if there were more significant changes that needed to be
added for Nye Beach.

New Business.

Review Updated Set of Tsunami Hazard Overlay Zone Amendments / Hazard Mitigation Plan. Tokos
reviewed his staff memorandum and he handed out a copy of an email from Meg Reed at the DLCD to the
Commission. He explained that the draft copy of amendments to the Natural Features Section of the Newport
Comprehensive Plan included a rationale, background, and policies for guiding development within tsunami
inundation areas. Tokos reviewed the draft ordinance establishing a Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone and
explained that the overlay expressly limited certain uses in tsunami inundation areas in a manner comparable
to provisions contained in ORS Chapter 455 that were removed with the passage of HB 3309 (2019). He noted
that HB 4119 was likely to be approved during the Oregon Legislature’s short session. This was a refinement
of HB 3309 that would require certain structures in tsunami inundation areas be designed to higher standards.
Tokos noted that the City would update its building codes to comply with the law if this was passed. It would

not impact the proposed amendments, but would be a supplemental set of standards that would apply to certain
projects.

Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 02/24/2020.



2

L0
—i
N

Tokos asked for the Commissioner’s comments on the document. Branigan noted that if the spelling of
McLean was correct the “[sic]” should be removed. Hardy asked why the dates of events in Table 1 were
deleted. Tokos explained that since it cut off in 1957, there was enough of an explanation that they didn’t need
to go beyond this. Hardy thought that including it would give a cleaner perspective based on what actually
happened rather than the assumption that it was going to be 500 years. Tokos explained that specific events
were best left in background documents. This was because the City would have to otherwise replicate
documents and there wasn’t enough time to go back and research everything that had happened.

Berman noted that the last sentence on page 8 had two extra hyphens that needed to be removed. He also
question on page 9 if saying the tectonic plates were “westward-moving” was correct. He thought the words
should be taken out. Patrick didn’t think it should be removed because the Atlantic was in fact pushing the
plates west. Branigan noted that the actual jurisdiction names needed to be adding in the last sentence of
paragraph 2. He also pointed out that the first sentence in paragraph 4 of page 9 should be changed to said that
the Department of Geology of Mineral Industries “has” developed Tsunami Inundation Maps. Hanselman
thought that the argument on the first two sentences on page 14 of the document were wrong. He had concerns
that they were referencing old science and not a net zero drift. Tokos thought this was fair and explained that
there were items in the Natural Features section that needed to be updated that were separate from this project.
This could be done at some point but it would be a different project and a little bit more involved to tackle.

Tokos reviewed the additions to the Natural Features Goals/Policies next. Hardy questioned why the tsunami
hazard and disclosure statement for new development in hazard areas had been removed. Tokos explained that
the Commission could discuss adding it back in but it would have to be run through legal review to understand
what purpose it served. Berman thought that in previous Commission minutes there was general agreement
that the they wanted the disclosure statement included. Tokos said there needed to be legal review to decide
if the document would reside in the planning file, or if it was something that was recorded for the property. A
discussion ensued regarding the value of a disclosure statement, if a statement should be filed away or
recorded, and how a disclosure statement would affect development. Hardy was in favor of requiring a
disclosure statement. Hanselman reminded the Commission that a lot of buyers didn’t know what the natural
hazards were and didn’t do the proper due diligence. He felt a disclosure statement would inform buyers.
Tokos explained that the question the Commission should answer was where would the disclosure statements
be held and referenced. Franklin didn’t see how the disclosure statement would help any more than the public
education that was already happening in the area through signage and news reports. Tokos explained that Goal
2 delved into the public education aspect of this. It extended the requirement to advise guests in short-term
rentals to hotels. The Commission was in general agreement to go ahead with the education goal. Berman
requested that the syntax be consistent in structure throughout all of the policies.

Patrick requested there be a link online to see the hazard maps. Berman asked what the maps that started on
Page 27 of the document were. Tokos explained that they represented the natural features of Newport and
noted that they needed to be updated. Berman asked if Chapter 14.46.020(B) was referencing the City or the

Urban Growth Boundary of Newport. Tokos explained this was the City limits because they could only apply
zoning inside the City.

Berman suggested that Chapter 14.46 say “the latest version” of the maps instead of specifically the 2015
maps. Tokos agreed it should be the latest version and said they would do conscious updates when there were
changes in the inundation areas. Franklin asked how the “Emergency vehicle shelters and garages” prohibition
in Chapter 14.46.050(A)(3) affected the current ambulance service in Nye Beach. Tokos explained this change
would make the current ambulance service nonconforming, and when they went away they wouldn’t be
allowed to come back. Berman asked why tanks had been repeated in Prohibited Uses A and B. Tokos said
the tanks supported the other uses in the same zone. This addressed situations such as when a tank was located
in the inundation area but the facility was outside of the inundation area. Berman thought it was redundant.

He noted that the first tank reference said “section and the second said “sub-section”. This needed to be the
same wording.

Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 02/24/2020.



4.

O
—i

N
Berman questioned if “adult day care” should be included in the list. Tokos thought this was the same as

assisted living facilities. Berman explained that it was different. Tokos suggested a definition be added to
synch up to State terminology.

Hanselman asked how many local schools had 250 children. Tokos thought the high school and middle school
had this many. Hanselman suggested the number be adjusted because he didn’t want to see smaller schools
left out. Tokos didn’t think numbers should be included in B.1 and B.3. He wanted it clear that this didn’t
apply to the new OSU MSI education building because it was a tsunami evacuation structure. Franklin asked
if a trade school would be prohibited if the numbers were taken out. Tokos explained they would unless the
trade school was tailored toward water-related trades. This type of trade school would be exempt because it
was considered necessary for work in the water related zones. Berman asked if 14.46.080 applied to water
related zones. Tokos believed it would but would change it to make it expressly clear that it did.

Tokos asked the Commission if they were good with the scope of changes to the Tsunami Hazards Overlay
Zone. The Commission was in general agreement that they were.

Review Amendments to the Stormwater Facilities Element of the Comprehensive Plan. Tokos reviewed
his staff memorandum and the final draft of proposed changes to the Storm Drainage Element of the Newport
Comprehensive Plan. He explained that the Statewide Planning Goal 11 addressed public facilities planning,
and this goal was implemented in OAR Chapter 660, Division 11. The administrative rule called for certain
elements of public facilities plans to be adopted into a Comprehensive Plan, namely a list of the identified
projects (OAR 660-011- 0045). System Development Charge eligible capital projects would also be identified
in the project list. The current draft responded to issues raised by Commission and Advisory Committee
members to make sure the projects and recommendations were appropriately added to the Comprehensive

Plan. Language was also clarified and a new Policy 5 has been added under Goal 1 related to the management
of stormwater in geologically hazardous areas.

Tokos reviewed the Goals and Policies section of the Public Facilities Element. He explained that regulations
would need to be developed on how the City would be handling impacts to the system in an equitable manner
on a project by project basis. Berman asked if Policy 5 needed to have a term that related back to the geologic
hazards. Tokos thought that saying “City designated” would suffice. Patrick suggested adding LIDS to the
policies. Berman didn’t like limiting Goal 2, Policy 5 to City properties and wanted to see good housekeeping
policies that anyone could adhere to. He wanted the policies made available to anyone doing development.
Hanselman noted that the Civil West review had omitted properties. He asked that the City request Civil West
provide the findings from Oceanview Drive up to 48th Street on the west side of Hwy 101 that were relative
to what the storm sewer was to those neighborhood. Tokos would look into this.

Tokos asked the Commission if it was acceptable to initial the legislative process at the next meeting. The
Commission was in general agreement to do so.

Adjourn. The meeting adjourned at 7:13 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Sherri Marineau,
Executive Assistant

3

Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 02/24/2020.



217

Attachment “D”
Derrick Tokos 2-2-20
From: Derrick Tokos
Sent: Monday, March 02, 2020 2:02 PM
To: 'jdahlqul@gmail.com'
Subject: RE: Contact Us - Web Form
Hi Jean,

Please accept this response as confirmation that | received your email and that we will provide you a copy of the staff
report when it is available.

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP

Community Development Director
City of Newport

169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97365

ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov

From: jdahlqul@gmail.com [mailto:jdahlqul@gmail.com]
Sent: Monday, March 02, 2020 11:34 AM

To: Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>
Subject: Contact Us - Web Form

City of Newport, OR :: Contact Us - Web Form

The following information was submitted on 3/2/2020 at 11:33:52 AM

To: Derrick Tokos

Name: Jean Dahlquist
Email: jdahlqul@gmail.com
Phone: (414) 477-1567
Subject: 2-2-20

Message: Good morning,

My name is Jean Dahlquist and | am conducting some research for FHCO. | was hoping to obtain the staff report and all
corresponding attachments for 2-Z-20, the "Eliminates residential use at street grade in a portion of the City's C-
2/Tourist Commercial zone adjacent to NW Cliff Street," when available.

Additionally, I've been in communication with several other cities, and they have found this resource helpful:
https://www.housinglandadvocates.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/04/Goal-10-Guidance-Letter-to-Cities-and-Counties-
signed.pdf . They have also found it helpful for me to take a quick look at their Goal 10 findings, as | have a pretty good

1



[ee]
—i

N
sense as to whether FHCO and HLA would want to submit a comment letter, and what they would say. Thus, if tnis
would also assist your workflow to receive feedback earlier, please let me know and | would be more than happy to
oblige.

Please confirm the receipt of this e-mail and | look forward to hearing from you soon!

Very Respectfully,

--Jean



219

Attachment “E”
2-7-20

NEWPORT PENINSULA URBAN DESIGN PLAN:

Findings:

Newport's historic peninsula district is the heart of the city. The City of Newport
anticipates that population, employment growth, and increased tourism on the peninsula,
combined with automobile-dependent development, will negatively affect the quality of life
and lifestyle, as well as the physical character of the historic core of the city. The
peninsula's ability to accommodate change requires careful attention to urban design in
order to preserve and strengthen the inherent qualities which have guided Newport's
development to date. These summary findings are more fully developed in the Newport
Peninsula Urban Design Study, which is incorporated herein as a background reference
document and provides substantial evidence for these findings, policies, and
implementation strategies. It is our key finding that is necessary to both stimulate and
guide development in order to graciously incorporate change and preserve the peninsula

as a wonderful place to live. Consequently, the following policies are adopted for the
peninsula.

Policies:

1. Preserve the beautiful natural setting and the orientation of development and public
improvements in order to strengthen their relationship to that setting.

2. Enhance new and redeveloping architectural and landscape resources to preserve
and strengthen the historic and scenic character and function of each setting.

3. Improve the vehicular and pedestrian networks in order to improve safety,
efficiency, continuity, and relationships connecting the peninsula neighborhoods.

4. Coordinate with the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) highway projects

which are compatible with and responsive to these policy objectives and design
districts implementing said policies.

5. Improve cohesion of each neighborhood subject to design district overlay by
enhancing its function, character, and relationship to its natural setting and
orientation.

6. Preserve and strengthen the ability of peninsula institutions to continue as centers

Chapter added by Ordinance No. 1677 (July 6, 1993).

Page . CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Newport Peninsula Urban Design Plan.



of employment.

7. Improve the built environment in order to strengthen the visual appearance and
attractiveness of developed areas.

8. Strengthen the peninsula's economic vitality by improving its desirability through
improved appearance, function, and efficiency.

9. Preserve and enhance the existing housing supply. Encourage the increase of
affordable housing in Newport.

10.  Adopt up to six urban design districts on the peninsula for the purpose of
implementing said policies in a manner consistent with the purpose of implementing

said policies in a manner consistent with the character and function of each area as
further defined herein.

Implementation:

The urban design policies may be implemented by additional specific policies
related to these objectives in the transportation system play, especially as these may relate

to integration of pedestrian, vehicular and bicycle environments and networks, parking, and
coordination with ODOT.

These policies may also be implemented by specific development/zoning code
amendments requiring integration of key policy elements into development plans. Such
policies may include a system of incentives to achieve density, height, pedestrian
orientation, and scenic enhancement.

The key implementation for these urban design policies specifically authorized by
this amendment shall be the creation of urban design districts. The purpose of each
design district shall be to preserve and enhance the function and character of each district
area. Design districts shall be considered as refinement plans and adopted as zoning and

development code overlays. The character and function of the six urban design districts is
as follows:

1.) City Center District (including U.S. Highway 101 Corridor).

A. City Center

The City Center area shall be characterized by Twentieth Century
Commercial and Vernacular style structures. This area will be the most intensively
developed commercial node on the peninsula. It will be enhanced as the City
Center by development of a transportation network which links this area to all others
on the peninsula. The building sites and public rights-of-way are to be

Page . CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Newport Peninsula Urban Design Plan.

220



2)

3.)

Page

221

characterized by land efficient parking and views of the Pacific Ocean and Yaquina
Bay.

B. City Center North

City Center North shall be characterized by concentrating government
buildings into a government center both east and west of U.S. Highway 101. It will

serve as a gateway to the peninsula while linking with the Center in both function
and character.

C. City Center South

City Center South shall focus on the Pacific Communities Hospital
development. Development in this area shall be pedestrian and bicycle oriented,
with effective linkages to the City Center and the U.S. Highway 101 Corridor.

Waterfront District.

Historically, this area was the original development site with the City of
Newport. Marine dependent industries--timber transport, fishing, etc.--were the first
source of livelihood for early settlers and inhabitants and shall continue to be
referenced in the design of the area. The Waterfront District shall continue to reflect
the working class character of the commercial fishing industry. Appropriately,
existing commercial buildings line both sides of Bay Boulevard and are of wood
frame construction, clad with stucco, masonry and tin, covered with flat and gable
roofs, 1 - 3 stories in height, with zero building setbacks. Many buildings have
awnings, and some are built on pilings above the water. Piers project beyond the
buildings. The historic character of the area is strong due to numerous intact,
original buildings which date from the 1870's through the 1940's, and preservation
of these historic buildings should continue to the extent possible. (At the
intersection of Hatfield Drive and Bay Boulevard, the addition of contemporary
buildings and lack of intact historic buildings has changed the character of the area
to the east.) The U.S. Coast Guard Station/Ocean House Hotel Site is note- worthy
architecturally as a unique building of the Colonial Revival style within the City of
Newport. The location of this building on a bluff above the Waterfront District is an
important aspect of its significance and shall be preserved.

Nye Beach District.

The Nye Beach District is significant for the collection of cohesive
architectural resources and landscape elements which reflect a working-class
neighborhood. The area consists of wood frame buildings, 1 to 2% stories in height,
covered with gable and hip roofs, and clad with clapboard, shingle and/or fire
retardant siding. The landscape character of the area is defined by rock walls,
terraces, sidewalks, and small front lawns. There are some small scale commercial

. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Newport Peninsula Urban Design Plan.



4.)

5.)

6.)

buildings within this residential neighborhood which relate directly in building
materials, scale, and massing to the character of the area. (Some changes have
occurred in the neighborhood, including building alterations such as retardant siding
materials and infill of non-compatible buildings on once vacant properties.) The Nye
Beach sub-area is most important as a cohesive neighborhood, defined by the
character of these vernacular buildings and the building/site relationship. Every
effort should be made to integrate the goals of the Nye Beach Study (Seventh
Amendment to the Newport Urban Renewal Plan) with any new developments in
this area for maximum benefit to the city and community.

Upland Residential District.

Quiet area of well-maintained, modern single-family residential homes to be
maintained overlooking Yaquina Bay. Sites are characterized by steep slopes and
shall be sensitively developed. Existing vegetation, such as shore pines, fir,
hemlock, and Monterey Cypress, is important to the character of this area, as well
as the entire peninsula, and should be preserved.

East Olive District.

This district consists of mixed use development and the middle school, high
school, county fairgrounds, and city/ county maintenance shops. The East Olive
District shall redevelop with emphasis on attractive development character and
corridor improvements, including efficiently organized vehicular, pedestrian and

bicycle traffic, and site planning that emphasizes pedestrian orientation and
children's safety.

Oceanfront Lodging/Residential District.

Multi-story buildings of varying heights, including rectangular oceanfront
motels of contemporary construction. Occasional views of ocean between buildings
to be encouraged. Orientation of visitors to the ocean is to be enhanced by the
emphasis of native/naturalized plantings on public and private property. Multi-family
residential structures to be encouraged. Single-family homes south of motel area,
on bluff overlooking the beach, to be respected by adjacent developments. Parking
conflicts to be improved by site planning and new buildings to reflect pedestrian

orientation. Beach accesses to be maintained or enhanced. Public open spaces to
be encouraged.

Specific Peninsula Implementation Strategies:

Development on the peninsula and in each urban design district may use these

additional implementation strategies:

1.)

Page

Encourage development of a pedestrian-friendly environment throughout the

. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Newport Peninsula Urban Design Plan.

222



2)

3.)

4.)

5.)

6.)

7.)

Page

223

peninsula through creation of public open spaces and pedestrian amenities within
each of the peninsula's primary sub-areas. Such public places should be supportive
of intensive commercial activity centers (such as the City Center), tourist areas
(such as the Waterfront and Oceanfront Lodging areas), and orientation to major
natural features (such as Yaquina Bay and the Pacific Ocean).

Work with the Oregon Department of Transportation to develop the best coast
parkway design, responsive to both the City of Newport's commercial development
interests and user accessibility requirements. Include U.S. Highway 20, the East
Olive entrance, as a major component of the work with ODOT. Co- ordinate
compliance with Oregon's Transportation Rule for improved traffic flow and safety

for cars, pedestrians, bicycles, and--where appropriate--transit throughout the
peninsula. Further:

(a) Develop a strong, local circulation network by forming north-south
streets (7th north from Bayley to 15th; and 9th north from Bayley to 12th) parallel to
U.S. Highway 101 through the central peninsula area.

(b)  Preserve the Yaquina Bay Bridge as a beautiful piece of architecture
that greatly enhances the Newport Peninsula's entrance from the South.

Encourage developer partnerships in implementation of these urban design

principles through a system of incentives (e.g., density, height, pedestrian
orientation).

Use the redesign of U.S. Highway 101 to link the existing City Center with office
employment centers and to link the Waterfront with Oceanfront Lodging/Residential

and Nye Beach. Strive to fully integrate U.S. Highway 101 improvements into the
City of Newport.

Establish visual continuity by seeking opportunities for relocating or undergrounding
utilities and implementing a signage program and signage ordinances.

Preserve the significant scenic qualities from the Waterfront to the top of the Upland
Residential bluff and from the Embarcadero through the Yaquina Bay State Park.
Foster developer partnerships in implementation of these scenic preservation

principles through a system of incentives (e.g., density, height, pedestrian
orientation, parking reductions).

Preserve the natural character of the Newport peninsula--its remaining stands of
significant native vegetation--by utilizing creative site planning on both public and
private development projects. Carefully monitor potential impacts of new
development and redevelopment efforts. (Definition of "significant" here is relative,
since a single tree--a Douglas Fir or a Monterey Cypress, for example--is significant
when located anywhere along the Uplands Residential bluff skyline above the

. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Newport Peninsuia Urban Design Plan.



9.)

Page

Waterfront, helping form the peninsula's characteristic appearance from the South.)

Support the scenic restoration process (a) by implementing improvements within the
highway and local street rights-of-way and (b) through the development and
redevelopment processes of both commercial and residential lands. Scenic
enhancement measures will be compatible with development rights.

Resolve the traffic congestion and spatial limitations relating to use of the Lincoln
County Fairgrounds, the Newport High School, and the Newport Middle School.

. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Newport Peninsula Urban Design Plan.

224



Attachment “F”
2-7-20

» The average density of residential permits in High Density Residential (HDR) was
9.9 du per net acre.

* Nearly half of development was single-family (detached and attached), with the
majority in HDR (210 du) at an average of 8.2 du per net acre and most of the
remaining single-family development in LDR (128 du) at 4.8 du per net acre.

* Most high density multifamily development was in HDR or Commercial Plan
Designations

* In HDR condos and apartments averaged 14.2 and 16.4 du per net acre
respectively

* In Commercial Plan Designations condos average 32.6 du per net acre

Table 12. Density of dwelling units approved through building permits issued for
new residential construction, dwelling units per net acre by Comprehensive Plan
Designation, Newport UGB, January 1, 2000 and December 31, 2010

Total DU, Lots with
a Permit Issued Percent Acres of Density
2000 to 2010 of DU Land (DU/Acre)

Low Density Residential

Single-Family 128 19% 26.5 4.8
Manufactured 34 5% 4.2 8.2
Dup/TrSF/Quad 2 0% 0.2 12.5
Condo 2 0% 0.2 8.7

LDR Sub_trotal 166 24% 31 5.3

High Density Residential 0%

Single-Family 210 30% 25.5 8.2
Manufactured 86 12% 9.6 9.0
Dup/TrSF/Quad 4 1% 0.2 25.0
Condo 81 12% 5.6 14.4
Apartment 56 8% 3.4 16.4

HDR Su@ta! 437 63% 44 9.9

Commercial Plan Designation 0%

Single-Family 6 1% 0.4 14.0
Manufactured 1 0% 0.1 9.1
Dup/TrSF/Quad 4 1% 0.1 28.6
Condo 74 11% 2.3 32.6
Apartment 3 0% 0.1 42.9

Commercial Subtotal 88 13% 3 29.1

Source: City of Newport Building Permit Database and Lincoln County Assessor's Database, 2010
Analysis by ECONorthwest

Note: DU is dwelling units

Note: “Total DU, Lots with a Permit Issued 2000 to 2010” shows the number of dwelling units on lots where a permit was issued

during the 10-year period. Accounting for the newly permitted and existing dwellings on the lots is important for accurately
calculating the density of development on the lots

Note: Density was calculated based on Total DU divided by acres of land. Although some of the total dwellings were not developed
over the 10-year period, accurately calculating residential density requires accounting for existing dwelling units.

The Joint Center for Housing Studies indicates that demand for higher density housing
types exists among certain demographics. They conclude that because of persistent income
disparities, as well as the movement of the echo boomers into young adulthood, housing
demand may shift away from single-family detached homes toward more affordable
multifamily apartments, town homes, and manufactured homes.

Page 112. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Housing

225




Forty-two percent of needed dwelling units will locate in the Low Density Residential
designation.

Forty-seven percent of needed dwellings will locate in the High Density Residential
designation.

Eleven percent of needed dwelling units will locate in commercial plan designations.

Table 15. Allocation of new housing units by plan designation, Newport, 2011-
2031
Plan Designation
Low Density High Density Commercial
Residential Residential Designations Total
Housing Type DU GrossAc| DU GrossAc| DU GrossAc| DU GrossAc
Single-family detached 339 69 169 21 0 0| 508 91
Multifamily 17 2 229 14 93 6] 339 21
Total 356 71 398 35 93 6] 847 112
Percent of Acres and Units
Single-family detached 40% 62% 20% 19% 0% 0%| 60% 81%
Multifamily 2% 2% 27% 12% 11% 5%| 40% 19%
Total 42% 64% 47% 31% 11% 5%| 100% 100%

Source: ECONorthwest
Note: Multifamily includes single-family attached.

The final step of the housing needs analysis is an evaluation of the sufficiency of vacant
residential land with the Newport UGB to accommodate expected residential growth over
the 2011 to 2031 period. This section includes an estimate of Newport's residential land
sufficiency, based on the analysis in the housing needs analysis.

Table 16 shows a comparison of buildable residential land with demand for residential land

to determine the sufficiency of residential land in the Newport UGB to accommodate growth
over the 2011 to 2031 period. Table 16 shows:

Page 114e.

Land Supply. Newport has more than 1,700 acres of vacant and partially vacant
buildable land.

Land Demand. Newport will have demand for about 106 gross acres of residential
land.

Land Sufficiency. Newport has enough land to accommodate residential growth

over the 20-year period, with a surplus of about 1,650 gross acres of residential land.

CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Housing.

226




227

Attachment “G”
2-7-20

CITY OF NEWPORT
NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING

The Newport Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on Monday, April 13, 2020, at 7:00
p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers to consider File No. 2-Z-20, amendments to Newport Municipal Code
(NMC) Section 14.30.080, Permitted Uses; and Section 14.30.100, Special Zoning Standards in Design Review
Districts, to prohibit residential uses at street grade in C-2 zoned areas within the Historic Nye Beach Design
Review District that are along the west side of NW CIiff Street between NW 2nd Court and W Olive Street. The
current regulations allow residential uses at street grade at this location. Pursuant to Newport Municipal Code
(NMC) Section 14.36.010, the Commission must find that the change is required by public necessity and the
general welfare of the community in order for it to make a recommendation to the City Council that the
amendments be adopted. Testimony and evidence must be directed toward the request above or other criteria,
including criteria within the Comprehensive Plan and its implementing ordinances, which the person believes
to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue with sufficient specificity to afford the city and the parties
an opportunity to respond to that issue precludes an appeal, including to the Land Use Board of Appeals,
based on that issue. Testimony may be submitted in written or oral form. Oral testimony and written
testimony will be taken during the course of the public hearing. The hearing may include a report by staff,
testimony from the applicant and proponents, testimony from opponents, rebuttal by the applicant, and
questions and deliberation by the Planning Commission. Written testimony sent to the Community
Development (Planning) Department, City Hall, 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365, must be received
by 5:00 p.m. the day of the hearing to be included as part of the hearing or must be personally presented
during testimony at the public hearing. The proposed code amendments, additional material for the
amendments, and any other material in the file may be reviewed or a copy purchased at the Newport
Community Development Department (address above). Contact Derrick Tokos, Community Development
Director (541) 574-0626 (address above).

(FOR PUBLICATION ONCE ON FRIDAY, April 3, 2020)



day of
cluded
ring or
ly pre-
imony
1g. The
mend-
mate-
ments,
erial in
viewed
sed i?;
mun

rtment
‘ontact
mmu-
lirector
ddress

INS

between the hours of _ 900 am_ and _500 5 m., or online at

\oueet aaaress)

N/A

_ This

228

budget is for an 1Xi annual; [ biennial budget period. This budget was prepared on a basis of accounting that is: (X the same as; [J

different than the preceding year. If different, the major changes and their effect on the budget are:
Possible combination with Newport Fire Department

Contact Telephone number E-mail
Peter Boris, Pres ( 541 )867-3719 paboris@peak.org
FINANCIAL SUMMARY —RESOURCES
Actual Amounts Adopted Budget Approved Budget
TOTAL OF ALL FUNDS 2018 2019 |This Year: 2019 -20 20 |Next Year: 2020 -20 21
1. Beginning Fund Balance/Net Working Capital..... 86,947.00 99,880.00 100,000.00
2. Fees, Licenses, Permits, Fines, Assessments & Other Service Charges... 0.00 0.00 0.00
3. Federal, State & all Other Grants, Gifts, Allocations & Donations........... 0.00 0.00 0.00
4. Revenue from Bonds & Other DEbt....v.eceeeceeeeeeerrennns 0.00 0.00 0.00
5. Interfund Transfers/Internal Service Reimbursements «.......co.owveenennn. 0.00 0.00 0.00
6. All Other Resources Except Current Year Property Taxes............oeeuen. 12,999.00 12,500.00 15,000.00
7. Current Year Property Taxes Estimated to be Received...........coou.rvonren.. 243,119.00 270,742.00 284,279.00
8. Total Resources —add Hnes 1 throUGh 7.....e.eeceeoreereonreesreeresseesresesessns 343,065.00 383,042.00 399,279.00|
FINANCIAL SUMMARY —REQUIREMENTS BY OBJECT CLASSIFICATION
9. PErSONNE! SEIVICES ....ucvncrrerreenresrranrsesseserssssssssessesssseaseasssessessssssnssseesss 0.00 0.00 0.00
10. Materials and SEIVICES ... everieresreesseeeseaseerseeesearenssessessens o 255,666.00 288,177.00 310,071.77
11. Capital Outlay .......... 0.00 0.00 0.00
12. Debt SErVICE .uvuvrvrecreeensiereecaeseseenen 0.00 0.00 0.00
13. Interfund Transfers.........ooveecverreennee, 0.00 0.00 0.00
14, Contingencies............ 0.00 85,000.00 85,000.00
15. Special Payments 0.00 0.00 0.00
16. Unappropriated Ending Balance and Reserved for Future Expenditure ... 87,399.00 9,865.00 4,207.23
17. Total Requirements—add lines 9 through 16.........ccoeeeruvererrvecresrecnnnss 343,065.00 383,042.00 399,279.00}

FINANCIAL SUMMARY —REQUIREMENTS AND FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES (FTE) BY OR

Name of Organizational Unit or Program

CGANIZATIONAL UNIT OR PROGRAM*

FTE for Unit or Program : e e i
Name CITY OF NEWPORT 255,666.00! 288,177.00! 281,871.77
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES

Rate or Amount Imposed | Rate or Amount Imposed | Rate or Amount Approved
Permanent Rate Levy ............ (Rate Limit.9634 Per $1000) 243119 270742 284279
Local Option Levy
Levy for General Obligation Bonds.............. Sebenssuiseennsstit Hae AL

(87-03)

THE DATE SPECIFIED IN
THIS SUMMONS OR ON
A FUTURE DATE, and may
make such orders and
take such action as autho-
rized by law. RIGHTS
AND OBLIGATIONS 48
YOU HAVE A RIGHT
BE REPRESENTED BY
AN_ATTORNEY IN THIS
MATTER. If you are cur-
rently represented b
an attorney, CONTAC
YOUR ATTORNEY IMME-
DIATELY UPON RECEIV-
ING THIS NOTICE. Your
Erevious attorney may not
e representl% l}ou in
this matter. IF CAN-
NOT AFFORD TO HIRE
AN ATTORNEY and you
meet the state's financial
giwdellnes, you are enti-
fled to have an attorney
appointed for you at state
expense. TO REQUEST
APPOINTMENT OF AN
ATTORNEY TO REPRE-
SENT YOU AT STATE
EXPENSE, YOU MUST
IMMEDIATELY CONTACT
the Lincoln County Juve-

nile Court, 225 West Olive
Street, Newport, Oregon
97365, phone number
(541) 265-4236, between
the hours of 8:00 a.m.
and 5:00 p.m. for further
information. IF YOU WISH
TO HIRE AN ATTORNEY,
please retain one as soon
as possible and have the
attorney present at the
above hearing. if you need
help finding an ‘attorney,
éou may call the Oregon
tate Bar's Lawyer Refer-
ral Service at (503) 684-
3763 or toll free in @on
at goa 452-7636. IF YOU
ARE REPRESENTED BY
AN ATTORNEY, IT IS
YOUR RESPONSIBILITY
TO_MAINTAIN CONTACT
WITH YOUR ATTORN

YOUR WHEREABOUTS
(2) If ¥ou contest the ﬁeﬁ-
tion, the court will sched-
ule a hearing on the alle-
gations of the petition and
order you to appear per-
sonally and may sched-

ule other hearings related
to the petition and order
ou to appear personally.
F YOU ARE ORDERE

TO APPEAR, YOU MUST
APPEAR PERSONALLY
IN THE COURTROOM,
UNLESS THE COURT
HAS GRANTED YOU AN
EXCEPTION IN ADVANGCE
UNDER ORS 419B.918
TO APPEAR BY OTHER
MEANS _ INCLUDING,
BUT NOT LIMITED TO,

AN A

ATTEND THE HEARING(S)
IN YOUR PLACE. P
TIONER'S ATTORNEY.
Michelle Branam, Assis-
tant Attorney General,
Department of Justice,
1162 Court Street NE,
Salem, OR 97301-4096,
Phone: 2503) 934-4400,
ISSUED this 26th day of
March, 2020. Issued by:
Michelle Branam #032737
Assistant Attorney Gen-
eral. A3 A10 A17 (88-17)

H(3/20

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC
HEARING

CITY OF NEWPORT:
The Newport Planning
Commission will hold a
public hearing on Mon-
da&;. April 13, 2020, at
7:00 p.m. in the City Hall
Council Chambers to
consider File No. 2-Z-20,
amendments to New&ort
Municipal Code (NMC)
Section 14.30.080, Per-
mitted Uses; and Section
14.30.100, Special Zon-
ing Standards in Design
Review Districts, to pro-
hibit residential uses at
street grade in C-2 zoned
areas within the His-
toric Nye Beach Design
Review ™ District that are
along the west side of NW
Cliff "Street between NW
2nd Court and W Olive
Street. The current regu-
lations allow residential
uses at street grade at
this location. Pursuant to
Newgort Municipal Code
(NMC) Section 14.36.010,
the Commission must find

that the change is required
by public necessity and
the general welfare of the
community in order for it
to make a recommenda-
tion to the City Council
that the amendments be
ad?})ted. Testimony and
evidence must be directed
toward the request above
or other criteria, including
criteria  within the Com-
prehensive Plan and its
implementing ordinances,
which the person believes
to apply to the decision.
Failure to raise an issue
with sufficient specific-
ity to afford the city and
the parties an opportunity
to respond to that issue
Freclu_des an  appeal,
ncluding to the Land
Use Board of Appeals,
based on that issue. Tes-
timony may be submitted
in written or oral form.
Oral testimony and written
testimony will be taken
during the course of the
ublic hearing. The hear-
ng may include a report

by staff, testimony from
the a%plicant and pro-
ponents, testimony from
opponents, rebuttal by
the applicant, and ques-
tions and deliberation by
the Planmn% Commission.
Written testimony sent to
the Community Develop-
ment Plannigﬂ) Depart-
ment, City Hall, 169 SW
Coast Hwy, Newport, OR
97365, must be received
by 5:00 p:m. the day of
the hearing to be included
as part of the hearing or
must be personally pre-
sented dunng testimony
at the public hearing. The
proposed code amend-
ments, additional mate-
rial for the amendments,
and any other material in
the file may be reviewed
or a copy purchased at
the Newport Community
Development Department
gddyess above). Contact

errick Tokos, Commu-
ni? Develc_)gment Director
(541) 574-0626 (address
above). A3 (86-03;



AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING OF NOTICE OF LAND USE ACTION
File No(s). 2-Z-20

I, Sherri Marineau, duly appointed Executive Assistant of the City of Newport, do hereby
certify that the notice of a land use action attached hereto and by this reference made a part
hereof is a true and complete copy of the original of such notice, and that said original was
deposited in the United States mails at Newport, Oregon, with first-class postage thereon
prepaid, addressed to each of the persons owning property and entitled to receiving notice,
as said persons are named in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and by this reference made a part
of hereof, at the last known address of each person as shown by the records of the Lincoln

County Assessor at Newport, Oregon, on the 6th day of March, 2020.

STATE OF OREGON )
)ss.
County of Lincoln ) %
\ ‘/W/(W
Sherri Marineau
Executive Assistant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this @ day of M&,K/' b ,20 20 .

OFFICIAL STAMP —7 '
GLORIA TUGKER (,—’:{ N [%ZM

NOTARY PUBLIC-OREGON i
COMMISSIONNO.966027 Notary Public of Oregon

(MY COMMISSION EXPIRES SEPTEMBER 10, 2021

My Commission Expires: Q/ / O/ e

229



o
™M
N

phone: 541.574.0629
fax: 541.574.0644

CITY OF NEWPORT
169 SW COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OREGON 97365

http://newportoregon.gov

COAST GUARD CITY, USA mombetsu, japan, sister city

PUBLIC NOTICE OF
POTENTIAL LAND USE CHANGE

This is to notify you that the City of Newport has proposed land use regulations
that may affect the permissible uses of your property and other properties.

Specifically, the City is considering an ordinance that would prohibit new residential use
at street grade for property situated along the west side of NW CIiff Street between NW
27 Court and W Olive Street. The proposed changes are contained in draft Ordinance
Number 2165.

On Monday, April 13, 2020, at 7:00 pm or soon thereafter, the City of Newport Planning
Commission will conduct a public hearing regarding the adoption of Ordinance Number
2165. The hearing will be held in the Newport City Hall Council Chambers, located at 169
SW Coast Highway, Newport, OR 97365.

The city has determined that adoption of this ordinance may affect the permissible uses
of your property, and other properties in the affected zone, and may change the value of
your property. Newport Municipal Code Section 14.36.010 allows city land use
regulations to be amended by the City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning
Commission, when it is determined that such changes are required by public necessity
and the general welfare of the community. These are the approval criteria for the
proposed land use regulations, and testimony and evidence must be directed toward
these criteria or other criteria, including criteria within the Newport Comprehensive Plan
and its implementing ordinances, which persons believe apply to the decision. Failure to
raise an issue with sufficient specificity to afford the city and the parties an opportunity to
respond to an issue precludes an appeal, including to the Land Use Board of Appeals,
based on that issue.

Testimony may be submitted in written or oral form. Oral testimony and written testimony
will be taken during the course of the public hearing. The hearing may include a report by
staff, and testimony from proponents and opponents to draft Ordinance Number 2165.
Written testimony sent to the Community Development (Planning) Department, City Hall,
169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365, must be received by 5:00 p.m. the day of the
hearing to be included as part of the hearing or must be personally presented during
testimony at the public hearing.

Draft Ordinance Number 2165, and related materials, are available for inspection and may
be purchased for reasonable cost at the Community Development Department, Newport
City Hall, located at 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport Oregon 97365. For additional
information concerning draft Ordinance Number 2165, you may contact Derrick Tokos,
City of Newport Community Development Director, at 541-574-0626 or
d.tokos@newporioregon.gov. Testimony may also be submitted via this email address.




BOXER CHARLOTTE A
606 N TOMAHAWK ISLAND DR
PORTLAND; OR 97217

HALCYON HOTELS LLC
ATTN MCCORMACK WINTHROP
2601 NW THURMAN ST
PORTLAND; OR 97210

NEWMAN EMILY J
231 NW CLIFF ST
NEWPORT; OR 97365

PELICAN HOUSE LLC
ATTN GERALD HUGHES
PO BOX 10788
SPOKANE; WA 99209

CITY OF NEWPORT
CITY MANAGER
169 SW COAST HWY
NEWPORT; OR 97365

JONES JOHN B
2140 LOS ANGELES AVE
BERKELEY; CA 94707

OCONNELL KENNETH R TRUSTEE &
OCONNELL GWYNETH P TRUSTEE
220 WEST 23RD AVE
EUGENE; OR 97405

WETHERILL JAMES G &
WETHERILL LANA R
25804 NE OLSON RD

BATTLE GROUND; WA 98604

Exhibit “A”
Mailing Lables for Measure 56
NW CIliff Street Public Notice
File 2-Z-20

—
™M
N

CROWE RENTALS LLC
PO BOX 411
TOLEDO; OR 97391

MATEAM PARTNERSHIP
ATTN FORD SALLY M
267 NW CLIFF
NEWPORT; OR 97365

ORCA HOUSE LLC
PO BOX 10788
SPOKANE; WA 99209



”'F"‘;:‘r“ i

1a4

!
-.gl
Ii

gl , .ﬁ,f‘é'l‘_. -

,;.“,. _-z:f::su_, L
| I

0 0.008 0.016 0

Printed 02/20/2020
Lincoln County government use only. Use for any other purpose is entirely at the risk of the user.

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for, or be suitable for legal,

anninearina ar clirnvavina niirnneae | leare ehniild raviaw tha nrimarns infarmatinn eniirrac tn acrartain thair 1ieahilitv




	Planning Commission Regular Session Agenda
	2018-2828 - Draft PC Reg Session Minutes 04-13-2020
	2018-2827 - Memorandum
	2018-2827 - Attachment A
	2018-2827 - Attachment B
	2018-2827 - Attachment C
	2018-2827 - Attachment D
	2018-2827 - Attachment E
	2018-2827 - Attachment F
	2018-2827 - Attachment G
	2018-2827 - Attachment H
	2018-2827 - Attachment I
	2018-2827 - Attachment J
	2018-2827 - Attachment K
	2018-2827 - Attachment L
	2018-2827 - Attachment M
	2018-2827 - Attachment N
	2018-2827 - Attachment O
	2018-2825 -  Memorandum
	2018-2825 - Staff Memorandum - CORRECTED
	2018-2825 - Attachment A
	2018-2825 - Attachment B
	2018-2825 - Attachment C
	2018-2825 - Attachment D
	2018-2825 - Attachment E
	2018-2825 - Attachment F
	2018-2825 - Attachment G
	2018-2825 - Attachment H
	2018-2825 - Additional Public Testimony - Grusing
	2018-2825 - Additional Public Testimony - Chadwich
	2018-2826 - Memorandum
	2018-2826 - Staff Memorandum
	2018-2826 - Attachment A
	2018-2826 - Attachment B
	2018-2826 - Attachment C
	2018-2826 - Attachment D
	2018-2826 - Attachment E
	2018-2826 - Attachment F
	2018-2826 - Attachment G



